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About PIC

PIC is a specialist insurer which has
become a leader in the UK pension
risk transfer market by focusing on
our purpose: to pay the pensions of
our current and future policyholders.

We aim to balance the interests of

all our stakeholders - policyholders,
employees, shareholders, regulators
and others - with excellence in customer
service at the heart of what we do.
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Glossary

The front cover image is of PIC
policyholder Rachel Fennell, who
recounted her newly discovered
passion for cycling in one of a series
of inspirational stories by PIC
policyholders, shared during the
2021 Policyholder Hour.
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Solvency ll ratio Adjusted operating profit Financial investments

Premiums Policyholder satisfaction Environmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") assets

Employee pride in working Gender pay gap Fitch rating

for PIC In May 2021 Fitch Ratings affirmed PIC's
A+ {Strong) Insurer Financial Strength
("IFS7) rating,

1 2020 odjusted operating profit has been restated to include the Restricted Tier 1 coupon in operating profit

Find out more at
4— Www.pensioncorporation.com
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Our geographic footprint

Generating social
value across the UK

Our investments, which have a lasting impact on
current and future generations, are socially beneficial
outcomes of our purpose.

These maps show the value of PIC’s direct investments
and policyholder payments across the UK.

Investments
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Pensions paid
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** Pansions paid from 2008-2021.
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Creatmg social
value by dellverlng
__lon our purpose |

Funding emergency
accommodation in Bromley

After a number of years of moving from one temporary
home to another, @ mother and her two children moved
into a beautifully refurbished three-bedroom house in
Bromley in November 2021, thanks to PIC's £67 million
investrment in an innovative affordakle housing deal
with the London Borough of Bromiey. The funds were
used to purchase 300 affordable properties outright,
significantly reducing the Council’s cost of emergency
nightly accommodation.

For mere information see our
Investmants section on p28-33

affordable properties
purchased outright

s
¥

v
._»’f -\..,.f/
We are delighted to have completed
this deal, which will allow us to help
families in genuine need whilst better
managing Bromley’'s budget. I'd like to
thank the team at PIC for their flexible
and innovative approach to structuring
this deal, which is positive news as we
seek to proactively tackle the blight
of temporary homelessness.”

Peter Morgan
Bromley's Executive Councillor
for Renewal, Recreation and Housing

04 Pensian Insurance Corporation Group Limited  Annual Report and Accounts 2021
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Investing £130 million in the North West
of England

PIC's £130 mullion investrnent in a new waterfront neighbourhood, Wirral Waoters One ("WWQO"),
is the anchor project of Peel L&P's Wirral Waters, the UK's largest urban regeneration project
and a key part of the levelling up agenda. The Wirral Waters scheme is a central Government-
supported project te redevelop o brownfield site into a new waterfront neighbourheod,
creating up to 20,000 permanent jobs, as part of the regeneration of Wirral, which sits within
the Liverpool City Region,

Working 1in close partnership with regeneration specialist Peel L&P and Wirral Metrapolitan
Rerongh Council (“WMBCY), DIC is Uie sule Investor tor the development of a Bulld-te-Rent
scheme, comprising 500 one- and two-bedroom apartments, with an afferdable housing
component of 100 homes, Rents on the affordable units will be o maximum of 80% of open
market value, delivering significant social impact. The deal closed in January 2022,

For more information, see cur
Investments section cn p28=-33

The council has worked closely with both Peel L&P and PIC

to bring forward this project, which will be delivering jobs and
affordable housing for people in Wirral. It is also another key
moment in the continuing wider regeneration in the borough,
tying in with the work well underway in Birkenhead to drive
forward the town’s renaissance and showing the increasing
confidence of investors in the plans for Wirral's future.”

Councillor Tony Jones,
Chair of Wirral Council’s Economy,
Regeneration & Development Committee

invested



Manchester one year on...
£2 million a week injected
into Manchester’s economy
during the first year of

New Victoria development.

In September 2020 PIC invested £130 millign In the

Company's first private rental sector ("PRS") project,
New Victoria, in central Manchaster.

During the first year of construction of the award-winning
developrnant, which is helping regenerate a key part of the
city centre, £50 million was injected into Greater Manchester's
econamy through local employment and the sourcing of
materials, by our development partners. A further £65 million
was spent with small businesses supplying materials for the
project as part of the wider supply chdin across the North
wWest. The development 1s employing S50 people during the
construction phose,

Once complete, New Victona will comprise of 520 new
residential apartments and 5,000 square feet of commercial
space. The development will include 460m? of new
landscaped space, the first time this site has had any green
space in over 100 years.

The cash flows from the rental aportments wall be used to
pay the pensions of PIC's policyholders for decades ta come.

standards in the design of the New Victoria

@ For mare information on our high anvironmental
development, see p53

We are very pleased and proud to

have brought so much social value to the
North West through this award-winning
project. As an outcome of this purposeful
investment, hundreds of millions of
pounds are being spent over the course
of the project in the local economy,
supporting jobs, helping the environment
and benefitting the Government’s wider
levelling up agenda.

| would like to see development projects
like this in every region and city of the UK,
a new gdolden era of urban regeneration
and job creation, helping pay our
policyholders’ pensions and creating

real social value that will also benefit
future generations.”

Tracy Blackwell
Chief Executive Officer of PIC

08 pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited  Annual Report and Accounts 2001
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Our business

Our purpose

The purpose of PIC is to pay the pensions Investments with a losting impact on current and future

of our current and future policyhoiders generations in areas including renewable energy, social
* housing and national infrastructure are socially beneficial

Pensions for our grawing palicyholder base are backed outcomes of our focus on our purpose. Excellence in

by ¢ purpeseful investment strateay. This stratedy pricritises  custamer service and balanced stakehalder relationships
the manodement of key risks, including Environmentol, Social  4re fundamental to our appraach.

and Governance ("ESG"), as integral to paying the pensions

of our policyholders over the coming decades,

@

Increosing investmentsinio
i renewable energy, with n
concurrent reductionin
exposure to carbon-
producing industries ’gy

Stimulating, fair and Partnership model
rewarding workplace of endagement

8 A8r
Pensions for life; Significant investrnents in
excellence in urban regeneration, social
customer setvice housing and areas that

batance intergeneraticnal
equity

i e

Growing store of value Active engagerment in public
expected to provide secure, debuates arcund purposeful,
long-term returns long-term investment in the
econamy and stakeholder
capitalism

Fens'or insuraras Cornaration Group bimited |, ArnualRapsort and Accounis 2027




Our customers are our priority

We value all our stakeholders and work hard to provide
an exceptional service to all our customers {policyholders,
trusteas and sponsaors). We listen to and are responsive

to their requirements.

For more information see
'Our people and culture’ section p54-59




Chairman’s statement
Jon Aisbitt Chairman

Our strong presence in
areas like social housing,
renewable energy and
now in the private rental
sector, means that we are
becoming ever more visible
stewards of the economy.”

Adjusted operating
profit

Net Zero carbon
emission target

R orporation Group)



Wind turbines in the Walney Extension Offshare Windfarm, one of
P s investments in renewalile enierpy,

In essence, PIC is a simple business: we
take on assets transferred from defined
benefit pension schemes and we then pay
our policyholders’ pensions, which is the
Group's purpose.

This very specific focus has stood us 10 good stead as the
pandamic continues to work its way through society and

the economy, and we report q solvency ratic of 168% at year
end (FY2020:157%), with an adjusted operating profit, the
Group's preferred assessment of the long-term nature of

the business, of £533 million (FY2020: £349 million). The Group
has been successful in managing our risks, developing our
capabilities, and creating long-term value,

The Board has continued the evolution of the Group's
strategy this year based on the long-term outlook for the
business and the significant, and growing, market in which
we operate. However, the risks and opporturities thrown

up by the pandemic on society, on the economy and on
markets, are inevitably shaping the short- and medium-term
business response ond Board focus.

Risk management

The impact ef Covid-19 across society has raised many
questions for businesses. For the Group this includes keeping
a close eye on how Covid-19 affects the economy and society.
But the wider effects of lockdown on the population's mental
health and choice of career has led to o greater focus on
flexible working and social vaiye, It's not yet clear how

these will affect the Group and as we have a strong purpose
and culture, so far they have been muted. As with many
companies at this time we are continuing ta evolve our
appreach and have provided greater flexibility to employees
through hybrid waorking.

The economic effects of the pandemic, and whether there
is anincreased likelhood of corporate defaults, the main risk
to our portfolio, has been discussed at length during

Board meetings.

The defensive nature and preactive management of the
portfolio mean that so far we have sean no defaults and
lirmited downgrades,

The third impact has been the market volatility, extremely
compressed credit spreads, and increased inflation that
we have successfully managed by focusing on balance
sheet resilience. By contrast, pension scheme funding levels
have been affected, consequently lowering risk transfer
affordability. | am confident that the long-term de-risking
pension schemes have undartaken means that our market
has very strong prospects, and certainly we go into the new
year with a very full pipeline af potential new business.

Cerporate Governance
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Social value

Rather more positively, we have been pleased to support

the continuad rise of Enwvironmental, Social and Governance
{"ESG") considerations. The Boord sets the Graup's overall
approach to £SG, recodnising that issues such as climate
change, human rights violations and corruption all have
detrimental social and financial effects and that, as

a significant asset owner, we are increasingly well placed

to positively influence societal outcomes. Climare chrnge in
particular cuts across every area of the business and for this
recison we instituted an ESG Committee, consisting of the
Chairs of every olher Board Committee to consider the wider
implications. The Board was also pleased to commit to the
Group to be carbon neutral as a business by 2025 and to be
Net Zero by 2050 across all sources of emissions, including
within our £50 billion investment portfolio. It's important to
note that we are very aware of the social value of our
investments and other business activities and, as a long-term
business, what makes sense for society helps us fulfil our
purpose over decades. As such, the Board has also focused
on the avelution of aur asset origination capabilities. Cur
strong presence in areas ke social housing, renewable
energy and now in the private rental sector, means that we
are pecoming ever more visible stewards of the economy.
This includes waorking increasingly closely with local councils
to help them tackie previously intractable problems, such as
homelessness (see Bromley case study on page 4) and the
regenaration of urban centres (see Wirral case study an
pages 5

Board changes

There have been a number of changes to the Board this
year. We were pleased to welcome Sally Bnidgeland, julia
Goh, Jake Biair and Dom Veney onte the Board. Sally has
taken over as Chair of the Risk Committee, Julia joins us as

an Independent Non-Executive Director and Jake joins as

a shareholder nominated Non-Executive Director, following
HPS Investments’ acquisition of more than 10% of the Group’s
ordinary share capital. Dom joins as an Executive Director
following his appointmant as Group CFO in December 2021.

| also want to thank eur two departing Board members. Steve
Sarjant retirad in March, after six years on the Board, stepping
down from his role as Chair of the Risk Committee at the
same time. Rob Sewell, PIC's former CFQ, retired from the
Board and the Group in December Rob was PIC's longest-
serving Director, having joined in 2008, playing a key role in
the developmeant of the business over that period. | especially
want to thank him far his efforts during that long tenure.

Finally, in January 2022, the Group announced my decision

to step down as Chairman, once a successaer has been
identified. | took this decision in the best interests of the
Group becouse, as we look forward over the next few years,
we are expecting a period of significant growth in the pension
risk transfer market and at the same time we will need to
oversee several key Board appointmeants. Under the Financial
Reporting Council’s (“FRC*) nine-year rule for Board members,
| would have had to step down in 2025, part way through this
expected period of change. | will of course remain in place as
long as needed to ensure a smooth transition process.

2021 was another strong year for the Group, building on past
success and continuing our investment in the business to
ensure we are able to capitalise on future ocpportunity.

Jon Aisbitt
Chgirman

1



Chief Executive Officer’s review
Tracy Blackwell Chief Executive Officer

As we back the pensions
of older generations,

our investments fund
the vital infrastructure
needed by younger and
future generations.”

Solvency ratio

Overall

portfolio size

Policyholder
satisfaction

Pension msurance Corpeoration Group Limited | annaal Report and ACCCHnTE:



itis extremely important that emphasis
in a business such as PIC with a clearly
defined purpose - to pay the pensions
of our current and future policyholders -
is squarely on resilience and long-term
value creation.

The centrality of our policyholders to our business model
dictates the importance of protecting cur balance sheet to
ensure we remain a strong, profitable company; the evolution
of our purposeful investment strategy; the way we approach
and manage risk; and our approach to continually investing in
customer service to provide the service levels our policyholders
should expect from us today and throughout their lives

This focus has served us well over the past 15 years from
when the business was established and has aliowed us

1o publish a set of results for 2021 that demonstrate

a resilient business with a considerable and rapidly
incregsing presence across the economy, as the gecgraphic
faotprint map on pages 2 and 3 of this Annual Report shows,

Group highlights

At year end, PIC had a solvency ratio of 168% (FY2020: 157%),
demonstrating a robust balance sheet, and had an adjusted
operating prafit, the Group's praefarrad assessment of

the long-term nature of the business, of £533 million

(FY2020: £349 million).

Our policyholders gave us an overall satisfaction score

of 99.6% (FY2020: 98.7%), proving the success of our
continued investment in customer care throughout

the pandemic. Focusing on our investment strategy,

we sionificantly increased our ability to invest in the Uk's
private rental sector ("PRSY), announcing two transactions,
including our cornerstone investment in the UK's largest
urban regeneration project, in Wirral.

Finally, we were delighted to join the UN-convened

Net Zere Asset Owner Alliance, announced our intention
1o be net zero by 2050, and early In 2022 published cur
first Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures
("TCFD*) report, which mapped the carbon footprint

of our portfolio.

Corporate Governance
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Pension Risk Transfer market

The year started slowly in the pension risk transfer ("PRT*)
market, o consequence of several factors including the
Covid-19 related disruption 1o trustee meetings dunng 2020.
However, the second half of the year saw significant incredsea
in demand for de-risking from schemes, driven by much
better funding positions due to appreciating asset values.

Of the £4.7 billien of new business that we completed during
the year, more than £4.3 billion was completed in the second
half. About half of our new business premiums came from
onea schame, the £2.2 bithon buyout with the Metal Box
Pension Scherme, in what was the largest transaction

of the year across the market.

Alongside increased demand from trustees, there has been
increased competition within the PRT market, but nothing
we haven't seen before. We are happy te be selective on
new business, as we have always been, and certainly do not
chase annual market share. Qur focus is on long-term value
creation, alongside value for our customers. This approach
15 as good for trustees as it s for the providers of our capital:
profitable, stable businesses are reliable partners for

the long term.

Trane ey

~
§
y

The centrality of our policyholders to our
business model dictates the importance
of protecting our balance sheet te ensure
we remain a strong, profitable company.”

For more information see
‘Our strategic objectives’ section p18-~21
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Chief Executive Officer’s review continued

Asset monagement

When sourcing assets to back these pansion liabilities, our
philosophy is to only take risk where we are able to generate
excess returns on a risk adjusted basis, otherwise we hold
risk-free assets, such as UK gavernment bonds. Secondly,
we hove g redulatory requirement to moich the future
pansion payments with high-quality assets.

Finally, the more social value there is in the assets we hald,
the morea likely they are to be good long-term invastments
and support our pension payments for decodes to come

As o cautious, risk-averse invester, we started reducing our
exposure to higher-risk investmeants — primarily those related
to cyclical consumer inidustrias — in 2018, because we ware
concerned about the potential for some sort of economic

or credit downturn and we wanted o protect the portfolio.
I'm very pleased that we saw no defaults at all in the
portfolio and very limited downgrades (less than 0.1% of
corporate and private investments) (o sub-invesiment grade.

Of the £4.7 billion of new business that
we completed during the year, more
than £4.3 billion was completed in the
second haif.”

Houses on sglter Lane, Sedgefield, owned by Livin Housing,
PIC has invested g total of £95 milllon with Livin Housing

Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")

Of our total portfolio of £511 bllion {FY2020: £49.6 billion),

at year end we hald E5G assets to the value of £10.9 billion
(FY2020. £101 billion). During the year we invested £2,273 miflion
i privately sourced delst, including in social housing and
renawable enardy, our highest ever annual total,

We were particularly pleased to announce an innovative
£67 milion debt investment in the London Borough of
Bromiley to help alleviate local emergency homelessness.
The funds will allow the Councit to purchase up to 300
affordable properties outright, sionificontly reducing the
cost of ernergency nightly accommaodation

These types of assets help regenerate cur citres, create jobs,
help fund the Race to Net Zero and support levelling up.
indeed, as we back the pensions of older generations, our
investments fund the vital infrastructure needad by younger
and future generations,




PIC's CEG Tracy Blackwell and other senior members of the team visit
PIC's Manchaster New Victora development ane year into the build.
The development is providing £2 million g week for Manchester gng
the local economy during the construction phase.

Social value

Our investments in the private rental sector now total
£300 millien (FY2020: £130 mullion). This sector creates
long-term social value from ground-brecaking, through

the construction phase, and intc operation. For example,
since we broke ground on our award-winning first private
rental sector investment, the £130 million New Victeria
development in central Manchester, in Septamber 2020,
£2 million a week has been injected into Greater Manchester's
aconamy through local employment and the scurcing of
materials, with a further £65 million being spent with small
businessesin the supply chain across the North West.

The development is providing full-time employment for 550
people during the construction phase and will have provided
more than 3,000 apprentice weeks by the end of the project.
The development is also the first time this site has seen the
creation of any grean space far mare than 100 years,

Finally, | want to thank our employees for their commitment
and hard work in producing these results in what has heen
an intense year, which started in lockdown and has seen

a transition to much mare flexible ways of working. We
continue ta focus on their welfbeing, and also on diversity
and inclusion initiatives. In particutar, | was delighted that

we launched the PIC Academy, which will help us develop
diverse talent pipelines over the long term, and thot we were
able to successfully participate in the #100008lackinterns
mentoring scheme.

ot
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As aver, our entire focus remains on protecting our
policyholders' benefits through bolance sheet resilience
and a low-risk portfolio. The generation of social value

as an outcorne of our business activities means that we
have a business that is a good long-term investment for
the providers of our capital. | am delighted that we have
produced such a strong set of results, which lay the
foundations for success in 2022 and over the coming years.

Tracy Blackwell
Chief Executive Officer

15



Business model

Delivering value for
our stakeholders.

The purpose of PIC is to pay the pensions of our current and future policynolders. The key
steps in securing pensions and generating long-term shareholder returns are shown below.

Key steps

Manage our capital resocurces

» New business requires capital, which
is raised frorm equity and debt investors
or reinvested from our existing business,

s We maintain a capital buffer above
PIC's pensian ligbifities, protecting
policyholder pensions,

Saurce new
business liabilities

Source defined benefit {“DB") pension

liabilities {through either a pension

buy-in or buyout)

e PIC receives a premium for taking on the
risk associated with pansion liabifities.

Pension liabilities taken on are variabie,
due to longevity, interest rate and
inflation uncertainty.

Manage our risks and {re)invest
our dssets

» Where possible, liability cash flows are fixed
to maoke them more certain, allowing a more
spacific osset strategy. This means that:

» longevity riskis reinsurad to a third party;
and

e liobilities are hedged {(on o solvency basis)
for interest rate and inflation exposure,
using derivatives and other assets.

+ The ossets received as premiums [typically
gilts and cash) are reinvested.

« Our purposeful investment strategy means
we seek secure assets that match liabilities
for decades to come.

G Ty
Match asset
and liability

Pay the pensions of our policyholders

« Ensure that we pay our policyholders and
trustees accyurately and on time.

» Once pensions are paid, any surplus
capital and any profit senerated is released
back 1o our capital providers [dekbt holdars
and shareholdars), and/or remvested
bock into the business to source DB
pension liabilities.

& )
Pay the pensions Distribute returns to our capital
of our policyholders providers and for reinvest

surplus capital back into
the business

Visit the "What we do’ section of the PIC website
for descriptions of a buy-in and buyout at

www.pensioncorporation.com

16 Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited  AnnualReport and Accounts 2021



Stakeholder

Corporate Governance
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Outcome of our business model for our stakeholders

Policyholders

Best estimate liabllities, mode more certain
with reinsurance and hedging, are matched
with assets te back future pension payments
for our palicyholders.

a 10 20

= Cash payments due to pensioners
m Cash flows from assets

Cuash flows (£)

Trustees, Advisers
and DB pension
schema sponsors

PIC seeks to be innavative and flexible in pension
risk transfer transacticns with trustees, sponsors
and their advisers.

PIC won three industry cwards in 2021 based on the
transactions we have structured and completed.

. *
.ﬁ. The Institute of Puropean Pensions : FREIONS
%" Custornet Service AWARDS 2021 poy )
Eilir Samson
e rem—— witiNER

Society

Significant investment in urban regeneration,
social housing and renewable enerdy, as part
of our purposeful investment stratedy, all
areas which balance intergenerational equity.
The ossets PIC invests in have real social volue,
because what makes sense for society helps
the Company achieve its long-term aims.

Climate change considerations are increasingly
integrated throughout the organisation’s
decision-making processes.

£10.9 billion of ESG assets held at 31 December 2021
£3.2 billion” invested in the UK's sccial housing sector.
£1.3 billicn* invested in renewable energy.

E£2.9 billion* invested in the UK's education system,
including student accommodation.

£500 million invested in urban regenearation.

PIC hos committed to be Net Zero across all sources
of emissions by 2050 and cur own emissions by 2025.

Regulators

We seek to maintain open and constructive
relationships with our regulatars and
policymakers. We have continued to actively
engage with the PRA on the Solvency Il review.

Please read more in the ‘Staokeholder endgagement’
section on pages 44 to 47.

Counterparties

We have a partnership model of engagement
with our outsourced providers and key suppliers.

Please read more in the ‘Stakeholder engagement’
section on pages 44 to 47,

Employees

We provide the opportunity for cur employees
to work in a stimulating, fair and rewarding
workploce. We strive to create a diverse and
collaborative workforce focused on our purpose.

90% of our employees feel proud to work for PIC.

Please read more in the ‘Qur pecople and culture’
section on pages 54 1o 59,

Capital providers
{debt and equity)

Returns for our capital providers are generated
over the long term.

As policyholder liabilities {and the prudent
marging held above them) run off, excess capital
is returned to our copital providers or reinvested
back into the businass for future growth.

£9.1billion of excess assets are held to cover
solvency and prudent margins that will generate
future cash flows for reinvestment and returns.

* Vaolue as at 31 December 2021,

Hlustrative profile of future cash generation
from the current in-force business {Ebn - FY2021)

. [P

10 AT AR
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2027-2031

2032-2036
2037-2041

2042-2046
2047-2051
2062-2086
2057-2061

2062-2066
2066+




Our strategic objectives and key performance indicators

Strategic obhjective

Qur strategic objectives are designed to support
the business and to fulfil our purpose, which is (o pay
the pensions of our current and future policyholders

This means we pricritise a strond bolance sheet, long-term
value creation ond a purposeful investment strategy.

We maintain four strategic oblectives: financial strength
and cost efficiency; returns; reputation and conduct; and
growth and focus. Eight key performance indicators {"KP1s™
are designed 1o measure PIC’s progress against its strategic
objectives. These are reviewed annually to ensure that
they remain appropricate as we fulfilt sur purpose amidst

o changing economic and redulatory environment

Financial strength and cost efficiency

Maintain a scalable business model that optimises internal and external resources

Link to stakeholders Regulators

Performance in 2021

& PIC continues to be a leader in the UK pension risk
transfer market, with a long term market share of 22%.

» PIC maintained a robust solvency ratio of 168%,
with surplus funds of £27 billion in excess of sclvency
capital requirements.

£9.1 billion of assets held in excess of best estimate
of liabilities.

KPI to measure progress

Solvency I ratio (%)
The Solvency Il ratio is a regulatory capital measure
that demanstrates the Company's financial strength.

160 162
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Comments

PIC's salvency ratio improved to 168% (2020: 157%) in

o challenging environment due to management aclions taken
and the return from the in-force book. We utilise hedging to
provide protection for our sclvency balance sheet against
adverse economic fluctuations which has been particularly
important given the market volatility of the last few years.

Capital providers

* Trustees

« Operating expense ratio 0.39%.

» In May 2021, Fitch offirmed PIC's Insurer Finoncial
Strength rating at 'A+ [strong) and long-term Insurer
Default Rating at ‘A’ Both outlooks were affirmed
s ‘stable’.

Expense ratic (%)

The expense ratio is a measure of the operating efficiency
of PICG and reflects operating and Investment expenses
as o percentage of closing financial investments.

This ratio has been redefined to include the cost of our
equity release mortgage ("ERM") crigination fees which
were previously excluded. The prior year comparatives
have besenrestated accordingly.

03% 0.39
2017 2008 2019 2020 2021
Comments

The expense ratio of 0.39% at 31 Decamber 2027 was slightly
hugher than 0.38% at 31 Decermber 2020, driven by ERM
arigination fees as we have increased the size of our ERM
portfolio. This s partly offset by lower operating costs and
anincrease in financial investments.
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Strategic objective

Returns

pO‘I-;-?B " Corporate Governance
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Deliver attractive risk-adjusted total shareholder returns

Link to stakeholders Coapital providers

Performance in 2021

« Focused on disciplined oricing, consistent with long-term
internal Rate of Return targets.

« 7.3% return on equity.

KPI to measure progress

Adjusted operating profit before tax {*AOPBT") (Em)
AQOPBT is the IFRS profit assessed on a long-term basis
excluding investment-related variances.

AOPEBT has been redefined to include the cost of the
Restricted Tier 1 ("RT1") interest within finance costs. This is
to align the reporting across all bases and reflects the way
management and rating agencies view these financing
costs. The treatment for the statutory IFRS statement of
comprehensive income remains unchanged. The prior year
comparatives have been restated accordingly.

5645
533

349

2020

2017 2m8 2019

2021

Comments

AOPBT increased by 53% to £533 million {2020: £349 million)
primarily due to managdgerment actions and assumption
changes and lower negative experence varances,

¢ Employees

* Adjusted operating profit before tax £533 million.

Return on equity {%4)

Return on equity is a measure of the roliing 12 months

after tax profits inrelation to average equity {excluding our
Restricted Tier 1 {"RTT"] notes) This ratio has been redefined
to deduct the RT1interest from profit after tax. The pror year
comparatives have been restated accordingly.

7.3

2020

2017 2018 2019 2021

Comments

Return on equity increased to 73% in 2021 {2020: 6.0%) due

to the higher profit generated this year as we start to deploy

the capital raised in 2020

19

|
E
;



Our strategic objectives and key performance indicators

continued

Strategic objective
Reputation and conduct

Ensure that our behaviours reflect our values throu

Link to stakeholders Policyholders

Performance in 2021

 Continued commitment to provide excellent customer
service to our policyholders. 99.6% of our policyholdars

exprassed overall satisfaction with our service levels.

Increased attention on vulnerable customers throughout
the pandemic and working ever more closely with our
charity partners.

KPI to measure progress

Policyhalder satisfaction {34)

Policyholders are asked to provide a satisfaction rating for
PIC’s custamer service through telephone and paper surveys.
We manitor this metric to ensura we continue to focus on
our purpose.

2020

019

2017 2018 2021

Comments

These numbers show the percentage of customers surveyed
whao gave PIC g satisfied or very satisfied rating, evidencing
the quality of service we have providead.

20 Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited  Annual Report

gh market-leading customer service

i Trustees

s Awarded “Pensions insurance Firm of the Year” at the
European Pensions Awards, “Risk Reduction Provider of the
Year" at the UK Pensions Awards and the “"Customer Focus”
award at the institute of Customer Service aowards.

L

i EN M‘mj

P b B o

European Pensions

Customer focus {%)

As PIC continues to expand, and in line with our purpose,
one of our key internal measures is our customer focus.
Employees are asked, as part of an employee engadement
survey, whether they believe PIC is "always seeking to
understand and rmeet customer needs”, ensuring our
customers continue to remain our priority. We bedan
measuring this KPI from 2019,

92

2018

2020 2021

Comments

These figures show the percentade of employees who
believe PIC is customer focused. See podes 36-35 for
more details.

and Accounts 2021



Strategic objective
Growth and focus

Corporate Governdhce

Financial Statements

p75-124

Grow the value of the business on a focused, secure and sustainable basis

Link to stakeholders Capital providers

Performance in 2021

s Completed £4.7 billion of new business premiums
over 2021,

e £511 pillion of financiol investments, growing from
£1.9 hilllon in 2008, a compound annual growth
rate of 29%.

KPIl to measure progress

Market Consistent Embedded value {("MCEV”) (Em}

MCEV is a measure of the present value of future after-tax
orofits plus adjusted net asset value less an allowance

for the cost of capital.

4964 5,027
2,932
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Comments

MCEV increased to £5,027 million (2020: £4,964 million)
primarily due to profits denerated from writing new business
and expected return from the in-force book, partially offset
by the future tax rate change from 19% to 25%, which was
granted Royal Assentin June 2021

Employees

« 85% of total longevity reinsured to 14 highly rated
reinsurance counterparties.

Adjusted Equity Own Funds (“AEOF”) {Em)

This is a shareholder view of Solvency Il Own Funds
after deducting hybrid debt and removing the impact
of transitional measures on technical provisions and risk
rmargin. This metric has been redefined to deduct the
notional value of the hybrid debt rather than the fair
vdlue. The prior year comparatives have been restated
accordingly. This metric relates to PIC.

6,013 5,888
4222 4,601
3,729
2017 2018 208 2020 2021
Comments

AEOF has decreased to £5,888 million {2020: £6,013 million)
primarily due to the increase in GBP risk-free rates partially
of fset by the benefit of writing £4.7 billion of new business

and higher inflation over 2021,

p125-172
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Engaging with our policyholders

Ovur policyholders, all former
members of UK defined
benefit pension schemes or
their dependants, are central
to our business.

Everything we do is designed
to provide pensions for them.
They become our policyholders
following a buyout transaction
agreed by the trustees of their
pension scheme.

. From pension scheme member...

The Trustee signs o buyout tronsaction, which transfers all
risks, assets ond policyholder oblisgations to PIC.

What differentiatesus

The quality of service PIC prowvides to transitioning pensan
fund members is & key focus for the PIC managemant team
The transition includes the davelopment of o specific
comrmunication schedule so that mambers are kapt fully
nformed about their mpending transfer,

8

The focus, dedication and passion for
delivering great customer service has

only increased since the last accreditation
three years ago. We have been contihually
impressed with the lengths they [PIC]

go to in order to ensure excellence

in customer service,”

Jo Causen
CEQ of the Institute of Customer Service
February 2021
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...via a transition period...

Once the trustees have informed the members aboul the
transaction, we introduce ocurselves to them in o series

of communications, giving an overview of the Company
and explaining the process.

What differentiates us
Al our communications are in plain English: we hold the
Platinum Crystal Mark from Plain English Campaign.

SarviceMark

S v

For more information visit
wWww.pensioncorporation.com

Your customer telephone response time
is outstanding! A quality service from
a quality company.”

PIC policyholder 2021
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...to PIC policyholder

We genuinely seek to do things hetter for
our policyholders.

What differentiates us

We hold events across the country and online where
they can meeat with, and guestion, senior mandgement
about the company which pays their pension.

| am very impressed with the PIC business
model, with its focus on responsibility and
sustainability, and using investment power
to drive important changes and generate
excellent long-term returns. Thanks to the
whole team.”

PIC policyholder 2021
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Origination market

Jay Shah Chief Ornigination Officer

2021 market trends’

The UK Pension Risk Transfer (“PRT")
market has been robust in the face
of the Covid-19 pandemic.”

Operationally, everyone — trustees, insurers, reinsurers

and all their advisers - continued to operate remotely,

and this worked well. With the odd exception, transactions
continued to complete smoothly and more and more
pension schemes chose to insure. Insurance pricing
remained attractive despite morket volatilty - spreads

on corporate honds, for example, reaching both highs

and lows aver 2020 and 2021,

Having said that, 2021 started quietly. The severity of the
Autumn 2020 Covid-19 wave meant thot some trustee
groups paused and took stock for a short while, which
meant that more 2021 business was pushead into the second
half of the year, which sow a significant pick-up in achivity.
Of the £4.7 pillion of new business we wrote 1IN the year
(2020: £5.6 blion), more than £4.3 bilion was completed
during the second half. This included a £2.2 billion buyout
with the Trustee of the Metal Box Pension Scheme,
guaranteeing the benefits of the scheme’s 10,300
pensioners and 2,200 non-pensioner members,

in the largest transaction of the year.

Assets held within UK defined Gilts and fixed income assets Life expectancy age 652
benefit pension schemes to match liabilities

1 PPF Purple Book 2021
2 CMI'sworking paper 147, using the CM| 2020 Model.
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We have worked increasingly closely with
trustees and their advisers to monitor the
market and set appropriate triggers to lock
in insurance pricing. PIC’s approach is to
be flexible and innovative in recognising
scheme needs, and we have always
sought to provide the highest levels of
customer service and communication.”

Looking further out, the liability profile of schemesis
maturing, they continue to receive employer contributions,
and they are de-risking their asset portfolios. The chart

at the top of page 26 shows that defined benefit pension
schemes now have more than 70% of their portfolios
invested in bonds, as a result of de-risking, which 1s a near
75% increase in allocation to this asset class over the past
ten years or so. As a resuit of these factors, more and maore
schemes are approaching being fully funded on a buyout
basis, creating greater demand for PRT.

At least one consultant survey showed that buyout is
now the most preferred option of il potential outcomes
for trusteas over coming years, even more than scheme
self-sufficiency. The outlcok for 2022 1s very positive, and
we have o strong pipeline of new business going into the
new year.

. p01-78 Corporate Governance

Total defined benefit pension liabilities insured
through buyouts and buy-ins since 2008

Market drivers

Scheme funding

s inthe last ten years, the propartion of liakilities
that relate to pensioner members has remained
relatively stable at arcund 40%!.

The liability profile of schemes is maturing and
we expect the preportion of pensions to grow.,

s Funding ratios are higher amondg more
mature schemes'.

——I

0000
jelefog

Longevity risk management

s Whilst Covid-19 has of course impacted mortality
rates through the pandemic, long term trends in life
expectancy remain uncertain.

During the year PIC concluded £4 billion of longevity
reinsurance transactions, and now works with
14 reinsurance counterparties.

= At year end, we had reinsured 85% of our longevity
risk (2020: 84%).

@

=

Insurance pricing
* The PRT market performed strongly in the second
half of the year.

» There has been a trend towards repeat transactions.

* Pensioner pricing remains favourable relative to
credit spreads, based on historic trends.

1 PPF Purple Book 2021.

p79-124 Financicl Statements p125-172
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Origination market continued

We have warked incredasingly closely with trustees and their Asset allocation of defined
advisers to monitor the market and set appropriate triggers benefit pension schemes (%)
to lock ininsurance pricing. PIC's approach is to be flexible

and innovative in recognising scheme needs, and we have 100%
alwaoys sought to provide the highest levels of customer
service and communication For example, PIC is well known
for its in-person policyheolder days where our policyholders
are able to meet with oUr management team Even through
the pandemic we have been able to have that personal
communication through online events. So it is pleasing ance
again to be named "Pensions insurance Firm of the Year”
at the European Pensions Awards, and “Risk Reduction
Provider of the Year” at the UK Pensions Awards.

80%

60%

A40%

Preportion of assets

20%
Finally, we have also continued to work closely with our

longevity reinsurance partners, and how have o panel

of 14 global reinsurers with whom we are able to transact 0%

At year end, we had reinsured 85% of our fongeavity risk

(2020‘ 84%). M Bonds W Equities i Other
Source PPF's Purple Book 2021

‘06 ‘07 08 (02 W 11 17 12 14 71E 16 77 18 19 20 21

Despite the pandemic, the PRT market performed strongly
in the second half, with a good outlook for 2022, 1 ook forward
to a busy and productive year, nsuring the pensions of
thousands more scheme members.

Buy-in and buyout volumes since 2011
Premiums {Ebn)

Jay Shah
Chief Crigination Officer

52 44
W =
20m 2012 2013 2014 2005 206 2007 2018 20019 2020 2021

%i PIC W Others
* PIC estimate
Source LCP, willls Towers Watson and Cormpany estimate

ation Group Limited | Arnr Report ar




Metal Box Pension
Scheme Buyout

In October 2027, PIC signed ¢ £2.2 billion pension
insurance buyout with the Trustee of the Metal Box
Pension Scheme, insuring the benefits of the scheme's
10,300 pensioners and 2,200 non-pensioner members.
The transaction removed the scheme liabilities from the
balance sheet of the scheme sponsor, Crown Packaging
Manufacturing UK Limited, a subsidiary of Crown
Hoidings Inc, which is listed on the NYSE.

The buyout was the single largest pension risk transfer
deal in 2021 and we are pleased to welcome each
of the 12,500 scheme members as our palicyholders.

5 For more information visit
S WWw.pensiancorporation.com

Caorporate Governance
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We are delighted to have reached

this position of securing our members’
benefits in full following a thorough
selection process. Working alongside the
Company and our respective advisers,
we selected PIC based on their proven
customer service standards and strong
financial credentials. This has been the
culmination of a successful journey over

n

many years, supported by the Company.

Gary Fishlock
Chair of Trustees of the Metal Box
Pension Scheme
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Investments

Rob Groves Chief Investment Officer

Overall
portfolio size

Y Value as at 31 December 2021,

28

Total value of
ESG assets

Fension Insurance Corparation Group Limited

PIC has been a significant
investor for over a decade
in social housing, renewable
energy and the UK's
universities.”

At the heart of PIC's investment strategy is our focus
on achieving PIC’s core aim: to provide and secure the
cosh flows to pay our policyholders’ pensions over
the coming decades.

This makes us naturally coutious investors and explains

the construction of a portfolio that is resilant and durable
enclgh to withstand whatever storems blow up in the markets
fram year to year, an approoch we coll weatherproofing,

but which also creates long-term value.

One of the great joys of working in o business like this is
the constant flow of new pension business. As we reinvest
the assets we take an to match pension abilities, we
understand that the investments most suited o poying
your long-term pensions are also thase which have good
long-term outcomes for society. The resulting purposeful
investment stratedy s a source of great pride within the
teamn as it can help develop and build the infrastructure
that benefits younger and future generations.

invested in the UK's
education sector

Annual Repart and Accounts 2021



Market overview

During 2021 the markets continued to be driven by the policy
response to the pandemic, with Government and listed
invastment grade debt, which make up the majority of our
investrment portfolio, remaining hastage to the supernormal
monetary policy response we saw in the first half of 2020.

One of the other key trends this year has been the
rontinucd, incexorable rise of Environrmental, Social and
Governance ("ESG") considerations up the political and
reguiatory agendds. Qur outlock has always been that

the best way to secure future cash flows is by investing in
assets that have lots of social value, and these assets have
lower risk over the long term as they make sense for society.
In this way ESG thinking has always been integroted into
our investrent process as we assess the suitability of

the long-term cash flows we need to back future

pension payments.

Over the past few years this has led to a natural re-shaping
of the portfolio, including o decrease in our investmeants in
Qil frorn 3 7% of the portfolio in 2019 to just over 1% in 2021,

However, of all the ESG considerations, 2021 has been
dominated by the “E for Ervironment” — the drive to managde
climate risk which has manifested itself in the Race to Net
Zero, During the year we committed to being Net Zero by
2050 across the portfolio, and we joined the UN-convened
Net Zero Asset Owner Alliance. We have formalised
investment restrictions into conventional fossil fuels as

we seek to decarbonise the portfolio and have almost
completed divestment frem those companies which derive
over 10% of their revenue from thermal coal, well in advance
of our 2025 target. We also spent o considerable amount of
effort mapping the carbon footprint of our portfolio during
2021 and published our first TCFD report in January 2022,

PIC invested £128 million in student accommaodation ot the Uriversity
of Birmingham to transform its Pritchatts Park site intc a 1,230 reom,
low-carbon residential facility.

Corporate Governance
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In terms of our private renlal sector investments, we have
set rrunimom “FSG Baseline Credentials” which we use to
screen all of our potential proparty iInvestments, which go
further than the current regulatory standards We choose
our developrnent partners extremely carefully, only working
with similarly minded companies which care about the
social value of their buildings For example, there are very
high envirgnmentaltly-sympathetic desivn leatures in our
development in Manchester, going much further than that
required by building regulations (see case study on page 53).
We believe this is also good nsk manggement as building
regulations are only likely to get more stringent.

PIC and all of our key external asset managers hove been
signatories to the United Nations’ Principles of Responsible
Investment (“LUNPRI"} for some time.

More details about our ESG efforts can be found in the
ESG section of this Annual Report on pages 48 to 59, and
in the separate ESG Report we have published alongside it

In public corporate bond markets, credit spreads have
been compressed so much that it has became increasingly
difficult to find assets that represent good long-term

value, and we have refused to take poorly rewarded risks.
We seek to hold investments for the long term, so the
spread available is our cushion in case of a future market
dislocation. However, we have found morg value in
privately sourced debt, which we discuss later in this report.

This cautious strategy (risk discipling) has served us well, and
we have seen zero defaults in the portfclio for several years
- with less than 0.1% of the credit portfolio (including private
investments but exciuding dilts) being downgraded to
sub-investment grade in the year.



Investments continued

Financial investments

At year end, the portfolio stood at £511 pillion

(2020 £29.4 hiflion], the majority of which is invested in
mvaestment grade corporate and UK Government debt as
well as liguidity portfolios. Of the portfalio, 94% {2020: 95%)
was rated investment grade. 54% (2020, 54%) of the portfolio
was invested In corparate debt and private investments, of
winich 99% (2020: 99%) was rated investment grade. Givan
the macro-economic and financial context, we maintained
our investment levels in finonciol, utilities ond non-cyclicol
consumer industries, which together represent 49.3%

(2020: 50.4%) of the portfolio, as they provide defensive
qualities which we think a prudent invesiment gt this paint in
the economic cycfe. We have remained vary cautious on
consumer cyclical industries and only have a limited
exposure to this sector of 2 6% of the portfolio (2020: 2 3%).
Na single caunterparty, other than the UK Government,
represented more than 1.5% of the portfalo (2020:1.7%).

Carporate securities and private investments split
by country/region of issuance

Corporate securities and private investments split
by industry sector

fcarieat
Market vajue
value 2020 2020
2021 (restatedi” 2021 (restoled]”
Sector {Em) [Em) % %
Financial 2039 6,804 25.5 253
Utilities 3,669 3,676 133 136
Consumer, hon-cyclical 2,899 3,102 10.5 1.5
Communications 2,567 2,74 33 10.0
Energy 534 791 19 2%
Consurnear, cyclical 727 631 26 23
industrial 817 918 3.0 3.4
Basic matearials 500 512 1.8 18
Technology 1,547 1,722 5.6 54
Owersified &0 67 0.2 0.2
Quasi-Government 127 125 as 05
Other 7462 5548 25.8 220
Total 27448 27,010 100 100

Corporate securities and private investments split
by currency

Market Market
Market value Market value
value 2020 2020 value 2020 2020
20 (restoted)” W21 (restated)’ 2021  (resiated)” 2021 (restated)”
Country (£m) {E£m} % 9% Currency {Em) {£m) % %
Uk 14,058 13133 509 486 GBP(£) 17,270 15,628 625 579
us 8.013 3034 290 334 USDI(3) 9,400 10,591 24.0 392
Europe {ex UK) 3,797 3,208 137 19  EURIE) 923 730 3.3 2.7
Rest of woarld 1,780 1,635 54 61 CHF 55 &l 0.2 02
Total 27648 21010 00 100 Toetal 27,648 27010 100 100
Comparatives have peen restated ta include an additional
E£371 million of private investments.
Financial investments by asset class Corporate securities and private
{31 December 2021) investments by rating
£51.1bn
Hl Debt securities - Government 35.1% H AAA %
st Debt securities — Corpordte 36.5% W OAA 17%
W Debt securities — Private investments 17.7% HA 8%
| Equity release mortgages 21% W BBB 3T%
Mqrtqc:qa backed aﬁd other asset backed securities 0.6% BB 9%
#l Participation in investment schemes 6.4% B Unrated 1%
M Deposits with credit institutions 1.6%
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Qur assets are primarly mandged in-house, which includes
aur holdings in gilts, supranational bonds and privately
sourced debt, all of which represemnt 59% of our portfolio.
Our UK, US and emerging market listed debt, as well as

our US municipal bond investments, are maonagded by our
asset management partners, Janus Henderson Investors,
Schroders Investment Management, IPMorgan Asset
Manogement, Wellington Management and Macquarie
Assot Management.

Private investments

PIC has been a significant investor for over a decade in
secure, long-term, privately sourced delbt, such as social
housing, renewabkle energy and the UK's universities. These
investments provide the cash flows we need to maich

our ligbilities in maturities when publicly available debt is
simply not available {see illustrative chart below). Borrowers
benefit from the flexibility in funding we are able to offer,
for example, deferred drawdown and bespoke terms.

This year we worked ever more closely with existing
borrowers, but also sought to diversify the portfolio by
seeking new issuers and exploring new geographies.

In February wea anncunced a second debt investment,
totaling £30 million, in County Durham-based housing
association Livin Housing Limited ("Livin”), taking our total
investment to £95 million. Our partnership with Livin is
funding the development of 450 new homes in the North
East. This close working relationship is part of an incredsing
trend we are seeing in the sector, and includes other sirmilar
transactions, including with Heart of Medway.

Breakdown by sector of private investments
for the year (2021)

W Autos 8%
# Financials 23%
| Mot for profit 4%
] Projéct finance 18%

Social hbusing 14%
| ] Student accommedation "%
muUs privately sourced debt 10%
% Utilities 5%
W Other 7%

; K,;.;pf‘m;?s Corporate Governance
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In April we announced the appointment of Macquarie

Asset Management to manage a new US privately sourced
debt mandate By year end we had invested £225 million in
US opportunities, providing more diversity to the portfolio,
and we expect to continue to find good risk and return
opportunities in the $60 billion US private placement market.

In August we announced a £67 million debt investrment with
the | ondon Borough of Bromley (*LBB"), to help alleviate local
amergency homelessness. The investrment means LBB can
purchase outright up to 300 affordable properties, helping
ta significantly reduce the cost of emergency nightly
accommodation. The long-dated funding matures in 2071,
helping us match our very long-dated pension liabilities.

in total, we have invested £3.2 billion™ in social housing,
£13 billion*” in renewable energy and £2.5% billion in the
UK’s education sector.

At Decembear 2021, 17.9% [£9.2 billion) of cur portfolio including
investmant properties, is now nvested in secure, long-term
assets, that are privotely sourced (FY2020: 15.7%, £7.8 billion).

Privately sourced debt investments*
Finding cash flows for years with
low levels of listed bonds in issuance

Cash flows (£)

T R p— P —
L8] 10 20 30 40 50 60
Years
# Private deot iiPublc credt UK gilts ¥ Key areas to target debt
——— (Cish payments to pensioners
* lgstrative chart.
" Value as at 31 December 2021,

k1]



Investments continued

PIC's total investments in private debt (Em)

10,500
8730

7.000

P

2012 213 20U 2020 2021

During the year we continued (o source ERMs, which

are another sood match for our long-term hakilities,

help diversify the portfolio and, when approached
sympathetically, generate social value by helping pensioners
unlock copital whilst remaining in their homes. At year end
we had invested £1.1 billion (FY2020. £0 5 billion] in ERMs
through supporting existing funding partners and by
investing in two existing portfolios. This led to us more than
doubling the portfolic over 2021,

we also announcead our second Build-to-Rent investment,
with £90 million farward funding a 15-storay, 278-apartment
devealopment in Ealing, West London, following our

£130 million development in Mancheaster, an which we
broke-ground in Septembrer 2020 35% of rooms within

the £90 milllon Art Deco style building, narmed The Wiltern,
will he affordable housing, with the rest for private rent.

Another notable investment is a £130 millon development
‘Wirral Woters One’, which we are investing in as part of the
wider regeneration of the Wirral Waters scheme, which
signed ofter year-end. The Wirral Waters scheme is o central
Sovernmeant-supported project to redevelap a brownfield
site into a new waterfront neighbourhood, creating up to
20,000 permanent jobs as part of the regeneration of Wirral,
which sits within the Liverpool City Region.

Outlook

The outlook remains uncertain. There is a wall of
international money printed to support economies through
Covid-19, chasing yield, helping to keep credit spreads
compressed Thisis driving inflation, as are surging global
energy prices and workforce shortages There are increasing
deopolitical tensions and there is the ongoing uncertainty
about the future impoct of Covid-19.

That being said, we have a robust, weatherproof portfolio
and a purposeful investment strategy which will ensure we
rermain able to pay the pensions of our policyholders aver
comingd decades and generate considerable social value.

I look forward to meeting the investment challenges and
opportunities of 2022,

Rob Groves
Chief Investment Officer
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investing in student
accommodation for the London
School of Economics and
Political Science (“LSE")

in December 2021, PIC Invested £129 million in the LSE to
fund the development of a 676-hed student residence i
Southwark, London.

The newly constructed student cccommadation will be
located on Glengall Road, Southwark, and provide additional
housing primarily for postgraduate students of the LSE, It will
comprise a 15-storey hall of residence, as well as communal
spaces, d gym, three rocf terraces, o cinema rcom and two
courtyard gardens. The rooms will be marketed ot a discount
to other options in the LSE's residential portfoiio and over

a third of the rooms in the residence will specifically benefit
from the London Plan's affordable student housing
requirements, enabling access to good guality housing

for lower income students.

Corporate Governance
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One of the priorities in LSE’s 2030
strategy is to Develop the LSE for
Everyone. For Residential Services

this means guaranteeing an offer of
accommodation to all first-year students.
The Glengall Road development takes

us a significant step towards that goal

by providing 676 affordable rooms for

our graduate students.”

lan Spencer
LSE Director of Residential Services
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Transition management

What is transition management?

Akey part of any pension risk transfer transaction is the
transition procass, which starts following contract sisning.
This is the process through which pension scheme members
become PIC pohcyholders and is managed by the Transition
Management tearn. They also manage the relationship with
trustees for long-term buy-ins, frequently working on repeact
buy-in transactions with the same Trustee Board

Guaranteed Minimum Pension Equalsation and multiple
insurance arrangemaeants are part of anncreasingly
challenging landscape of issues to grapple with for trustees
approaching buy-out. Effective transition management
involves close collaboration betweean PIC's experienced
team, the trustees and their adwvisers in a procass which,
depending on the size of the scheme and speaific contract
regufrements, can take gnythmng fram a few maonths to
saverdl years,

Once the plan is agreed, the PIC team will establish the
required governance to monitar and report on progress o
the trustees. This involves coordinating all PIC workstreams
and rmplementing a seamless experience for mermbers,
ensuring that, above alt, individual pensions continue to be
funded and members are clearly informed throughout the
process. 7o date, the teom has transitioned over 119 pension
schemes to PIC, onboarding more thon 85,500 pensioners
fo become PIC policyholders.

We are pleased to have secured this
second insurance agreement with PIC,
which guarantees the pension payments
for many more of our members. We have
been impressed with PIC's commitment

to excellent customer service since the
first transaction and this was an important
factor in our decision to transact with
them again.”

Graeme Munro

Chairman of the British American Tobacco
UK Pension Fund

What are the key aspects of the Transition

Management team’s work?

« Manage the transition of schemes to PIC, including
building relationships with PIC's clients, their advisers
and internal departments.

Ensure thot PIC and its clients meet their ehjectives as set
out in the buyout contract.

Ensure PIC adapts the funding of membears' pensions
following any benefit changes made by the rustee.

Guide trustees, company representatives, consultants and
adrministrators through the post-contract transition process.

o Manage ralationships with all stakeholders and PIiC’s third
party supnliers to ensure @ successful scheme transition,
within agreed timescales and budget,

s Work with the scheme’s trustees to ensure that the
schama's members {and PIC's future policyhalders) receive
an excellent experience throughoul the transition, based
on clear, timely communications, manageament of
deadlines, and proactive, high-quality customer service,

Ensure that data transitioned into PIC's operating modet
fs accurate, complete and appropriately protected,

Total number of paolicyholders insured!

282,500

271,500

192,100

131,600

2017 2018 2019 2020

201

1 Cumulative figures.
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Making transition management a priority

Our purpose is to pay the pensions of our current and future
policyholders and therefore the experience of trustees and
pension scheme mambers during this crucial phase is a key
focus for PIC and its management team. Progress on each
scheme's transition is formally reported on at every PIC
Board meeting and we are proud that trustees rate PIC's
customer care, service and management highly.

Number of members transitioned

toc become PIC policyholders, 2021 85,500

44,500

33,000

2018 2019 2020 2021
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PIC have got a redlly slick process.
We've been through that process four
times and it has worked really well.”

Trustee feedback from PIC stakeholder
research, 2021

Number of schemes that have
transitioned to full buyout’ 19

109
103

2017 2018 . 2019 2020 2021
1 Cumulative figures.
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Customer care

Delivering first-class customer service and the best
autcomes s integral te our purpose of paying the pensions
of cur current and future policyholders. It is at the heart
of everyvthing we do. Burnng 2021, we continued to provide
market-leading customer service while completing the
operational transition to a hybnd working environment,

all without sacrificing the high standards and focus on
outcomes we set ourselves.

The focus, dedication and passion for
delivering great customer service has
only increased since the last accreditation
three years ago...”

Institute of Customer Service ServicaMark
Assessment Report

This focus underpins cur actions and we remaln ambitious
and praactiva in finding ways to continually improve on the
service we offer. in recognition of this, in February 2021, we
were defighted to announce that we were re-awarded the
institute of Customer Service’s ServiceMark with Distinction.
The ServiceMark (s the UK's l[argest cross-sector customer
service benchmarking study and Distinction is the highest
level attainable, As one of only 16 companies nationafly

to hold this accolade, PIC has been assessed as having
the highest level of customer service, with a firm-wide
commitment to upholding these demanding standards.

Our service principles

&

&
&

Respond to each customer's
individual needs, taking into
accaount vulnerabilities and
need for additional support

We make it quick and easy for
our customers to deal with us

We focus on the quality
of the outcome

Working with our administration partner,

Capita Employee Solutions (“Capita™)

Qur custarmer-focused employaes, hoth at PIC and the
tearn at our administration partner, Capita, have shown
great dedication and focus to continuing to deliver a great
policyhotder experience.

PIC and Capita have invested considarable time and
resaurce inta developing a waorking relationship that fits
with our aim, The resulting model 1s bast-in-class, with many
unigue service and cantract aspects.

At Capita, PIC has a specific team of advisers that are

solely dedicated to working with our 282,200 individuat
policyholders. Normally based at the Darlindton centre of
axcellence, they work as an extansion of the PIC operations
team. PIC has input and oversight into thea recruitment of

all team members, who are assassed on their compatibility
with PIC's vatues and purpose above and beyond the
technical reguirements of the roles. The PIC operations team
has comprahansiva contrals in place in order to monitor and
rmaintain the excellent levels of service the Company expects.
These inciude full access to all systems and full file and call
checks and reviews.

The success of the partnership was once agam recognised
by aur win at the Institute of Customer Service awards,
wheare we won the Custorner Focus award, This award
recagnises organisahons that place the customer at the
centre of their opearatians and strategies. This is the second
time we have won the Customer Facus award and the fourth
award we have won from the institute of Customer Service
1CS") in five years. In addition, we are incredibly proud to
report that

« our averall satisfaction score frarn more than
7,000 policyholders was 99.6%; and

» we'ra answerning all calls, with g hurnan at the end
of the line, with an average time of seven seconds

PIC's palicyholder helpline

of calls answered

Average within 20 seconds

response time
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Vulnerable customers

In particular, during 2021 we have looked at how we can
further address the needs and requirements of vulnerable
customers. This has always included accommodating
specific needs by, for example, providing letters in large font
when requested and making oppropriate arrangements ot
our policyholder events. But we know vulnerahility con affect
individuals in a myriad of ways, from berecavement to

shiort- and long-term health conditions, and we recognise
that rather than considenng vulnerable customers as

a segregate group, our processes and operations nead

to actively and accurately be tailored to factor inthese
requiraments as standard This includes providing our
customers with up-to-date information about pension
scams, while looking at our own operations to make sure
we do everything we can to protect them from scarmimers.

This year we've welcomed an additional 25,500 new
policyholders and were looking forward to welcoming more
new policyholders fram other complated transactions such
as British Steel and Metal Box. As our family of policyholders
praws, our commitment to continually invest in customer
service to provide the expected service levels remains as
strong as ever.

Engaging with our poficyholders

We are proud 1o be the only insurance company in our sector
ta hold policyholder events, which allow us to meet the
people whose pensions we look after. These events are part
of the PIC culture and are in keeping with our purpose and
values. Due to ongoind uncertainty and restrictions caused by
the pandemic, we decided to ance again host a virtual event,
s0 our policyholders remain informed about PIC and how we
secure their pensicns. We look forward to resuming our
popular face-to-face events next year, circumstances
allowing, while keeping the online version to reach those
policyholders that are unable to attend in parson.

1,500 policyholders registered for the event, which included
presentations fram our senior leadership team, led by our
CEOQ, Tracy Blackwell. We were pledsed to answer guestions
on a wide range of topics, including how we approach
Environmental, Social and Governance {"ESG") considerations
within our investment process.

We know from our policyholders thot one of the things they
value from cur in-persan palicyhelder days is the sense of
community that these events bring. We therefore invited
policyholders to share some of their own inspirational stories
with the wider group, highlighting the positive and fulfilling
experiences many of our memkbers enjoy

Financial Statel
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Customer care continued

Customer service in figures

Number of policyholders insured’ Policyholder satisfaction (%)
The number of pensianars insured ncreased by We have extremely high ievels of customer sausfaction
4% 10 2021, and have mamtaned over 97% averall satisfaction
owver the last tenyears
271,500 282,500
98./
151,600

2017 208 2009 2020 2021

2018 2021
1 Curmulative figures
Total claims paid (Em) Total pensions paid to policyholders {(Em)
Total pensions. lump sum and ather payment 1o PIC has paid £1.594 milhon to pohicyholders in 2021,
policyholdars wera £1,844 million {2020, £1,730 million), This is anincrease of 7%
an incregse of 7% due to anincreased number
of policyholders.

1594

17320

1,430
1248

1,603

: 7
2018 2019 2020 2021 2019 2020 2021

s Rension Insurance Corparation Group Limited  Annual Report and Accounts 2021



My pension transfer to PIC

When | first heard that my pension was being transferred,
| felt apprehensive and quite concerned.

My pension provider was a German state-owned institution
and as such its obligations were guaranteed by the Federal
Repubklic of Germany, one of the world's best credit risks.
Naturaily, moving to an unknown name and entity was

a shock. Having a financial background, my initial research
suggested PIC to be o high-quality company, with a sound
financial position and good reputation. Information provided
by PIC at that time was extremely helpful in explaining much
about the company and, should anythindg untoward happen
to PIC, how my pension would still be safe. As a pensioner
the safety of one's pension is paramount and all the
information provided was reassuring.

The transition to PIC was relatively straightforward and
problem free. [had seme dealings with Mercers during

the transition period, whitst informative correspondence
with PIC’s customer service tearm was both helpful

and straightforward. Overall, my pension transfer was
trouble free and efficient, and all communications and
correspondence with PIC have been excellent. Letters were

professionally written, easy to understand and problem free.

My experience with PIC’s customer service has been
particularly good, as on the very few accasions in which
I have spcken to them, they have been courtecus, polite
and professional,

1 78 Corporate Governance
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My experience with PIC’s customer service
has been particularly good, as on the very
few occasions in which | have spoken to
them, they have been courteous, polite
and professional.”

If 1 had to sum up my experience of PIC, | would say it

is professional in striving to maintain o sound fingncial
paosition but also in the way that it proactively engages with
nolicyholders like myself. I've found communications to be
transparent and really respect the compony for the effort it
takes to keep policyholders informed and reassured as to its
financial position and strength, to invite feedback, be it good
or bad, and to give the strongimprassion that PIC's focus is
on ensuring it enjoys financial strength and a management
highly proactive in critical risk assessment.

The annual policyholder meetings suggest management
wants to ensure we "sleep well at night” and as such | believe
this means all actions, decisions and investments taken

by PIC create a strong policyholder “satisfaction” culture
within the company. Of course, PIC wants to drow, to attract
strong ond financially sound shareholders ete, but fostering
a positive policyholder satisfaction base is, in my mind,

a good way to go about it

Rhoderick Henderson
Former member of The Portigon UK Pension Plan
and a proud PIC policyholder

EL



Section 172 statement

This section describes how owr Directors have performed
their duty under section 172 {1} of the Companies Act 2006
("s.172"Y ond also forms the directors’ statement required
under section 414CZA of the Companies Act 2006. 172 sets
out a seres of matters to which the Directors must have
regard in performing their duty to promote the success

of the Company for the benefit of memipers and other
stakeholders in the long term.

fhe factors set out in 5172 are not only considered ot Boord
level, they are embedded throughout the culture at PIC
(see more on pases 9 and 54 to 5S).

Our stakeholders and our engagement
Understonding the neads of our different stokehglders
enables the Board to toke proper account of stakeholder
impacts and interests in decision making. The Board
recognises that considering the impact of decisions on
aach stakehaolder graup will halp the Directors ta deliver
the Company's strategy in line with the wider PIC Group,
and will promote the long-term sustoinable success of
the Company and the Group.

Our Boord interacts with stokeholders through direct
engagaemeant and an open dialegue, as well as through
information provided by senior management. Further
information on why and how we engage with our
stakeholders and examples of principal decisions taken
by the Board during the year can be found on pagdes 42
and 43 and within the Corporate Governance report an
pages 94 and 95.

The Board facuses on the Group's puroose, of paying

the pensions of our current and future policyholders, as it
considers generating long-term value, With the increasing
focus on the relationship between stakenoidar interssts

and governance, we take increased care to ensure such
consderations are docurnented, and that the Board receives
adequate and appropriate training on its responsibilities.
See page 92 on Directors’ training and induction

Further information on our aporoach to stakeholder engagement and s.172 matters can be found hera:

Consequences of key decisions in the

{ong term

Our business Seepage8
Business model See page 16
Chairman’s statement See page 10

Employees

Qur culture and values

See pages 9 and 54to 59

Fosteting the Company’s business

Customer care

See poges 36 to 39

relationships with suppliers, customers
and others

Stakeholder engagement

See pages 44 te 47

Community

Stakeholder engagement

Environment

Our Environmental, Social and Governance

See pages 44 ts 47

See pages 48to 53

{"ESG") approach

High standards of business conduct

Corperate Governance introcuction See page 80
Whistleblowing See page 93
Modern Slavery Act See page 93
Anti-bribery and corruption See page 93
Stakeholder engagement See pages 44 to 47

Investors
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The Board has a duty under Section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006 to promote the success of the
Company, and in doing so, the Board must have regard
to a number of key matters in its decision making.

For more information
plecse see pd2 and 43

Board papers inciude a table

setting out s.172 factors and

relevant infarmaticn relating
to them

The Executive team receive

training on Directors’ duties

to ensure awareness of the
Board's responsibilities

L

5172 factors considered in the
Board's discussions on strotegy,
including how they underpin
long-term value creation

.

>

The Board ensures that
5172 factors are taken
into consideration
inits decision making

[

The Board is provided with
undates and information on the
outcomes of its decisions

J

Qur Board continually engages
with key stakeholders

Read more on pages 96 and 97

)

Our Board ensures that there
is proper consideration of the
potential impacts of its decisions

The Executive team provides
informaticn on a timely basis and
assurance where appropriate

1

Actions are token gs a result
of Board engagement and
dialogue with key stakeholders




Section 172 statement continued

in 2021, the Board made decisions in respect of a wide variety
of topics. The foliowing are some exampies of how the Board
considers the 5,172 principles in its deliberations.

Net Zero commitment

Section 172 considerations
[ X 2 ]

The Board has increasead its focus on sustainakllity and
integrating climate change considerations throughaout the
Group's decision-making processes, as well asincorporating
wider ESG igsues, As aresult of that commitment to
sustainability, in July 2021 PIC announced its commitment to
be Net Zero by 2050 across all sources of emissions, including
within its £511 billion investment portfolio. PIC also set an
interim target of achieving carbon neutrality within its own
aperations by 2025, in line with the Association of British
Insurer’s Climaote Change Roadmap. At the same time,

PIC became a member of the UN-convened Net-Zero

Asset Owner Alllance, an international group of Institutional
investors cornmitted to making their portfolios Net Zero

by 2050.

Promote the long-term success of the Company
and the interests of PIC's policyholders

PIC’s purpose is to pay the pensions of our current and
future policyholders and this dictates the decisions

the Board takes. PIC's Net Zero commitment securas this
purpose by making its investment portfolio more resilient

as the economy transitions to Net Zaro, as well as supporting
international efforts to curh climate change,

Environment and community

PIC believes that companies which actively demonstrate their
commitment 1o sustainabllity are better ploced to mamntain
secure long-term cash flows. As a long-term business, we
want to support the Covernment in rancging this long-term
gool, benefitting our policyholders, employees, wider society
arnd other stakehalders. The Board fundamentally believes
that achieving Net Zero is the right thing to do for the
environment, soclety and our policyhalders alike,

For more inforrnation
pleose ses ph0-51

Outcomes and actions

The Board decided to approve the commitment to
Net Zero as it was in the best interests of PIC’s current
and future policyholders, the wider community,

the environment and the Company.

Bromiey Affordable Housing
Deal ("Bromiley")

Section 172 considerations
[ X}

The: Group campleted a unigue £67 milion transaction
with the London Borough of Bramley to help alleviate local
emergency homelessness. As part of the transaction, 300
affordable properties were purchased outright to reduce
the Council's cost of emergency nightly accommodation.

Promote the long-term success of the Company
and the interests of PIC’s policyholders

The Group places high impartance on securing the pensions
for current and future policyholders. The Bromley investment
is well matched to PIC's long-term liabilities by providing

£67 million of long-dated funding which matures in 2071, and
the inflation-inked funds are secured on housing assets.

Environment and community

The Group is comrmitted to ensuring that its investments,
where possible, have o social benefit. Bromley provided

a unique offering by providing not only emerdency relief to
the local Council, but by also providing relief for farilies in
nead of temporary accommodotion.

For more informotion
pleose see pd

©

Outcomes and actions

The Board has increased its focus on ESG matters, and
the decision to invest in the Bromley dealis part of the
ESG strategy adopted by the Group. This transaction is
in the hest interests of PIC’s policyholders, promates the
long-term syccess of the Company, and provides o wider
social benefit.
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Key to the s.172 principles

@ Likely consequences of decisions in the long term
The interests of the Company’s workforce

& The need to foster relationships with suppliers,
customers and others

Appointment of Macquarie Asset
Management (“Macquarie”)

Section 172 considerations
o900

The Board considered and approved the appointmeant

of Macquarie to manoge a new US privately sourced

debt mondate. PIC has £3.4 billion invested in 150 privately
sourced debt investments in the UK and Europe, in areas
including renewable energy, social housing, education,
and the not-for-profit sector.

Promote the long-term success of the Company
and the interests of PIC's policyholders

In order to fulfilits purpose, PIC invasts In secure, long-term
investments, which can be tailored to match PIC's Labilities.
Macquarie's appointment allows PIC to invest in new issuers,
sectors, and across new geographies, which will diversify
the portfolio and provide better risk-cdjusted returns,
helping trustees more easily secure the pensions of therr
scheme mambers.

The Board satisfied itself that a thorough due dilisence
process had been followed and completed in line with

the requirements for a ‘critical supplier asset outin PIC's
Procurement and Qutsourcing Policy”. The Board discussed
PIC's key requirements to ensure that Macquarie can provide
bespoke solutions, understands PIC's needs, and can provide
good access to the market.

Environment and community

The Board was mindful of the impact this appointment has
on FIC's investments. Macguarie is a global asset manager
with a significant footprint and o strong ESG focus which

is embedded within its risk management framework. This
includes a proprietary ESG ratings system as well as drowing
on extarnal sources 1o assess ESG risks in the portfolio. This
decision was driven by the Board's increased focus on
sustainability and wider ESG issues.

Outcomes and actions

Having gone through a thorough review process, the
Bocrd decided to approve the appointment of Macquarie
and concluded that, given its strong track record and
focus on ESG, it will be able to previde services to PIC
which are in the best interests of PIC’s current and future
policyholders, and to the Company.
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® impact of operations on the community
and environment

® Hish standords of business conduct

@ The need to act fairly between members
of the Company

Thé Board’'s commitment
to ESG

Section 172 considerations
[ Toa ]

wWe believe the greater the socially beneficial cutcomes of
an investment, the higher the likelihood of long-term stability,
needed to back future pensicn payments. The PIC Beard
approved our ESG strategy which integrates ESG risks into
investment decisions and impacts how we operate as

a company, for our employees, and the wider community.

Promote the long-term success of the Company

and the interests of PIC’s policyholders

Investments with a lasting impact on current and future
generations in areas including renewable energy, social
housing and national infrastructure are sociaily beneficial
ouwtcomes of our focus on our purpose. We recognise that
issues such as human rights, climate change and corruption
can have very real financialimplications over the medium to
long term. PIC has published its Modern Slavery Statement,
which can be found on our website.

The interests of the Company’'s employees and

the wider community

We are transparent on our gender pay dap, which is
reported annually, and have made strong efforts towards
diversity and inclusion this year. We are focused on
balancing gender through recruitment and have an active
torget of 30% of CVs to be from women. PIC 1s o member
of LGBT Great, with CEQ Tracy Blackwell being recognised
as ane of the Top 100 Executive Allies within the industry for
the second year running. We alse run an Aspiring Managers
Programime, which has a 50/50 gender split, and continued
to sponsor the Actuarial Mentoring Programme for a fourth
yeadr which is designed to incraase the number of female
actuaries dcross the industry FIC s a member of the
#10000Blackinterns programme, and this year we offered
one of the interns a full-time position following their
exparience. We also launched the PIC Academy, which will
enable us to develop long-term, diverse talent pipelines.

PIC glso has an active charnty committee which ensures

that chartable actions and griving are part of our firm culture.
All employees are encouraged o take up to two volunteer
days a year for such activities, and a number of charity
events are organised throughout the year in addition to

a corparate matched giving scheme.,

Outcomes and actions

The Board approved PIC’s ESG strategy as it was in the
best interests of the Company, its employees, and the
wider community.

43



Stakeholder engagement

A key part of fulfilling PIC’s purpose is balancing

the needs and requirements of alil of the Company’s
stakehaolders. Over the next four pages we explain
what this means in practice.

Stakeholders What matters to them

Why we engage

Pensions delivered on time.

Good customaer sarvice and good
customer outcomes, and a transparent
resolution system where a dispute
arises or complaintis received.

Policyholders

See more on how we engage

@ with our polcyholders during
their policyholaer journay on
pages22-23

Backing the pensians of older
generdtions with assets that have
a lasting impact on younger and
future generaticns.

* We engage with our policyholders
because:

* we want to be open, transparent,
and build trust in the company
which pays their pensions; and

ongoing engadement 1s consistent
with providing good custormer
outcomes —~ we want to
understand where and how we
canimprove cur custorner service.

That PIC’'s approach is not
transactional, that we offer dood
customer service and that we are
edsy to do business with.

-

Defined benefit
pension scheme
trustees

That PIC treats deals ds unigue,
acknowledging each as the start
of a lifelongd relationship.

That policyholder communications in
all forms, including face-to-face, are
transparent, ¢cjear and meaningful,

Transferring pension risk from company
balance sheets to specialist companies
like PIC aflows them ta focus on their
main line of business.

Trusteas entrust PIC with responsibility
for payind the pensions of their
members for life,

Transactions with trustees are haw
the business starts the process
of long-term value creation.

An opportunity to gain experience,
training and sharing in the success of
the Company.

Having a strong corporate purpose
and on inclusive culture that is aligned
to this.

Employees

Plegse see more information
on employment policies and

engagement on pages 54-57

The ability to act proactively to meet
our customers’ needs over the Jond term
and be recognised far excellence.

Working with highly-skitled colleagues
ond encouraged to display market-
leading expertise and knowledge.

+ DIC's ernployegs are a critical
stakeholder group for the future
success of the Company.

We sesk to recruit, tramn and motivate
the very brightest people in thewr
flelds, and who enhance our culture.
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* We interact with our policyholders in writing, by
telephone, online and via email, and face-to-face at
our policyholder events.

Al relevant communications are Crystal Marked by the
Plain English Campaigh, to ensure ease of understanding
for our policyholders.

Uniguely, our policyholders dre invited to complimentary
events where they can meet and guestion management
in o relaxed and enjoyable setting - held online during
the pandemic,

a PIC won the "Customer Focus” award at the Institute
of Customer Service ("ICS"} awadrds.

» PIC held its second online Policyholder Hour in place
of our usual Palicyholder Days, with 1,500 policyholders
logging in.

Policyholder satisfaction levels have increasad in the
year 1o 99.6%.

L]

Each pension risk transfer transaction is managed by
a dedicated team at PIC.

Our approach s to be flexible and innovative in structuring
transactions that meet each Trustee Board’s needs.

The transition of the scheme members to PIC
policyholders is given the same level of care and focus
as the crigind| transaction.

Trustees with buy-in policies with PIC receive regular
updates, as well as close engagement on ESG issues
and PIC's management of climate nisk exposure.

PIC won three industry awards based on our overall
approach to pension risk transfer trclr_*.soctions and
the core and commitrnent we have 1o policyhoiders.

LR %@NONS

Euro Pensions *
peanPencions _ 1 mERS
winuza WINNER
Wl st hows Purdrrichon 68 Urg Vet

P karvs I Lsanee Firm af e Y
Purian trsinuno Soporition

o a'e :
-9, TheInstitute of

* J8%¢, - Customer Service
e UK Customer Satisirerian
Awarys 2021 WINNER

Purpose, culture and values are a key focus for the
business, and nre embedded throughout our employee
engagement touchpoints.

The teadershin team engages through recular internal
communications channels, including Town Halls,

The Company conducts annual employee surveys to
gauge employee sentiment on key issues,

PIC's Diversity and Inclusion Forum heip make PIC o place
where our employees are proud to work.

FIC has ongoing commitments with LGBT Great,
#10000Blackinterns and the PIC Academy

Far the fourth vear, PIC has continued to sponsor the
Actuarial Mentoring Programme with the Institute and
Faculty of Actuaries.

+« QOur gender pay gap has decreased by 6.9% in the year.

+« We have recruited 120 employees in the year, and
continued our focus on our purpose and culture.

s 90% of employees are proud to work for FIC.

91% of employees strongly believe in the Company's
goals and objectives.
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Stakeholder engagement continued

Stakeholdears

What matters to them

Why we engage

Privately sourced
debt counterparties
and PRS investment
partners

Long-term relationships based on
trust, rather than a transactional
approach based solely on price.

Working in partnership to address
key issues such as ESG ond climaote
change risk.

The ability to portner with a company
that has a strong, shared sense of
sociaf purpose.

We work with debt counterparties
and our PRS investment partners

to generare cash flows to match
specific liabdities in years when

it 15 difficult to meet this need by
investing in the public bond markets

Cur investrments can provide us with
a compatitive edge when pricing for
new business, as well as increasing
the overall security ond value of

the portfolio.

Regulators and
policymakers

Kéy suppliers

Our main regulatar, the Prudential
Regulation Authority’'s (“PRA") focusis
on policyholder protection. This aligns
with PIC’s purpose, of paying the
pensions of our policyhalders.

The focus of policymokers has been

an reforming the financial services
industry to capitalise on Brexit,

Working closely with the PRA to
manoge our risks is key o fulfilling
PIC’s purpose and strategy.

Ongoing engagement with
policymakers helps them refine
and develop their opprocch to the
unique circumstances of the UK's
financial services sector.

Long-term partnerships with the
ability to influence autcormes.

PIC relies on our outsourced pariners
1o provide business critical services,
such as policyholder administration
and asset management.

PIC's key supplears are long-term
partners as we fulfil our purpose.

Shareholders and
debt holders

A robust balance sheet, with a focus
on long-term value creation,

Clear and transparent communication
with the leadership team.

Engagement on key business issues
and risks.

Qur equity and debt providers invest
the capital that encblas the business
to grow on a secure, focused basis.

45 Pension insurance Corporation Group Limited  Annual Report and Accounts 2021



How we engage
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2021 outcomes

Our debt ongination team works closely with borrowers to
ensure the deals that are structured meet their individual

needs, as well as of fering us suitable cash flows to match

future pension payrments.

A partnership aperocch means ongomng engagemant
over many years with counterparties and developmaont
partners, increasingly resulting in follaw-up transactions.

We completed 42 transactions with a variety of
high-quality partners,

11 existing counterparties extended the scope of their

debt agreements, agreeing funding for hundreds of new

homes for social rent, as well as ranawdble energy.

90 milion investment in The Wiltern, PIC's second
Build-to-Rent announced as well as cornerstone
funding for major urban regeneration project in Wirral.

PIC seeks to maintain an open, proactive dialogue
with regulataors.

PIC actively participates in public policy debates affecting

the financial services sector, as well as the wider economy-

PIC responded to the Treasury’s call for evidence
on Solvency Il reform, os well as the Future
Regulatory Framework.

PIC subsequently participoted in the PRAs review
of Solvency Il

We work closely and collaboratively with our
outsaurced partners,

Our policy 15 to pay our suppliers within the payment
terms on invoice rather than within 30 business days.

As at year end, 97.6% (2020: 99.1%) of invoices received
during the year from suppliers were paic.

We provide clear, transparent and timely communications
that halp investors ynderstand our purpose, strategy and
business model.

Business updates are communicated regularly to providers
of capital, including via the Regulatory News Service
(“RNS") and on our website.

We meet and speck regularly with debt holders and have
an annual debt helder conference call.

At year end 2021, PIC had a solvency ratio of 168%,
with adjusted operating profit of £533 mijlion.

©

See pages 26=97 for information on how
our Board engoges with our stakeholders
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Our Environmental, Social and Governance {"ESG") approach

As our busihess continues to grow, PIC is
becoming an increasingly visible presence
across the economy and society. The
pensions we guarantee through buyout
and buy-in mean we are now paying
£1,594 million a year in pension payments
to our 282,900 policyholders up and down
the country.

Qur partfolio, now in excess of £51.1 billion, which backs these
poyments, is invested precisely to secure the pensions of our
policyholders for decades te come. The assets we invest in
help to make the econarny greener, provide social housing,
regenerate our cities, support our universities and education
systern, and benefit younger and future generations.

In this section we outline how our focus on fong-term value
creation underpins our approach to ESG issues. This includes
the steps we are taking at corporate level and within the
portfolio to manage our ESG and carbon exposure, how

we seek to generate social value through our investments,
and the importance we place on having a good workplace
culture and making PIC an attractive place to work.

For more information see our TCFD report and
[

ESG report online at www.pensioncorporation.com
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The assets we invest in help to maoke

the economy greener, provide social
housing, regenerate our cities, support
our universities and education system, and
benefit younger and future generations.”

ESG assets (%)

M Social housing 29%

2021 < Renewable energy 12%
ESG Assets: M Education 26%
; W Not for profit 7%

Utilities 26%



We have focused onimproving the

environmental performance of cur own

business as well as reducing the environmental

impact within our portfolio.

@ For more information
please see p50-53

PRI
TCFD |

Investments:

With a business model based on the creation
of long-term value, PIC is inherently focused
on the levels of social value in our business
and our investments,

The greater the levels of social value created
through our investment strategy and by our
development partners, the higher the likelinood
that our investments will suppaort cur pension
payments through the decades to come.

PIC holds £10.9 billion in ESG assets.

£2 million o week has been injected into
Greater Manchester's economy following
PIC’s £130 million investmant.

First tenants moved into Bromley social housing
units, following PIC's £67 million investment to
alleviate homelessness.

For more information
please see p2~-6 and p28-33

Making a difference.

PIC has cemmitted to being corbon neutral
as a business by 2025, and to being carbon
neutral within our portfolio by 2050.

PIC reduced its scope 1& 2 emissions by 16%
during 2021,

PIC’s pertfolio average carbon intensity
(tCO:e/3rm revenue) is 204 tCO-e. We have

set ourselves a goal of decreasing our pertfolic
carbon intensity by 25% from 2019 levels by
2025 and have muade strong progress in this
respect so far.

Our people and culture:

PIC has always invested heavily in
making our workplace an attractive and
rewarding place to work - the Company
can only succeed by employing high-
quality individuals and then providing
the support mechanisms to allow them
to succeed.

PIC launched the PIC Academy, providing
apprenticeship opportunities.

PIC successfully participated in the
#10000Blackinterns mentoring scheme.

PIC employee survey 2021: 91% of employees
strongly believe in the goals and objectives
of PIC.

6.9% decrease year-on-yedr in our gender
pay dap.
For more information
please see p54=-59




Our Environmental, Social and Governance approach continued

Our commitment
to the environment

PIC is commiitted to being carbon neutrdl as a business
by 2025, and to being Net Zero within its investment
portfolio by 2050.

PIC reduced its Scope 1and 2 emissions by 16%
during 2021.

PIC’s single office in central London uses electricity
provided by a renewable energy supplier.

PIC js committed to decreasing its investment portfolio’s
average carbon intensity (tC0./$m revenue) by 50% by
2030 from 2019 levels. PIC has set an interim target

Commitments

We have focused on improving the environmental
pearformance of our own business as well as reducing the
environmental impact within our portfolic in order that
we can meet our climate goals.

e PIC Pos committed 1o be Net Zero by 2050 across all
sources of emissions, including within its investment
portfolio which backs the pensicn payments to our
282,800 policyholders.

e \Whilst we have g long-term outlook, we must set short-
term targets in order o reach cur goals and manage
the transition. We have set aninterim target of achieving
carbon neutrality within our own operations, under Scope
1T and 2 emissions, by 2025, in line with the ABI'S Climate
Chande Rodadmap.

Collective action is crucial to achieving these goals, including
engaging with the companies that we invest in and collaborating
with sustainability bodies, industry groups and wider sector
initigtives to drive action. We are active contributors to
policymaker discussions and industry bodies airming to further
push the climate agenda within the insurance industry,

For mare information see ocur TCFDR report and
. ESG report oniine at www.pensioncarpordtian.com

1 This will take into account the quality and consistency
of availoble data

2 Pre-industrial levels are defined by the Intergovernmental
Panel on Cimate Change methadology as the 30 year global
average caiculation of combined ar temperature over land
and water temperature at the ocean surface

of decredasing the average carbon intensity of our
investments in publicly listed credit by 25% from 2019
levels by 2025,

The weighted average carbon intensity of PIC's
investment portfolio is 204 tCO:e/$mm revenue,
a figure which covers 83% of the portfolio.

The ‘Temperature Alignment' within cur publicly-listed
credit investments, which quantifies the temperature

rise by 2100 from pre-industrial levels is 2.37*C. 60% of

PIC’s corporate band exposure {by market value] is on

a trajectory of 2°C or below?.

Corporate actions

We understand that climate risk s not Just an investment
concern butimpacts every business, including ours. At

a corporate level, we are reducing our environmental impact
including Scope 1and 2 emissions. We are pleased to confirm
that 100% of the energy we use is provided by a renewable
energy supplier, a mojor factor under Scope 2 emissions.

We also believe that a series of small changes and behaviour
adaptations are crucial to reaching our ambrtious targets
Thesa help foster climate owareneass across the firm and
improve our environmental performance, and have been
positively received by our employees,

i

LA

EES
The response by Government and asset
owners to climate change is one of the
defining issues of our age. PIC recognises
the urgency of curbing global warming and
we believe that achieving Net Zero is the
right thing to do both, for society and for
our policyholders, as we fulfil our purpose
over the coming decades.”

Tracy Blackwell
CEO
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Strategy

Climate is embedded into our overall strategy and we are
cognisant that we will have an increasing part to play in the
economy with the continued de-risking and large projected
flow of assets and labilities out of defined benefit pension
schames and into companies like curs

PIC’s investment strategy reflects the conviction that certain
industries, such as oll, will be undear increasing stress due to
the shitt In the energy mix to more sustainakle and renewable
sources. We have already taken significant measures ta
reduce the carbon intensity of our portfolio by switching
assets into companies and projects which contribute to the
transition towards a less carbon-intensive economy.

The transition of our investment strategy is driven by:

» the undeniable negative consequence that climate
changg is having on the warld, including ali sectorsin
which we are directly or indirectly expased to;

» the potential economic impact caused by a rapid
transition away from carbon fuel thot is now influencing
Government policy in the UK and around the world,

« o tipping in the refative market balonce towards
investments in greener sectors and technologes; and

s the feasibility and cost of exiting specific positions
matched to future lickilities

We have also applied two sector restrictions on our
investment universe:

» Coal extraction & burning and tar sands: No new purchases
in companias that derive more than 10% of turnover from
coal extraction and burning and tar sands. We aim to
divest from all of cur holdings in these areas by 2025 and
have nearly achieved this target already.

Qil: Exclude companies within exploration and production,
drilling and field services. We are making no new
purchases in companies in these sectors, A company

may on occasion be considered for investment if it can
demonstrate an ambitious commitment and clear
strategy to transitioning its business model towards

clean energy.

Taken together, these considerations have a double bottom
line impact: a positive impact on climate change and helping
us meet our investment objective.

_:pdilf”:'é,“ Corporate Governance
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Net Zero Asset Owner Alliance

PIC is proud to be a member of the
UN-convened Net Zero Asset Owner
Alliance ("NZAOCA”), an international
group of 69 institutional investors
representing ¢.$10 trillion assets under
management committed to making
Net Zero a reality within their portfolios
by 2050.

-25%

portfolio average
carbon intensity
reduction target
by 2025

£1.3bn

Total invested
in renewables

Asset owners have a unique role in the global economy,
financict systems and ability to drive decarbgonisation
and climate-resilience through our investment maondates.

PIC's progress in decarbonising its portfolio to date
means that it has joined the NZAOA’s Inaugural 2025
Target Setting Protocol, rather than the later 2030
protocol. The protocol commits members to publishing
interim carbon-reduction targets every five years.



Our Environmental, Social and Governance approach continued
Our commitment to the environment continued

Financing renewable
leader’s transition

An example of an ongoing PIC engagement and

the development of a strang relationship with a high
ermitting company with ambitious transition plans
was with Orsted. The relationship started in June 2018
as Orsted announced that it had decided 1o initiate

a sale process forits carbon-intensive Danish power
distribution and residential customer businesses, as
well asits city light business. This followed a strategic
review which refocused the company exglusively

on renewable energy and offshore wind in particular,
where it gimed to become a global leader. Orsted
intended to grow installed capacity by expanding
into existing and new markets. However, the company
needed the backing of institutional investors, like PIC,
in order to achieve meaningful scale.

Orsted's new strategic focus aligned with discussions
being held internolly ot RPIC about the future of carbon
intensive Industries and their piace in a long-term
investrmant stratedy {specifically designad to fulfi our
purpose over decades) In practice this meant moving
away frorm carbon intensive assets in favour of
low-carbon investments that have more social value
ina decarbonising world, PIC was an early investor
into Orsted's tronsition by funding two of its largest
UK offshore wind farms. PIC also supported Orstea
directly through the purchase of CPI-linked bonds,

PIC so far has invested over £350 million directly or
indirectly into Orsted since 2018, continuing to enjoy

a close relationship with the company and supporting
it in maintaming its market-leading position as

a renewable energy paowerhouse.

PIC has so far invested over
£350 million directly or indirectiy
into Orsted since 2018."

ESG integration

Climate change considerations are integrated throughaout
the orgonisation’s decision-making processas, as are wider
FSG factors.

we belleve thot companies which demonstrote positive
sustainability characteristics are better placed 1o maintain
sustainable cash flaws and servica their deibt over the fong
term. These characteristics include whethar they recognise
responsibilities to key stakeholders beyond customers,
such as employeas, suppliers, society and the environment.
Im order to meet these responsibilities, it is crucial that they
have a lond-term focus.

Gur approach has always bean to have our expert credit
analysts do the detaled nisk analysis for cradit investment
decisions, because they have the deepest knowledge of
specific issters. Analysts consider material environmental
risks alongside other risks and ligise with our Head of
Responsible Investment where concerns arise. Every
mernber of the Investment team is responsible for
anvironmental factors when reviewing on investment
opportunity. This means our anaiysis is forward-lfooking
and takes into consideration the risks to potential
investrments cver many decades,

Stewardship

ESG engagement descripes the interaction between
investors and issuers. Given our very lond-term investment
horizon, it is important thot we work with companies to
improve their sustainability practices, helping to ensure they
rdintain a strong iIndustry positioning, healthy credit ratings
and stable cash flows. PIC actively seeks out and endages
with high emitters and non-Paris aligned companies to

help push for decarbonisation. During 2021 we directly or
indirectly engoged with the following companies on speaific
climate topics.

Year 2021

High emitters n

Company hames National Grid, Royal Dutch Shell, Rio Tinto,
LK Power Network, BHP Group, Glencere,
Angioc Amearican, SSE, Engie, Thames
Water, Bozalgette

Industries Metals & Mining, Multi Utilities,
Qi & Gas, Materals
Tapics Net Zero ambitions, climate change target

sefting, chimate proposcls, phase down,
TCFD reporting, “Just” transition strategy,
rengwahles, hydrogen, electrification,
EV Infrastructure, carbon capture,
decarbonising hegat and environmental
targets, green framework feedback

We also engage closely with our privatety-sourced

debt investment counterpartias on environmental 1ssues
A great example of where we can have influence on the
environmental impact of an asset over its Iifetime 15 within
some of our property investments,
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Metrics and targets

We must look at the impact of our own emissions as well
as those of our investment portfolic. Disclosing relevant
and transparent metrics and setting meaningful targets
to address Scope 1-3 emissions is essential to ensuring
progress 1s made and monitored.

We are reducing our total energy consumption and carbon
emissions {Scope 1and 2} at cur offices. This is being effected
through a series cumulative actions and bigger changes.

For example, all the energy used in our office is now provided
by a renewable energy supplier.

In order to understand our total impact, we are making
efforts to map carbon emissions across our invesiment
portfolio (Scope 3) with the assistance of third parties such
as MSCHand the application of cur own methodology for
our privately-sourced debt investments.

5 Details on our carbon metrics can be found within
— our recently published TCFD report.

Targets

Corporate level targets

We understand the importance of setting meaningful
goals and demonstrating prograss year-on-year. Due to the
sustainability efforts enacted across our business, we have
mandged to reduce our total Scope 1 and 2 ermissions by
16% during 20271, We have committed to the target of being
carben neutral as a business by 2025,

Portfolio level metrics

In line with various industry initiatives we are involved with,
we have committed to decreasing our portfolio average
carbon intensity (on a Scope 1and 2 basis) by 50% by 2030,
We have therefore set ourselves an interim target, in line
with guidance from the Net Zero Asset Owner Alliance Target
Setting Protocol, of decreasing our public corporate credit
portfalio fworth £18.6 billion at FY2021) average carbon
intensity by 25% fram 2019 levels by 2025. We will endeavaur
to decrease this section of the portfolio by another 25%
{from 2019 levels) in the following five year period - in ine
with achieving our 50% reduction commitment over

a decade,

We have committed
to the target of being
carbon neutral as

We have mandaged
to reduce our total Scope
1and 2 emissions by

16%

in2021

a business by

2025

Corporate Governance
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High environmental
standards in design of our
New Victoria development

PIC’s award-winning New Victoria development in central
Manchester, will deliver 520 new homes on aninner-city
brownfield site by regenerating a key part of the city
centre. The development willinclude 460m? of new
landscaped space, which is the first-time this site has had
any green space in over 100 years. PIC has partnered with
Muse Developments and VINCI Construction UK to deliver
the £130 million Build-to-Rent scheme,

PIC has made o high level of envircnmental standards
central to its design during both the construction and
operational phases. For exampie, 99.5% of waste at the
New Victeria development will be recycled, reused,

or dispased of in more environmentally-friendly ways
than landfill. A typical construction project weuld
dispose of 8-10% of wasie created through landfill,

This is ane of the first developments to be designed to
achieve maximum water usage of 100 litres per parson
per day, which is 25% more efficient than current
building regulations require. In addition, all electricity
used at the developmaent site during construction is
procured through renewable energy suppliers. Finally,
virtually all the water used on site is coliected, filtered
and trensformed back into drinkable quality water,

We have also incorporated physical climote risk
mitigation into the development. A key Victorian
culvert on the River Irk - a major plank of central
Manchester’s flood defences - has been given
enhanced protection as part of the development.

For example, 99.5% of waste at the
New Victoria development will be
recycled, reused, or disposed of in
more environmentally-friendly ways.”




Our Environmental, Social and Governance approach continued

Our people
and culture

Attractive, rewarding and
stimulating workplace

Overview

PIC employs highly skilled individuals who all work to deliver
a cammon purpose, supported by a cuiture of innovation
and a strong set of values. PIC has always invested heavily
in making our workplace an attractive and rewdrding place
to waork — the Company can only succead by employing
high-quality individuals and then providing the support
mechanisms to allow them to succead.

This year 120 new employaes have joined our tearm.
Qur successin hiring new people is due to aur focus on

creating a purpaseful and stimulating working environrment,

where individual contributions are recognised within
o collaborative, team-based effort,

The switch durnng the early part of 2021 from working from
home followng the end of lockdown, to a combination of
waorking from home and working in office, was seamiless.
We were proactive in our approach to our people's welfare,
prioritising it as an integral part of fulfilling ocur purpose, Thig
has included providing a safe office working envirenment,
team bulding activities and access to counselling where
needed. We are proud to have been able to welcome all of
our new emplayees in person, ensuring they were stift able
to experiance the collegiate, flexible and innovative culture
PIC 15 known for.

We are cognisant that for many this new way of working is
yet another big change, particularly for those that are still
worried about contracting Covid-19, and so we continue to
provide all forms of support to safeguard our employees and
their wellbeing

Throughout the pandemic our leadership
team has invested considerable time in

a comprehensive internal communications
strategy that helped bring transparency
to the Group’s performance and the
challenges we are tackling.”




Throughout the pandemic our legdership team has

invested considerable tme in o comprehensive internal
cammunications stratedy that helped bring transparency to
the Group’s performance and the challenges we are tackling.
This has not only ensured a continuity in our culture, but it
has helped employees deliver strong business performance
over a sustained and challenging period.

All of this is evidenced by our cansistently high employee
engagament scores, madsured Lthrough internal and external
surveys and by the common belief in our leadership.

An adaptable and resilient culture

PIC successfully supported employees during the pandemic
as we all made the sudden, unforeseen and prolonged
switch to working from home, including ¢ significant focus
onwellbeing As the world started to move out of lockdown
during 2021, we concentrated our efforts on bringing

our people back into a safe and welcoming warking
environment, recognising the need for new ways of working
to ensure continued effectiveness.

Cur hybrid working model is stillin its trial phase and allows
employees to split their time between working from home
or the office, bringing o number of advantages:

» |t offers ¢ better balance batween creativity
and productivity.

It helps to keep our employges safe during this transition
period from complete lockdown to living with Covid-19,
with reduced office numbers,

It allows us te share and reinforce our strong culture
and values face to-face with our new starters and
existing employees.

» |t enables our employees to maintain o work-life balance,
which will ultimately increase productivity and
Job satisfaction.

o As the Company continues to grow and recruit more
pecple, flexible working practices will likely become the
norm, and ours will help to attract and retain a more
diverse workforce.

To ensure this initiative is as syccessful as possible and
reinforces our inclusive culture and values, managers have
been trained specifically on managing in a hybrid working
environment. We have continued the development of our
entire employee training programmaes, including iaunching
a Leadership Development Programme in partnership with
Ashridge Business School.

Leadership developmentis an impeortant part of creoting

a dynamic culture, especially given the relatively small size

of the Company. Whilst cur size does have benafits, including
flot reporting structures, easy access to senior managemant,
and the ability to hove cross-cormpany working, it also means
amore proactive approach ta people development, and in
2021 we established a Senior Leaders Forum. This consists of
repraesentatives fraom across the business at the level below
the Executive Committee, with an agenda designed to
provide challenge to Compony decisions in ¢ supportive
environment. The Forum also provides an important channel
for dissemination of important information,

Corporate Governance

p79-124 Financial Statements pl125-172

#10000Blackinterns campaign

When | heard about what was then the
#10008Blackinterns campaign — and is now the
#10000Blackinterns campaign ~ 1 was really excited
to explore what was on offer. | applied immediately,
luckily securing a position as an intern in the
investment team, which started in July 2021,

It was strangde to start an internship following

a prolonged Covid-19 national lockdown, with people
coming into the office two to three days a week, and
many colleagues still working frorm home. However,
I'd heard a lot about the positive culture at PIC and
quickly got to experience this first-hand. Colleagues
were helpful, friendly and inclusive. F was given
interesting, challenging work and really enjayed

the collaborative atmosphere.

Despite the original internship being designed to last

two months, the team asked me to stay on and created
g full-time position for me as Graduate Porifolio Analyst.
Saying yes was the easiest decision | ever made, even
though it meant turning down another internship at

a different financial services firm. My experience at PIC
has been overwhelmingly positive and it feels great to
be working for a company with purpose that cares about
delivering on its promises to customers and employees.

| applied immediately, luckily securing
a position as an intern in the investment
team, which started in July 2021.”

Dan Charles
Graduate Portfolio Analyst



Our Environmental, Social and Governance approach continued

Our people and culture continued

Employee engagement

PIC conducts an annual employee engagement survey

to help us understand how deeply our values and culture
are embedded throupghout the organisation and to gather
feedback from employees about their expernence of
working at PIC,

Employees answered questions relating to areas such

as customer experience, strategic direction and culture.,

With over 90% of employees taking part in the 2021 survey,
the scores demonstrate how our focus on customer care and

purpose is an intedrol part of the Company culture and ethos.

I believe strongly
in the goals and
objectives of PIC

PICis truly
customer oriented

91%, 92%

1 am proud to work
for PIC

I am optimistic
about the future at PIC

92% 90%

Rewarding our employees

We want our employees to be appropriotely rewarded
for their outstanding work, and FIC offers competitive
remuneration packages and a generous range of benefits.
These include:

s competitive pension contributions;

e private medical cover,;

travel insurance;

season ticket loans,

access to 24/7 mental health support through an
employee assistance programme;

a Cycle to Work scheme and a dedicated secure cycle
space at ou” London office; and

s death in service penefit.

In order to build a sense of ownership in the business and
incentivise individuals to grow the businessin the right way,
we operate a Save as You Earn {"SAYE") scheme. The
scheme has been in place since 2013 and allows employees
to build up blocks of shares in the Company. The scheme is
apen 1o oll employees on on annuol bosis, This is unusual for
o private company, but we believe it lays the foundations
for @ sustainable and successful Company with employees
able to share in the long-term value creation of the business,
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As well as ordganisational memberships, PIC is part of other
\nitiatives such as #10000Blackintarns, o programme intially
aimed at recruiting 1,000 black students or recent graduates
into paid internships within the asset management industry.
This initicgtive hos since expanded to 10,000 interns over

the next five years and will also cover other sectors, We
have dalsa sponsored the Social Capital Netwark, anather
mentornng and networking scheme far young BAME
professionals. Both of these intiotives are aimed at
improving longer term the levels of BAME employees in senior
front-office roles. We are focused on early careers talent
and have lounched our PIC Acaderny. This will enable PIC

to develop long-term, diverse talent pipelines.

Diversity and inclusion {(“D&I") at PIC

Diversity of thought is critical to PIC’s success, helping us to
deliver our purpose 1N an innovative way. PIC demonstrably
vaiues individuals regardiess of background or experience.
Itis important for us thot our people can discuss cultural and
other issues that are important to them in o respectful and
2ngaging way.

PIC has a Diversity and Inclusion Farum that meets regularly
to discuss and implement activities including internal events,
puest speakers and sponsarship of key diversity inltiatives.
The Forum has three ams:

r‘8:"1
838

Engage - Dermonstrate that PIC 1s a good
corporate citizen by supporting waorthwhile
Inftiatives which align with our values and role
model best practice

Educate - Educate, inform and inspire at all
levels on how D&l contributes to a succeassful
business, and promote PIC's D& approach
externally to attract talent

Enabkle ~ Enable ocur current and future people
to reach their full potential by providing
opportunities and removing borriers

1 2021, PIC continued its membership of LGBT Great, with
CEO Tracy Blockwell being recognised as one of the Top 100
Executive Allies within the industry for the second year in
arow. PIC ran events to suppert LGBT history month, and
Pricle month, including o session on allyship.

PIC continued to sponsor the Actuarial Mentoring Programme
for a fourth year, This scheme, of which PIC is the founding
spoNSOoL, is 1IN partnership with the Institute and Faculty of
Actuaries. Our facus In 2021 has been on early careers talent
with the launch of our PIC Academy. This will enable PIC to
develop long-term, diverse talent pipelines. We were one of
the first companies to support #10000Blackinterns, offering
twae Internshins 1in 2021, one of which has now become
permanent. We are looking to offer eight internships for
summer 2022 We alsa created an Apprenticeship Prograrmme,
affering 1t apprenticaeships for 18 months, This prograrmime

1s aimed at school leavers and provides them with an
opportunity to gain experience In financial services whilst
attaining ¢ gualification.
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Christmas in the community

Working with our charity partners

PIC is delighted to continue supporting our charity partners,
Independent Age and Rethink Mental llness, and to help

in raising the funds that really make a difference to the
critical work that they do. 2021 saw o very welcome return

to fundraising activities, such as skydives, the London
marathon, and the PIC treasure hunt, which saw employees
and staff dress up and follow a series of clues in a hunt gcross
the City of London. Both of our charnity partners joined us on
the night and everyone had a fantastic, purposeful evening.

we were also pleased te be oble to support a vital Christrmas
programme to feed local homeless people, at our New Victona
development in centrat Manchester. Our development
partners Muse and VINCl were key to bringing this together,
once again demonstrating aur shared vaives. In addition to the
financial contributions, our employees continued to actively
volunteer their time to provide "talking support’ to build trusting
relationships with isolated and vulnercble elderly people in
association with Independent Age.

PIC has an allowance for each employee to take two

days a year paid leave to work on volunteering projects of
their choice. In order to facilitate this, in 2021 we arranged
volunteering days with Heath Hands, a voluntary organisation
that supports the environmental conservation of Hompstead
Heath Othar employees used thair volunteering days to helo
with the Covid-19 vaccination rollout.

PIC and its partners on the New Victoria development

in Manchester teamed up with local charity Lifeshare,
Manchester’s oldest charity that supports homeless and
vulnerable people in the city, providing it with ¢ place to
host its annual Christmas Project.

PIC, alongside Muse Developments and VINCE
Construction, offered Lifeshare the use of its site

cabins over the festive peariod. From there, Lifeshare was
able to pravide homeless and vulnerable people with hot

Rethink Mental lliness helped train 26 of our employees as
mental health first aiders. Attendees found the training

very helpful. We hope that this will contricute to earlier
identification and better understanding and mancgement
of mental health and wellbeing.

Our charity partners

Rethink Mental lliness

Rethink Mental lliness 1s a charity with over
40 years’ experience of supporting people
severely affected by mental health issues.

¥ Rethink

Menta

Tens of thousands of people rely on its support every year to
help them get throush crises, live independently and reglise
they are not alone. The Rethink Advice and Information
Service offers practical information and support about any
aspect of mental health and has produced a whole range of

factsheets, which are downloadable for free via the ink below.

www.rethink.org/advice-and-information

Independent

Independent Age UK % Age
Independent Age UKis a charity

founded over 150 years ado offering
advice and support for people in old age.

It operates throughout the UK and provides advice and
support across a range of areas including money, housing,

health, personal life, support and care, and future planning.
lts guides and facisheels are downloadablea for free via the

link below.

www.independentage.org//pet-advice/
advice-guides-factsheets:-leafi

b Iliness, 4

meals, companianship, medical and personal care and
shower facilities in a bid to reduce isolaticn and bring
people together over the Christmas period.

Judith Viekers, Operations Manager at Lifeshare, said:
"We cannot explain how amazing this donation is. | was
really starting to panic that we had no location ta hald
this year's Christmas Project — a scheme that helps s¢
many people at what is one of the worst times of the
year if you're on the streets. We owe a lot to VINCl and
the other parties invalved - Muse Developments and
Pension Insurance Corparation. I'm really hoging that
after the horrendous few years people have had, this
Christmas may bring some much needed festive cheer
and real, tangible support for those in need.”

We owe a lot to VINCI and the other
parties involved - Muse Developments
and Pension Insurance Corporation.”

Judith Vickers
Operations Manager at Lifeshare




Our Environmental, Social and Governance approach continved
Our people and culture continued

Gender pay gap report 2021

The gender pay gap seeks to measure the difference
between the average pay of men and women across
the Company.

2021 highlights

\V4 \Y% >
6.9% 1.1% 7.7% 7.0%

Decrease in PSC's PSC's total mean Decrease in PSC’s Change in percentage
mean gender bhonus pay gap median bonus of women in P5C’s
pay gop pay gap upper quartile




Mean salary pay gap 2021

The Equality and Human Rights Commission had extended
the deadline to report gender pay gap information to

5 October 2027, therefore, Industry figures may be indicative.

Pension Services Corporation Limited’s ("PSCT fidure of 18.4%
is below the financial services indicative average (25.2%).
PSC's mean gender pay gap across employees of 13.7%
{mccludhing Non Cwecutive Direclurs) s betow Lhe indicative
national averagde of 14.9%.

8 . Corporate Governance

2020 2021 12-rmonth change
Mean hourly 25.3% 18.4% down 8.9%
Median hourly 14.5% 6.8% down 7.7%

Qur pender pay dgap is driven by three primary factors:
1. 35% of total employees are femafe

2. 29% of employees in the upper pay cquartile are female,
up 7% in the year

3 The proportion of male Non-Executive Directors

Bonus pay gap

The reporting for the bonus pay gap must include all one-of f
payments which are subject to PAYE. This includes cash
bonuses and shares at the point of exercise, rather than
award. Unusually for a private company, PIC runs a share
scheme for all employees. As share exercise is a persenal
decision, this contributes to the varnability of PSC’s bonus
poy gap each year. PSC's bonus pay gap therefore varies
significantly year-on-year due to circurnstances beyond aur
control. For 2021 the median bonus pay gap reduced by 7.7%.

As employees in the upper guartile have higher target
bonuses and dre more likely to receive share awards, the
median bonus gap will remain at a higher level until we have
more women in the upper quartile.

p79-124 Financiai Statements p125-172

Percentage of women at each quartile
Anincrease of women in the upper quartile to 29%

la 7% increase) has led to a fall in PSC's dender pay gop.
On b April 2021, PSC had 349 employees.

Lower quartile Lower middle quartile

M Women 44% W Women 30%
@ Men B6% i Men 70%
Upper middle quartile Upper quartile

2020 2021 12-month change
Mean bonus 1.6% 1% down 0.5%
Median bonus 3M1% 23.4% down 7.7% W Women 36% M Women 2994
2 Men 64% & Men N%
Actions we are taking to address the gender pay gap
Approach 2021 update

We target 30% of CVs from recruitment
agencies to be from women.

Recruiting talent

36% of PSC hires in 2021 were female.

Early careers*

PIC Academy: reguested minimum of 50% of

Hired 64%.

candidates into the Apprenticeship programme

to be women,

Developing
managers
and leaders

peaple moncgers.

Qur Aspiring Managers Programme is for all

£ high percentage of women overall toke advantage
of learning and development opportunities, The
Aspiring Managers Programme has a 50/50

gender split,

© Whilst focusing on early careers could have @ short-term impact on the gender pay gap numbers, we are committed to making
sustainable progress at source. For example, this is the fourth year we have sponsored the Actuarial Mentoring Programme

{see page 56 for mare detail).
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Chief Financial Officer’s review
Dom Veney Chief Financial Officer

A strong set of results,

which demonstrate a robust
balance sheet and long-term
profitability, underpinning
our purpose and future
growth prospects.”

IFRS operating profit

IFRS profit before tax

Solvency ratio

/

Y
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Total operating surplus generation of £380 million increased

2021 2020
Financial highlights £m £ by £472 million in the year to 31 December 2021. The
) } - improvement from 2020 was driven by an improved return
Solvency llratio (unaudited) 168% 157% from the in-force book, less copital-intensive new husiness
Gross pramiums written 4,702 5,649 wrilten, and positive management actions taken in the year.
Profit betfore taxation 393 78
- IFRS
Adjusted operating profit before tax 533 349*
2021 2020
Operating surplus generation 380 {92) Statement of comprehensive income - highlights £Em £rm
Financiacl investments 51,143 49,648 Gross premiums written 4,702 5,649
' 2020 adjusted operating profit has been restated to include the
RT1coupan in operating profit. Net premiurm revenue earned 3,856 5137
Introduction Investment return {including commissions
PIC is a long-term business with o clear purpose, which is earned 210 4,091
to pay the pensions of our current and future policyholders. Total revenue 4,066 4,223
lam therefore delishted to present a set of financial results
for the Group, my first as CFO, which demonstrate o strong Net claims paid (1785)  (1683)
balance sheet and long-term profitability, underpinning that Change in net insurance habilities (1,801) (6997)
purpose and our future growth prospects. At year end our
unauvdited solvency ratio rose to 168% {2020: 157%), with Operating expenses (198) {194)
adjusted operating profit before tax, the Group's preferred Finance costs {89) (73)
measure of long-term profitabllity increasing 53% to .
Total claims and expenses 67 8,947
£533 millicn (2020 £345 millon). Both metrics benefited otal clai Ld (3673) (8947)
from growth in the business glongside management actions
token in the yeor. Profit before taxation 393 276
The onooing effects of the pandemic and the monetary Tax charge {82) (54)
policy response to it once again caused significant pernods of Profit after tax 3N 292

market volatility, including gilt yields that continued to touch
historic lows, the tightest credit spreads since the 2007-2008
Financial Crisis and, during the second half, the return of
inflation. Each of these present chollenges and opportunities
for the business and our focus for the year has been to
manage the challenges so that we are well placed to take
advantage of selective short-term copportunities, whilst
positioning ourselves for long-term growth.

In terms of new business, the whole pension risk transfer
rmarket was muted during the first half of the year,

o consequence of the disruption caused by the pandemic
which led to o lower number of trustee meetings in 2020
and, as outlined in the Pension Risk Transfer ("PRT") section
of this report, fewer PRT transactions being completed by
the half year.

At year end, PIC had a portfalio of £51.1 billion of financial
investments (2020: £49.6 billion), with which to back our
future pension payments. The increase during 2021 was
largely due to new business, partially offset by the increase
in risk-free rates which decreases the volue of investments
but also those of our insurance liabilities. Over recent yedrs
we hava substantially de-risked the portfolio and as aresult
we have seen both zero defaults and minimal downgrades
to sub investment grade in either 2021 or 2020.

The Board continues to assess the performance measures
of the Group, ensuring they remain appropriote, as we seek
to fulfil our purpose, In the light of a changing economic
and regulatory environment. Qne alternative performance
metric, disclosed in this report for the first time, is surplus
generation. This megsures the surplus being generated by
the business which is available o be re-invested In new
business or for other purpases, Ncluding augmenting the
solvency balance sheet and protecting against short term
market fluctuations.

Premiums

A combination of lower activity in the first half of the year
and our adherence to our policy of only writing business
which meets long-term value targets, led to a reduction in
oross premiums written to £4,702 million frorm £5,64% million
in 2020. The Group completed fourteen new business
transactions during the year {2020: seven), including the
largest single transaction of the year, the £2.2 billion Metal
Box buyout, We continue to be selective in underwriting
those risks where we axpect to generate an adequate return
within our risk appetite.

Net premiums earned represent the gross premiums
written less pramiums ceded to reinsurers. Premiums

ceded toreinsurers increased due to the completion of asset
backed reinsurance transactions covering approximately
£750 million {2020: £38% million) of labilities. In total, seven
(2020: eight) new reinsurance contracts were concluded

in 2021

Investment return

Investment return comprises income received on fixed
income securities, derivatives and investment property,
ond unrealised and reclised dains and losses on

these investments.

Interaest income on fixed securities increased to £1,054 millon
in 2021 from £1,027 million in 2028, reflecting the growth in the
invastrment portfolic during the year.

The net movement in the fair value of assets, including
redlised and unrealised items, was a loss of £1,029 millicn
compared with a gain of £3,170 miion in 2020. This comprises
realised gains of £307 million {2020: £634 mitlion) and
unrealised losses of £1,336 million (2020: gain of £2,476 million).
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Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

The unrealised losses recognised in 2021 are primarily
due to higher risk-free rates.

Other investment return and commissions amounted to
£185 mullion {2020 loss of £46 milion) primarily representing
gains on derivative contracts.,

It s important to note that fair value sains and losses
included in investrnent return in the Income statemeant are
largely offset by changes in insurance liabilities, also in the
ncome statement. Therefore, there is minimal impact on
nrofit before tax.

Claims paid

Net claims paid comprises gross ¢laims paid, which are
pension payments to our policyholders, lass any payments
received from reinsurers. Net claims paid increased from
£1,683 million in 2020 to £1,785 million in 2027, reflecting the
increased number of customers.

Change in net insurance liabilities

Change in net insurance liahilities represents the change
in the gross insurance liabilities less the movement in
reinsurance assets

The change in net insurance labilities mainly reflects the
ncrease in the nurmber of policies by 17200 o 282 600
partially offset by market movernents, principally the
increase in risk free rates seen in the year, and the impact
of actuarial assumption changes.

Operating expenses

Total operating expenses were £198 million (2020: £1%94 million).

This includes project spend of £38 million 2020: £45 millicn)
primarily to support the forthcoming iIntroduction of the new
IFRS 17 accounting standard (see below), as well as spend on
new asset and capital models. Excluding these project costs,
the rermnaining increase in spend mainly reflects an increase
N equity release mortgage origination fees.

Finance costs
Finance costs represent the interest payable on borrowings
and finance ledse costs,

Finance costs of £89 million i 2021 {2020: £73 million}
represents the full year interest pavable on the five

[2020: five) subordinated debt securities issued by PIC, the
Group's main trading entity. 2021 also includes £1 million
(2020: £1 million) in respect of finance lease costs.

The RT1 debt issued in July 2019 has been accounted for as
equity under IFRS and as such interest on these notes s not
included in finance costs and s instead recognised as
dividends when paid.

Our approach to tax

As a UK redistered business, the Group pays its full tax
lability to HMRC ensuring compliance with UK tax laws,
regulations and disclosure requirernents.

The Group ensures transparency inits tax disclosures and
seeks a canstructive relationship with HMRC ot all times.
The Group had an effective corporatian tax rate of 21%
auring 2021 {2020: 19%). During the year, the Group paid

a total of £56 million {2020 £118 milllon) In respect of
corporation, payroll related and value added taxes.

The decrease in the year reflects the change to the tax
payment date rules last year, resulting in a proportion of the
2012 tax liability ond whole of the 2020 estimated tax liability
being paid in2020.

IFRS 17 — Insurance contracts

IFRS 17 — Insurance contracts I1s a new accounting standard
effective for accounting periods on or after 1 January 2023. We
are well progressed in our implementatian of the new systems
and the expected financial implications wili bhe cornmunicated
in due course. Further detals can be found in note 1to the
financial statements.

Statement of financial position — highlights

200 2020
Statement of fingncial pesition - highlights Em £
Financial investments 51143 49648
Derivative assets 15,018 21936
Reinsurance assets 3,350 2,773
Gross Insurance liakilities {47,013) (44,835)
Derivative liabilities (16,997} (24,340}
Borrowings {1,890} (1589
Other net assets 554 574

Total equity 4,465 4167

At the end of 202%, the Group had total financial investments
of £511 billion, compared with £49.6 billion at the end of 2020,
The assets in which the Group invests are carefully chosen

in order to match the policyholder obligations that they are
designed to poy. Ouwr investment strotegy is to select ossels
that generate cash flows to match our future claims
payments in both timing and amount. This means that the
value of our assets and liabilities should mowve broadly in
tandern as factors such as interest and inflation rates change.

The credit quality of our investment portfolic continues

to remam strong which has ensured that the Group did

not experience any defaults in 2021 {2020: none) and that
downgrades to sub-invaestment grade credit were lass than
0% (2020: 0.4%) of the credit portfoho {including private
investments but excluding gilts).

The increase in the reinsurance assets during the year primarily
reflects the asset bocked reinsurance arrangements completed
during the yaar. In 2021, the Group reinsured longevity exposure
on £4.0 billion of reserves (2020 £6.6 billion), and ot

31 December 2021, 85% of the Group's gross longevity related
reserves had been reinsured [2020: 84%). The Group has 14
reinsurance counterparties, all of which have a credit rating

of A or abowve.

The increase in insurance liabilities in 2021 reflects

the addition of new business iabilities partly offset by
movements in economic factors during the year, notably
higher interest rates coupled with claims paid and the
impact of changes in actuarial assumpticns.

Gross derivative assets and derivative liobilities have both
decreased during the year, by £6.9 billicn and £7 3 hillion
respectively. The net increase in the year across all
derivative gssets and abilities was £425 million.
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The Group uses derivatives to hedge out certain market
risks, in particular inflation, interest rates and currency
risks associated with both new and existing business.

The decrease in lhe gross derivative asset and liability
balances is a result of market movements, in particular rising
interest rotes, partially offset by new business written in the
year It should be noted that all derivative contracts are fully
collateralised thraugh the vse of a custodian, and s such
presant little credit risk in the event of a derivative
counterparty default.

Total equity has increased by £298 million mainly due to ofter
tax profits during the year.

Adjusted operating profit

In addition te the statutory results presentation as cutlined
above, the Group also chiooses to analyse its IFRS results
on an alternative performance metric, ‘adjusted operating
profit before tax’, which is a non-GAAP measure of long-term
value creation, a key outcome of the Group's business
model. It reflects the Group's activities which are core to
our husiness and the management cheices and decisions
around those activities. These activities include the writing
and management of pension insurance contracts {(buyouts
and buy-ing), the management of risk through reinsurance,
and the day-to-day investmant and management of

the insurarnce assets and liabilities. in essence, it gives
stakeholders a more accurate view of the expected long-
term investment returns on the assets backing policyholder
and shareholder funds, with an allowance for the
corresponding expected movements in llabilities. This basis
reflacts the lond-term trading activities of the Group better
than the IFRS reported profit before taxation.

During 2021, the definition of adjusted operating profit before
tax was amended to take account of three refinements to
the methodology:

1. Mew business profit has been redefined to align the
reported new business profitakility with the assumptons
used in the pricing of new business. Any variance
between pricing ond current valuation assumptions is
then recognised ds an experignce variance outsice of
underlying profit that will reverse over time. Thareis no
change teo adjusted operating profit bhefore tax.

2. Reinsurance profit has been restated to recodnise
short term timing differences, and their reversal, within
experience variances. This is consistent with underlying
profit being an ‘expeaected’ profit measure. There 1s no
change to adjusted operating profit before tax.

3. The cost of the RTlinterest has been recognised within
finance costs. This is to olign the reporting across all bases
and reflects the way management and rating agencies
view these financing costs. The treatment for the
statutory IFRS statement of comprehensive income
remains unchanged, i.e. the RT1 interest is treated as
a dividend, and therefare the RT1 interest 1s added back
bafore profit before tax in the alternative profit metric.

The 2020 comparatives have been restated accordingly.

' p01—78 Corporate Governance
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The Group's adiusted operating profit before tax was

£533 million, an increase of 53% from 2020 {2020: £349 million).
This was primarily due to mancgement actions and
assumpticn chonges and a lower adverse experience variance

More detail on the main components of adjusted operating
profit are set out below.

2020
2021 Restated
Adjusted aperating profit £m £mn
Expected return from operations 288 274
New business and reinsurance profit 167 187
Underlying profit 455 461
Changes in valuation assumptions s 292
Experience and other variances {1 {253)
Finance costs {122) (106)
Project costs (38) (45)
Adjusted operating profit before tax 533 349
Investment related variances {173) (106)
Add back: RT1coupon {treated as o
dividend for statutory purposeas) 3 33
Profit before taxation 393 276

Underlying profit

This item comprises the expected returns arising from the
management of the Group's assets and liabilities. Thisis
derived by using assumptions about long term returns on the
underlying investment portfolio backing liabilities, and on the
surplus assets of the Group.

It alse includes the impact on profit of writing new pensicn
risk transfer contracts based on target asset mix assumptions
and the impact of entering into new contracts of reinsurance.

Underlying profit of £455 milion in 2021 was broadly nhine
with 2020 (2020: £461 million). Within this figure, expected
return frem operations of £288 million was higher than last
year (2020: £274 million) mainly reflecting a higher assumed
longer term rate of return due to the increase in interest
rataes seen in the year, partially offset by lower credit
spreads in 2021

New business and reinsurance profit of £167 millon was
lower than 2020 (£187 rmullion). Within this result, new business
profits were higher than last yvear, despite lower volumes,
reflecting a favourable businass mix. This was offset by

a reduced benefit from remnsurance on the in-force book.

Reinsurance transactions in 2021 covered £4.0 billion of
iabilities comparad to £6.6 billion of liabilities reinsured in 2020.

Cheanges in valuation assumptions

The Group focuses on long-term profitability, which is
achieved by setting prudent assumptions inrespect of the
in-force habllities and new kusiness acquired during the year.
Manggement regularly review these assumptions to ensure
that they reflect the characteristics of our bock and wider
rmarket practice.

63



Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

As part of management's review of assumptions in 2021,

the Group updated several ossumptions including those

In respect of credit defaults, maintenance expeanses,
investmeant management fees, inflation and the IFRS quidity
premium rate. This resulted in a total reserve release of

£315 million,

To ensure that our default and downgrade expectations are
appropriate, we undertake a rapular update of our long-term
expectations based on data provided by rating agencies.
The update far 2021 resuited in a release af £116 million, which
reflacts the lesser lkelihood of downgrades in our investment
portfolio, and has been impacted by various actions taken
by the business in recent years. The credit default reserve
was £2.7 billion as at 31 December 2021 (31 December

2020: £2.9 billion).

During the year, after reviewing ocur contractual custodian
fees, the assumption for investment management fees has
been updated resulting in a release of prudent margins of
E£104 miflion.

Following the Retall Price index (RP) reform announced by
the Chancellor in November 2020 which proposes to align
RP| to the Consumer Prices Index including owner occupiers’
housing costs [CPIH] after 2030, we took the opportunity

to update our longer term Inflation assumptions and refing
our inflation modelling to take account of both CPland RPY
valotiity. This resulted in G release of reserves of £70 million.

In addition, there were several other smaller assumption
changes made in the year which included an update to the
reinvestment/disinvestment rate used for the IFRS liquidity
premium calculation and an update to the maintenance
expense dssumption incorparating the latest expense budgets
and following a review and update of expensa allocations.

In 2020, total reserve releases of £292 million were in respect
to changes in assumptions for longevity and expenses.

Prudent margins

There exist prudent margins within the IFRS basis in

rejation to uncertainty within our best estimate assumptions,
including longevity, expenses and the discount rate applied
to liabilities. Notwithstanding the changes to assumptions
made in 2021 resulting in a release of reserves, there remains
total prudent margins of £3.1 billon at 31 December 2021

{31 Decembear 2020: £3.2 billion).

These prudent margins are expected to be released over the
long term and recognised as profits, as actual expernence
materialises and uncertainty over the best estimate
assumptions is reduced

Experience and other variances

Experience variances, which reflect the difference
between the assumptions used for pricing within the rew
business line and those used for reserving, actual claims
experience in the penod compared to the expected
amounts and the impacts of dato updates on underlying
wolcyheider information, gave rise to a koss of £77 million
I 20212020 loss of £253 mullion).

In 7020, the negative experience variance was primarily
due to differences between the maintenance expense
assumption used In pricing compared to those used in

the valuation basis. This gave rise to g negative experience
variance of £158 million which was (orgely offset in the
year by a reserve release within changes in valuation
assumptions. In addition, data vupdates resulted in o loss

of £46 million.

Finance costs and other costs

Finance and other costs reperted under Lthe alternative
profit metric include finance costs on Tier 2 debt (see note
15}, interest on the RT1 debt {see note 19) and project costs
{see note 4).

Investment related variances
Investment related variances gave rise to a loss of .
£173 miliion in the yegr (2020 ioss of £106 million). '

As noted above, adjusted operating profit before taxis
based on expected long term investmeant returns which are
calculated using manageraent assumptions of the returns
on the assets backing policyholder and sharehalder funds
with an allowance for the corresponding expected
movements in liabilities. The long-term rates of return earned
on excess assets are derived with reference to the expected
longer tarm yield of the underlying assets Profit before tax
includes the actual investment returns earned in the period
on assets backing insurance liabilities and surplus assets.
Actual investmeant réturns N the yaar, on a mark to market
basis, will differ from the expected langer term returns due to
short term impacts from market moverments, The difference
between the actual and the expected ong-term rates of
return, coupled with the impact of changes in economic
assumptions on ligkilities and the difference between the
short-term actual asset mix and the expected long-term
asset mix on hew business transactions during the year are
included within investment related varignces, outside of
adjusted operating profit before tax.

The Group carefully manages its exposure to market and
other economic risks in order that we are able to fulfil cur
purpose over the lohg-term. As such the Group's hedging
strategy is primarily designed to protect the solvency
balance sheet. This is achieved by entering into derivative
hedging contracts in accordance with our risk framework.
However, due to the differing requirements of the Solvency |l
and FRS reporting metrics, there 1s g mismatch between the
Solvency lland the IFRS balance sheet hedding strategres.
This mismatch, and the resulting volatility, is included

within the investment related vanance line. The impact of
downgrades and managemeant actions which were taken

to improve the rasilence of the balance sheet are also both
included here,

(N 2021, the adverse investment variance of £173 millon was
primarily due to sighificant economic volatility in the year,
in particular rising GBP risk free rates and credit spread
movements partiolly offset by higher inflation,
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Expense ratio

The expense ratio 15 a measure of the operating efficiency

of PICG and reflects operating and investment expenses as

a percentage of closing financial investments. This metric Is

a key performance indicator (“KPI") which aligns to one of

the strategic objectives of the Group, to maintain a scalable
business model that optimises internal and external rescurces
This ratio has been redefined to include the cost of our ERM
origination fees which were previously excluded, The prior
year comparatives have been restated accordingly.

The expense ratio of 0.39% at 31 December 2021 was slightly
higher than 0.38% al 31 Decermber 2020, driven by ERM
origination fees as we have increased the size of our ERM
portfolio. This is partly offset by lower operating costs and
an increase in finoncial investments,

Return on equity

Return on equity is a measure of the rolling 12 months

after tax profits in refation to average equity {excluding

aur RT1notes) This ratio has been radefined to deduct

the RTinterest from the profit after tox and the FY 2020
comparative has been restated accordingly. This metric is
another one of the Group's KPI's which aligns to the strategic
objective of delivering attractive risk-adjusted total
sharehalder returns,

Raturn on equity increased to 7.3% in 2021 (2020: 6.0%) due
to the higher profit generated this year as we start to deploy
the capital raised in 2020.

Capital and solvency

PIC, the regulated subsidiary of the Group, is required to
comply with the Solvency Il regulatory framework. Solvency |l
requires firms to follow either d prescribed approach to
calculating required regulatory capital {the standard formula
approach), or to apply to the PRA to use an "internal model”
developed by the Company but subject to cormprehensive
review and approval by the regulater,

PIC has PRA approval to apply aninternal model, which

is a better reflection of the risk profile of the Company’s
business than the standard formuia approach. The Company
has complied with the Solvency Il Capital Reguirerments under
Solvency [l as set out in the relevant PRA rules throughout

the year {see Note 21 to the financial statements).

Solvency ratio

At 31 December 2021, PIC's unaudited Selvency Il ratio
improved to 168% (2020: 157%) and it had surplus funds of
£2.701 million (31 December 2020: £2,449 miillion) in excess

of its Solvency Il Capital Reguirements {(*SCR”) as calculated
by the internal model.

The solvency ratio has improved 1in a challenging
environment due to management actions taken and the
return from the in-force book. We Utilise hedding to provide
protection for aur solvency balance sheet against adverse
economic fluctuations which has been particularly
important given the market volatility of the last few

years. This positions us well to take advantage of future
market opportunities.
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2021 2020
Unaudited Unaudited
PIC salvency Emn £m
Own funds 6,669 6,710
Salvency Il capital requirements {3,968) {4,267)
Solvency |l surplus 2,701 2,449
Solvency ratio (%) 168% 157%
Matiching adjustment (%) 1.040% 1.062%
Surplus generation {PIC) {unaudited)
201 2020
Surplus generation £m £rm
Opening Surplus 2,449 1,880
Expected surplus generation
from in-force boek 400 329
New business {net of reinsurance) {33) (221)
Management gctions and other
operating variances n {50)
Financing and project costs (158) 1150}
Operating surplus generation 380 {92)
Economic and other
non-operating variances (128) (793}
Change in capital ] 1,444
Total surplus generation 252 559
Closing Surplus 2,701 2,449

As mentioned earlier, surplus generation is o key altaernative
performance metric of the business and measures the
amount of Solvency [l surplus capital {i.e. own funds less SCR)
generated in the pericd. The key components are the
expected surplus generated from the business written in
previous periods and manasement actions taken in the yaar.
These elements are used to fund the copital requirement of
writing new business in the year and to pay coupons to our
debtholders. The impact of market movements are included
in economic and other nen-operating variances.

Expected surplus generation from the in-force book
Expected surplus generation comprises the

» Investment return on the capital assets {(non-matching
fund ussets);

¢ Margins earned on the matching fund assets;

s Release of the in-force risk margin and SCR; and

¢ Amortisation of the Transitional Measure on Technical
Provisions {("TMTP").

In 2027, expected surplus generation incregsed to

£400 million (2020: £22%9 million). This was due to a larder
in-force book and capital assets following £5.6 billion of
new businass written in 2020,
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Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

New business (net of reinsurance)

New business {net of reinsurance) is the day one impact

on surplus of writing new business, based on the pricing
assumptions, plus the impact of reinsurance of in-force
business. Typically, new business is reinsured at outset, but
where there are tming delays in entering into remnsurance,
any differences between the new business assumptions and
the reserving basis are reported das experience variances
within other operoting varionces.

New pusiness strain {net of remsurance) was £33 milion on
£4.7 pillion of premiurms in 20271 {2020: new business strain
of £221 million on £5.6 billion of premiums). The reduction in
strain reflects @ numbper of items, inciuding the use of quota
share reinsurance, not ail of which is expected to repeat
next year.

Management actions and other operating variances
Management actions and other operating varnances comprise
actions taken by the business, assumption changes and
operating variances, Operating variances represent the
difference between actudi non-economic experience and
the non-economic assurnptions used In pricing new business
and used in expected surplus generation.

Maonagement actions and other oparating variances
increased ta £171 million 10 2021 compared 1o a reduction in
surpius of £50 millicn in 2020, During 2021, we took action to
reposition aur capital and following our annual review of the
assumptions used in the business, we made changdes which
led to an overall reduction in capital reguirements.

In addition, we have seen a reduction in the SCR following
a review of how market and longevity risks interact. The
change in the correlation assumptions between these rnisks
has increased the surplus

Since the giobal financial crisis in 2007-2008, the number
of underlying LIBOR transactions have reduced resulting
in LIBOR being a less reliable benchmark for GBP risk-free
rates, In March 2021, the FCA confirmed that LIBOR waould
ceqgse immediately after 31 December 2021. This led to
the transition from LIBOR to o more robust alternative —
SONIA. However, in transitioning to the new benchmark
and applyind the new GBP risk-free rate, the solvency
surplus has reduced by ¢. £150 million.

Several other smalier assumption changes were made in the
year including those for investment management expenses,
mamtencnce expenses and inflation,

2020 included adverse experiances variances relating 1o
G higher initial expense strain than was assumed in new
business pricing This was partialiy offset by o release

of reserves for longevity and expenses.

Financing and project costs

Financing and project costs reflect the accrued interest paid
cn the RT1 and Tier 2 debt issues coupled with project costs
in the pericd

Financing costs of £120 milion (2020: £105 millar) reflects
the full year cost of the two debt raises in May 2020 and
October 2020. Project costs of £38 million decreased in
2021 {2020: £45 million) reflecting a lower spend on
business wide initiatives.

Economic and other non-operating variances
Operating surplus generation is based on expected
investment returns which are calculated using mancagement
assurnptions of the returns on the assets backing
policyholder and shareholder funds with an allowance

for the corresponding expected movements in technical
provisions and the SCR. Actual investment returns in the year,
on a mark to market basis, will differ from the expected
returns due to short term impacis from rmarket movements.
The difference between the actua! and the expected rates
of return, coupled with the impact of changes in economic
assurmptions on technical provisions and the SCR, along

with any difference between the short-term actual asset mix
and the expected long-term asset mix on new business
traensactions during the year are included within non-
operating vanances, cutside of operoting surplus generation.

Econornic and other non-operating varnances had

o negative impact on capital of £128 million n 2021 (2020
naegative impact of £793 million] primarily relating to changes
in inflation, risk-free rotes and asset trading in the period.

Change in capital
Capital movements include debt and equity capital raised
in the period net of the costs of issue.

Capital ncreased by £1,444 million in 2020, This comprised
1wo debt raises of £300 million in May 2020 and £400 million
in October 2020 coupled with an equity raise of £750 milion.
lssue costs of £6 milllon were incurred. In 2025, there were no
further debt or equity raises.

There were no dividends paid in either period.

Adjusted equity own funds

2021 2020
Unaudited Unoudited

Restated®

PIC adjusted equity own funds £m £rr
Own funds 6,669 6,710
Deduct RT1and Tier 2 own funds {2,050} (2,050)
Shareholder equity own funds 4,619 4,660
Add Risk Margin net of TMTP 1,269 1,353
Adjusted equity own funds 5,888 6,013

= Shareholder equity own funds and adjusted equity own funds
have been redefined to deduct the notional value of RT1and
Tier 2 debt {praviously the far value). The 2020 comparatives
have been restoted accordingly.

Adjusted equity own funds ("AEOF") is anocther KPI of the
Group. This metric is & measure of the strategic abjective
to grow the value of the business on a focused, secure and
sustainable basis. AEOF was £5,888 million at 31 Decaember
2021 compared to £6,013 million af 31 December 2020. This
change was primarily due to the incrense in GBF risk-free
rates partially offset by the banefit of writing £4.7 billon of
new business and higher inflation over 2021

The nsk marginis a regulatary component of the Solvency |l
balance sheet that is intended to reflect the potential

cast of transferring unhedged or unhedpeable msurance
obhgations to g third party. The Transiticnal Measures on the
introduction of Solvency !, allowed insurers to smooth the
irmpact of the introduction of Solvency Il rules over a 1& year
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oeriod from 1 January 2016, subject 1o periodic recalculation.
The Risk Margin net of TMTP comprises a Risk Margin of

£2.0 billlon {31 December 2020: £2 4 hillion) less the impact

of Transitional Measures of £0.7 billion (31 December

2020: £1.1 billion).

The Matching Adjustment ("MA") is the benefit obtoined from
having a portfolio of assets backing policyholder kabilities
that is yielding greater than the risk-free curve specified
within the Solvercy rewulations. For 2021, the MA was
1.040% (2020:1.062%). The decrease in the yedris primarily
driven by narrowing credit spreads partially offset by the
LIBOR to SONIA change.

Key solvency sensitivities
PIC uses various managemeant tcols to mitieate the impact
of market fluctuations ond manage its financial position:

o New business is only transacted provided it meets the
Group's financial return targets.

« New Business is only written if the Group has sufficient
capital resources to ensure on-going financial security
for its existing policyholders

The Group uses hedging to partially mitisate risk to
the business:

s Interest rate, inflation and foreign exchange risks are
hedged using market instruments.

Longevity risk is managed through reinsurance. The key
sensitivities to which PIC's regulatory solvency balance
sheet are exposed, and their impaoct on the reperted
solvency ratio, are shown below:

Caorporate Governance
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Market Consistent Embedded Value

{"*MCEV*~) results

The Groupn prepares an MCEV analysis under the European
Insurance CFO Forum Market Consistent Embedded vValue
Principles issued in April 2016,

The starting point 1s the Solvency Il balance sheet to which
15 added an estimate of the after-tax value that is expected
to emaerge in the future fronn Lhe release of the prudent
margins built into the actuarial valuation of the in-force
business. Furthar adjustments to the regulatary balance
sheet are made in respect of the subordinated loan notes,
frictional cost of capital and cost of residual non-hedgeable
risks to arrive at o more appropriate quantification of the
Group's value.

At 31 December 2021, the Group's MCEV increased to

£5,027 million from £4,964 million at the end of 2020. The
increase is primarily due to new business profits, the expected
return from the in-force book and managerment actions taken
to incorporate amendments to the capital methodolagy.

This was particlly offset by the change in corporation tax

rate from 19% to 25% in 2023 which was announced by the
government in March 2021 and granted Royal Assentin

June 2021, This change resulted in o reduction in MCEV of

£262 million. In addition, net adverse interest rate and inflation
variances reduced. We do not seek to make profits from thase
economic risks — rather we look to hedge them, but thisis
done an o solvency basis, and given the extreme economic
volatility over 2021, this has had o negative impact on the
MCEV results.

2021 2020
PIC solvency sensitivities (unaudited) 2021 2020 MCEV £m £m
As reported 168% 157% Adjusted net worth 6,710 6,737
Value of in-force business after tax 1,796 1,812

100 bps increase in interest rates’ 12.9% 39% MCEVY fair value of Tier 1and Tier 2 debt
100 bps reduction in interest rates' 0% (12.6)% INstruments (2,281 (2505)
100 bps increase in credit spreads’ 2.4% (1.0Y% MCEV before cost of capital 6125 5044
100 bps reduction in credit spreods’ (190% (14.8)% Frictional cost of capital (359) (243)
20% credit downgrade? (79)% (17% Cost of residual non-hedgeable risks {739) {837)
5% reduction in base rmortality? On% (67w MCEVnetofcostofcapital 5027 4564

All sensitivities allow for o TMTP recalculation.
Notes:

1 For the interest rate and credit spreacd sensitivities, due to the
nature and size of the impact, the recalculation of the TMTP
results in o different test biting and causes asymmetry of
the results,

2 Shows an immadiate full latter downgrade on 20% of all assets

where the capital treatment depends on a credit rating,

Downgraded agssets are assumed to be traded to the criginal

credit rating, so the impact is primarily a reduction in own funds

from the loss of value on downgrade.

The impact of the sensitivity will depend upon the market levels

of spreads at the balance sheet date.

Equivalent to a O 4-year increase in life axpectancy frem

229 years to 23.3 years for a typical male aged 65

w

&7



Chief Financial Officer’s review continued

Reconciliation of PICG IFRS, Solvency Il and MCEV balance sheets
IFRS to Solvency 1 reconciliation table

IFRS
balance subordinated
shaet

31December
2021 (Em}

Add
amartised
cost value of
Tier2

Add accrued
intereston
Tler2
subordinated

debt dabt

Deduct

intereston

RTinotes transitionals

Add risk
accreed marginnet Reductionin Reductionln Differences
technicat relnsuronce
pravisions

of

assets

Differences
inother
assetvalues

Unavdited
Solvency Il
{Em)

indeferred
tax

Total assets
less other
liabilities

48128

1,590 29

{1

(219) (6} 49516

Insurance
liabilities/
Best
aesiimate
liakilities
{8ELY net of
reinsurance
assets

{43,663} - -

- 2,73

{616) - - (41,548)

Risk margin
net of
transitionals

- [1,269)

{1,269)

IFRS net
assets/
Salvency |l
own funds

4,465

1,590 29

)

(1,269)

2,731

(616) {214) {6) 6,699

Solvency |l to MCEV reconciliation table

31 Decemhber 2021 [Em)

Allow for
differances

Unaudited W

2, Eoh

B

Recoghise the

P

Allowfor fr

fcast tr

Relaase {RM

minus

sat 16}

P

Trmed

vl Y
palonce sheet and MCEV

debt

q
capital

CRNHR

| Ma

margins  TaxonPVFP MCEV {Em)

Total as=ets less
other liabilities

49,516 n

BEL net of
reinsurance assets

Risk margin net
of transitionals

(41548)

(1,269}

Solvency I1 own
funds/Adjusted
net worth

6,699 "

6,710

Present value of
future profits (PVFP)

1,269

1125 (598) 1,796

Cost of residual
non-hedgeable
risks (CRNHR)

{129

(739)

Frictional cost of
required caprtal
{FCoC

(359)

(359)

Subordinated debst

(2.381)

(2,381)

Solvency il
own funds/MCEV

6,699

(2,381)

{359)

530

1325 {598) 5,027
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Outlook

As described elsewhere in this Report and Accounts, the Group is focused on leng-term value creation as we seek to fulfil
our purpose. 2021, like 2020, presented some chalienges to the Group as aresult of the pandemic and the monetary policy
rasponse 10 1ts economic impact However, the business performed in line with expectations as we protected the Solvency
balance sheet, positioning ourselves for long-term growth and value cregtion. In terms of short-term opportunities, we wrote
sustainable new business, and successfully evolved our investment stratedy, including significant investrnents in areas like
social housing and urban regeneration, all of which create significant social value. Our financial strength at year end gives
us o strong platform to take advantage of future opportunitics, whilst having the security of being able to withstand any

potential shocks.

All this means that the business is very well positioned to compete effectively for the large number of buyouts and buy-ins
expected over the coming years and grow an a sustamable basis. | very much look forward to supporting the business achiew
its long-term aims in my new role as CrO, as well as manading the more immediate challenges and opportunities of 2022,

PIC solvency Il {(unaudited) and IFRS

The following table shows the excess assets held to meet solvency and risk margins.

IFRS Solvency ll

Assets held for
claims and
expenses
£40.4bn

£2.4bn
Solvencyll
prudent margins

£3.1bn

Assets

backing
prudent margins

Total assets

£49.5bn

£4.6bn
Shareholder

£4.0bn own funds

Net asset value'

Excess assets
£9.1bn

1 RT1debt is excluded from the Net asset value and included in tha borrowings number.

(=]
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Risk management
Giles Fairhead Chief Risk Officer

Introduction

2027 continued much os 2020 ended, with the key risk
management challenge for the year being to manage the
consequances of the global pandemic. The key focus was
on retaining a robust balance sheet able to withstand the
market volatility, with o particular emphasis on the outiook
for defoults and downgrodes given the significant effect the
pandemic continued to have on the worldwide economy,
We olsc devoted effort to maintaining the resilence of

our business functions during unusual times as we moved
between officg and home working, ensuring that we

were at all times abkle to provide o good level of service

to our policyholders.

In the second haolf of the year we spent more time looking
farward te what effect the pandemic might have over
coming years and how we as a business nught neaed to
addapt to managé chandes to the long-term environment

Maintaining a strong balance sheet in 2021 meant using

N ] a mare dynamic hedding stratedy to protect aur sclvency

. ratio with interest rates proving unpredictable and credit
N sereads remainng compressed. Whilst our solvency ratio

remained our core focus, we developed our systems and
A significant focus for elanes shaet motnca eleant o long-tar vohos crsoon.
the bUSineSS hCIS been on Qur focus on business resilience also meont managging the
Maintaining a strong balance o i iona ora conios ok ot we oo

between office and remote working. As can be seen from
Sheet tO enSU!'e we Gre the information in this Annual Report, we successfully
. ” navigated the uncertainty and continued ta offer a high-
lee tO fUlfll OUI’ pUI"pOSE. quality service to our policyholders.

PIC uses a three-pillar approach to manage its risks, allocating these in relation to their impact on the following

strategic aims:

e

\\_J =
1. Sufficient 2. Effective and
Financial Resources Resilient Operations

To see our principal risks section
please see p72-77
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A further consequence of the panderic has been

an increase in T and cyber risk The Group has had no
significant issues to date, due primarily to significant risk
mitigation work carried out over several years prior to the
pandernic. This has ensured that we have robust, flexible
service in place, allowing us to manade cyber risk effectively,
whilst operating in both a remote and hybrid environment
Howewver, cylber risk continues 1o pose a significont threat

to all businesses, and we will continue to develop our
capabilities to mitigale these risks through 2022,

Looking forward, one of the key developing risks over the
year related to our staff. With anincrease in resignations
across the market resulting from what the press s calling
the '‘Greotl Resignation’, we incredasaed our monitoring and
oversight of capacity and capability. As o growing business,
attracting and maintaining talent is key to our success.

We suceessfully recruited a significant number of new staff
over the year which significantly reduced this risk. However,
this risk will continue to be monitored closely in 2022,

We have spent time considering what the long-term
consequences of the pandernic will be on working
arrangaments. There are a number of risks to balonce, In
particular seeking an approach that facilitates innovation
and collaboration, whilst mairtaining sufficient flexibility

to attract and retain talent. Given the uncertainty of the
pandemic, no long-term decisions were made over the year,
and wark will continue on this in 2022, We will undertake
further work to ensure that our risk and control framework

is optimised for the londer-term working arrangements.

A significant amaount of risk development work has been
carried out over the year, including a review of risk appetite
metrics and statement, and embedding climate change risks
into our framework Worldin both of these areas will continue
in 2022

The pandemic has clearly had profound effects on society,
not least the tragic number of deaths However, it is too
early to tell how longer-term mertality trends might change
as o result of Covid-19. We have carried out extensive
investigations into this areq, but it is soon to draw any firm
conclusions. Our main retained longevity risk exposure

is to younger policyholders who have in the main been

less affected by Covid-19.

Enterprise ‘
Risk

Management
Framework #

Corporate Governance
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As aresult, we will continue to monitor mortality risk
closely into 2022 and consider changes to assumptions
and methodologies as more data becomes available.

wWe have been closely following the trajectory of the
Solvency l reform debate, as well as wider financial services
legislation. There are potential risks, but the overall direction
of travel seems positive, and we are actively warking with
stakeholders to manage our risk exposure. We hove been
developing ocur internal credit model over 2021, which has
been a significant piece of work for several areas of the
business, and we are keen 1o ensure our dovelopments

align with any future legslative reform.

Asin previous yedrs, we have continued our horizon-
scanning exercise looking at future risk. The key areas

we have reviewed are the potential for the reversal of
supernormal monetary policy and how this might cause
continued market volatility and uncertainty. This could
potentially increase the pressure on markets and lead to
downgrodes and defaults, as well as sustaining increased
inflation. We will continue to monitor the situation as it
avolves, but | am comfortable with the defensive nature
of the portfolio.

It has been pleasing to see that, despite the additional risk
and uncertainty from the pandermic, we have maintained

a good level of service to our palicyholders and successfully
navigated uncertain markets. During 2027, we carried out
significant risk development work and this puts us in a strong
position to manage whatever might come next — | hope

a return to more normal timest

Giles Fairhead
Chief Risk Officer

Sound risk management is key
to PIC’s business strategy.”

Enterprise Risk Management Framework

Risk management is integrated into the business via

the Enterprise Risk Management Framework, comprising
our systems of governance, our policies, our Risk
Appetite Framework and the application of the Risk
Management Systerm:

s the Governance Frameawork within which risk
management rasponsibilities are delegated and
governed, including the Three Lines of Defence model;

s the Policy Frarework through which risk management
expectations and requirements are embedded and
consistently monitored across the business;

the Risk Appetite Framework within which the Company’s
risk exposures are controlled and monitared in line with
the Board's risk preferences and risk appetite; and

the Risk Management Systern by which risks are
identified, assessed, mitigated, monitored and reported
throughout the Company.
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Risk management continued

Mitigating our key risks

The principal risks to the business and its strategy for managding those risks are set out
below to page 77 for each risk group. More details are also included in Note 16 to the

financial statements.

Sufficient Financial Resources
@) The risk that PIC does net have sufficient funds
v to meet its business objectives. This includes
making sure the Company:

+ maintains o strong capital position with target
solvency cover to ensure appropriate levels
of policyholder protection, consistent with an
investment-grade rating and in line with peers;

manages individual cash flow timings and
maintains an appropriate hquidity buffer to
ensure liquidity is available to meet its financial
obligations; and

has additional funds avdilable to back its
strategic growth aims as a leader in the UK
Pension Risk Transfer market.

Key risks to maintaining sufficient financial resources

Market risk
What this risk Markat and/for economic volatility
means to us chanees the value of our assets

and Kabilities with a corresponding
impact an our capital position.

Risk trend We expect the trend of uncertainty and

and cutlook volatility in the financiol markets to continue
inte 2022 The clear need for the giobal
aconomies Lo address climate change is
also driving global economic uncertainty.

The autloak for UK ecanomic draowth
remdading uncertain, with ongoing pressura
driven by the Covid-19 pandemig, Inciuding
a re-ughtening of lockdown measuresin the
UK, our developing trade relationship with
the EU post-Brexit, and cxpected higher
inflation driven by enargy prices and

supply constraints.

A similar picture exists ot a global level
where a range of nsk drivers continue to
sow uncertanty including further Cowd-
retatad restrictions, geopohticol nsks from
prolectionist measures, sociol unrest, the
Ukraine conflict, and advanced economias’
governments' inability to deliver

a signtficant fiscal stirmulus to revive
economic growth

How we are During 2021, we have been cautious in our

managing this risk credit portfolio, focused on consaolidating
the portfolic into secure assets should
markets become more volatile. The situation
remains under careful review in addition,
PIC carnes out close management of its
balonce sheet, and actively hedgesits
balance sheet against adverse movements
in financial markets. PIC momtars areas
of potential prcing bubbles that may
see market carrections i order to it
exposures where appropriate The business
holds a significant amount of risk-bosed
capital to protect against market moverments
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Default risk
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Longevity risk

Any default of credit/debt assetsin our
portfolio direatly reduces the capital
we have avdilable to maintdin our
solvency position

Any failure of counterpartes ond thair
apility to meet thair contractuol financial
abligations would be expected to result in
a foss or the need for PIC to recapture
amounts previously remsured, weakening
the solvency position.

PIC’s insured policyholders may lve longer
than was orignally assumead when prncing
new business.

PIC has histarically experienced
very low levels of default in the
partfolio (see pages 29 and 30
for hustonical expenence).

Defoult risk continues to be significant

for PIC given the ongoing global economic
uncertainty and potential pressures

from climate change described under
‘Market rsk’

PIC's reinsurance and swap counterparties
have weathered the Covid-19 shocks with
the impact on the credit quality of these
counterparties having been manageable.
While there exist risks to these
counterparties from the future path of the
pandemic, their strond liguidity and copital
positions along with support from fiscal and
monetary policy to the markets are likely to
limit any adverse impact.

PIC is exposed to factors that may lead to
wncredses in future life expectancy, such as
improvements in medical science beyond
those anticipated. While life expectancy has
improved over the past 40 years in the UK,
improvemeants have started to slow down over
the past decade. The drivers of the slowdown
are believed to include tha incroased strain
on the NHS and social care budgets, a tailing
off of the mortality improvements seen for
conditions such as cardiovascular disease, and
a change in morbidity prevalence including
influenza and dementia, offset by changes in
lifestyle and health moritoring as technology
continuas to provide new opportunities.

The Covid-19 pandemic has introduced more
uncertainty about future Iife expectancy.
Industry consensus is that itis too early to
determine the overallimpact of the pandemic
at this stage, gven there are some pressures
potentially reducing ife expectancy {the
ongoing pandamic dnd gssociated pressurcs
on the NHS) and some potentially increasing
It {for example mask hygiene resulting in lower
deaths from fluj.

PIC selects and moniteors its invastrment
holdings very closely, either directly or
thraugh high-gquality external managers.
Prowisions are held for defaults and
downgrades in addition to the risk-based
capital requirements.

PIC only transacts with highly rated
reinsurance counterparties and includes
collateral provisions to Improve overal
security. Interest rate swaps are fully
collateralised on g dally basis. PIC
carries aut continuous monitoring of its
counterparties to ensure issues can be
identified earlier, allowmng actions to be
taken to reduce the risk

PIC regutarly reviews its langevity experience
to ensure 1its assumptions remain appropriate,
and continually seeks to enhance its
understanding of the evelution of annuitant
mortality. PIC holds a significant amount of
risk-based capital to protect the business
against potential increases in longevity. Thisis
calculated using our approved Internal Maoded
PIC aims to reinsure more thon 60% of 1its
longevity risk exposure. As at 31 December
2027, PIC had reinsured 85% of its total
longevity expasure.
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Risk management continued

T4

Effective and Resilient Operations
The risk that PIC does not deliver its objectives
dye to fallures in the way the business is run,

Key risks to maintaining effective and resilient operations

Operational risk

These objectives include; What this risk
s delivering its purpose by paying its customers means to us

and managing its agssets and liabilities;

* achieving its stratedic aims by maintaming

The risk of loss resulting from inadequaote
or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from axternal evenis.

a scalable and sustainable business model

that optimises resources; Risk trend

and outlcok

acting in line with its values by providing
high-quality and secure service to its customers,
operating at a level of excellence;

ensuring an operationally resilient organisation
that is able to recover and maintain its core
services following periods of stress;

respecting and valuing its people, and creating
a culture and environment that is purposeful,
safe, diverse, and inclusive; and

» adhering to its purpose and vaiues, including
thase for ESG.

Given the continued growthin PIC's bolance
sheet, it s imiportarit tG ensure that the
process and control environment keeps
pace. If the controls and processes do

not keep pace, then PIC's exposure

to operationgl risks wili Increase as the
arganisation grows in size and caomplaxity.
Additional rsks alse need to be managed,
givan the changes in working environment
resulting from the Covid-12 pandemic;

n partcular, an increased level of remote
working placing heichtened reliance on
remaole and qulomated systems and
pracesses. This trend looks set to continue
into 2022 and beyond. While the inutial
transiten to a remote envirenment coutd
have increased operational risks through
the introduction of new processes, reducad
inter-personal contact and the potential tor
reduction in the effectiveness of manuatly
operated controis, the enhaoncements put
in place to address these risks are viewed
to have strenpthenad PIC's overall

cohtrol framework.

How we are
managing this risk

PIiC maintains a robust control environment
across Its aperations in order to reduce the
lkelihood and impact of operational risks.
Operational risks are maonitared and
assessed through an ongoing process with
the business in arder to identify areqas where
the control cnvironment needs further
enhoncement. Where areas of wegknesses
are dentificd remediation work 1s completed

Qur ongoine nisk and cantrol work naw has
a permanent focus on reviewing oli controls
to gssess thar effectivensss m both an
on-site and remote enviranment,

Waork continues to fully embed operational
resiience across the organisation in line with
regulatory expectations. This will ensure that
PIC understands its core business services
and 1s able to recover these within acceptable
timeframes should incidents occur
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Cyber risk

Corporate Governance

Culture and behaviour risk
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Modeland data risk

The finonaial services sector continues to
be atarget for cyber crime. This includes
the nsks that third parties seek to disrupt
PIC's operations, steal personal data or
perpetrate acts of fraud.

The risk Lthat PIC's culture or behaviour
impacts our ability to deliver our purpose
and business plan or leads to poor
customer outcomes and reduces staff
morale and retention

The risk of loss or other detriment anising from
the inapperopriate design, implementation,
operation or use of modcels or managemaent
of data.

The drivers of this risk continue to evolve
rapidly as technology 1s chanoing the way
firms do business and society operates
Cavid-19 and the swift move to remote
working has increased the reliunce on

IT systems and controls and with it PIC's
exposure to cyber risks. The financial
services sector has seen a significant
increase in tha number of attempts by third
parties to seek and exploit vulnerakilities
InIT systems.

This has included increased phishing
attempls looking Lo take advantage of the
reduced level of face-to-face interactions
and ransomware attacks which are on the
Increase across the globe in terms of both
number and vatue.

Pralonged remote and hybrid working can
legd to o loss of cross-team collaboration,
increased time to complete tasks and an
impact on staff mental health and
wellbeing, due to the psychological
distance falt when working remotely.

This can impact staff morale, particularly
when expectations remaim high and
interperscnol relationships are stroined

PIC has experienced higher than usual
turnover, as part of the “Great Resignation.
Staff have had time to consider work-life
balance and priorities and have taken
advontage of a "hot” recruitment market,
whichin turn impacts staff morale as team
mambers leave and remaining staff pick

up additional work and recruit and train
new staff.

As PIC continues to graw, there s an increasing
reliance on models, supported by good
underlying data, to delivar PIC’s purpose

and strategic aims

This has been observed over 2021 with the
development of models in a number of key
areas such as PIC’s Interna! Model, hedging
ond portfolio optimisation. With the increased
pace of change there has also been

a proportionate increase in controls and
independent validotion of modeis and data
to help mitisate the risk.

This trend is expected to continue into 2022
and beyond.

PIC maintains a robust {T environment

to ensure the protection of its data and

the secunty of its systermns and those of
autsourced or third parties that we work
with. PIC works with its business partriers
to maintain contrels and carries out regular
monitoring ta proactively address emerging
threats. The IT environment is regularly
tested internally and externally to maintain
awareness of the latest threats and how
these might impact PIC.

Management continue to focus on staff
wellbeing with anline resources as well

as investment in mental health first aid
training. Conduct traiming focuses on culture
and psychological safety with further work
planned to articulate and develop our
culture in 2022

Appraisals include a behaviour rating
and HR are currently developing career
pathways to see how staff are able

to propress.

FIC maintains a robust framework to help
mitigate model and data risk Thisincludes

the identification and risk assessment of all
maodels and data used within the business

The framework also sets out standards around
the dasign, Implementation, operation and

use of models and their supporting dota,
including requirements for ondoing testing

and a centralised change process whichis
overseen by the Risk function.
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Risk management continued

Meeting External Expectations Key risks to meeting external expectations
The risk that PIC dees not meet the expectations
of external stakeholders resulting in it not Climate change
o e vaties, Expociotions meloqe the folloms, | Whatdsrisk — Climaio change prosents o numir o
. - = mednstous significant rnisks across our stakeholder
group, including Yoss of value due to gsset
» Customers expact PIC 1o pay their pensions, impairment as a result of climate change
protect their personal data, provide market- factors, operational disruption and
leading customer service, act with integrity reputational consequences ansing from any
and operate in o way which is consistent fallure in evidenaing our lang-term chimate
with its values, actions. Thesa could lead Lo reduced asset

values, increased cost of copital and

+ Regulators expect PIC to manage risk and reduced new business volumes

provide long-term stability and financial

security for its customers In line with the Risk trend Ch.matc change 1s amareq of significant
reguiatory framework. and ocutlook prionty for the public, insurers. and regulators
alike, alongside the risks and opportunities
+ Equity investars want PIC to deliver attractive It presents There are a number of risk drivers
risk-adjusted shareholder returns and pay that PIC needs to consider:
dividends, and bond holders want PIC te pay Physical risks emerging from the impacts
coupons on time. of climate change, which may lead to

Increasingly acute weather catastrophes,
longer term changes to resource ovoilobility
and societal changes. These impocts dre
thought to emerge if globolly we fail to hit
docurnanted emssions and tempearature
targels, leading Lo potential reductions in the
value and avanlability of assets PIC invests in,
and disruption to PIC's operations

Transitional risks are likely to emerde from the
transition to o low corbon econarmy, and maoy
entall extenswe policy, legal, technology, and
market changes to address climate charnge
miigation and adaptation reguiremants.

This may impact PIC's asset portfolio,
counterparties and operations.

Legal and reputational risks - The recent
CQP26 summit has dreatly increased facus
on the challenges facing governments and
econemies transitioning to Net Zero in
amearmngful timescale, and thisissuea s

a key focus of PIC’s stakeholders. Thera is
ansk therefere thal PIC does not keep pacea
with develepments, iImpacting customer
sentiment, businass volumes and reputation

How we are We are continually assessing how our

managing this risk  business may be impacted by the above
risks Importantly, we have developed our risk
rmanagement approach to identify, manage
and report climate related nisks to our ESG
Board sub-committee, and ultimately our
Board. For our systems and procasses, we
include adaptation or operational disruption
caused by physical and transition risk
associated wath chimate change in our risk
analysis and hove aclively started engaging
with our externcl providers. For the ossets we
invest in, we seek to manage the level of
transition nsk and mimmise the physical nsk.
For example, we gssess the effect of climate
change on tirnely recaipt of expacted cash
flows fram investrnents, third parties and
collateral arrangements, and the cost of
maintaining the balance against the excess
cost of obtaimng additional liguidity, In both
pase and strass scenanos

202215 the first yeor PIC has produced

o TCFD report, which outlines cur approach
to mancging climate change across four key
areds strategy. metrics and targets, risk
management and governarce
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Market conditions

The risk of political and/ar regulatory
intervention which may reduce PIC’s value
propasition or result in PIC'S business model
becoming unviable.

The risk Lhat PIC policyholders receaive
o poar outcome, and that vulnerable
customers do not receive ds good an
autcome as all other customers

The nsk thaot adverse conditions, porocularly
in the credit markets, and the overall level of
competition in the UK Pension Risk Transfer
muarket mean that PIC does not meet external
value expectations

The financial services industry continues
to see a sigmvificant level of redulatory focus,

HM Treasury continues to review the future
regulatary framework for financial services,
which ncludes the Solvency |l raview.

As a focused insurer, Matching Adjustment
and Risk Margin reform is of key impaortance
to PIC's business model. PIC remains
engaged with this topic, monitoring the
direction of travel and remamning active

in lobbying. The PRA has also conducted

a Quantitative Impact Study to inform
Salvency It reform and policy, which will
influence the calculation of the Solvency |l
balance sheet.

The emergence of the Defined Benefit
Caonsolidater regime for pension superfund
could become a key issue for the Defined
Benefit pension de-nisking market,
dependent on the final rules and
supervisory approach of the The
Pensions Regulator.

Whilst defined benefit pensions remained
on the political and repulatory agenda
during 2021 with the pensions bill being
passed, the meadium to longer term
outcomaes from Brexit are more likely

1o be material to PIC

Policyholder outcomes: Key risks nclude
failure to pay policyholders correctly, to
the nght account and the right amount
11 timely manner, and faillure to
communicate farrly and clearly andin

a timely manner. Remote working has
neightened these nisks. The Financial
Conduct Authority {"FCA”) has published
a discussion paper on the “New Consumer
Duty” which places o higher expectation
on firms to be more proactive in
communicating with customers and
ensuring they receive good ocutcomes.

Vulnerable customets: regulatory focus
continues: Vulnerabilitiaes cur policyholders
may experience include hearing and sight
impairments, bereavements, carnng
responsibilities and financwal hardship,
many of which have been exacerbated
by Covid-19.

Credit risky assets are currently expensive
to purchase, relative to historical levels.
Additionally, the level of competition in the
UK Pension Risk Transfer market remains at
a high level, with all market participants
actively pursuing new deadls.

Taken together, this presents increasmng
chaollenges for PIC to achieve the business plan.

PIC maintains an open diologue with
regulators and policymakers closely
monitoring discussions and scanning the
horizon for potential political risks to the
business. Where changdes which pose a risk
to the business are identifled, such as the
regulation of pension superfunds and the
changes to the insurance regulatory
framework post Brexit, then resource is
committed to focus on & more detailed
dialogue with relevant stakeholders to
influence change and closely monitor likely
outcomes. This allows us to identify key
1Issues early and to actively maonage the
risk on an ongoing basis.

A robust conduct risk framewaork enabled
PIC to monitor and mitigate the risk of poor
outcomes throughoot remote and hybrid
worlang, Assurance activity continues

to monitor ond assess outcomes

for policyholders.

A project has been set up to enhance our
vulnerable custorner offering, including

a full update of the website and written
communications. PIC continues to ensure
that we proactively manage customer
vulnerabilities in line with FCA guidance,
Further training was carried out with our
autsourcers to ensure FIC 1s properly
identifying and managing our policyholders
with vulnerabilities

BIC's businass plan s o tong term one and s not
focused solely on 2022, as this Is considered more
useful for managing PIC’s long-term business.

Delivery of the business plan requires focus
across a number of areas

Sourcing assets: PIC maintains a strong focus

on sourcing new high-quality assets over the
period, as well as maintaining sufficiant controls,
oversight and oplimising the management of
the growing in-force portfolio. This includes
devaoloping in-house expertise inrelation to
bilateral asset arigination and maintenance.

Operations: maintaining our focus on
protecting the interests of existing and new
palicyholders; ensuring that our systems and
cantrols continue to be of the highest qualty,
and scale as the business grows; and finaliy
ensuring that our operational model can
continue to manage our business-as-usual
workload as well as aur growth ambitions.

Maintaining pricing discipline: we will continue
to only seek new business that meets our
internal financial metric hurdles rather than
chasing volumas for new business. This s
particularly important when crechit sk

assets are expensive, as they are currently.

Talent retention: we aim to retain the indwiduals
who have driven innovation and value creation
through our growth to date while recognising
that we nead to add resource to meeat the
challenges of aperating a company which

is significant in scale and continues to grow.
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8 was approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Jon Aisbitt
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- Chairman
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Chairman’s introduction
Jon Aisbitt Chairman

The Board'’s effective
oversight of the Group is
underpinned by a strong
purpose and strategy.”

Total pensions poid
inthe year

of employees
believe PIC will be
successfulin the
next 2-3 years




Strotegic Report 001-78

I am delighted to introduce the Group's
Corporate Governance report, which
details our commitment to the highest
standards of corporate governance.

Arocbust povernance framework combined with close Board
oversiaght of the business ensures that the long-term sucoess
of the Group is based on the prudent and effective
identification and management of risk.

in the following pages we explain our approach to applying
the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018
{the "Code™ and how we discharge our duties under 5172

of the Comnanies Act 2008, including the responsibilities

we have to our policyholders and all our stakeholders.

The report includes Committee reports from the Auclit,

ESG, Investment and Crigination, Nomination, Remuneration,
and Risk Committees.

The Board'’s effective oversight of the Group is underpinned
by ¢ strong purpose and strategy. It is supported by an open
culture and strong values, which are discussed regularly at
Board mestings.

The Board has regular communication with management,
which allows close scrutiny of the Group's focus on long-
term value creation. It also allows constructive challenge
and support to ensure the Group is effectively balancing
stakeholder interests, a key pricrity for the Board. More
detail on how the Board tokes into account the views of

our stakeholders, the impact of our decisions on them, and
the actions taken as a consequence can be found on pagdes
86 and 97 of this section, which complements our §172
statement in the Strategic Report on pages 4010 43,

The increasing contribution that the Group makes to

the economy and to society as a whole remains a key
cansideration for the Board, not least because of the
increased focus on ESG factors. In December 2021, we
establishaed a new Board Committee, the ESG Committee,
which | also chair This Cormmittee is intended to oversee and
bring topether the Group's ESG prigrities in o coherent way,
complementing the work of other Committees. In addition,
the Board and its Committees spent considerable time in
2021 on ESG considerations within the portfolio, as well as
more specific discussions on the impact of climate change.

The Board completed an internal Board effectiveness
review during 2021 to ensure it also evaluates its own
performance. More information on the conclusions and
the recommendations con be found on pages 9110 93
of this Annual Renort.

Financial Statements p125-172

The Board

The Board of Directlors of PICG consists of 13 Directors,

of whom seven arc ndependent, five are shareholder
narminated, and one 1s the Chief Executive Officer. The
Board of PIC consists of 14 Directors, of whom eight are
independent, four are shareholder nominated, and two

are executive management. This is an appropriate balonce
that ensures independent decision making, but allows active
nvolvement by committed, long-term shareholders.

Directors have the appropriate balance of skills, expericnce,
ndependence and knowledge of the Company to oversee
the strategy of the Group, review management performance,
and set the Company’s values and standards to ensure that
its obligations to its shareholders and other stakeholders

are met

Furthar information about our Directors and the experience
they bring to the Company is set out on pages 82 te 85 of this
Annual Report.

Jon Aisbitt

Chairman
1 March 2022
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Board of Directors

Jon Aisbitt
PICG & PIC Director
Chairman of the Board

Date of appointment: lon was appointed to the Boord as
a Mon-Exacutive Chairman i Getober 2016,

Background and career: From 2007 until May 2016, Jon was Chairman
af Man Group ple, the FTSE250 provider of alternative investment
praducts with aver $70 billon under managermant, Prior to joining
Man Group plc, Jon was a Partner and Manaeing Directar in the
Investment Bonking division of Goldman Sachs based in New York,
Londan and Sydneay. He was previously Deputy Chairman of Ccean
Rig ple and Honarary Treasurer of the NSPCC. He is a member of the
nstitute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales {“ICAEW ™).

Areas of expertise: Jon has over 20 years’ experience in international
corporate finonce Me has significant technical knowledge of capital
markets and the complex regulatory backdrop in which they operate
while Chairman of Man Group, Jon navigated the company and the
board through significant change through the intraduction of new
and diversified investment styles.

Current external rales: Jon is Chairman of New Forests Company
Holdings (East African sustainable torestry and timber processing),
Bailey Caravans Ltd {Brnistol-based manutacturer of caravans) and
Ascension Mealthcare ple {biotechnelogy).

Dom Veney
PIC Director
Chief Financial Officer

Date of appointment: Dom was appointed to the Boord as an
Executive Director in December 2021,

Background and career: Prior 1o joining PIC, Dom spent rmore than

15 yaors with PwC working across mony leoding Life insurers including
Phoenix, Prudential, Legal & General, Standard Life, Swiss Re and
HSBC Life. Dom also led on a number of regulatory driven projects
most recently related to the introduction of IFRS 17, for which he
coordinated PwC's global response,

Dom is a Fellow of the Faculty and Institute of Actuaries gnd halder
of an AFH/Reviewing Actuary Practising certificate since 201
He holds ¢ dedgree in Mathematics from Warwick University.

Areas of expertise: Dom has over 20 years' experience in the life
insurance sector and has an in-depth knowledge of insurance
financial and capital managoment, and regulctory affairs. He
alsa has significant experience in fincnce restructuring projects.

Current external roles: Dom serves in an advisory capacity to the
Financis! Reporting Council

1 Rob Sewell retired from the Board as of 9 December 2021

Tracy Blackwell
PICG & PIC Director
Chief Executive Officer

Date of appointment: Tracy was appointed to the Board as an
Executrve Director i July 2011 and appointed as Chief Executive
Offtcerin July 2015

Background and career: Tracy joined PIC as Crief Investrnent Officer !
at the Carnpony’s Inception In 2006, with respensibility for manading

PIC's aaset and lability managemaent strategy. Prior ta joining PIC,

Tracy held a vanety of roles at Goldmon Sachs, She served as

a Non-Executve Director at United Trust Bank from 2013 to 2019

Arens of expertise: Trocy has 30 yeors’ expengnce in insurance and
asset management, including a deap knowledge and understanding
of the regulatory landscape. Areas of particular interest include,
“The Purpose of Finance’, a project sccking to redefineg the social
controct with finoncial services; ond diversity of thougnt in

financial services.

Current external rales: Trocy 15 a member of Wellcome Trust's
Investmaent Committee; Trustee and Honourable Treasurer of the
Eltan John AIDS Foundation; o board membier of the Association
of British Insurers; and an Advisory Councll member on the
Diversity Project.

Sally Bridgeland

PIC Director
Independent
Non-Executive Director

200

Date of appointment: Sally was appointed to the Board in January 2021

Background and career: Sally's previous rates include Chief Executive
Officer of BP Pension Fund, where she had responsibility for the
strategic, regulatory and operational matters of the £1% billion UK
pension fund. Sally spent seven years in this executive rale and
stepped down in 2014, She has axtensive investment consulling
expenance and has also served as a Trustee Directar of Lloyds
Banking Group Pension Trustee Limited, where she steppad down

1IN 2020, and has also held Ministernal appointments for the Nuclear
Liabilities Fund and NEST Corporation. Sally is a Fellow of the Institute
of Actuaries and in 2020 she received the Award of Honour from the
Warshipful Company of Actuaries,

Areas of expertise: Sally 15 an actuary and has over 30 years’
experience in the UK pensions industry gained frem executive and
non-executive roles,

Current external roles: Sally 1s Chair of Local Pensions Partnership
Investments Limited and Impaox Asset Management ple as well

as a Non-Executive Director of Local Pensions Partnership Limited,
Royal Londaon Mutual Insurance Seciety Ltd and Royal & Sun Alllance
Insurance. Soily 1s an Honorary Group Captain in 601 Sgquadron of the
Rayal Auxitiary Air Force.
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Jake Blair

PICG & PIC Director
Independent
Non-Executive Director
Shareholder nominated
by HPS

Date of appointment: Jake was appointed to the Board in June 2021,

Background and career: Jake is a Manoging Director at HPS Investment
Partners. Prior to joining HPS in 2007, he served as a Vice President

in General Electric’s Commercial Finance Distressed Debt Group,
where he invested In distressed leveraged laans ond was invalved

I numeroys workouts on behalf of GE Capital. In 2000, Jake founded
Camplnteractive, a Bronx-based non-profit, where he served as
Executive Director for four years

Jake holds a BA from Washington & Lee Uriversity and an MBA from
Columbia Business School.

Areas of expertise: Joke has over 20 years’ experignce in the financial
services Industry, In particular in imvestment management with an
In-depth focus on credit.

Currant external roles: Jake 15 a Managing Director at HPS Investment
Partners and represents HPS os a board member of Acra Lending
Holdings, Spectrum Automotive Holdings, and Cangecord Genuity
wealth Management UK.

Julia Goh

PICG & PIC Director
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Date of appointment: Julic was appointed to the Board in October 2021,

Background and career: Jula has over 25 years of brood-bosed
financial services experience in London. She was o Managing
Diractor at Barclays Investrnent Bank fram 2010 to 2018 in various
senior front-office pasitions including as Chief Operatming Officer

of Glebal Markets, and was also Chalr of the Barclays Women's
Initiative Netwaork. Prior ta that, she was a Managing Director and
the Global Head of Prime Servicas Risk at Credit Suisse for 11 years,
whera she was also Chair of the Equities Diversity Advisory Councll.
lulia started her Markets career at Nomura nternational as a risk
manager. A Singaporean, she came to London 1n 1987 for her

BSc at the LSE, followed by five years with PwC in corperate tax,
qualifying as a chartered accountant, befere obtaming her MScan
Mathermatical Trading and Finance. She is a member of ICAEW and

has a Certificate in Company Direction from the Institute of Directors.

Areas of expertise; Julia has significant senior front-office experience
with specific expertise in Markets (Sales & Trading), Hedge Funds,
Structured Products, Risk Management and internal Controls,
aspecially at times of business transtormations and change.

Current external roles: Julia is an independent Nan-Executive Director

of Schroder AsiaPacific Fund plc, a director of the chanty Children
of the Mekong and is board adviser of the Handbag Cline.

@ Investment and Origination Committee o Risk Committee
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e Environmental, Social and
Governance Committee

o Remuneration Committes

Judith Eden

PICG & PIC Director
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Date of appointment: Judith was appointed to the Board in August 2019

Background and career: Most of Judith's corporate career was spent at
Margan Stanley in operational, financial and strategic management roles
across both the Institutional Securnties and Investment Monagement
divisions. In 2009, she was appointed a Director and Chief Administrative
Officer of MSIM Ltd, where she oversaw o pariod of significant
restructuring and change. In 2013, she additionally became Chief
Executive Officer of MSIM's international cross-border fund management
company. Fram 2015 Judith moved to focus an her non-executive career.

Judiths an alumnus of Price Waterhouse (Fellow ICAEW) and INSEAD
(Corporate Governance Certificate IDP-C).

Areas of expertise: Judith has over 25 years’ experience in financial
services gained from both executive and non-exacutive roles,

in particular in investment management. She has anin-depth
understanding of the regulatory environment and has helpad guide
companies through business restructuring and change programmes.
Current external roles: Judith is a Non-Executive Director ond Audit
Committee Chair of invesco UK and Senior Independent Director and
Audit Committee Chair of ICBC Standord Bank ple. She is also Non-
Exccutive Directar and Chair of the Remuneration Committee of Flood
Re and a Senior Independent Council Member at the University of Surrey.

Tim Gallico

PICG Director
Non-Executive Director
Shareholder nominated
by CVC

Date of appointment: Tim was appainted to the Board in August 2020.

Background and career: Tirn 1s a Partner at CVC Capital Partners,
based in London and is focused on the Stratepic Opportunities
imvestment platform Prior to joining CVYC in 2005, he worked {or
Bain & Co. Tim holds a degree in Social and Political Seiences and
Management Studies from the University of Cambindge.

Areas of expertise: Tim has over 15 years’ experience in the
investment industry as well as expenence as a director of both
ragulated and unregulated companies

Current external roles: Tim represents CVC and currently sits on Lhe
boards of entities of the following groups: Asplundh Tree Expert LLC,
the RAC Group and Riverstone International. He alsa acts as

a Trustee of the Londen Youth Garmes Foundation.
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Stuart King

PICG & PIC Director
independent
Non-Executive Director

Date of appointment: Stuart was appointed to the Board in
January 2019

Background and career: Stuart has previously worked at the Bank

of England before moving to become Head of UK Banks Regulation
and then Head of Maijor Insurance Groups Regulation at the Financial
Servicas Authonty {"FSA") {predecessor of the Financial Conduct
Autharity). After his time at the FSA, Stuart became Managing
Director at adwisory firm Promontory Financial Group and after

that Group Compliance Director at Aviva plc.

Areas of expertise: Stuart has aver 25 years' expearience working
in the UK financial regulation industry as both regulotor and at
repulated firms, and led the enhanced supervision approach

of major insurance groups following the financial cnsis in 2007,

Current external roles: Stuart remains an external adviser for
financial services firms. He is also a trustee to Emerge Advocacy,
a charity which works with young people with mental heaith
difficulties and provides mentoring to them

Josua Malherbe
PICG Director
Non-Executive Director
Shareholder nominated
by Reinet

Data of appointment: losua was appointed to the Board as
a Nan-Execulive Director in December 2015

Background and career: Jasua qualified as a chartered accountant
in South Africa in 1984, havindg worked at a predecessor firm to PwC.
He became Chief Executive Officer of VenFin Limited in 2000 unti
2006 when he held the posiman of Deputy Chairman. Venkin Limited
was acguired by Remgroe Limited and josua now serves as a director
of Remagro. He holds BCom LLB from the University of Stellenbosch
and g CTA from the University of Cape Town, and holds the
professional quakfication CA(SA).

Areas of expertise: losug has aver 30 years’ experience In corporate
finance and has had exacutive experience at companies since 1993,

Current external roles: lasua is Deputy Chairman of Compagnie
Financigre Richemont 5.4 and is a director ot Remars Limited ard
Renet Investmants $.C A,

Arno Kitts

PICG & PIC Director
Independent
Non-Executive Director
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Date of appeintment: Arnc was appointad to the Board as an
independent Non-Executive Director in July 2016,

Background and career: Arno’s previous roles include Managing
Director of BlackRock's £250 billon UK institutional business, Head

of the Henderson Global Investors global distnpution and Head of
JPMorgan's Assel Management UK institulionaol business. Arno was

a JPMorgan Managing Director, responsibie for instituticral and
delined contribution business, and he was the Chief Executive Officer
of the JPMorgan Life business. He served as o director of many
invastment funds and was o former Board member of the Pensions
and Lifetime Savings Association {"PLSA"). Arnois a Fellow of the
Institute of Actuaries and holds a PhD fram Sauthampton University

Areas of expertise: Arno has been involved in investment
management since 1989, ncluding seven yaars as Head of
Investrments of an nsurance company Armo was a member of the
Council and Finance & Investment Board of the Actuarial Professian
and has been actively involved in industry matters as o member

of the PLSA Defined Benefit Counci

Current external roles: Arno s the founder of Perspective
Investments, an investment management firm, and is also
a Non-Executive Director of Wake Trade Technologies.

Roger Marshatll
PICG & PIC Director
Senior Independent
Director

@00

Date of appointment: Roger waos appointed to the Boord as an
independeant Non-Exacutive Cirectar in April 2015

Background and careet: Roger spent much of his career in
PriceswaterhauseCoopers {"PwC”), where he waos an audit partnar
in Londan and Zurich. Rager was Chair of PwC's Giobal Audit Policy
Board and ita global Corparate Reportng Task Farce. He served on
the board of Old Mutual ple, where he wos also Chair of the Audit
Committee He was Charr of the Accounting Standards Board and
a director of the Finoncial Reporting Council, He also served on the
board of the European Financial Reporting Advisory Group ond was
internm Prasident. He is g Fellow of the ICAEW and Hanaorary Fellow
of the Chartared Institute of Interngl Auditors.

Areas of expertise: Roger's career gt PwC ond his subsequent
non-executive roles have given im substanual skills and experience
N accounting, sk management, complance and audit in the
financial services industry,
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Key

m Nemination Committee

Chair

4
o Audit Committee

@ investment and Qrigination Corinillee

Jérdme

Mourgue D'Algue
PICG & PIC Director
Non-Executive Director
Shareholder nominated
by Luxinva

Date of appointment: J&réme was appointed to the Board as
a Non-Executive Director in November 2018,

Background and career: Jérome holds an MBA from the Wharton
School and a BA from ESSEC. He was previcusly an Associate at
McKinsey & Company and vice President of Morgan Stantey Capital
Partners in London. Jéréme was a Partner at private eguity firm
Englefield Capital LLP. He has been an employee of Abu Dhalbol
Investment Authority {"ADIA") since 2012, He become Head of
Financial Services in the Private Equity Department in 2017 and

1s now Head of EMEA and Americas for Private Equity.

Areas of expertise: Jérame has spent 25 years working in the financial
services Industry with a strong background ih asset managemeant

Current external reles: Jarome is currently Head of EMEA,
Private Equities at ADIA and reprasents ADIA on the boards
of various entities ADIA has invested in.

Mark Stephen

PICG & PIC Director
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Date of appointment: Mark was appointed to the Board as an
independent Non-Executive Director in November 2014,

Background and career: Mark has worked in the insurance industry
for over thirty years. He currently has o portfolio of independent
non-executive director roles across the industry Following & dedgree
and research careerin life sciences he gualifred as a chartered
accountant before joining Price Waoterhouse, As a partner gt PwC he
fed the insurance consulting business and latterly was UK Insurance
Industry leader. Thraughout his career he maintained a strong ciient
focus and worked with many of the leading insurers in the UK,
Switzerlond and South Africa. He retired from the partnership in 2013

Areas of expertise: Mark's experience 15 1n advising and working with
Insurance company boards on many aspects of business performance,
ncluding how they adapt to the changing regulatory and business
landscape. He has extensive experience of financial and actuarial
transformation and has worked with both outsourcers ond Insuronce
companies on structurnng and iMproving outsourcing arrandermaents

Current external roles: Mark serves as o director of TransRe London
Lirmited and Chairs the Investment Committee, he also Chairs Lhe
Audit and Remuneration Committees at Howden Group Holdings
Limited. In 2021 he was appointed to Openwork Holdings Limited
where he Chairs the Audit Cornmittee
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o Environmental, Social and
Governance Commitiee

o Rermuneration Committee

e Risk Committee

Peter Rutland

PIC Director
Non-Executive Director
Shareholder nominated
by CVC

Date of appointment; Peter was appointed to the Board as
a Non-Executive Director in May 2017,

Background and career: Potor is o Managing Partner and Head of
CVC's Financial Services Team and 1s based in London. Prior 1o joiring
CvCin 2007, he waorked for Advent International since 2002, Petar
has had previous roles at Soldman Sachs in the Investment Banking
division. Peter holds an MA from the University of Cambridge and

an MBA from INSEAD.

Areas of expertise: Peter has over 20 years’ expenence in the
banking, nvestrment and insurance industries as well as experience
as a director of both private and listed companies.

Current externalroles: Peter represents CVC and 1s a member
of boords representing the following groups: Newday, Domaestic &
General, Paysafe, TMF and Riverstone International.

Wilhelm Van Zyl
PICG & PIC Director
Non-Executive Director
Shareholder nominated
by Reinet

Date of appointment: Wilhelm was gppointed to the Board as
a Non-Executive Direclor in May 2015

Background and ¢areer: Wilhelm is the Chief Executive of Reinet
Invastments Manager S.A. and Reinet Fund Manager S A, Prior to this
he was group actuary of the financiol services group Metropolitan
Holdings from 2001 and headed up its corporate business from 20046.
n 2008 he was oppointed as Chief Executive of Metropolitan Holdings.
Following the listing of MM| Holdings in 2010, resulting from the merger
between Metropolitan and Marmenturn, he wos appointed as Deputy
Group Chief Executive. Wilhelm holds a BCom degree frem the
University of Stellenbosch and is a Fellow of the Institute and Faculty
of Actuaries (UK} and Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa.

Areas of expertise: Wilhelm has a strong background in the finonaial
services sector in South Africa and overseas along with expearience
in investrment strategy.

Current external roles: Wilhelm serves on the boards of directors
of varigus Reinet and investee entities,
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Governance Code compliance

The Board 1s committed to high standards of corporate governance across the Group and supports the principles laid down
in the Code, as issuad by the Financial Reporting Council. The Board considers that the Group was compliant with all of the
principles of the Code during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 However, as the Group 1s a private company it does
not comply with o number of provisions of the Code and some are not applicable. The Group is continuing to wark towards
full compliance with the provisions of the Code, where applicable. A copy of the Code can be found on the Financial
Reporting Councll’s website at www.fre.orouk and the table on pogde 87 provides signposting to how we have complied

with the Code.

Pension Insurance Corporation
simplified Group structure

# Holding entities

® Regulated entity

® Service entity Shareholders

Pension Insurance Pension Services
Corporation plc Corporation Limited
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Leadership

Pension Msurance Corporation Group Limited ("PICG™ or
the "Group”) and Pension Insurance Corporation ple {“PIC™
are each led by a Board of Directors (the “Board”) who are
appointed pursuant to the Articles of Assaciation. There

is an overlap of Directors hetween the Boards as shown in
the attendance table on page 91. The simple corporate
structure of the Group means that discussions on PICG
may directly impact PIC and having an overlap of Directors
ensures that both Boards are aware of all relevant matters.
Any mentian of the Board in this report refers to the PICG
Board, uniess stated otherwise. The Directors hove the
benefit of the Group's Directors’ and Officers’ indemnity
and insurance policy.

The current Board members, details of their experience and
the dote of their appointment are set out on pages 82 to 85.

The Board kelieves that good governance, strong values and
the right culture enables ths Group to do what is right for our
policyholders, employees, shareholders and other stakeholders.
The Board looks 1o and applies the principlaes of the Code as the
basis of how the Group shauld be governed.

The primary role of the Board is to provide effective
leadership, to ensure that the Group is appropriately
managded and delivers long-term shareholder value, while
making a contribution to wider society. A key responsibility
of the Board is to define, promote and monitor the Group's
culture and values. The right culture enables the delivery
of the Group's strategy and business model by promoting
attitudes and behaviours of high ethical standards and
integrity, as set out in the Group's values. The Board sets
the tone through ongoing diglegue with management and
employees and holds senior management to account where
there 1s ¢ misalignment of the existing culture with the
Group's purpose and vdlues.

The Board also ensures effective engagement with, and
participation from, shareholders and other stakeholders.
when maoking decisions, the Board has regard to the
interests af all of the Group’s stakeholders, as well as its
broader duties under s.172 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Group’s format 5172 statement can be found on pages
40 to 43 of this Annual Report and pages 96 and 97 set

out how the Board has taken into account the views of our
stakeholdars, the impact of its decisions on them and any
actions which have arisen as a consequence.

The independence of the Non-Executive Directors ("NEDs™)
is reviewed annually In aceordance with the criteria set cut
within the Code. The PICG Board and PIC Board are both
comprised of a majority of independent NEDs (“INEDs")
including the Chairman.

All Directors bring strong judgement to the Board's deliberations
and this is reflected in our Directors having the right skills and
experience to exhibit the right behaviours. The Board uses

a skills matrix to assess the balance of skills on the Baard and,
where thera are gaps, training is provided. A Board evaluation
exercise is carried out annually, covering both the Board and its
Committees, and every three years such evaluation is carried
out by an external consultant. An external evaluation took place
in 2020, so for 2021 the Board conducted an internal evaluation.
The process entailed the completion of a questionnaire for the
Boaord and each Committee, with the results being discussed by
the Nomination Committee and then the Board. The results
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indicated that the Board has a broad and appropnate range
of skills with which to properly challenge managerment, as wel|
as the skills and experience naeded 1o meaet stakeholder
axpectations. Mare detaill on the Board effectiveness review
isincluded on pages 9110 93.

Code Principles explanation references

The table below shows the pades where you can find
axplanations of how the Group applies the Principles
of the Code.

Principle reference

1. Board Leadership and Company Purpose

A page 87

B page 87

c pagde 99

D pages 44-47,96-97
E pages 54-59

2. Division of Responsibilities

F page 88

G page 88

H page 92

1 page 88

3. Composition, Succession and Evaluation

J pages 91, 106-107
K pages 8285, 91-92
L poges 92-93

4, Audit, Risk and Internal Control

M page 99

N pages 99-100

o] pages 114-116

5. Remuneration

P pages 109-113

Q pages 109-13

R pages 109-13

The Board and its responsibilities

The Board has collective responsipility for setting the Group's
strategic goals and providing leadership to put them into effect
through the managemeant of the Group'’s business within the
Group's governance framework. It does this by setting Group
strategy, ensuring appropriate standards, controls and rescurces
are in place for the Group to meet its abligations and reviewing
rnanagement’s performance. Part of this process is ensuring that
the right resources are in place to enable these to be delivered.
This includes the necessary financial and human resources, in
terms of the right leveals of capital to underwrite new business
as well as the approoriote team of people needed to run

a growing business whilst managing our risks. The main priorities
for the Board in 2022 are to ensure that it rernains effective

and has all the relevant skills and experience to continue to
provide strong direction and leadershig and maintains an
appropriate focus on operational effectiveness and contrals

as the Group continues to grow and evolve.
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The Board maintains a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for its decision, to ensure there is a clear division

of respansibilities between the Board and the running of the businass, which is reviewed on an annual basis, These reserved
matters include the Group's strotegic aims; objectives and commercial strategy; sgovernance and regulatory compliance;
structure and capital; financial reporting and controls; internal controls and risk management; major capital commitments;
major contracts and agreements; shargholder engagement; remuneration of the Board and senior executives, material
corporate transdactions; and any changes to this schedule of reserved matters.

The Board's primary focus is an the Group’s purpose, which is to pay the pensions of its current and future policyholders
The Board promotes the long-term sustainable success of both PICG and PIC within a framework of prudent and effective
controls which enable risks to be assessed and managed. The Board ensures that the culture and volues of the Group ore
dlisned sa that it is successful In achieving its purpose, whilst at the same time genergting value for shareholders and
contributing to wider saciety.

The Board agrees the responsibilities of the Directors and the Company Secretary, dnd these are set out further below:

Roles and names

Responsibilities

Chairman
Jon Aisbitt

Jonis responsible for the leadership and effectiveness of the Board. He also leads on the
developrnent of cutture by the Board as well as the development and monitoring of the effective
implementation of policies and procedures far the succession planning, induction, training and
development of Directors, as well as evaluating their performance. Together with the CEO and
Compdadny Secretdry, he sets the agenda for Board meetings, and he facllitates open and
constructive diclogue during those meetings. Jon also plays an important role in ensuring the
Group maintains effective communication with sharehaolders and other stakeholders.

Chief Executive Officer
(“CEO")
Tracy Blackwell

Tracy leads the executives in the day-to-day management of the business and effective
implamentation of the Board's decisions. Tracy is supported by a strong and experienced
Executive Committee, and together with her leadership team Tracy proposes and develops the
Group's strategy and overall commercial objectives with regard to the Group's responsibilities
to its shareholders, customers, employees and other stakeholders. Tracy consults regulariy with
the Chairman and the Board on matters which may have a materialimpact on the Group. She
is responsible for the Group's parformance of 115 aobligations, adoption of the culture set by the
Board, and outsourcing arrangements.

Senior Independent
Director (“SID"™)
Roger Marshail

Roger acts as ¢ sounding board for the Chairman and a trusted intermediary for the

other Directors and shareholders. He is also available if they have concerns which coentact through
the normal channels of Chairman, CEQ or CFO has failed 1o resolve or for which such contact is
inappropriate Roger, in his capacity as SID, meests with the NEDs at least once a year 1o appraise
the Chairman's performance and on such other occasions as are deemed appropriate.
Additionally, in his role as the whistleblowing Champion, he guards the independence, autonomy
and effectiveness of the Group's policies and procedures on whistleblowing,

Chief Financial Officer
(“CFO")
Dom Veney

Do is responsible for the finanaial and actuarial matters of the Group, iNcluding management,
allocation and mantenance of capital, funding and lquidity. He also manages and ovérsees the
production and integrity of the Group's financial information and its regulatory reporting,

Non-Executive Directors
Jake Blair

Sally Bridgeland

Judith Eden

Tim Gailico

Julio Goh

Stuart King

Arno Kitts

Josua Malherbea
Jéréme Mourgue D'Algue
Peter Rutland

Mark Stephen

Wilhelm vVan Zyl

Along with the Chairman and Executive Directors, the NEDs are responsible for ensunng the Board
and its Committees fulfil their responsibilities. The NEDs combine broad business and commercial
experience, in particular in the financial services and insurance sectors, with independent and
objective judgement as well as providing independent challenge 1o the Executive Directors. The
balance between NEDs and Executive Directors enables the Board to provide clear and effective
leadership across the Group.

Company Secretary
Louise Inward

Louise, through the Chairman, is responsible for advising the Board on all governance matters,
ensuring the Board has the nght procedures, policies, pracesses and resources it needs to function
effectively She maokes sure there is good information flow between the Board, its Committees,
senior management and NEDs.
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Governance and control framework

The below chart shows the Group's governance

structure. Along with other annual reviews of our governance
processes, the structure is reviewed to make sure that it is

fit for purpose and remains gs such in the context of the
Group’s growth prospects.

Financial Statements p125-172

The membership of the Committees is carefully determinaed
by the Board on recommendation from the Nomination
Committee to ensure there are the ripht skills, experience
and knowledoe on ecch Committee but there is also a cross
membership betwean the Committees. Such approach
facilitates appropriate oversight of the entire business and
a good information flow between the Committees.

Investment and
Origination
Committee

Audit
Committee

ESG
Committee

Nomination
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Risk
Committee

Executive
Committee

Management
and Operating
Committees
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Delegation

The Board has delegated certain aspects of its
responsibilities to its six Board Committees to assist
in providing effective oversight and leadership.

s the Audit Cormmittee;

* the Risk Committes;

e the Nomination Committee;

e the Remuneration Commitiee;

s the investment and Crigination Committee, and

s the Environmental, Social and Governance Commitiee.

The terms of reference for each of its Committees were
approved by the Board and are reviewed annually.

The Committee reports are set aut on pages 98 to 118,

The Investrment and Origination Committee considers
matters specific to PIC. The five remaining Committees
consider matters concerning both PICG and PIC, as per
the delegations in their terms of reference. Members
of the Committees are appointed by the Board on
recommendation of the Nomination Committee in
consultation with the Committee Chairs.

In addition to the Board Committees, there are also

a number of management and aperating committees

that assist senior mandgement with business management
and cversight of the Group in relation to: the day-to-day
management of the business; investment matters; risk
management frameworks and input into the development
of the nsk strategy; projects and major change initiatives

to maximise PIC's project investment return; and all new
business deals and interaction with policyholders, including
Treating Custamers Fdirly outcomes and overall conduct.

Board and Committee meetings

The Board meets formally on a regular basis and attends to
various matters by way of written resolutions. There is also
regular communication and interaction with management,
including monthly updates. Prior to each meeting, the
Chairman and Company Secretary ensure that the Directors
receive accurate, clear and timely information, to facilitote
focused, robust and informed discussions and to oid the
decision-making process.

Board meetings follow ¢ clear agenda that is agreed in
advance by the Chairman, in conpunction with the CEQ and
Company Secretary. At each meeting the Board receives
updates fromthe CEQ and CFO, as well as from other
members of the senior management. These reports cover
how the Group is executing the business plan, policyholder
administration, including details of how we meet our
obligation to treat policyholders fairly, the new business
pipeline and associagted investments, and Risk's review

of current and emerging risks. The Chairs of each Board
Caommittee also report hack to the Board on each
Committee's recent activities. The Board is in regular
dialogue with senior management outside of formal
meetings and, in addition to regular matters, the Board

and Committees also discuss other topics that reguire

their attention. The topics that the Board discussed outside
of regular reports are detailed on pages 94 and 95,
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Attendance by Directors at Board and Committee meetings
In 2021, there were seven scheduled PICG Boord meaetings and two ad hoo meetings. The PIC Baard held eight scheduled

PIC Board meetings and six ad hoc meetings

The table below shows the attendance by Directors of both the PICG and PIC Boards, as well as the Board Cornmittecs,
for all scheduled meetings. The takle does not cover ad hoe meelings, but these were also well attended by all Board and

Committee members,

Investmant
and

Audit Origination Nomination Remuneratian Risk
Director PICG Board PIC Baard  Committee ESG Committee  Committee  Committee  Committee
Jon Aisbitt 7/7 8/8 - 1/1 4/4 5/5 5/5 -
Tracy Blackwelt 77 8/8 - - - - -
Dom Veney' - - - - - - -
Jake Blair? 4/4 4/4 - - _ - _
Sally Bridgeland® - 77 5/5 1/1 - - - 444
Judith Eden 7 8/8 1/1 - 5/5 5/5 5/5
Tim Gallico 77 - - - - - -
Julia Goh* 141 11 - - - - -
Stuart King /7 8/8 5/5 - - 5/5
Arno Kitts 77 8/8 - 1/1 4/4 - - 5/5
Josua Malherbe 77 8/8 - - 5/5 5/5 -
Roger Marshall 77 8/8 5/5 171 - - - 5/5
Jérédme Mourgue D’Algue 7/7 8/8 - 4/4 5/5 5/5 -
Peter Rutland® - 7/8 - 4/4 5/5 5/5 -
Steve Sarjant® - 2/2 2/2 - - - 2/2
Rob Sewell - 8/8 - - - - -
Mark Stephen 77 8/8 5/5 - 5/5 5/5 -
Wilhelm Van Zyl 777 8/8 - A/4 - - 5/5

1 Dom Veney was appointed ta the PIC Board on 10 December, and during the year attended all Board, Audit, Investment and
Qrigination, and Risk Committee meetings in his role as Chief Actuary.

2 Jake Blair was appointed to the PICG and PIC Boards on 7 June 2021.

3 Sally Bnidgeland was appointed to the PIC Board on 28 January 2021 and succeeded Steve Sarjant as Charr of the Risk Committee

on 1 April 2021.

4 Julia Goh was appointed to the PICG and PIC Boards on 1 October 2021.
5 Peter Rutland did not attend the PIC Board meeting in March 2021 due to prior commitments.
6 Steve Sarjant retired from the PIC Board and as Charr of the Risk Committee on 31 March 2021

Board composition and effectiveness

The PICG Board comprises the same Chairman and CEQ,
as well as 11 Non-Executive Directors, six of whom are
independent and five nominated by major sharehaolders.
The PIC Board is currently composed of a Chairman, CEQ,
CFO and 11 Non-Executive Directors, seven of whom are
independent and four of whom have been nominated by
major shareholders of the Group. In March 2021 Steve Sarjant
retired from the PIC Board and was succeeded on the

PIC Board by Sally Bridgeland and as the Chair of the Risk
Committee. lake Blair was apgpeinted a Director of the
PICG and PIC Boards as an HPS Investment Partners
nominated Director in June 2021, In October 20271, Julia Goh
was apponted o Director of the FICG and PIC Boards.

On 9 December 2021, Rob Sewell retirad as the Chief
Financial Officer and Director of the PIC Board, and was
succeeded by Dom Veney from 10 December 2021,

In order to ensure that the Board operates effectively,
Directars’ time commitments are assessed on appointment
and reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any new appointments
that Directors wish to accept must be cleared with the
Chairman and the Company Secretary. The Board is
satistied that all NEDs are able to devote sufficient ime

to the business,

The Board is structured to provide the Group with an
appropriate balance of skills, experience, knowledge and
independence to enable it to discharge its duties and
responsibllities effectively. Given the nature of the Group's
business, insurance, actuarial, accounting and financial
sarvices sector experience is clearly of benefit, and this

is reflected in the composition of the Board ond

its Committees.
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During the year, the Chairman and the NEDs met without the
Executive Directors, and the NEDs met without the Chairman
present. The Board has increased its diversity in terms of
gender and ethnicity following recent Director appointments,
but it remains aware that it currently does not meet best
practice initiatives regarding the percentage of women on
the Board. The Board will continue to take steps where
possible to increase its diversity.

Induction and ongoing training and development
The Board has developed aninduction programme for

all new Directors to be undertaken upon joining. This
programme is monitored by the Chairman and 1s the
responsibility of the Company Secretary The programme is
tallored to the new Director's gqualifications and experience,
and includes presentations, briefings, and meetings with
Board members, senior management and external advisers,
Specific training, that has been identified during the
induction process, is then provided to new Directors to
enable them to properly challenge the Executive Directors
and senior management,

The angoing professional development of the Directors s
regularly reviewed by the Board and its Committees. The
Chairman reviews and agrees training and development
needs with eoch of the Directors annually. Directors also
have the opportumty to highlight specific areas where
they feel their skills or knowledpe would benefit from
development as part of the Board evaluotion process
and are encouraged to continue their own professional
development through attendance at seminars and
conferences. Directors confirm annually thot they have
received sufficient training to fulfil their duties.

Training sessions are regularly provided to Directors for each
round of Board and Committee meetings. Usually, there s

a traming session scheduled for each Board meeting and
after each Investment and Origination Committee and

Risk Committee meeting. In addition to the mandatory
compliance, conduct risk and anti-money laundering
training, the Directors have been provided with thematic
trraining sessions on ESG considerations in investments,
climate change risk, ermerging risks, the Diversified Capital
Fund, IFRS 17, hedging and inflation, and the pricing process.

The Board ensures that the culture and
values of the group are aligned so that

it is successful in achieving its purpose,
whilst at the same time generating value
for shareholders and contributing to
wider society.”

Time commitment

As part of the appointmant orocess and thair annual

review the NEDs each confirrn that they are able to allocate
sufficient time to the Group to discharge their responsibilities
effectively. The external commitments of the Chairman and
the other Birectors are indicated in their profiles on pages 82
to 85 and the Company Secretary maintaing a record of all
external appointments held by the Directors. In addition,
Directors are required to consult with the Chairman as early
as possible on any new external appointment. The Board

1s satisfied that the Chairman and each NED are able to
dllocate sufficient time to enable therm to discharge ther
duties and responsibilities effectively.

Performance evaluation

The Board conducts an annual evaluation of its
effectiveness in order 1o identify areas for development,
Following the external evaluation in 2020 by Clare Chalmers
Limited, the 2021 evaluation was conducted internally.

The following strengths and areas for development were
identified from the 2021 evalugtion:

Board strengths:
s Committed and diligent Board.

o Open and constructive debate amongst the Directors
with everyone having the oppaortunity to contribute
and challenge.

¢ Board Committees work well aond benefit from a depth
of specialist skills and good challenge. They provide
invaluable support to the Board os a whole,

The Board has a good mix of competencies and
experience, including knowledge of the business.

Areas for development:
s Further improve the Board's gender, ethnic and
wider diversity.

s Increase the time spent on people and the cultural
aspect of the business

s Further review mechanisms and processes around
executive succession planning.

s Incorporate technical topics into the Board's training
programme which were highlighted in the review.
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Areas for Board development from 2020 evajuation

Financial Statements pi25-172

Actions taken during 2021

Progress adainst Board's Diversity Policy

Three new Directors have been appointed during 2021, two INEDs

and one shareholder nominated Directar. The appointments have
increased the Board's gender and ethnic diversity.

Improve machanisms for performance review
and feedback

The Chairman holds regular one-te-one meetings with the other
Directors to discuss performance review and provide feedback.

Review executive succession

The Nomination Cormmittea has focused on this area and has heald

a number of sessions on succession planning, both at Board and
executive level.

Conflicts of interest

The Board has established a procedure to deal with
Directors’ conflicts of interest which complies with the
Group’s Articles and the provisions in s175 of the Companies
AcCt 2006. Schedules of a Director’s actual or potential
conflicts are compiled based on disclosures made by the
Director and reviewed on an annual basis. Additionally,

any conflicts or potential conflicts are considered at the
beginning of all Board and Committee meatings.

Accountability

The Board, through the Audit and Risk Committees, receives
reports regarding the Group's risk management and internal
control systerns. It has reviewed the Company’s financial
and business reporting, the effectiveness of the Group’s
systems of risk management and internal control, and the
Group's relationship with its cauditors, the details of which are
set out in the Audit and Risk Committees’ Reports on pages
98 10102 and 114 to 1é&.

Modern Slavery Act 2015

The Group has o Modern Slavery Statement, which is
reviewed and approved by the Board annually, The
Modern Slavery Act Statement is available on the Group's
website: www pensioncorporation.com/about-us/
modern-slavery-statement/.

The Group commits to support the aims of the Modern
Slavery Act 2015 and seeks to ensure that modern slavery

or human trafficking do not feature in any part of its business
or supply chains, It has o zero-tolerance approach to any
form of slavery and human trafficking within the Group or

its suppliers, and acts responsibly and ethically in business
relationships to ensure human trafficking and slavery do

not appear anywhere in its business operatians.

Anti-bribery and corruption

The Group operates an Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy to
prevent and prohibit bribery, in line with the Bribery Act 2010.
The Group will not tolerate any form of bribery by, or of, its
employees, agents or consultants or any person or body
acting on its behalf, and no such incidents occurred in the
fincancial year ended 31 December 2021, Senior monagement
s committed to implementing effective measures to prevent,
monitor and eliminate bribery. The policy covers:

« the main areas of liability under the Bribery Act 2010;

+ the responsibilities of employees and associated persons
acting for, or on behalf of, the Group; and

« the conseqguences of any breaches of the policy.

Whistleblowing arrangements

The Group has a policy which enables and encourages
employees to report in confidence any possible improprieties
in either financial reporting or other matters. The SID guards
the independence, autonomy and effectiveness of the
Group's policies and procedures on whistleblowing

Remuneration

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the work of the
Remuneration Committee can be found on pages 109 to 113,
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Board activities.

The Board has led the
business’s ongoing
response to the Covid-19
pandemic and in
addition to the regular
matters that the Board
discusses at each
meeting, there were
several key strategic
and operational topics
the Board considered
during regular and ad
hoc Board meetings.
The Board, inits
considerations, took into
account its obligations
arising from s.172 of the
Companies Act 2006 as
outlined on pages 40 to
43. The key deliberations
are listed opposite:

Strategy

Risk management
and Internal Model

s Approved the five-year business
plan following the Board
dI5CUSsINg various scenarios
at its strategy day focusing
on PIC's purpose, growth and
long-term success.

» New bhusiness transactions
above a defined threshold require
Board approval, and the Boord
considered and approved
a number of new business
transactions during 2021

Discussed culture in the
context of how it affects the
Group's strategy.

Approved the Group's new
brand and corporate identity.

Approved the Group's Net Zero
commitment and signed up to the
Net Zero Asset Owner Alliance,

Considerad the Group’s
pricing assumptions against
investment cutcomes.

Approved the Credit Model
Change application to the PRA.

Continued to provide oversight

of the Graup-wide, comprehensive
programme of changde that has
beaen instituted as part of the
strategy to provide a robust
platform for future growth for the
business, and which focuses on key
processas, people, management
information and technology.
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« Carried out increased cversight
and monitoring of PIC’s liquidity
and solvency positions, ensuring
that it was robust and resilient
to exceptional market conditions
dunng the pandemic.

s Closely oversaw PIC's portfalio
and received regular updates
on any de-risking carried out by
the Investments team.

s Closely oversaw PIC's
operations with particular
focus on administration ,
services outsourced to Capita
to ensure minimal iIMpact on
PIC's policyholders.

Approved risk appetite with
particular focus on capital risk,
debt, hedging and pricing

Approved the Own Risk and
Solvency Assessment.

+ Providled oversight of the
implementation of the Group's
hedging strategy including the
establishment of a specialist
Capital Planning and Hedging
Committee by manadement,

s Regular reports were made 1o
tha Board on the progress of
regulatory stress and scenario
testing to ensure the business
remained resilient and robust
in challenging times and there
was No adverse impact on
policyhoiders, workforce and
other stakeholders.

Continued its focus on conduct
risk and vuinerable customers.

Continued its focus on PIC's
regulatory engagement.

Approved the updated recovery
and resolution plan.
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Employees and
remuneration

Financial reporting
and controls

Financial Statements p125-172

Corporate
governance

-

Received regular updotes from the
CEO wiid Chiel Peaple Oflicer on
resourcing and wellbaing of staff,
working arrangements ond
adjustments made to PIC’s

offices and working in the post-
pandemic world.

Approved the launch of the Group's
share schemes for the year as an
important way for the Group to
enggage with its employees.

An employee survey was completed
with the Board discussing the results
and what their significance is for the
Groug's culture and strategy as well

as the future ways of working.

Received o repart on the dender
pay eap.

Approved annual remuneration
parameters, NED and senior
management remuneration, taking
into account all stakeholders’
interests and business priorities.

» Approved the full year Annual Report

and Accounts.

s Reviewed and approved the

integrated assurance plan and noted

updates agoinst the plan in reports
from the Audit Committee.

s Monitored the Group's progress
in respect of the implementation
of IFRS 17,

s Approved the Whistleblowing
Policy and reviewed the
Whistleblowing report.

» Approved the Modern
Slavery Statement.

» Reviewed the Annual Opinion from
the Head of Internal Audit on the
effectiveness of the Group controls,
risk management and governance
processes, and culture.

* Approved the appointments
of an additional independent
Non-Executive Director and
a Non-Executive Director
on recommendation of the
Nomination Committee to
the PIC and PICG Boards

« With assistance from the
Nomination Committee,
undertook a search for a new
CFO to succeed Rob Sewell, and
approved the appointment of
Dom Veney as the new CFO.

Discussed the composition

of the Board and Committees,
which resulted in changdes to
the Committees’ membership.

* Considered the results of an
internal Board effectiveness review
in 2021 as disclosed in this report.



Corporate Governance report continued

Stakeholders and the Board

PIC's aim is to provide secure and stable retirement incomes
through best-in-class custornar service, comprehensive

risk management and excelience in asset and liability
management. The Board recodnises that the needs and
relevance of different groups of stakehotders can vary over
time, and as such the Board seaks to understand the needs
and prarities of each stakeholder as part of its decision
making This can anly be achieved through endgagement with,
and consideration of, all stakeholders, including our suppliers,
employeaes, policyhaolders, shareholders and debt holders,
trustees, investment counterparties and regulators.

Pages 44 to 47 of the Stratedic Report set out wha our
stakeholders are, how we have engaged with them as
a business, and how stakeholder needs are at the care
of our decision making.

Further detall on how the Board engaged with our
stakeholders during the year to fulfil its duties under s172
of the Companies Act 2006 is included in further sections
below and on pages 40 to 43

Supporting the Board’'s commitment

to stakeholders

PIC takes the views of its stakeholders seriously, especially
when taking business decisions. In particular, Board papers
include a section outlining how the interasts of stakeholders
are affectad by a particular decision and this helps the
Directors toke the 5.172 factors into consideration in their
decision making. This brings stakeholder interests to the
forafront not only for our Directors, but alse far senior
management when bringing proposals to the Board.

An illustration of where the interests of our stakeholders
have had an impact on some of the Board's key decaisions
is covered In examples on pages 42 and 43 in the 5172
statement of this Annual Report.

Stakeholder

The Campary has a schedule of matters reserved for the
Board which ensures that certan matenal and/or strategic
decisions can only be made by the Board and may not be
delegated to Executive Committees or senior management,
Mare detdil on the matters reserved for the Board can be
found on pages 87 and 88 in the section “The Board and

its responsibilities”.

Combined with a robust adenda-setting process and annual
planner, this schedule helps the Group to moke sure thot
decisions dre made at the nght level and that stakeholder
impacts are an intrinsic part of the decision-making process.
The Bogard is supported in its work by six Board Committees,
whose responsibilities are delegated by the Board and are
described on poge 90,

Embedding stakeholder interests within our culture
Through informed discussian at Board level, our executive
team carries forward stakeholder consideration inta and
throughout the business as described on pages 44 to 47,

PIC operates o culture of openness and transparency, with
management at all levels working amongst their operationat
taams, ensuring that the tone from the top is well ermbedded
in the day-to-day operations of the Group and therefore
stakeholder interests are evidenced in PIC's culture

Valuing our stakehotiders

As a business, we know that we can only be successful

and sustainable in the long term if we take into account our
stakeholders, thair views and needs The Board places the
utmost importance on our stakeholders and takes an active
role in engoging with them, including at cur Policyholder
days, which continue to be held virtually. The Board and PIC
employees are looking farward to being able to hold these
days in person once more. The main activities of the Board
with regard to stakeholder engagement are shown below.

Outcome of our business madel for our stakeholders

Suppliers

The Board recognises the importance of 1ts suppliers, which are identified and managed in
accordance with PIC's Third Party Management Policy which forms part of a PIC-wide policy
framework approved by the Board. A risk assessment is carned out on each supplier and the
service provided to identify and prioritise critical relationships along with the opplicable due
diligence, whilst setting the frequency of ongoing reviews. This process is integral to any Board

decision in respect of critical suppliers and outsourcers,

The Beard and its Committees regularly discuss commercial performance of PIC's suppliers,
investment managders and key outsourcers, including an update on relationships It is key for the
Board that PIC fosters these relationships so that they are mutually beneficial, sustainable, and
therefore in the best interest of PIC's policyholders.

Shareholders and
debt holders

our stakeholders,

The Annual Report, Half Yearly Results, Solvency and Financial Condition Report, Task Force
on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures Report, the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report, and RNS updates are available throughout the year and these provide information
on the Company's activities and financialinformation. The Board and its Committees are
part of the process ensuring this information is accurate, fair, balanced and accessible to

Major sharehalders’ views are vaiced to the Board and management through their nominated
Directors on the Board Further, the Board has ongoing interactions with emnployeas who are
the largest group by number of shareholders.
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Stakeholder

Financial Statements pP125-172

Qutcome of sur business moedel for our stakeheclders

Regulators and
policymakers

PIC is subject to regulation and supervision by regulatory authorities in the UK, most notably the
FCA and the PRA. The Board and its Committeas are kept updated on PIC's interactions with
the regulators and receive Periodic Summary Meeting Letters, Throughout the year Directors
met with the PRA, and management provided updates on major developments at PIC, FIC
seeks to engage with regulators proactively to facilitate diclogue on the regulatory landscape,
cither by taking part in a formal consultation process or through meetings. Where appropricte,
consulting in advance with the regulators is part of the Board’s decision-making proceass

Policyholders

Directors usually meet with policyholders during the Company’s Policyholder Days, but due to
the ongoind pandemic we cauld not hald these events in person in 2021. This yeor we held a live
"Policyholder Hour” event onling, hosted by the CEC who spoke with PIC employees abeout how
we look aftar our policyholders. There was alsoe o panel discussion on PIC's investment stratedy,
including responsible investing, ESG and climate change issues. During the hour, we invited
palicyholders to submit thair questions for the PIC management panel to answer. The event
also included videos from our policyholders, who shared their inspiring stories of what they
have been up to In therr retirement.

The Board continued to receive regular reports on vulnerable customers and how PIC acts to
ensure best outcomes for its policyholders. Having in-depth understanding of issues foced by
vulnerable customers helps the Board in its consideration of any decisions which may imoact
PIC’s policyholders.

Non-Executive Directors continued attending workshops which explored PIC's customer
journays. These provided the Board with a detailed insight into customer touchpoints,
experienceas, challenges and cutcomes.

Employees

The Board has regular interactions with PIC's workforce, including mentorship provided by NEDs
to the executive team, attendance by employees at Board and Committee meetings and
engagement outside of meetings on a variety of initiatives.

The CEO has recorded a number of conversations with our Non-Executive Directors which have
been shared with PIC employees. These conversations cover a wide variety of topics, including
how the Board assesses risk, the ESG challenges we face, the current ecanomic conditions and
challenges these bring for PIC, why our major shareholders have invested in PIC, and what's
important to them, as well as personal stories from the Directors.

The Board receives regular updates from the Chief People Officer, which includes any employee
issues as well as updates on the results of the annual employee survay. The views and feedback
are taken intc account by the Board in its decisions affecting employees, e.g., in respect of
remuneration and benefits, approval of the budget and the business plan, and the planned
return to the workplace.

Defined benefit
pension scheme
trustees

The relationship the Company has with trustees, and therr expectations, is discussed alongside
each deal considered by the Board. Feedback received from the trustees and consultants is
factored into the Board's strategic discussions around new business and underpins the Board’s
approval of the business plan.

Direct investment
counterparties

PIC works with variety of social housing counterparties and provides financing to them

which enables the development of new homes for social rent. PIC also provides financing to
counterparties who are involved in the development of renewable energy projects. The Board
is part of the approval of any new strategies and the ongoing oversight of direct investments to
ensure they provide sood outcomes for cormmmunities, for PIC and for its policyholders.
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Audit Committee report

Roger Marshall Chair of the Audit Committee

... we continued our heightened focus on
the Group’s risk management and internal
control frameworks to ensure these were
not adversely impacted by remote
working, and to ensure these remained
resilient during times of uncertainty
caused by the ongoing pandemic.”

| am plegsed to present this year's Audit Committee report,
which gives insights into the work carried out by the Audit
Committee {the "Committee”) and our discussions

during 2021,

We welcomed Sally Bridgeland as @ member from 28 January
2021. She reploced Steve Sarjant following his planned
retirement; although Steve remained on the Cornmittee until
31 March to see us through the year end process.

The Committee met five times in 2021; we held our meetings
remotely in the first hatf of the year and resumed meeting in
person in the second half. We followed our planned annual
programme which included a report from the Head of
Internal Audit on the effectiveness of the Group's controls,
risk management and sovernance procaesseas, on avtcomes
of any significant cudits, and proposed improvements and
ritigating actions agreed with management. We provided
oversight of financial reporting, related methodologies and
underlying assumptions, and received regular updates from
our External Auditor, KPMG LLFP.

During the year we met in private sessions with both the
Head of Internal Audit and the External Auditor. These
meetings allow for open dialogue around any 1ssues covered
by the Commmittee. There were no significant concerns raised
by either of them,

Unsurprisingly, we continued our heightened focus on the
Group's risk manasement and internal control frameworks
to ensure these were not adversely iImpacted by remaote
warking, and to ensure these remained resilient during times
of uncertainty caused by the ongoing nandemic.

A considerabie amount of time and focus has bean given

1o the oversight of transformational projects such as the
Finance Change Programme | mentioned last year and
which continued in 2021, and progress made in relation to
the IFRS 17 implementation. Due to the technical nature of
the IFRS 17 work, we decided that it needed more of our time
and attention and we have established a sub-committee

of the Audit Committee to closely oversee progress.

Further sections of this report explain more about the
sub-committee composition and scope.

Roger Marshall
Chair of the Audit Committee
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Committee membership

The membearship of the Committee at the date of this report
together with the attendance record for the year end

31 December 2021 is set out in the table on pade 98.

Other regular attendees at Committee meetings during 2021
included: Chairman of the Board, CEO, CFO, Chief Risk
Officer, Chiel Actuary, Actuaricl Function Holder, General
Counsel, Head of Internal Audit and Wilhelm Van Zyl,

a shareholder nominated Director.

The Committee was in place throughout the fingncial

yvear ended 31 Decemizer 2021, and was chared by Roger
Marshall. It cormprises only INEDs of the Company, all

of whom are considered to be free of any relationship

that would affect their impartiality in carrying out their
responsibilities and were independent as required under
the Code. Members of the Committee are appointed by
the Board, upon the recommendation of the Nomination
Committee and in consultation with the Chalr of the
Committaee. On 28 January 2021, Sally Bridgeland joined the
Committee as a member and succeeded Steve Sarjant, who
retired from the Committee and the PIC Board on 31 March
2021 There were no further chandes to the Committee
membership during the year.

For more infarmation on the Committee members
pleqase see p82-85

The Chair of the Committee reports to subsequent meetings
of the Board on key areas of focus. The Board also receives
a copy of the minutes of each Committee meeting.

Responsibilities of the Committee

The Boord has established the Committee in fuifiling

its responsibilities regarding financial reporting, the
effectiveness of internal controls and risk management
systems, processes and compliance matters. The Board has
delegated to the Cormmittee the responsibility for overseeing
the following key areos:

Financial reporting

s Monitoring and, where necessary, challenging the
Group's financial reporting processes including key
accounting issues and juddgements as well as methods
and assumptions used in the valuation of the technical
provisions under Solvency Il and suggested basis including
prudenticl margins for the technical provisions under IFRS.

* Reviewing and, where necessary, challenging all material
information presented in the Annual Report and Accounts
bafore these are approved by the Board,

Providing oversicht of prograss towards implementation of
IFRS 17 and the financial impact on the Group's reporting.

s Reviewing the Group’s assessments of going concern,
longear-term prospects and viability of the business and
raviews of any applicable material which the Committee is
required to review under the Group’s and the Company’s
Reporting and Disclosure Policy.
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Internal controls and risk management systems

s Overseeing and assessing the framework, effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group's systems of intarnal contreol,
including key financial, operational and compliance
controls The Committee meats regularly with managerment,
the Chief Risk Officer, the General Counsel and the Head
of Internal Audit to ensure management take action to
cddress any issues ansing from this review,

+ Overseeing the validation pracess of the regulatory
balance sheet and jointly with the Risk Committee making
appropriate recommendations to the Baard.

Ligising closely with the Risk Committee, ensuring that
there are steps to identify and mitigate any significant risk
to the Group.

Caompliance, Financial Crime and Whistleblowing

+ Reviewing the Group's complicnce policies and procedures
as part of oversight of the Group's complionce with
relevant regulatory and legal requirements, including the
arrangerments in place for the reporting and investigation
of concerns and for ensunng fair custemer outcomes.

Reviewing the cdeguacy of the Graup's whistleblowing
policies and procedures ensuring that such arrangements
allow preportionate and independent investigation of
such matters and appropriate follow up action.

Reviewing the Group's procedures for detecting fraud, systems
and controls for prevention of bribery and market abuse.

Internal Audit and External Audit

s Overseeing and monitoring the role and effectiveness
of the Group’s Internal Audit function including approving
the anrnual internal gudit plan, monitoring the reports
arising from internal audits and the status of actions
rasulting therefrom.

s The appointment or removal of the Head of internal Audit.

» Monaging the relationship with the External Auditor,
monitoring and reviewing its independence, ocbjectivity
and performance, and leading the tender process or
Senior Statutory Auditor change.

» Considering and making recommendations te the Board
on the appointment of the External Auditor (including
approving the remunearation and terms of appointment)
as well as reviewing the External Auditor's annual audit
programme and the results therefrom.

* Reviewing the pelicy on non-audit services carried out by
the External Auditor.
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Audit Committee report continued

Activities during the year . .
During the fincmci§ yeor,ythe Committea held five meetings. Internal A.Udllt effectiveness
The Commiltes receives regular reports from the internal feview process

Audit, Risk and Compliance functions, as well as updates
regarding progress of major projects being undertaken which
affect the control framework of the Group. The Committee
also recsives regular financial performance reports In
addition to these regular reports, this year the Committee
considered the matters below:

Financial reporting

* Reviewed the appropriateness of the Group's key
accounting policias, ssuas and significant judsements
related to the financial statements as well as half year
and year end valuation basis and assumptions.

= Reviewed the procass and stress testing undertaken to
support the Group's viability and geing concern statements,

s Reviewed and confirmed to the Board that, based onits
review of the Annual Repaort and Accounts and internal
contrals that support the disclosures, the Annual Report
and Accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced,
understandable and provide the necessary information
for the shareholders to assess the Company’s position,
performance, and its business model and strategy.

L4

Provided oversight of and reviewed the process of
valuation of financial assets, subject to internal valuation,
and investment property.

» Received reports and updates from the Actuanial Function
Holder in respect of validation of technical provisions and
year end basis and assumptions.

Approved the PICG half year report, and the Solvency
and Fimancial Condition Repart,

Reviewed the Transitional Measures and Technical
Provisions recalculation assessment.

Internal controls and risk management

» Continued its heightened focus on the Group’s control
environment, being cognisant of the impaoct of the
Covid-19 pandemic and ongaing remote waorking.

Reviewed the Internal Model Consolidated Annual
validation Raport.

Received the annual Internal Audit cpinian on the
effectiveness of the Group controls, risk management
and governance processes.

Continued overseeing the key projects such as policy
data, third party risk management, the Finance
Change Programme and prograss made towards the
implementation of IFRS 17.

Received a comprehensive update on the Group's
strategy and approach to cyber risk and associated
IT control environmeant
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Compliance, financial crime and whistleblowing:

s Received and reviewed regular reports from the
Compliance function in relation to financial crime,
whistleblowing, and data protection, The Committee
discussed the controls and mitigating actions which
hove been deployed 1o support the Groug's campliance
culture and strategy.

Approved tho 2022 annual Cormpliance Muoniluring
Programme and reviewed the Maoney Laundering
Reporting Officer’s report,

Receved updates on regulatory interactions.

Other matters
e Reviewed and approved its terms of reference and
annual programme,

s Reviewed and approved various policies within the
Committee’s ramit and approved the Group's Tax Strategy.

Internal Audit and Integrated Assurance Plan

The Committee monitors the activity, role and effectiveness
of the Group's Internal Audit function and is responsiole for
the appointment or removal of the Head of internal Audit.
The Committee meets regularly with management, the Chief
Risk Officer, the General Counsel and the Head of Internal
Audit to review the effectiveneass of internal controls, risk
management and comphance processes, Each year an
annual integrated assurance pian which covers the internal
audit plan, the Compliance Monitoring Programme and Risk
reviews, 1s presented to the Committee, which reviews and
challenges, if necessary, before recommending it to the
Board for approval. The annual integrated assurance plan
helps the Board in discharging its responsibilities of oversight
of the Group’s systerms of controls and risk management.
The Committes reviewed and approved the 2021 Internal
Audit Plan and 2021 Compliance Monitoring Programme;

it also recommended the 2022 Integrated Assurance Plan

to the Board.

Financial Statements p125-172

Internal Audit effectiveness review

Each year the Committee reviews the effectiveness of the
Internal Audit function, The pracess is based on the Internal
Audit Code of Practice and is conducted by o tallored online
questionnaire which 1s completed by relevant stakeholders
The Committee considered the results of the review and is
satisfied that the quality, experience and expertise of the
Internal Audit Tunction is appraprinte for the Group, and was
oleqsed to see that progress was made during the year in
racruiting additional Internal Audit resources to keep up with
the growth of the PFIC Group

External Auditor

KPMG has bheen the auditor for the Group for the last 1b
yvears, with a tendering process completed in 2016, The
Committee annually reviews the performance of the
External Auditor and in 2021 continued to monitor progress
against any actions arising from the review conducted in
Q4 2020, It further assessed that 1t was satisfied with the
qguality of the cudit work completed and that the challenge
from the External Audit team was at a satisfactory level.

The Committee also confirmed it was satisfied that the
auditer remained independent and objective. To ensure
the continued independence of the External Auditor, the
Group has put in place a Mon-Audit Services Policy, which
is reviewed annually by the Committee. The policy places
a 70% cap on non-audit services fees relative to the
statutary audit fees, with any fees over £25,000 requiring
approval of the Committee. Details of the remuneration
paid to the External Auditor are set out in Note 5.

KPMG has reported to the Committee regularly and has
provided assurance that there has not been o detrimental
impact to audit resourcing arising from Covid-19 on the
2021 audit.

During the yvear, the Committee reviewed the External
Auditor's plan for the audit of the Group's financial
statements, which included key areas of scope of work,
key risks on the financial statarments, and the proposed
audit fee and terms of appointment.
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Significant issues throughout the year

One of the key focuses and significant 1ssues dealt during the
year has been continued oversight of the Finance Change
Programme and progress towards implementation of IFRS 17,
The Cormmittee has established a sub-committee whose
sCope was o review Judosements, accounting policy choices
and methodaelogy for IFRS 17, provide oversight of the IFRS 17
implementation prograss, including both short and long-term
implementation chollendes; ond review aond approve
reguired quantitative and gualitative disclosures arising
from the implemeantation of IFRS 17, and their impact

on the Group's financial reporting.

The sub-committee was chalred by Roger Marshall;
members included Mark Stephen and Sally Bndgeland.
Stuart King and Wilhelm Van Zyl also attended the meetings.
Other regular attendees included: the Chief Actuary, the
Chief Financial Controller, the Chief Risk Officer and the

IFRS 17 technical actuaries and accountants,

Performance evaluation

An internal evaluation of the Board and its Committees

wais carried out during 2021, Each Committee member

and executives who regularly attend meelinds completed

a taiiored online survey. The results found the Committee
wos well choired with good participation from well-prepared
Committee members and attendees. The technical nature
of the Cammittee was recognised and a request was made
for training on various specific topics.

Areas of focus for 2022

The Committee's focus wilt primarily continue 1o be on

the quality of the Group's external reporting; ensuring

the effectiveness of the External Auditor, and the Internal
Audit and Compliance functions, ond considering the
effectiveness of the Group's internal controls. The
Committee will also continue to oversee progress of iIFRS 17
mplementation ond will assist the Board in providing
direction and leadership as the Group continues to navigate
its way through any impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Furthermore, time will be dedicated to overseeing

any improvement initiatives undertaken by the Finance
function which will focus on bedding in the new systems
and processas implemented as part of the Finance
Change Programme.

Other disclosures
The Chair of the Committee meets periodically with the
Group's regulator, the PRA.

Significant issues throughout the year were dealt with as follows:

Area of focus

Actions taken by the Committee

Finance Change Programme including
IFRS 17

The Committee continued to provide oversight of the wider Finance Change
Programme which focused on transformation of Finance and updated technology,

reporting and analytical tools. The pregramme completed in 2021 but further
improvement work will continue in 2022.

IFRS 17 methodology and calibration

Tha Committee reviewed progress made in IFRS 17 preparation and progress

on the technical development of IFRS 17 methodology and calibratian. It alse
assessed high-level financial impacts on PIC's plans.

Valuation basis and assumptions

The Committee continuad to review and approve the valuation basis and

assumptions for financial reporting. in-depth discussions were held on the
longevity and impact of the Covid-19 pandemic, and economic assumptions
such as discount rates and inflation.

IFRS operating profit and Solvency Il
surplus generation

A review was carried out to ensure that both measures, IFRS operating profit
and Solvency !l capital surplus, are relevant and reliable, and to eliminate any

inconsistencies and shortcomings.
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Investment and Origination Committee report
Arno Kitts Chair of the Investment and Origination Committee

Great progress has been made towards
the Group's ESG strategy, and throughout
the year, the Committee supported

the Board in the ESG work and its

Net Zero commitment.”

| am pleased to present the Investment and Crigination
Committee (the "Committec”) report for the year ended
31 December 2027,

A key focus for the Commitice during the year was to
maonitor market risks arising from the ongoing Cowid-19
pandemic and how these affect the Group’s portfolio.

We have given a lot of attention to our hedging position and
how best to adjust it to refloct the volatility of the exdtertal
environment and the Group’s needs. The Committee was
centralin strengthening governance in respect of hedging,
It played a key role in establishing the Capital Planning and
Hedging Committee, as a management committee, to
empower management to make timely and informead
decisions in overseaing and managing the risks to the
Group’s balance sheet from its hedgdind stratedy.

Despite the slower start to the year, the portfolic has
continued to grow, and the Committee provided oversight
of and challenge to origination projects in the pipeline.

The Committee remained diligent in scratinising investment
outcoras versus assumptions and received an update

on pricing assumptions relating to the transition fram LIBOR
to SONIA {see page 134 for more detail).

As the year progressed, our focus turned to inflation risk and
its impact on the Group. The Committee members, together
with the entire Board, attended a training sessicn on inflation
to better undearstand this risk in the context of the Group’s
partfolio and overall performance.

The Committee also approved the implementation of the
Group's Strategic Asset allocation framework with the aim

of balancing risk and reward, whilst supporting the Group's
primary objective of ensuring that all policyholder obligations
are met.

Great progress has been made towards the Group's ESG
strategy, and throushout the year the Cormmittee supported
the Board in the ESG work and its Net Zerc commitmant.

The Committee and the Board fully support the continuing
development of ESG and climate change facters that are
integrated in responsible investing decisions and this will
continue to be a focus of the Committee for 2022. The
Committee has continued to receive training on ESG and
climate change matters.

Arno Kitts
Chair of the Investment and Crigination Committee
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Committee members

The mambership of the Cammittee at the date of this report
together with the attendancea record far the year end

31 December 2021 are set In the table on page 103.

Other regular attendees at Committee meetings during 2021
included: CEQ, CFO, CRO, Chief Investment Officer, Chief
QOrigination Officer and the General Counsel.

Members of the Committee are appointed by the Board, upon
the recommendation of the Nomination Cormmittee andin
consultation with the Chair of the Committee. On 1 January
2022, the Committee membership was refrashad with Jake
Blair and Julia Goh becoming Committee members.

The Committee’s membership comprises seven NEDs,
three of whom are regarded as independent pursuant to
the Code and whom the Group considers to be free of any
relationship that would impact ther impartiality in carrying
out their responsibilities, The remaining four NEDs are
shareholder nominated,

For more information on the Cormmittee members
please see pB2-85

The Committee membearshio is strengthened by Arnc Kitts
and wWilhelmn van Zyl who are also members of the Risk
Committee. Strengthening the linkages and collaberation
between the Committee and the Risk Committee has been
an area of focus during the yvear. At each meeting, the
Committee is provided with a verbal update on the Risk
Cormmittee matters as well as there being a standard report
on the agenda on ‘Investmeant and Counterparty Risk’.

The Chair of the Committee reports to subseguent mesatings
of the Board on key areas of focus. The Board also receives
a copy of the minutes of each Committee meeting.

Responsibilities of the Committee

The Board of the Company has established the Committee
to oversaa the managemeant of all aspects of the operation
of PIC’'s investment portfolios, PIC's new business and
reinsurance ongination, and the integration of ESG risk into 1ts
investrment decision-making process. In accordance with its
terms of reference, the Board has delegated to the Committes
responsibility for overseeing the following key areas:

Strategic matters
s Reviewing ond approving the Investment Policy.
« Reviewing any specific major investment strategy proposal.
e Reviewing and approving the Origination and
Reinsurance stratepgy.

Transaction and deals

s Approving entry into significant new crigination
transactions and the supporting asset strategy.

s Reviewinginvestment arrangements resulting in sigruficant
contracts or their termination.

QOversight, monitoring and controls

* Reviewingd the overall performance, management and
optimisation of the investment portfolio.

e Monitoring ESG risks and their impact on asset holdings.

+ Reviewing the disposition and performance of the
investment portfolio.

Governance

s The Committee reviews its terms of reference annually
and recommends these to the Board for approval.

s The Committee also has a planned cycle of activities to
ensure that it has addressed its responsibilities throughout
the financial year, The cycle is updated annually.
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Activities during the year

During the financial year, the Committee held five meetings,
four of which were scheduled meetings and one was an

ad hoc meeting. The Committee members also attended
training sessions on ESG, climate change, inflation impact
on the Group’s portfolio and deegp dive on the Diversified
Capital Fund {"DCF").

The Committee receives the following regutar reports at
cach meeating: Chief Invastrment Officer's Report, Chief
Origination Officer’'s Report, Chief Actuary’s Report, Capital
Planhing and Hedding Update, updates on projects,
Investment Breaches and a report on Investrment and
Counterparty Risk. In addition to these regular reports,

this year the Committee considered the matters below:

» Approved the implementation of the Strategic Asset

Allocation as required by the PRAs Prudent Person Principles.

Reviewed the value metrics for assessing pricing decisions
for new business.

Raviewed DCF performance estimates, activity and
pipelne, and the DCF new business allocation

Reviewed the andlysis of pricing assumption and how

these comparad with the investment cutcomes, including

pricing atllowances versus reinsurance fees,

« Reviewed ratings migration within the investmant portfolio
and any downgrades.

s Recornmeanded to the Board for approval that PIC

should commit to Net Zero. The Committee waos also

supportive towards the long-term decarbonisation of the

investment portfolio.

Received regular reports from the Capital Planning and
Hedging Committee, and reviewed the hedging strategy,
exposures and market developments of macro-
environmental factors that could impact the Group.

Moanitored and, where necessary, provided

challenge on ongoing projects and initiatives such as
enhancemants to investment data managerment and
asset origination capabilities.

Considered the annual review of PIC’s iability-matching
external manaders against each mandate and the service
provided to the Group.

Financial Statements pi2s-172

Performance evaluation

The Committee conducted an evaluation of its performance
dlongside the overall Board evaluation process. The review
was carried out internally, with each Committee member
and regular ottendees asked to complete a guestionnaire

The mermbers of the Committee are comfortable with the
information flow between the Committee and the Board and
other Committees, and are also satisfied that there is o good
level of expertise amongst Committee members, and that
they have the right information to make informed deaisions.

The performance evaluation highlighted additional training
topics that would be useful to the Committee and these will
be added to the 2022 {raining procgramme.

Areas of focus for 2022

The Committee will continue to focus on the assessment
of ESG factors in mvestment decisions, as well as the
technology to enhance investment data management
and asset origination capabilities.
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Nomination Committee report

Jon Aisbitt Chair of the Nomination Committee

During the year, the Committee has been
focused on addressing Board diversity,

not only in terms of increasing the female
representation on the Board, but also
increasing social and ethnic backgrounds.”

During the year, the Nomination Commitlee (the
“Cormmittee”] has been focused on addrassing Board
diversity, not only in terms of increasing the female
representation on the Board, but also increasing social and
ethnic backgrounds. As part of our annuol review of the
Board Diversity Policy, we discussed the importance of the
Policy, and our achievement against our diversity targets,
and we also set ourselves a new target that atleast five
Directors must meet the wider diversity criteria, of whom
at least three should be female. We remain committed to
ensuring that ocur poo! of potential candidates includes at
least 50% female representation and a variety of social and
ethnic backgrounds.

wWe hove glso continued to focus on Board composition
and succeassion planning. The Committee spent considerable
time discussing the balance of characteristics, experience
and attributes required for future Board members and,
taking into account feedback from last year's externally
faciltated Board effectiveness review, we identified and
recommended to the PIC Board the appointment of Sally
Brideeland, who joinad as an INED from 28 January 2021,
Sally has a wealth of experience from a long and varied
career As an actudry, adviser and expert in pensicns and
irvestrments. In addition, the Committee recommended to
the Board for approval the appointment of Jake Blair from
7 June 2027 onto the PICG and PIC Boards as a shareholder
nominated Director on behalf of HPS Investment Partners.
Jake has extensive investment experience. More recently,
Julia Goh was appointed from 1 October 2021 onto the PICG
and PIC Boards as an INED. Julia has significant senior
front-office operational experience within the financial
services industry at managing director and executive level,
Her previous experience will be highly valuable to the Group
and will complement the existing skill set on the Boord,

wWe also refreshed the membership of the Risk and Audit
Committees when Sally succeeded Steve Sarjant as Chair
of the Risk Cornmittee and alsc became a member of the
Audit Committee

As part of our succession plans for the Chief Financial
Officer, we undertook a comprehensive internal and
external search for Rob Sewell’s successor. The Committee
recommended to the Board thot Dom Veney succaeds

Rob as Chief Financial Officer. Dom joined the Group in 2018
as Chief Actuary and nas over 25 yaars’ experience in the
UK life insurance industry, including as a partner at PwC.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank Rob for his
contribution to tha Group over the last 13 years and | wish
him every success for his ratirement

Our focus on a sufficient pipeline of talent remained
proader than the Board and its Committees, We focused
an succession plans for Executive Directors, semor
management, NEDs, SID, CEC and the Charrman of the
Baoard. Where possible, we are committed to developing
talent internaily for succession roles

Jon Aisbitt
Chair of the Nomination Committee
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Committee members

The membership of the Committee at the date of this report
together with the attendance record for the year ended

31 December 2021is set out n the table on page 106,

Other regular attendees at Committee meetings during 2021
included: CEO and Chief People Officer.

Members, of the Committae are uppoinled by the Board,
upon the recommendation of the Noemination Committee
and in consultation with the Chair of the Committee. Other
than the planned succession of Josua Malharbe following
Eloy Michotte's retirerment, there were no further changes to
the Committee membership during the year. However, the
Committee membership was refreshed on 1 January 2022
with Judith Eden and Peter Rutland stepping down and
Stuart King becoming a Committee member.

In 2021 the Committee did not have an independent majority
as required by the provisions of the Code. it comprised the
Chairman of the Baard and five NEDS two of wham are
independent pursuant to the Code and who the Group
considers ta be free of any relationship that would impact
their impartiality in carrying out their responsibilities The
remaining three NEDs are shareholder norminated and their
membership allows these shareholders to safeguard and
have oversight of the sustainable growth of the Group
thraush Board appointments.

Far more information on the Committee members
please see p82-85

The Chair of the Commitiee reports to subsequent meetings
of the Board on the key areas of focus.

Responsihilities of the Committee

The Board of the Company has established the Coemmittee
to ensure that there s strong, responsible leadership at

the head of the Company. The Committee ensures that
appropriate plans are in place for orderly succession to both
Board and senior management positions. In accordance
with its terms of reference, the Board has delegated to the
Committee responsibility for overseeing the following

key dreds:

79124 financial Statements p125-172

Board composition and succession planning

s Developing robust succession plans for Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directars, senior management,
CEQ and Chairman of the Board.

Ensuning theara is a sufficient pipeline of talent to achieve
the Group's stratedy and risk appetitc.

» Reviewing annually the succession of senior management

» Recormmmending to the Board the appointment ar removal
of senior managers.

Evaluating the balance of skill, knowledge, experience and
diversity on the Board.

Ensuring that arrangements are in place for a formal
induction for new appointees to the Board and identifying
ohgoing training needs.

Continually reviewing the strategic 1ssues facing the Group
and requesting that any relevant training is provided to
the Board.

Non-Executive Directors
» Raocommending to the Board the oppointrment of any INED,
including the 51D and NEDs.

s Recornmending to the Board the re-appointment of any
NED at the conclusion of their specified term and having
regard to their performance and ability to contribute
effactively to the Board and Committees.

e Reviewing annually the time commitment reguired by
the NEDs.

s Approving the job descriptions for NEDs,

Board evaluation

« Overseeind the Boord evaluation process by which the
Board, its Committees and individual Directors assess
their effectiveness.

» Reviewing the results of the Baard evaluction process
that relate to the composition of the Board.

Governance
s Reviewind annually the Board Diversity Policy and
recommending to the Board for approvat.

s Reviewing annually the Fit and Proper Persons Policy
for approval.

Annually reviewing the composition of Board Committees
to best utilise the experience and knowledge of ail Directors.

» The Committee reviews its terms of reference annually
ond recommends these to the Board for anproval.

» The Committee alse has a planned cycle of activities to
ensure that if has addressed its respansibifities throughout
the financial year. The cycle is updated annually.
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Nomination Committee report continued

Board composition as at 31 December 2021
The PICG Board of Directars consists af 13 Directors, and the
PIC Bourd consists of 14 Directors.

Gender diversity
PiC

PICG

Bl Women
# Men

4 =28B.6%
10=71.4%

| Women
¥ Men

3=231%
10=769%

Non-Executive Director tenure
PIC PICG

W0 -3years 5 WO-3years 5
W 3-6years ® 3 -6 years 4
M 6 -9years 3 HEM6-9vyears 3

Activities during the year

During the financial year, the Committee held six scheduled
meetings and two ad hoc meetings. The Committes
members also attended Board training sessions on ESG,
Diversified Capital Funds and inflation.

Luring the year the Committee considers the matters below.

Board composition and succession planning

* Discussed the composition of the Board and considered
the orderly succession of current INEDs and the <kills,
knowledge, experience, diversity and attributes required
of future INEDSs

» Discussed Julia Goh's candidacy and recammended
Julia to the Board for appaointment as an INED.

e Discussed loke Blair's candidacy as a shareholder
nomunated Director on behalf of HPS Investment Partners
and recommended Jake to the Board for approval.

Reviewed the Board tenure of NEDs and recormmended
to the Board for approval that Jérdme Mourgue DAlpue,
Stuart King, Arno Kitts and Judith Eden’s contracts are
extended for a further three years.

* Set new Board diversity targets: 1) at least five Directors
should meet the diversity criteria as descriced in the Board
Diversity Policy, of whom at least three should be female
representdtives on the PIC and PICG Board over time
where that 1s consistent with other skilis and diversity
reqguirements, and 2) to continue to develop ¢ pool of
potential Board candidates with at least 50% of potential
candidates being female, which would include candidates
without NED experience as well as considering candidates
from a variety of ethnic backgrounds.

Non-Executive Directors

+ Considered the independence of each NED, taking into
account any circumstancas that are likely to impair therr
independence. The Committee concluded that all NEDs
were deemed independeant.

Reviewed the time commitments required by the NEDs,

+ Reviewed ongaing training requirements of NEDs.

Governance
¢ Recommended the Board Diversity Policy to the Board
for approval.

» Recommended the Gender Pay Gop Results 1o the Boord
for approval,

* Approved the Fit and Proper Persons Policy.

Performance evaluation

The Committee conducted an evaluation of its perfarmance
alongside the overall Board evaluation process. The review
was carried aut internally, with each Committes member
and regular attendees asked to complete a questionnaira.

The members of the Committee are happy with the
information flow between the Committee and the Board
and other Committees and are also satisfied that there s
a pood level of expertise amongst Committee members
and that they have the right information to make
informed decisions,

The performance evaiuation highlighted that splitting the
Nomination and Remuneration Cormmitteas would allow
the Nomination Committee’s purpose (o be more

clearly defined.

Areas of focus for 2022

The Cornmittee will continue to focus on Increasing diversity
on the Board and within senicr management and will agree
additional diversity targets. The Committee will also focus
an succassion planning aeross the Graup and at the Board

108 Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited  Annual Report and Accounts 2021



Strategic Report p01-78

Remuneration Committee report

Financigt Statements p125-172

Judith Eden Chair of the Remuneration Committee

The Committee’s focus this year has

been on benchmarking the remuneration
structure to listed peers and regulatory
expectations, and finalising the appropriate
structure in order to incentivise and reward
long-term performance.”

| am pleased to present the Remuneration Committee report
for the year ended 31 December 2021

It has been a challenging vear for many of us and the
Remuneration Committee's (the "Committee") deliberations
have been extensive, to ensure that colleagues are
remunerated in an appropriate way for the ocutstanding
work that they have done in dealing with the ongoing
impacts of the Covid-19 pandemic and ensuring the right
decisions are taken for the long-term benefits of

our pelicyholders,

With this in mind, the Committee reviewed remuneration
packages for senior management including for the newly
appointed CFO, and made recommendations to the Board
for approval.

Much of the Committee’s focus this yvear has been on
benchmarking the remuneration structure tolisted peers
and regulatory expectations; and finalising the appropriate
structure to incentivise and reward long-term performance
and discourage excessive risk taking. This year was
particularly key as g previous long term incentive plan

{the Growth Plan) for certain senior executivaes vested as

at December 2020. We have been assisted by Deloitte with
this review and, as a result, the Committee recommended
to the Board a new Long Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP") as well
as rigorous annual bonus scorecards covering financial and
non-financial measures. These steps are designed to link pay
to company performance more closely.

The Committee also carefully considered the valuation
of the Group for share based incentive awards, exercise
and liquidity purposes. This 1s an important exercise and
wea souaht Input from independent advisors to support
our recommendations to the Board. Share ownership is
something we view as important for engagement and
alishmeant of our employees with our long-term strategy.

We have also reviewed and approved various policies
within the Committee’s remit to ensure these continue ta be
updated for legislative and regulatory changes and remain
reflective of the current practices within the Group. The
Committee also made proposals 1o the Board inrespect

of the Board remuneration. Additionally, we have closely
monitored rmanagement information on headcount and
turnaver of staff, capacity and capability, and diversity and
inclusion initiatives. These topics remain very important as
the Group continues to grow and evaolve.

The Committee also rebalanced its membership to make

progress towards compliance wilh the Code; from January
2022 the Committee has ¢ majority of independent memizers.

Judith Eden
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
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Remuneration Committee report continued

Committee membership

The membership of the Committee at the date of this report
together with the attendance record far the year ended

31 December 2021 are set out on page 109,

Members of the Committee are appamnted by the Board,
upon the recommendation of the Nomination Committee
and in consultation with the Choir of the Commiltee.

During 2021 the Committee was not fully independent

as required by the Code, comprising three shareholder
nominated Directors and three INEDs. Having shareholder
nominated Directors on the Committes aliows these
shareholders to manitor and safeguard the sustainable
growth of the Group through remuneration oversight and
ensuring the remuneration is not encouraging excessive
risk taking but promates the long-term success of the
Group. The Committee decided 1o make progress towards
compliance with the Code ond rebalonced its membership;
from 1 January 2022 it 1s majority independent.

For more information on the Committee members
please sec p82-85%

Other regular attendees at Committee meetings during 2021
included: The Chief Exacutive and the Chief People Officer,
The Chief Risk Officer {the CRO) also attends periodically
to assist the Committee in determining whether the
Company has performed within its risk profile befora
making recemmendations relating to remuneration.

The Risk Committee’s input to bonus pool and material risk
tokers' performance is also sought. The Charrs of the Risk
Committee and Audit Committee are also invited to attend
specific meetings on relevant agenda items where change
to remuneration policy is considered, approval then takes
place at Board level,

The Chair of the Committee reports to subsequent meetings
of the Board on key areas of focus.

Responsibilities of the Committee

The Board of the Company has established a Remuneration
Committee which oversees the establishment and
implementation of a remuneration policy for employees and
directors, designed to sugport lohg-term business strategy
and values of the Group as a whale, as well as promate
effective risk management and comply with applicable legal
and regulotory requirements. To assist the Cormmitiee in
fulfiling its responsibilities, It regularly receives reports from
the Chief People Officer.

In accordance with its terms of reference, the Board has
delegated to the Committee responsibility for overseeing key
areas of responsibility which include the following:

Remuneration

s Recommending to the Board the Group's Remuneration
Policy including for all Solvency Il Identified Staff and
averseaing its implementatian.

Reviewing the ongoing approprictenass and relevance
of the Rermuneration Policy and other workforce policies
50 that they support the long-term stratesic goals of
the Group, they do not éncouragde excessive risk taking
and take account of the Group's values and standards,
alignment to culture and behaviouwral ospects as well
as shareholder interests,

« Determining the framework for the remuneration of the
Company's Chairman, NEDs and senior management.

s Approving the remuneration and share incentives of all
senior management and reviewing material risk takers’
safaries as part of the annual remuneration review.

Share schemes

s Reviewing the design of all share incentive plans for
approval by the Board and our largest shareholder, taking
advice from the Risk Committee and the CRO on risk
management and seeking input from the chair of the
Audit Committee.

« Determining the market walue of the Company and
racommending the valuation to the Board for approval
when determining the shore price in relotion to the Group's
share schemes and the senior management incentive plans.
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Governance
» The Committee reviews jts terms of reference annualiy
and recommends theses to the Board for approval.

e The Committee also has a planned cycle of activities ta
ensure that it has addressed its responsibilities throughout
the financial year The cycle is updated annually.

Advice to the Committee

During the year, the Committee was assisted in its
deliberctions on the management incentive programme

by Deloitte, and on the vajuation of the Group for vesting

of various Group share schemes ond management incentive
plans by PwC.

Activities during the year

During the financial year, the Committee held six scheduled
reetings and four ad hoc meetings. The Committee
members attended Board training sessions as described

on page 92 of the Corporate Governance report and aiso
received refevant training on the Long Term incentive Plans
from Deloitte.

Supporting our staff during the Covid-19 pandemic
The Covid-19 pondemic has had a devastating impact
across the world, and we were very mindful of the effect

it had or could have on cur staff, not only from a financial
perspective but from o general wellbeing point of view. We
have made a lot of effort as a Group to pricritise our staff's
well-being and have implementad various initictives. We
talked about these more in our Annual Report 2020. We did
not access UK Government support schemes and we have
not furloughed any of our employeess who have continued
to be remunerated in the usual fashion.

Remuneration

* Reviewed Board remunaration and made recommendations
to the Board. It ensured that levels of remuneration for the
Chairman and the NEDs reflect the time commitment and
responsibilities of their roles, NEDs do not receive any
share options or other performance-related elements
within their remuneraction,

* Carried out a review of the final annual remuneration
proposdls taking into account the Group's performance
including financial and hon-financial KPIs; and made
relevant recommendations to the Board. The review
coverad: overall pay increases, cash bonuses, Deferred
Bonwus Share Plans propoesal, a review of individuat
compensation for dll senior management and material
risk takers.,

Spent a considerable amount of time on the new
remuneration structure, which was implemented in 2027
Introduced aredesigned annual bonus scorecard for
financial, customer service and risk managemeant metrics,
which established clearer links between performance and
pay, and a new LTIP to incentivise long term performance
ard better desired behoviours

4 ° Financial Statements pl125-172

Share schemes
s Reviewed the grant of bonus share options, exercise and
liquidity events, and the 20211qunch of the SAYE scheme.

+ Held a number of discussions in relatoen to the share
valuation for the vesting of various Group sharc schames,
including the Growth Plan for senior management, and
recommended a level to the Board for approval.

Governance and other matters
s Reviewed the results of the gender pay gap analysis and
the associated reporting.

Reviewed policies within the Committee’s remit, namely
the Remunearation Policy, the Rermuneration Policy
Staterment, malus and clawback clauses, and the NEDs'

* Expense Policy, and made relevont recommendations
1o the Board for approval.

Reviewed and approved the Committes’s terms of
reference and an annual programme

« Received reports from the Chief People Officer, which
particularly focused in 2027 on headcount and turnover
of staff, capacity and capability, and diversity and
inclusion initiatives. The Committee considers these
topics of particular importance given the Group's srowth.
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Remuneration Committee report continued

Remuneration Policy

The Group's Remuneration Policy is designed to enable the Group to recrutt, retain and motivate employees of the
appropriate calibre to delver its stratedy over the long term. The policy is intended to he consistent with and promote sound
and effective risk management and to ensure that it doas not encourage risk taking that exceeds the tolerated risk appetite
of the Company

A description of the different remuneration elernents for 2021 1s set out below

Base salary Salaries are reviewed annually and are set to be market competitive, toking into account the
individual's skills, 0s well as the size and scope of their role and that of the Group.

Salaries are set at such a level that emnployees are not overly dependent on variable pay and
to allow the Group to operate a fully flexible bonus policy.

Benefits The foliowing benefits are offered to all permanent emplovees private health cover; annual travel
insurance; interest-frea loans (up to £10,000) for seqson tickets; Cycle to Work scherms and
participation in the SAYE scheme.

Pension All ernployees who meet the minimum criteria are automatically enrolled in the Stakeholder Pension
scheme. Employees who have regched their lifetime or annugl allowance limit for pensions for tax
DUrpeses May receive a cash alternative in lieu of the Group's contribution that otherwise would
have been made under the Stakeholder Pension arrangement.

Annual bonus The annual bonus plan provides participants with an oppartunity to receive o cash amount, subject
to performance measured inrespect of the relevant financial year. All employees are eligible to be
invited to participate in the plan Awards are based on the achievement of annual objectives
assessed against financal, customer service and nsk management measures

For material risk takers, individugl bonus payments are determined by the Remuneration
Committee based on areview of both financial and strategic measures and assessment of
individual performance over the year, including a review of individual performance by the CRO.

For Solvency Il staff In gssurance functions, at least 75% of the annual bonus award is based on the
achievement of objectives reloted to the individual's assurance function. The remaining 25% relates
to the performance of the Group. Awards for this population are subiect to o prevailing affordalkility
underpin, and no bonuses will be paid if overali financial performance is not sufficient to fund awards.

The CRO, with input from the Chair of the Risk Committee and the Chair of the Audit Committee,
assesses the parformance of the year against the Group's risk appetite and behaviours and
atutude to risk and compliance. If the performance has been achieved by exceading the risk
appetite of the Group, as stated and approved by the Board and the Board Risk Committee,
the bonus pool and/oer individual outcomes may be adjusted downwards, potentially 10 zero.
Performance against all of the above measures is assessed by the Remuneration Committes

in the round.

The bonus opportunity is expressed as o percentage of salary and depends on an individual's role
and responsibilities. The annual bonus camprises a cash elemeant and an award of nil cost options.
While the cash elemeant of the bonus is pdid upfront, for material risk takers atieast 40% of annual
bonuses js in the form of nil cost options which are subject to deferral over a three-year period using
the Deferred Bonus Share Plan {("DBSPT), as detailed below.

Deferred Bonus The DBSP seeks to align the long-term interests of the Group for all senior management and other

Share Plan key individuals through bonus deferral The deferred element is awarded in the form of nil cost
aptions which vest after three years. For Solvency Il ldentified Staff, a minimum of 40% of any bonus
award I1s defarred.

Long Term Selected senior individuals are invited, at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee, to receive
Incentive Plan LTIP share awards. These individuals are those tasked with delivering PIC’s long-term strategic goals
and to generate [ond-term shareholder value

LTIP awards vest after a three-year penod, subject 1o the achievement of performance conditions,
and a solvency and risk management underpin. Awards 1o the Executive Committee members
would also have a further retention period of Up o two years,

112 Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited  Annual Report and Accounts 2024



Strategic Report pC1-78 Financial Statements p125-172

Maius, clawback and Any benus including annual bonus, deferred bonus share plans and the LTIP can be adjusted by
in-year adjustment the Remuneration Committee by opplying malus, clawback and in-year adjustment provisions
as determined in therules.

This includes, but is not limited to
« an event of significant financial lesses or material misstaternent of the accounts;
s materigl failure of risk managemeant.

discovery of a material error in relation to the assessment of annual perfarmance on which an
award was based; or

reascnable evidence of any act or omission by the participant which has contributed to material
losses or serious reputational damage to the Group or any business areg; or has amounted to
sarious misconduct, fraud or misstatemeant,

Performance evaluation

An internal avaluation of the Board and its Committees was carried out during 2021, Each Committee member and
executives who regutarly attend meetings completed @ tailored online survey. No major concerns were highlighted, and
positive comments were made on the improving quality of papers. It was noted that consideration should be given to
making progress tawards full compliance with the Code and adjusting the Committee’s membership so that the Committee
is maojority independent. This recommendation has been adopted.

Areas of focus for 2022

The Committee’s focus will be primarily to review the measures for the LTIP and annual bonus and to expand the application
of the scorecard across the Group. Tha Committee will undertake i review and benchmarking of wider benefits offered to
amployees to maintain a total reward appreach to employee reward, and to continue to focus on the link between pay and
performance {financial and non-financial), including the continued improvement of the risk adjustment framework.
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Risk Committee report

Sally Bridgeland Chair of the Risk Committee

A key focus for the Committee throughout
the year has been to mitigate the
challenges to the Group arising from the
aftermath of the Covid-19 impact.”

As the new Chair of the Risk Cormmittee, | am pleased to
present the Risk Committee {the "Committee”} report for
the yeaor ended 31 Decernber 2021 | would like to thank
Steve Sarjant for the comprehensive handover | received,
and | wish him every success during his retirement.

A key focus for the Committee throughout the year hos

been to monitor the Group’s solvency, capital, and liguidity.
wWe have spent a considerable amount of time on the
oversight of the development of the credit module and other
refinements to the internal model. The Committee attendad
a technical teach-in, received regular updates and provided
effective chollenge before the changes were proposead to
the Board for approval

The Committee has continuad to oversee manadement’s
work to mitigate the challenges to the Group orising from
Cowvid-19 and the continued operationol risks ond maorket
volatility. The Committee providad input to the work to
incorporate post Covid-1% scenarios into the Group’s
financial and operational stress and scendrio testing, which
has been used to assist the Committee and management in
managing areas of vulnerabllity, \dentification and oversight
of emerging risks remained a priority and the Commiittee
attended an externally facilitated training session to develop
its approach.

The Committee olso assisted the Remuneration Committee
with regard to their recommendation to the Board on the
remunerction process, The Committee ensured that risk
mandagement wds properly considered in the setting of
performance objectives within the incentive structure and
properly taken into account in the rermuneration palicy

and awards.

Further enhancernents have been made to the Group's
Risk Appetite Framewark In arder to ensure it remdins

fit for purpose in line with the Group’s planned growth.

The Committee reviewed updates to the risk appetite
statements and to prirmary and secondary risk appetite
metrics, and recommended nacessary changes to the
Baard for approval. This work will continue in 2022 to further
embed the Group's use of risk appetites in governance

and decision-making.

Additional information on PIC's approach to Risk
Management can be found on pages 70 to 77

Sally Bridgeland
Chair of the Risk Committee
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Committee membership

The membership of the Committaes at the date of this report
together with the attendance record for the year ended

31 December 202115 set out In the table on page 114,

Other regular attendees at Committee meetings during 2021
included: Chairman of the Board, CEQ, CFO, CRO, Chief
Investrment Officer, Gencral Counsel, Chief Actuary, Actuarial
Function Holder and Heod of Internal Audit.

Members of the Cornmittee are appcinted by the Board,
upon the recommendation of the Nomination Committee
and in consultation with the Chair of the Committes. Other
than the planned succession of Sally Bridgeland becoming
Comimittee Chair following Steve Sarjant's retirement, there
weare no further changes to the Committee membearship
during the year.

Sally attended two meetings before joining the Committee
as a member and also received o comprehensive handover
from Steve Sarjant prior ta becoming Committea Chair.
During the year, the Committee attended deep dive training
sessions on kaey emerding risks that the Group faces, one

of which was externally facilitated by Storm Guidance.

In addition, and as part of the credit model development
project, PwC attended two scheduled Committee meetings,
as well as the Committee tachnicaol teach-in on the credit
model. Deloitte also attended one Committee meaeting as
part of the project.

The Committee's membership comprises a majority of INEDs,
whao are regarded as independent pursuant to the Code

and who the Group considers to be free of any relationship
that would impact their impartiality in carrying out

their responsibilities.

For mere information on the Committee members
nolecse see p82-85

The Committee membership is strengthened by Roger
Marshall who is Chair of the Audit Committee as well as
Stuart King's and Sally Bridgeland’s membership of the
Audit Comrnittee, The Committee is alsc well linked to the
Investment and Qnigination Committee (“10C*) through the
membership of Armo Kitts whe is the Chair of the 10C, as well
as Wilhelm Van Zyl's I0C membership. Strengthening the
inkages and collaboration between the Committee and
the IOC has been an areo of focus during the year. At each
meeting, the Committee is provided with a verbal update
on 10C and Audit Committee matters.

The Chair of the Committee reports to meetings of the Board
on key areas of focus. The Board also receives a copy of the
minutes of each Committee meeting

Financial $tatements p125-172

Responsibilities of the Committee

The Board of the Company has astablished the Committee
to provide oversioht and advice to the Board an the current
and future risk exposure of the Group including oversight of
the future rsk strategy; determination of risk appetite and
tolerance; and internal controls required to manade risk and
the effectiveness of the risk management framework, in
conjunction with the Audit Committee. In accordance

wilh lhe Committee's terms of reference, the Board has
delepated responsibility for the Tollowing key areas:

Risk Strategy, Appetite and Policy

« Reviewing and recommending to the Board for approval,
the design and implementation of the Risk Management
Framework and measurament strategies

+ Reviewing the Risk Appetite and Tolerance Schedule to
ensure they remain appropriate and evolve with the
changing external environment.

* Reviewing the Integrated Assurance Repart to help
ensure that the systems of risk management and internal
controls are appropriate, as well as the limits set for
various counterparties.

+« Reviewing the Own Funds and Solvency Assessment
("ORSA") before approval by the Board.

Risk Oversight and Monitoring

« Reviewing the Group’s overall risk identification,
assessment and management of processes that inform
the Board's decision making.

s Reviewing the Internal Model Validation Report and
Internal Model Consolidation Annual Report to make
a recommendation to the Board.

Overseeing the Risk Appetite Framework and
medasurement strategies for the Group, and the
procedures for monitaring the adeguacy and
effectiveness of those processes.

Raviewing the Risk Register to ensure that all quantificble
risks are reflected in the Internal Model

Reviewing the emerging risks which can potentially affect
the Group but ot the same time bring opportunities, and
this is assessed.

Governance

s Reviewing the Risk Function and Actuarial Function
Mandate to ensure that the Risk Function has adeguate
resources and appropriate dccess to inforrmation.

« Reviewing its terms of reference annually and
recommends these to the Soard for approval

s Ensuring that its plannad cycle of activities addrass
its responsibilities throughout the financial year.
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Risk Committee report continued

Activities during the year

Duting the financial year, the Committee held nine mesatings,
five of which were schedulaed meetings, two were ad hoc
meetings and two were training sessions, Each year, the
Committee carries out d robust assessment of the Group's
risks, the Group's management of these risks and its internal
controls, making appropriate recommendations to the
Board. This year, the Committee reported to the Board that
it was happy with the procedures in place to monitor and
manage risk and that the internal controls in place are fit
for purpose.

The Committee receives the following regular reports

at egch meeting: CRO Business Overview (including the
Risk Appetite Dashboard, Enterprise Risk Dashiboard and

a Risk Incident Report); Integrated Assurance Report,
Counterparties Report and ¢ Regulatory update. In addition
to these regular reports, this yvear the Committee:

Risk Strategy, Appetite and Policy
» Reviewed PIC's capital Risk Appetite Fromework and made
recommendations to the Baard.

Received an overview of emerging risks and undertook
a deep dive training session on new emerging risks that the
Group could face,

Reviewed stress and scenario testing including economic,
operational and conduct risk scenarios.

Reviewed the ORSA macro-economic scenario testing
and approved the ORSA stress and scenario testing plan.

Reviewed the incorporation of Covid-19 scenarios
into the Group's financial and operational stress and
scenario testing,

Recammended to the Board the Resolution and
Recovery Plan.

Reviewed risk incidents to see if there were any systermic
Issues which could compromise the integrity of the risk
management systerns and internal contrals. |t established
that there were no such issue and the integrity of those
systerns hos not been compromised.

Risk Oversight and Monitoring
* Reviewed the Internal Model Validation Report and the
Internal Model Consalidagted Annual Report

Reviewed and provided challenge to the updates to the
Internal Model Change Policy.

L]

Approved the calibration changes to the Internal Model
Validation Activities.

Reviewed the internal Madel drift analysis te ensure PIC's
Internal Model does not weaken over time or no longer
reflects the risks to which FIC is exposed.

Reviewed the Actuarial Function’s oginion on the 2021
Underwriting Palicy.

Pravided oversight and challenge of the development
work of the credit module and other refinements to the
internal model.

Received regular updates on PIC's materiol outsourcing
to counterparties.

Reviewed the Actuarial Function's opinion on the
adeguacy of the 2021 rainsurance arrangemeants
of PIC's nsurance undertaking,

Governance

« Reviewed the perfarmance af the Risk Function and
the CRO and was satisfied that hoth the CRO and the
Risk function continue to operate effectively and in
accordance with the Risk Function Mandate.

s Reviewed the Comnuttee’s terms of reference and
recornmended them to the Board.

« Approved the Risk Function Mandate, Actuarial Function
Mandate and various pohcies which are within the
Committee's remit and are subject to annual review

Performance evaluation

The Committee conductad an evaluation of its
performance alongside the overall Board evaluation
process. Thareview was carried out internally, with each
Committee member and regular attendees asked to
compiete a tailored quastionnaire.

The members of the Committee are happy with the
information flow between the Committee and the Board
and other Committees and are also satisfied that there is
d good level of expertise amongst Committee members.
The meeting times can be stretched with the number of
iterns on the agenda and the remit of the Committee will
be assassed during 2022

The performance evaluation highlighted additional training
topics that would be useful to the Committee and these will
be added to the 2022 annuagl cycle.

Areas of focus for 2022

The Committee will continue to focus on the development
of the credit module of the Group's internal model, as well
as further development of risk appetite metrics, stress
and scenario testing, and the increasing risks assaciated
with climate change.

Other disclosures

Interaction with the Chief Risk Officer: The Chair of the
Committea meets individually with the CRO batween formal
Committee meetings These meetings allow for an open
discussion for any mattears relating to issues arising from

the Committee’s formal discussions.

During the year, the Committee aiso held three private
members-only meetings, which the CRC and Chairman
of the Board attended.

Risk function resourcihg: The Committee has sought and
receved assurance that the Risk Function is adeguately
resourced to perform its function effectively. The
Committee's discussions included an overview of the
Risk Function's Self-Assessment.

Interaction with regulators: The Chair of the Committee
meets periodically with the Group's regulators, the PRA,
as well as the FCA
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Environmental, Social and Governance Committee report
Jon Aisbitt Chair of the Environmental, Social and

Governance Committee

The Committee’s priorities for 2022 will
be to embed climate change risk within
all aspects of the business, as well as
its investment portfolio.”

In December 2021 the Group established an ESG Committee
which will meet quarterly to consider and oversee all ESG
related matters. 1t is chaired by Jon Aisbitt and comprises

of the Chairs of the Board Committees. The purpose of the
Committee is to ensure that the Board and its Committecs
provide oversight of the Group's ESG strategy and activities,
and that the Group complies with legal and regulatory
requirements in respect of ESG, enabling the Group to make
tha right decisions for the long-term benefits of our policyholders.

The Chair of the Committes reports to subseguent meetings
of the Board on key areas of focus. The Board also receives
a copy of the minutes of each Committee meeting.

Committee membership

The membership of the ESG Committee (the “Committee”)
at the date of this report together with the attendance
record for the year end 31 December 202115 set out in the
table below.

Other regular attendees at Committee meetings: Chief

Investment Officer, Chief Risk Officer, General Counsel,
Head of Responsible Investing, and Head of Regulatory
Risk Affairs.

Responsibilities of the Committee
The Board has delegated to the Committee the responsibility
for overseeind the following key areas:

Strategy, policy and disclosures

s Ensuring the Group emhbeads the risks from ESG and climate
change considerations in its governance arrangements,
financial risk management practice investment processes,
and overall strategy.

« Overseeing the establishment of a strong foundation for
the evolution of ESG and climate change considerations
in light of the Group's Net Zero commitment.

Ensuring that the Group monitors and reviews current

ond emerging ESG trends, relevant international standards
and legistative requirements, to enable the Group to set
appropriate strategic goals and associated targets related
to ESG matters.

Ensuring that the information the Group provides in
respect of ESG toits stakeholders is clear, transparent
and approgriate,

» The Committee will work closely with the Board and
its other Cormmittees to oversee the identification and
mitigation of risks relating to ESG, as well as opportunities
related to ESG matters.

17



Environmental, Social and Governance Committee report

continued

Governance
« The Cormmittee reviews its terms of reference annually
and recommends thesea to the Board for approval.

*» The Committee also has a planned cycle of activities to
ensure thot it has addressed 1ts responsibilities throughout
the financiat year, Tha cycle is updated annually.

Activities during the year

At its first meeting in December 2021, the Committee raceived
reports from the Investrments and Risk functions. In addition
to these, the Committee discussed the significant velume of
work undertaken during the year in respect of ESG to improve
the Group’s strategic positioning, Including the investment
portfolic which had been rated as comprising over 85% low
risk category assets and under 3% high or severe risk assets
During the year, extensive work had been carred out to
improve the modelling capability of the group in respact of
ESG and climate change scenarios. A Group-wide quarterly
ESG forum had also been estoblished to drive collaboration

across alt functions to embzed ESG into the Group's operations.

The Committee also discussed the regulatory environment,
including the cutcomes and publicatians from COP26, noting
the challenges that lay ahead for the Group and the sector
ds o whole, The Committee stressed the importance of

the Group's culture and purpose as key proponents of

a successful ESG opproach, with o strong and consistent
tone from the Board and senior management which
considers the social consequences of the shift to a Net

Zerc economy.

18 Pension Insurance Corporation Graup Limited Al

Areas of focus for 2022

The Committee's priorities for 2022 will be to embed
climate change risk within all aspects of the business,

as well as its investment portfolio, and to articulate the
Croup's Met Zaro transition strategy in line with the AB!
and Net Zero Asset Owner Allance, QOn 11 February 2022,
the Committee approved the Group’s Task Force

on Climate Related Financial Disclosures ("TCFD”) report.
During the year it will also be adopting o Stewardshin
Policy and making an application to become a signatory
to the Stewardship Cede. The Committee will also
receive regular training on ESG matters as part of its
annual programme.
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Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance Statement

The Board and the executive management are committed to the principles ond high standards of the Corperate Governance
Code as they believe these underpin the success of the Company and are for the benefit of its shareholders and stakeholders,
including pelicyhelders. For this reason, the Company applies all the principles of the 2018 Corporate Governance Code.

In addition, the Group's subsidiary, Pension insurance Corparation ple, has isted securities inissue and complies with the
applicable sections DTR71 and DTR7 2 of the FCA Handbook, Further information on the Company’s governing body and its
Committees is included in the Corporate Governance report on pages 80 to 118.

PICG Directors und their interests
The Directors who served during the period and up to the date of the approval of these financial statements were:

Name Position Appointed/Residned

Jon Aisbitt Chairman

Roger Marshall Senior Independent Director

Tracy Blackwsl| Chief Executive

Jake Blair Director Appointed 7 June 2021
Judith Eden Director

Tirm Gallico Director

Julia Goh Director Appointed 1 October 2021
Stuart King Director

Arno Kitts Director

Josua Malherbe Director

Jeréme Mourgue D'Algue Director

Mark Stephen Director

Wilhelm Van Zyi Director

One Director who held office during the financial year is a beneficiary of the Company's share-based award schemes,
details of which are given In Note 7 to the financial statements, This Director received 892,472 ordinary shares of the
Company upon vesting of certain schemes during the year {(2020: one Director received a total of 497,250 ardinary shares).

Share capital and major shareholders
Details of the Company’s share capital, ncluding changes during the year in the 1ssued share capital and details of the rights
attaching to the Company’s ordinary shares, are set out in Note 18 to the financial statements. The fellowing are the major

shareholders of PICG as at 31 Decermnber 2027
No of ordinary shares % of the issue ardinary

held as at share capitat as at

31 December 2021 31 December 2021

Reinet PC Investments (Jersey) Limited on behalf of Reinet Investments S.C A 658,792,700 49.37
Luxinva S.A. on behalf of ADIA 24219215 1815
Blue Grass Holdings Limited on behalf of CVC 231,825,260 1737
MP 2019 K2 Aggregator, L.P. on behalf of HPS 136,508,422 10.23

Own shares
AT 31 December 2027, 5,261,772 ordinary shares of the Company were held in an Employee Benefit Trust {2020: 7,843,544),
in accordance with the accounting nolicy in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Dividends
The Directors of the Company do not recommend ¢ dividend for the year (2020, nil).

Statement on the Company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

Information on how the Directors have had regard to the need to foster effective business relationships with suppliers,
customers and others, including detait on how they have discharged their duty under 5172 of the Cormpanies Act 2006 is
included in the Strategic Report on pages 40 to 43.

Any payments to suppliers are made through the service company PSC and the required disclosures on policy and practice
on payment of creditors are included in the PSC Annual Report and Accounts.
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Directors’ Report continued

Political contributions
The Caompany made no politicol contributions during the yeor (2020: £nil)

Qualifying third party indemnities

The Articles of Association of the Company provide for the Directors and officers of the Company to be indemnified

in respect of ligbilities incurred as a result of thelr office The Company also provides certain forms of protection for its
Directors and senicr monagers of companies within the Group against personal financial exposure that they may incur
in their capacity as such. During the yedr and at the time the Directors’ Report was approved under section 234 of the
Companies Act 2006, this protection included qualifying third party indemnity provisions {as defined under section 234
of the Companies Act 2008) in force for the benefit of the Company's Directors.

Going concern

After making enquiries, including specific consideration of regulatory solvency, the Directors have a reasonable expectation
that the Cormpany has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason,
they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Financial instruments
The information relating to the Company's financial instruments is included in Note 11 to the financial statements

Future developments
The information that fulfils the reporting reguirements relating to the likely future developrmeants in the business of the
Company (s included in the Strategic Report, which is separate to this Directors’ Report,

Material contracts
During the year, PSC, a UK imited company that is an indirect subsidiary of Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited,
continued to provide management, staff, IT and office services to the Group under a defined service agreement.

Internal controls and risk management system

The Board has overdll responsibility for the systern of risk management and internal controls, and for reviewing its effectiveness,
The Group has a risk rnanagement and internal controls system in place which is designed to manage end reduce rather than
eliminate the risk of failing to achieve businass objectives. It can only provide the Board with reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance aganst material misstatement or loss. The Board has delegated responsibility to the Audit Committee and the

Risk Committee for monitoring this systern and reporting on its effectiveness to the Board, Eoch year, the Board approves

an integrated assurance plan which is intended to provide the Board with assurance that the internal controls and risk
meanagement systers work effectively. The plan, which is effected by the Internal Audit, Compliance, Risk and Actuarial
functions within the Graup, is overseen by the Risk and Audit Committees as part of their delegated autherity from the Board.
The overlap in membership of those two Committess ensures that all areas of the systemn are adequately covered.

Finonaal reporting Respansiility

Delegated authority Ar established management structure cperates across the Group with clearly defined lavels of
responsibility and delegated authorities.

Financial reporting The Group has a robust system for reporting of the financial results to the Board. During the year,
monthly and quarterly financial results are produced, which include comparison to forecast and
prior year. The Boord, Audit Committee, Risk Committee and executive management review the
Group’s performance throughout the year and monitor the operation of budgdets and long-term
business plans. The reports ensure that variances are investigated and acted upon.

Internal controls, The Group has formatl written procedures and controls in operation which are desiened to facifitate
orocesses and effective and efficient business operation, robust financial reporting and complance with laws and
procedures regulations. Procedures, processes and controls are updated regularly to ensure they are effective

and in compliance with best practice. As part of the requirements of DTR 71.2 of the FCA Handbook
the Board, in line with the deiegated authority to the Audit Cammittee, spacifically monitors the
financial reporting process and the statutory audit of the annual financial statements through
reporting provided by mancgement and reporting received from the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee meets regularly with members of executive management and the internal and external
auditors to review the annual financigl information and internal control matiers, and 1o satisfy
themselves that the internal control systems are opearating effectively. The Audit Committee olso
reviews any follow-up actions to correct identified weaknesses. All Board members receive minutes
of the Audit Committee meetings.
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Financial reporting Responsibility
Internal Audit The Audit Committee oversees the Group’s Internal Audit function, which is managed by the Head of
assurance Internal Audit using a co-sourced model and has a direct reporting iine to the Audit Committee. The

Audit Committee approves an annual internal audit plan which is designed to review key areas of
risk. Repular updates on progress of the internal oudit plan ore provided to the Audit Committee by
the Head of Internal Audit, who is @ standing attendes at the Audit Cammittee’s meetings, Progress
reports include results of individual audits. The Head of Internal Audit provides an annual report and
opinion on the Gronpy's internnl enntrals, risk management, dovernance processes and culture,

The annual opinion is informed by the control attestations which require each Executive Committee
member to confirm compliance of their business areas with the Group's risk and control framewaork
and provides information to the Executive Commitiee, Audit Committee and the Board on
management's opinion on the application of the framework, risk management, control effectiveness,
monitoring and information and compliance with key palicies.

External audit The work of the External Auditor provides further indepandent assurance on the internal

assurance control environment, as described in 1ts reporting to the Audit Committee. Furthermore, the Audit
Committee reviews and monitors the effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the statutory
auditar and considers the relationship with the Group as part of its assessment, including provision
of hon-audit services.

Risk management The Board has established a risk management and compliance system which inciudes o process
framework (more for identifying, evaluating and managing the risks faced by the Group. The Risk Committee works
information is included  closely with the Audit Committee and provides oversight and advice to the Board with redard to
on pades 70 to 77) the Group’s current and likely risk exposures, risk tolerances and appetite, risk measurement, risk

management performance, and its risk policies, procedures and risk controls. All Board membears
raceive minutes of the Risk Committee meetings. Procedures are in place ta ensure the
employment, retention, training and development of suitably qualified staff to manage activities.

The Board has raviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal controls, including risk management, for the year ended
31 December 2021 and up to the date of signing of these financial statements and the Annual Report. It has not identified any
weaknesses sufficient to cause material misstatement or loss which requires disclosure in the financial statements.

Disclosure of information to auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware,
there is no relevant audit information of which the Group’s auditor is unaware; and each Director has taken all the steps
that ought to have bean taken as a Director to be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's
auditor is aware of that information.

Auditor
In accordance with section 487 of the Companigs Act 2006, the auditor will be deermed to be re-appointed and KPMG LLP
will therefora continue in office.

Employee engagement
The Company is committed to keeping employees well informed of the performance of PIC and this is achieved through
regular updates from the CEO and senior management.

PIC also operates an annual SAYE schame to encourage greater employee nvolvement. The scheme s available to all
employees are provides the opportunity to acguire the Company’s shares at a favourable price. Further information can
be found on page 56,

Diversity and inclusion

PIC's Diversity and Inclusion Policy is to promote a consistent and fair approach ta employment, and this stems from our
values and capability framewaerk. All of our training and learning and developrnent policies are in place for all employees
to access repardless of gender, race, oge or disabifity. PIC is committed to providing a working environment free from
harassment and discrimination and o place where our employees are proud to work.

As our approach is to go beyond the reguirements of the Equality Act 2010, PIC wants to ensure everyone has the cpportunity
to develop and progress in their career with the Compaeny. PIC recruits and promaotes the best person for each role, based

on objective job related criteria with due regard for their qualificotions ond experience. PIC s also committed to making
reasonable adjustrments for the hiring of employees with disabilites and having regard to their particulor aptitudes and abilities.

PIC actively encourages all employees to take advantage of the learning and developmeant opportunities available to help
rmaintain, develop or increase knowledge, for the purpese of maintaining a high standard of professional practice. All
employees are required to complete a minimum of ten hours of Continuing Professional Development {"CPD”) every

12 months.
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PIC’s Diversity and Inclusion Forum which is made up of employees and HR representatives continued to workin 2021
The Forum meets on a regular basis and its key objective is to organise learning events on diversity and inclusion topics
and represent employees in making recommendations to senior management on potential changdes to policy.

Employees with disabilities

In the event that an employee bacomes disabled during employment, PIC will actively make reasonable adjustments to
the warking environment and/or practices so anyone can be supported in canying out therr role and responsibilities to their
full potential.

In some instances, PIC may seak third party advice around how the Company can make these reasonable adjustments;
this could include the use of an occupationa! health provider.

Overseas branches
PIC daes not have any branches outside the United Kingdam.

Greenhouse gas emissions

In occordance with Compaonies (Directors' Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations
2018 and Companies Act 2006 {Strategic Repart and Directors’ Report) Regulations we are required o report on our
dreenhouse gas emissions {("GHG") including our UK energy use and carbon amissicns.

The information in the table below represents cur GHG and energy use for which PIC is responsible:

Current reporting period 2020 reporting period

{UK and offsnore) (UK and affshare)
Total energy consumption used to calculate emissions in kWh 893,748 1,012,564
Ernﬁsions from combustion of gas in tCOze {Scope 1) 815 94.3
Emissions from purchased electricity In tCOze (Scope 2, location-based) 948 116.5
Total gross tCO-e based on above 1767 210.8
Intensity ratio: gross tCOwe/floar area 004 0.04
Intensity ratio: gross tCO,e/full time equivaient 05 o7

Reporting terminology definitions
Scope 1. Direct emissions that are owned and controlled by the Company

Scope 2 Emissions that are a consequence of the operations of the Company

Intensity ratio: GHG impact per unit of physical activity or unit of economic value.

Reporting period
Qur GHG reporting period is the same as our financial year: 1 January to 31 December 2021

Methodolodies

The data detailed in this table represent emissions and energy use for which Pension insurance Corporation Group Limited
are responsible. To calculate our emissions we have usad the main requirements of the Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate
Standard aleng with the UK Governmeant GHG Conversion Factars for Company Reporting 2021, We have calculated our
emissions for 2021 year in line with our financial years. Any eiectricity estimates included in our totals are dernved from actual
data in the same reporting period which have been extrapolated to cover any missing periods. Natural gas consumption

is estimated based on our floor area and the Real Estate Environmental Benchmark from the Better Buildings Partnership.
wWe do not have any fuel used for company travel to report.

Actions

We have consciousty implemented a number of workplace initiatives, where possible, to reduce cur GHG for example,

we have installed LED lights with PIR throughout our office premises as well as our emplayees using energy efficient laptops.
We have replaced two AHUSs with two VRF units in our offices as an energy efflciency measure in the reporting period
detailed above. We we have already undertaken a significant number of measures, there are limited options for savings

in the bullding. More information on the actions the Group takes more broadly on the ESG and cimate risk related mattars
can be found throughout the report and in the Taskforce for Climate related Financial Disclosures report available an

WWW Bensioncorporation com /the-purpose-of-finance/thought-leadership.
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Longer-term viability statement

1. The assessment process

The longer-term viability process is pnmarily corried cut by strategic and financial planning. The Group's strategy

(see pages 16 to 32), and year-on-year activities, combined with a focus on material factors which may impact the Group in
the foreseeable future, are central to the assessment that the Group can be reasonably expected to continue in operation
and meet its liabilities as they foll due. The Group's business plan s prepared annually and covers a five-year period on

a rolling basis. The plan covers projected performance and related profitability, cash and value generation and the capital
position aof the Group over the period. The plan is designed within the Group’s Risk Appetite Framework, which forms an
integral part of the business planring process. The planis tested against the risk appetite set for the Group by the Board.
This includes a number of strass scenarios, which consider the Group's resilience and capacity to respond to retevant
stresses and shock events, which may potentially impact the Group. The Group also evaluates various management actions
designad to maintain and restare key capital and solvency metrics to within the Group’s approved risk appetite over the
planning period and takes into account the cost of these actions to the Group's Solvency Surplus and their potentialimpact
on the Group's Market Consistent Embedded Value and IFRS profits.

2. The assessment period

The Directors have assessed the viability of the Group by reference to the five-year planning period to December 2026,
which has been chosen as appropriate because it reflects the Group’s business model and the dynamics of the pension
risk transfer market as covered by the Group's five-year business plan.

3. Assessment of viability

In considering the viability of the Group, the Directors have assessed the key factors relating to the Greup's business moedeal,
stratedy and the basis upon which its regulatory capital stress tests are carried out. This has included consideration of the
ongoing impact of Covid-19, the uncertainty surrounding the macro-economic environment and its potential impact on the
Group and the potential impact of climate change related nsks. It also takes into account the ongoind regulatory change
affecting the financial servicas industry. The Directors have also carried out an assessment by reference to the Group's risk
appetite and financial forecasts from December 2021 to December 2026. The Directors discussed the business strategy,
market opportunity and potential future strategic objectives at the Board strategy day on 24 September. They considered
the draft business plan at the Roard meeting held on 2 December 2021 which was supported by the assessment of key risks
to the successful execution of the business plan. The Directors also considered the Group's principal risks and how these are
managed, as detailed on pages 70 to 77. The risk assessment included stress and scenario testing of key assumptions, and
horizon scanning to consider the key risks to the business and the potential impact of these on the business plan objectives.

The scenaros considered in the risk assessment covered:

« PIC's ability to source high quality assets with appropriate yields to support PIC's pricing model, and access to capital
and reinsurance;

risks from markets around downgrades, spread risks, rates and inflation risks as well as regulatory changes and increased
scrutiny by the regulators ds PIC grows;

risks to PIC's operations if the plan is successfully achieved focusing among others on operational resilience in terms of
resourcing and processeas, stakeholder, climate change, reputation and various other risks.

This year the Board also continued to assess impacts arising from the ongoing economic uncertainty caused by the
pandemic combined with geopolitical risks. The Board discussed how these could cause solvency or liquidity daclines on
PIC's balance sheet from credit downgrades and continued volatility of rates/inflation and foreign exchange. The Board
discussed these risks throughout 2021 and management incorporated their considerations into the business planning
The Board also continued to assess management actions available to mitisate risks arising from those adverse scenarios
and the cost to the Group of those actions.

As well as risks arising from the macro-economic environment, a number of operational scenarios were performed
considering the potential impact of failures of cloud-based systems, PiC's diversity and inclusion strategy and a talent
shortage impacting ability of PIC to maintain or recruit sufficient levels of skilled resource.

4. Viability statement
Based on the results of the assessment of the Group's prospects and viability, the Directors confirm that they have a redsonable
expectation that the Group will continue to operate and meeat its llabllities as they fall due in the five-yecr assessment periad.

On behalf of the Board

Jon Aisbitt

Chairman

14 Cornhill, Landon EC3V 3ND
11 March 2022
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities |

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report
and the financial statements

Thea Directors ara responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors' Report and the Financial statements in
accordance with applicable low and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent Company financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law they have elected to prepare both the Group and the parent Company financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Stondards in confarmity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and
applicable law.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and parent company and of their profit or loss for that pernod. In preparing
each of the Group and parent company financial staternants, the Directors dre required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

make judgements ond estimates that are reasenable, refevant and reiiable;

state whether they have bean prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporing Standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Campanies Act 2006 and applicable law;

assass the Group and parent Company's ability to continue as a gaing concern, disclasing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern; and

* Use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Group of the parent company or to
cease aperations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company
and enable them to ensure thai its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such
internal control as they detarmine is necassary to enabie the preparation of financial statements that are free froam material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open

ta them to safeguard the assets of the Group and ta prevent and detect fraud and other iregularities

Under applicable law and repulations, the directors are also responsible for preparing o Strategic Report and a Directors’
Report that complies with that law and those regulations.

The Directors are respansible for the maintenance ond integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the

Company's website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ I
from legisiation in other jurisdictions.
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Iindependent auditor’s report

To the members of Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited

Opinion

We have nudited the financial statements of Pension
Insurance Corporation Group Limited {"the Group") for

the year ended 31 Daecember 2021 which comprise the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial
position for the Group, the statement of changes in equity
for the Group, the Group statement of cash flows and
related notes, including the accounting policies.

in our opinion:

¢ the financial stgtements give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs
os at 31 December 2021 ond of the Group's profit for the
year then ended;

the Group financial statements have baen properly
prepared n accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006;

* the Parent company financial statements have been
properly prepdred in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006; and

the financial statements have baen prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted our gudit in accordance with Intermational
Standards on Auditing {UK) (*1SAs (UK} and applicable law.
Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled
our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of
the Group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the qudit
evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate
basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on
the going concern basis as they do not intend to liguidate
the Group or to cease its operations, and as they have
concluded that the Group's financial position means that
this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no
material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt
over its ability to continue as a going concern far at least
ayear from the date of approval of the financigl statements
("the going concern periad”)

In cur evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered
the inherent risks to the Group's business model and
analysed haow thase risks might affect the Group’s financial
resources or ability to continue operations over the going
concern periad.

Qur conclusions based on this work:

* we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of dccounting in the preparation of the financiat
statements s appropriate;

we have not identified, and cancur with the directors’
assessment that there 1s not, a matenal uncertamty
related to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern for the going
concern period

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions
and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are
inconsistent with Judgements that were reasonable at the
time they were made, the above conclusions are Rot

a guarantee that the Group will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations ~
ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud
{"fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could
indicate anincentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide
an opporiunity to commit fraud. Qur risk assessment
procedures included:

* Fnguiring of directars, the audit committee, internal qudit
and inspection of policy documentation as to the Group's
high-level policies and procedures to prevent and detect
fraud, including the Group's channel far “whistieblowing”,
as well s whether they have knowledge of any actual,
suspected or alleged fraud.

Reading Board, Audit Committge, Risk Committee,
Investment and Origination and Credit Committee minutes.

* Considering rermmuneration incentive schemes and
nerformance targets for managemeant/ directors.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the
audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account
possible pressures to meet profit targets, we perform
procedures to address the risk of management override of
controls, in particular the risk that management may be in
a position to make ingppropriate accounting entries and the
risk of bias in accounting estimates and judgements such
as valuation of Insurance contract liabilities. ©n this audit
we do not believe thera is a fraud risk related to revenue
recognition because there is No management judgement
or estimation involved in recording the revenue streaims
and the amounts are contractually derived.
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In order to oddress the risk of fraud specifically as it

relates to the valuation of insurance contract liabilities,

we involved actuarnial specialists to assist in our challenge
of manogement. We challenged management in relation to
the selection of assumptions and the appropriateness of the
rationale for any changes, the consistency of the selected
assumptions across different aspects of the fingncial
reparting process and compdrison te our understanding of
the business, trends in experience, policyholder behaviour
and econnmic conditione and alse by refercnce to raikel
practice. Further detail in respect of these is set out in the
audit response to the risks associated with this key audit
matter in section 2 of this report.

In determining the audit procadures we took into
account the rasults of our evaluation and testing of the
operating effectiveness of the Group-wide fraud risk
management controls

We performed procedures including:

ldentifying journal entries and other adjustments to test
based on risk eriterio and comparing the identified entries
to supporting documentotion. These included those
posted by unauthorised user, those including specific
words based on our criterid, those journals which were
unbalances, postaed to seldeom used accounts, those
posted to unusual gccounts, those posted at the end of
the period and/or post-closing entries with little or no
description and unusual journal entries posted to either
cash or revenue,

Assassing significant accounting estimates for bias.

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws

and regulations

We identifled areas of laws and regulations that could
reasoncbly be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commaercial and
sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management {as required by auditing standards),
and from inspection of the Group’s regulatory and legal
correspondence and discussaed with the directors and other
management the policies and proceduras regarding
compliance with lows and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations
throughout our team and remained alert to any indications
of non-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the
financial statements varies considerably.

Corporate Governance

p79-124

Firstly, the Group 1s subject to laws and regulations that
directly offect the finanaial statements including financial
reporting lagistation (including related companies legislation),
distributable profits legislation, and taxation {egisiation and
we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and
regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial
statemeant items

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and
repulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in
the financial statements, for instance through the imposition
of fines or litisatian. We identified the following areas as
those most likely to have such as effect: regulatory capital
and liquidity and certoin aspects of Group legislation
recognising the financial nature of the Group's activities
and its legal form. Auditing standards limit the required
audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these
laws and regulations to enguiry of the directors and
inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence,

if any. Therefore, if a brecch of operation regulations is not
disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect a reach.

No other matters related to actual or suspected to breaches
of iaws or regulations, for which disclosure is not necessary,
were identified.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect

fraud or breaches of law or regulation

QOwing to the imherent limitations of an audit, there is an
unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatemants in the financial statements, even
though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with cuditing standards. For example, the
further removed non-complionce with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
stotements, the less likely the inherently imited procedures
required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk
of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion,
forgery, Intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ar the
override of internal controls. Qur audit procedures are
designed to detect material misstaterment, We are not
responsible for preventing nen-compliance or fraud and
cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all
laws and regulations.
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Independent auditor’s report continued
To the members of Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited

Strategic and directors’ report

The diractors are responsible for the strategic report and

the directors' report. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit
opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the
directors’ report and, in doing so, cansider whether, based
on our financial statements audit work, the information
therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely
an that work:

we have not identified material misstatements in the
strategic report and the directors’ report;

in our opinion the information given in those reports
for the financial year is consistent with the financial
statements, and

in our opinion those reports have been preparedin
accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report
to you If, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Farent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been raceived from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the parent Company financial statements are not in
agdraermeant with the accounting records and returns; or

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified
by faw are not made; or

s we hove not received all the information and explanations
we reguire for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully In their statement set out on page
124, the directors are responsitle for: the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied thot they dive
o true and fair view: such internal contrel as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whetner due to
fraud or error; assassing the Group and Parent Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless they either intena
to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company ot te cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our chjectives are to obtain reasondble assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ar error,
and to lssue our opinien in an auditor’s report. Reasonable
assurance 15 a high level of assurance, but does not
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with

1945 (UK will always detect a material misstaternent when

it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller deserniption of cur responsibilities is provided on the
FRC's website at www.frc orguk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our gudit work and to whom

we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Company's members,

as a bady, N accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of tha
Companias Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken
so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are reguired to state to them in an auditor's
report and for ne other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company's
membpers, as o body, for our audit work, for this report,

or for the opinions we have formed

(w;‘ﬂmmﬂ

Phitip Smart (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutery Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square
Canary Wharf
London

E14 5GL

11 March 2022
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Statement of comprehensive income for the Group

for the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Note £m £m
Revenue
Gross premiums written 4,702 5,649
Outward reinsurance premiurns 14f {B46) {517)
Net premium revenue earned 3,856 5132
Investrment return 2 209 4,020
Comrmissions earned hi 1
Total revenue (net of reinsurance premiums) 4,066 9223
Expenses
Claims paid - gross {1,844) {1,730}
Reinsurers’ share of claims paid 14f 59 41
{1,785) {1,683)
Increqasain insurance liabilities — gross {2,178) (7772}
Increase in reinsurers’ share of insurance lakilities 14f 577 175
{1,601) {6,997)
Acquisition expenses 3 (77) (75)
Other operating expenses 4 {121) {179}
Finance costs 15 (89) (73)
{287) {267)
Total expenses (3,673) (8,947}
Profit before taxation 393 276
Tax charge 8 (82) (54)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year an 222

The amounts shown above are in respect of continuing operations.

The accounting policies and notes on poges 133 to 165 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of financial position for the Group
as at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Noto £m Em

Assets
Property, piant and equiprment 1 2
Right of use agssets a 17 20
Investment properties jL¢] 173 1
Financial investments il 51,143 49,648
Derivative assats 12 15,018 21936
Deferred tax assets 13 4 3
Current taxation - 3
Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities 14 3,350 2,773
Prepayments 104 107
Recevables and other financial assets 11 284 283
Cosh ond cosh equivolents n 199 214
Total Assets 70,293 75,080
Equity
Share cagital 18 2 2
Share premium 20 873 870
Tredasury sharas 20 {19 [25)
Mergear reserve 20 a4 34
Tier 1 notes 19 444 444
Capital reduction reserve 20 1,055 1,055
Share-based payment reserve 20 21 14
Retained profit 20 2,055 1773
Total Equity 4,465 4167
Liabilities
Gross insurance liagbilities 14 47,013 44835
Borrawings 15 1,590 1589
Lease liabilities 9 20 22
Derivative llabilities 12 16,997 24,340
Deferraed tax abiiities 13 1 2
Current taxation 38 -
Insurance and other payables 1 47 20
Accruals 1 122 105
Total Liabilities 65,828 70513
Total Equity and Liabilities 70,293 75,080

The accounting policias and notes on pages 133 1o 165 form an integral part of these financiol statements,

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 March 2022 and were signad oh its behalf by:

DI, -SSR Y
(@&

Tracy Blackwell

Director
Registration number 08740110
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Statement of changes in equity for the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Share-
Capital based
Share Share Treasury Merger Tier1 reduction payment Retained
capital  premium shares  reserve notes  raserve  reserve praflt Total
31 Pecember 2021 Note £m £m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m
At beginning of year 2 870 {25) 34 444 1,055 14 1,773 4,167
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 3n an
Transgctions with owners
Sale of treasury shares 20 - 3 N - - - - - 34
Tier 1 note coupon 19 - - - - - - - (33) (33)
Tier 1 coupon tax relief 3 - - - - - - - r &
Exercise of share-based
payment schemes 20 - - & - - - (5) m -
Share-based poyment charge 720 - - - - - - 12 - 12
Share purchases and share
scheme contributions 20 - - (31) - - - - (U] {32)
At end of year 2 873 {19) 34 444 1,055 23 2,055 4,465
Share-
Caopital based
Share Share Treasury Merger Tier 1 reducton  poyment  Retained
capital  prermum shares reserve notes reserve reserve profit Total

31 December 2020 MNate £m £m £m £m Erm E£m £m £m £m
At beginning of year 2 120 32) 34 445 1,055 15 1,576 3,215
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 222 222
Transactions with owners
Tier 1 note coupon 19 - - - - - - - (33) (33)
Tiar 1 coupon tax relief 8 - - - - - - - & &
Tier 1 additional costs - - _ - ) _ . _ {
Equity raise - 750 - - - - - - 750
Exercise of share-based
paymeant schemes 20 - - 8 _ - - (8) _ -
Share-based payment charde 7, 20 - — - - - - 7 - 7
Share purchases and share
scheme contributions 20 - - )] - - - - 2 1
At end of year 2 870 (25) 34 444 1,055 14 1773 4167

The accounting pelicies and riotes on pades 133 to 165 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Group statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Note £Em £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year an 222
Adjustments for:
Interest income recognised in profit or loss 2 {1,054) {1,027)
Other investment return 2 {184) 47
Finance costs 89 73
Depreciation charged on right of use gsset 9 3 2
Tax expense 8 82 54
Equity settled share-based payments 7 12 7
{1,052} 844)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in iInvestment properties 10 {82) o)
Decrease/{increase] in property, plant and equipment 1 G
Decrease/{increase) in financial investments including derivative assets 5,423 {16,072}
Increase inreinsurers' share of insurance liahilities 14 {577) {175)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments 3 {12)
{Increasel/decrease in receivables and other financial assets {6) 3
Increase in acecrudgls 17 20
Imcrease ininsurance liabilitias 14 2178 7172
(Decrease)/increase in financiatl ligkilities including derivative liabilities {7,343) 7609
Increase in nsurance and other payables 27 3
{359) {1,463)
Cash flows used in operating activities {1,100) {2,085)
Interest income received 1,080 1.017
Other investment return 184 {47)
Taxation paid (37 (93)
Netinflow/{outflow) from operating activities 107 {1,208}
Cuash flows from financing activities
Payment of lecse liabilities 9 (3) 2
Proceeds from 1ssue of subordinoted debt 15 - 700
Proceeds from issue of equity - 750
Share scheme purchases and contributions {32} i
Sale of tregsury shares 34 -
Interest paid on subordinated debt 15 {as) (72)
Coupen on Tier 1 notes 19 (33) (33)
Eguity and debt issue costs - {5}
Net {outflow)/inflow from financing activities {122) 1,339
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {15} 131
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of vear 214 83
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 199 214

The accounting policies and notes on pages 133 to0 165 form an integral part of these financial statements.,

132 Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited  Annual Report and Accounts 2021



Strategic Report pOi-78 Carporate Governance p79-124

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2021

1. Accounting policies

Basis of prepdration

Both the Company’s financial statements and the Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accardance with International Financial Reperting Standards (*IFRS) in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006,

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, Monagement have conducted a detailed
assessment of the Graug’s going concern status based onits current position and forecast results and have concluded
that the Group has adequate resources to operate for at least the naxt 17 months fram the approval of thase

financial statements

In making the going concern assassment, management reviewed the forecast sclvency and liguidity positions and strass
and scenario testing of key assumptions and horizon scanning to consider the key risks to the business, especially in light of
the pandemic caused by Covid-19, and the potential impact of these risks on the business plan objectives. Mitigating actions
wera also considered and are set out in the Risk Manggement section of the Strategic Repaort on pages 70 to 77. The key
stress tests, scenarios and sensitivities include a decline in interest rotes, widening of spreads, downgrades and defaults,
and reinsurance and capital availability. The principal sources of forecast information were the 2022 business plan and the
Group’s ORSA, both are expected to be approved by the Board in March 2022. Details on our financial pesition and solvency
can be found in the Chief Financial Officer’s review on pagde 60 to &9,

In publishing its own financial statements here together with the Group financial statements, the Company has taken
advantage of the exemption in section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006 not tc present Its individual income statement
and related notes thot form a port of these financial statements.,

The Group has applied all IFRS and interpretations that are adopted by the UK and are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027

Management considers that the Group consists of one opearating segment, which operates in one geographical location
{the United Kingdom) and has one line of business {the provision of Insurance annuity products to UK defined benefit
occupational pension funds and their members)

The nature of the Group’s business is that it conducts a relatively smali number of individual transactions each year. These
transactions are all one-off in nature, and the Group’s business plans do not anticipate conducting a significant amount
of repeat business with any particular customers. Revenue concentration items have therefore not been disclosed.

Basis of consolidation
The cansolidated financial statements comprise those of the Company and its subsidiary companies. For the purposes
of consolidation, the accounting palicies of subsidiary companies have been aligned with those of the Company.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements frem the date that control
commeances to the dote that control ceases. Intra-group transactions and outstanding balances are elimmated in the
preparation of the conselidated financial statements of the Group and any non-cantrolling interests in the net assets

of subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity.

The functional currency of the Group and all subsidiaries is GBP sterling. These financial statements have been presented in
millions of GBP sterling {(Em) unless otherwise stated. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency are
translated into the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the end of the financial year. Non-maonetary
assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency using the historical rate. All revenue and expense items

are reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Group at the rate effective at the date the transaction
took place.

Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certdin accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported assets, liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where assumptions are significant

to the consolidated financial statements, are set out below and in more detail in the related notes. Insurance ligkilities and
financial instruments are the areas whete thara is maore risk of a material adjustment to the carrying amounts within the
next financial year.

Judgements:

Contract classification

Contracts written by insurers are classified as either insurance contracts or investment contracts, depending on the level
of Insurance risk transferred. The Group has classified all its policyholder contracts s insurance contracts. Please refer to
Naote 14 for further details,
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Notes to the financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 December 2021

1. Accounting policies continued

Restricted Tier 1 notes

Classification of financial instruments as debt or equity is dependent on whather the terms impose an obligation to deliver cash or
other financial assets. The Group's Restricted Tier 1 notas have been classified as equity. Please refer to Note 19 for further details.

Estimates:

Insurance liabilities

Insurance liabilities are valued using projected cash flows of future retirement income and the cost of administrating
payments to policyholders. The key assumptions relate to future mortality, expenses, discount rates ond inflation.
Please refer to Note 14 for further details.

Financial instruments

Where an active market does not exist for ¢ financial instrument, the Group uses financial modeliing to ascertain fair value,
The models consider the anticipated future cash flows expected to be derived from the assets or paid in respect of the
iiabilities and discount them to reflect the timing of payments and, for debt assets, the likelihood of default given the relative
seniority of the holding in arder of repayment. For ERMs, key inputs also include assumptions relating 1o property price drowth
and volatility, equivalent spread, mortality, morbidity, early repayment rates and “no negative equity suarantees”. The
relevant fair value disclosures are set out in Nate 11

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has consistently applied its accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial statements, The
application, in 2021, of "Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendments t¢ IFRS 16)", and "Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 {Amendments ta IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)" have had ho impact on the
Group. Disclosures in relation to interbank offer rate (MIBOR") reform are prowvided below

Effect of IBOR reform

The Group has completed the transition from the use of the London intarbank of fer rate {"LIBOR"] to Sterling Overnight Index
Average {"SONIA™) during the year. This has involved managing the transition of the Group’s derivatives and relevant debt
security assets away from LIBOR, re-negotiation of any LIBOR terms in contracts and the utilisation of SONIA swap curves
for financial reporting.

The transition to SONIA has not had a significant impact an the IFRS findncial position of the Group or its risk management
strategy. At the end of the repaorting period, the Group does not have any significant financial instruments that have yet to
transition to an alternative benchmark rate,

Significant new standards or amendments to standards which are not yet effective
The foilowing standards are only mandatory for accounting periods on or after 1 fanuary 2022 and have not been adopted
early by the Group:

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” — effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
The Group 1s required to adopt IFRS 17 for its financial year beginning on 1 January 2023, subject to UK endorsement.

The adoption of the standard is expected to have o significant impact an the financial statements as it transforms the
way the Group measures, presents and discloses the insurance and reinsurance gssets and liabilities n the Staternent

of Cormprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position and the notas to the financial statements. Under IFRS 17, new
businass profits at inception are deferred ¢s a contractual service margin {"CSM”) on the Statement of Financial Position,
which is released into the Statement of Comprehensive Income over time. In addition to the C5M, an explicit margin caifled
the risk adjustment {“RA"} is required to be held for non-financial risks. More guantitative and qualitative information will
be disclosed, including the reconciliations of CSM, RA and present value of future cash flows.

The Statement of Comprehensive Income will no longer include premium and clam volumes, and instead will focus on

new measJres, such ds insurance contract revenue and insurance service expense. In addition, IFRS 17 introduces significant
operational changes, including new models and significant updates to current systems and processes to account for new
requirements for the coliection, aggregation and analysis of data

The Group is in the process of finalising the implementation of reporting processes and significant assumptions to meet the
requiremnents of IFRS 17. We are well progressed im our implementation of the new systems and the expected financial
implications will be cammunicated in due course.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” - effective for accounting periods beginning on ar after 1January 2019.

The adoption of the standard is not expected to have a matenal impact on the results of the Group, as the financial
instrurnents held by the Group are expeacted to remain classified as fair value through profit and loss. Although this standard
is now effective, the |ASB published Amendments to IFRS 4 “Extension of the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 97,
which includes an optional termporary exemption frorm applying IFRS 2 until IFRS 17 is cdopted. This exception is available

to insurance entities whose activitias are “predominantly connected with insurance” by meeting certain eligibility criteria.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group met the eligicility criteria and will defer the adoption of IFRS S to 1 January 2023.
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Significant new standards or amendments to standards which are not yet effective continued

The disclosure of the fair value of the Group's financial assets, showing the amounts for instruments that meet the "Sclely for
Paymenl of Principal and Interest” (“SPPI”) criteria separately from all other financial assets, os required for entities applying
the tempaorary exemption, is provided below. Note that financial assets classified as held for trading or that are managed
and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are not required to be assessed under the SPPI test and are
reported in all other financial assets.

As at 31December 2021 As at 31 December 2020
Financial All other Financial All other
assets passing financial ossets possing financial
SPPltest' assets SPPI test'? assets
£m £m £Em £m
Receivables and other financial assets? 284 - 283 -
Financial investments - 51,143 - 49,648
Derivative assets - 15,018 - 21936

1 For financial assets which passed the SPPI test as ot 31 Decembser 2021, there was a change in the fair value in the year of £nil {2020: £nil).
2 For the credit rating split of receivables and cther financial assets please see Note 16.

2, Investment return

Investment return comprises all interest income on financial investments and detlvatives at fair value through profit and
loss, rental income and unrealised and reclised gains and losses.

Realised gains or losses represent the difference between net sales proceeds and purchase price or, in the case of
investments valued at amortised cost, the latest carrying value prior to the date of sale.

Unrealised sains and losses on investments reprasent the difference between the fair value of investments held at the
end of each financial year and their purchase price. The net movement recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Incorne refiects both unrealised gains and losses recognised during the year and the reversal of any prior cumulative
period unrealised gains and losses which have been realised in the current accounting period.

2021 2020
£m £m

Income from debt securities 1,049 1,021
Interest income on cash deposits - 2
Income from mortgage backed securnties ("MBS”) 5 4
Interest income 1,054 1,027
Rental inceme 8 4
thcome from other investrments
- Investment schemes 1 1
- Other asset backed securities ("ABS") 9 10
- Other investment returh 166 (62)
Total other investment return 184 {47)
Total investment income 1,238 980
Net reclised gains on investrments
- Investments designated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition 442 167
- Investments classified as held for trading {135) {133}
Net realised gains 307 634
Net unrealised (losses)/gains on investmeants
- Investments designated as fair value through profit or lass oninitial recognition (1,745) 2,774
- Investments classified as held for trading 409 258)
Net unrealised {losses)/gains {1,336) 2,476
Investment return 209 4,090
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3. Acquisition expenses

Acquisition expenses comprise all direct and indirect costs of obtaining and processing new businass. Indirect cosis
cansist primarily of managemant, staff and related overhead costs.

As acguisition expenses relate to single premium business, with alirevenue recognised immediately on initial recognition
of the contract, a deferred acquisition cost asset has not been established in the Statement of Financial Position.

2021 2020
£m £m
Acquisition expenses 77 75

4, Other operating expenses
Investment charges and related expenses comprise:
« fees payable to investment managers. Performance fees are payable to certain investment managers that exceed
relevant targets measured pver a number of financial years. The Group recognises the costs of such agreements during

the life of each controct. No provision is made for fees on potential cutperformance of targets in future yeors. All other
fees paydble to investment managers are recognised on an accruals pasis; and

» transaction costs on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

2021 2020
£m £m
Investment chardes and related expenses 42 29
Project costs 38 45
Equity settled share-based payments 12 7
Other expenses 29 38
i 119
5. Auditor's remuneration
201 2020
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Group's auditor for the audit of the Group's annual accounts 21 2
Fees payable to the Group's auditor and its associates for other services:
Audit of accounts of subsidiaries 560 571
Audit-related assurance services 153 150
All other services 150 135
Total fees paid to the auditor 884 877

6. Directors’ remuneration, employee costs and headcount

Employee benefits

Defined contribution plkins

Pension Services Corporation Limited operates o defined contribution pension plan into which PSC contributes 8% if the
employee makes a minimum contribution of 2% of qualifying salary. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
plans are recodnised as an employee benefit expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period during
which the related services are rendered by employees.

The costs of Directors and employees of the Group for the year were as follows:

2021 2020

£m £

Wages and salaries 48 41
Social security costs 6 &
Other pension costs 3 2
57 49

The 13 Directars (2020: 12) who served in the Campany during the year received total remuneration of £0.2 milon
{2020: £0.2 million) for their services to the Company
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6. Directors’ remuneration, employee costs and headcount continued

The amount of remuneration received by the highest paid Director was £1 millien (2020, £1 million). This includes £3 million
{2020. £1 million) n respect of services provided 1o other Group companies. In addition, the highest paid Director received
shares in the Company on maturity of certain Share Plans and exercised share options dunng 2021,

One Director was provided ¢ cash alternative in relation to ¢ meney purchase pension scheme where their lifetime or annual
allowance imit had been reached (2020: one), one Director of the Company was awarded share options during 2021 (2028
one] and one Director exercised share options during 2021 {2020: ane).

The average number of persuns etnployed by the Group (including Directors of the Company) during the year, analysed by
category, was as follows:

2021 2020

Number Number

Employees 3aso 280
Directors 12 "

7. Share-based payment arrangements

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value on the grant date of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to Directors and employeesis
recognised as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees become
unconditionally entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards
for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are expected to be met, such thot the amount
recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that meet the relevant service conditions and non-market
performance conditions at vesting date.

Any ordinary shares required to fulfil entittements under the share-based payment awards are provided by the Pension
tnsurance Corporation Group Employee Benefit Trusts (“EBTs”). The EBTs are treated as a branches. Any shares purchased
by the EBTs to fund these awards are held at a period end date and accounted for as treasury shares within the
Cornpany and Group shareholders’ equity.

When the awards vest and new shares are issued, the proceeds received, net of transaction costs, are credited to
share capital {par valug) and the balance, if any, to share premium. Where the shares are already held by the EBTs,
the net proceeds are credited against the cast of these shares, with the difference between cost and proceeds being
taken to retained earmings. In both cases, the relevant amount in the shore-based payments reserve is then credited
to retcined earnings.

Analysis of expense recognised in the Statement of Compreheansive Income

201 2020
£m £m

Equity settled share-based payment transactions
Deferred Bonus Share Plan 12 7
Total expense recognised for equity settled share-based payments 12 7

All schemes contain clawback provisions which allow the PIC Remuneration Committee to reduce or extinguish awards in
certain specified circumstances,
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7. Share-based payment arrangements continued

Share Growth Plan 2017

The cornmercial objective of this plan was to deliver ta participants (Directors and senior management of Group companies)
a proportion of growth in the value of the Company above the value of the Company on implementation of the plan

{"Initial Company Value™).

The fair value of the Growth Plan at inception was calculated to be £1.6 million, which was fully paild by the participants.
As g result, no expense has been recopnised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of this plan,

The Growth Shares, initially issued as 2,000 C shares at inception of the plan, vested on 1 January 2021 and were
subisequently canverted into 2,000 ordinary shares. An additional 3,208,330 ordinary shares were alsg issued to the
participants as settlement of the plan

Participants are able ta sell their ordinary shares in three equal tranches over the period 2021-2023.

Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”)

This plan s designed to incentivise key individudls to grow the business and build a sustained and successful future for the
Group by rewarding and retaining them through o long-term incentive arrdngerment. The 2021 awards are nil cost options,
with vesting dependent on performonce ogonst o Group Market Consistent Embedded Volue {("MCEV") target, with

a Solvency |l coverage underpin. The awards vest at the end of a three-year performance period and becorne exearcisable
after o further two years.,

2021

Number

of options

Outstanding at 1 January -
Awarded 1,149,455
Lapsed/forfeited -
Remaining at 31 December 1,149,455
Weighted-average share price ot grant/exercise (£) 3.65
Weighted-average remaining contractual life (years) 970

During the year to 31 December 2021, gwards under LTIP were made on 13 July 2021 and 26 October 2021, As these are nil cost
options with non-market based parformance criteria, the key input to determine the fair value of tha awards for the IFRS 2
share-based payment charge is the share price at drant date of £3.65

Deferred Bonus Share Plan (*“DBSP™)

This plan is designed to incentivise key individuals to grow the business and build a sustained and successtul future for the
Group by rewarding and retaining them through o long-term incentive arrangement. The plan has been in ploce since 2013
and awards are made on an annual basis, at the Company’s discretion.

The awards under tha DBSP are in the form of a nil cost option over o number of the Company’s crdingry shares.

200 2020

Numbar Number

of aptians of opt’ons

Outstanding at 1 January 7,733,236 7756148
Awarded 1,933,596 2,264,142
Lapsed/forfeited (249,513) (5909
Exercised {1,542 124) (2,171145)
Remaining at 31 December 7.875,195 7733236
Weighted-average share price at grant/exercise (F) 3.65 305
Weighted-average remaning contractual Iife (years) 7.67 792

20271 awards under the DBSP were made on 27 April 2021. As these are nil cost options with no specific performance criteria,
the kay input to deternune the fair value of the owords for the IFRS 2 shore-based poyment charge s the share price ot pront
date of £3.65.
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8. Corporation tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxabla income for the year, using tax rates and laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the date of the Stotement of Financial Position together with adjustments to tax payable in
respect of previous years, Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes, and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

For transactions and other events recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity), any related tox effects are also recognised outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively).

The Group's tax charge for the year is:

2021 2020
£m £m
Current taxation
Corporation tax payable for the current year 7 54
Prior year adjustment 7 1
Total current tax a4 5h
Deferred taxation
Tax transitional adjustments and timing differences (2) 0]
Total deferred tax {2) {1
Tax charge 82 54

The effective current tax charge far the period is higher (2020: marginally higher) than the standard rate of corperation tax in
the United Kingdom of 19% (2020: 19%). The differences are explained below:

2021 2020
£m £Em

Reconciliation of total income to the apphcable tax rate

Profit before taxation 393 276

Corporation tax at 19% {(2020: 19%) 75 53

Effects of:

Non-deductible expenses 2 _

Prior year adjustment 7 1

Deferred taxation movement @) -

Tax charge 82 G4

Tax credited to equity
Tax credited directly te equity in the year inrespect of coupon payments an Tier 1notes amounted to £6 million (2020: £6 million).

Factors that may affect future tax charges

Current taxation is provided on taxakle profits at the corporation tax rote ruling in the year they are earnad. The Group's
tax charge is primarily based on the profits of PIC. The current UK corporation tax rate is 19%. From 1 April 2023, the rate of
corporation tax will increase to 25%.

Following the Jonuary 2013 changde in the taxation regime for insurance companies, the benefit of the differences between
IFRS retained earnings and taxable profits at 31 December 2012 will reverse over a period of ten years. Consequently, the
Group has recognised a deferred tax lability at 31 December 2021 of £1million (2020 £2 million} in respect of these timing
differences which total £4 million {2020: £8 million).
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9, Leases

The Group applied IFRS 16 from 1January 2019. On transition, the Group electad to use the practical expedient to apply

IFRS 16 only to contracts that were identified as leases under 1AS 17,

The Group recognises & right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. Right of use assets are
initialty measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lense payments made
at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of restoration costs, less any

lease incentives received.

A right of use asset is depreciated on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Non-financial assets that are measured at amortised cost are reviewed for impairment whenever events or chaonges
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment foss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell aind value in use.

A lease liabiiity is initially measured as the value of expected future lease payments, discounted using the Group's
incremental borrawing rate. The incremental borrowing rate (s determined using interest rates from various external
financing sources, which are adjusted to reflact the terms of the lease.

Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The Group leases consist of office buildings and office equipment. Information about the leases for which the Group is
< lessee is presented below.

Right of use assets

2021 2020

Office Office

bulidings buidings

£m £

Balance at 1 January 20 22
Depreciation charge for the year {3) (2)
Balance at 31 December 17 20

The Group leases office space and office equipmant to enable it to carry out its operations. The leases for the office space
expire in February 2028 but include an option to terminate in July 2024, The calculations of the right of use asset and lease
liability assume the leases are held until the contractual expiry date, as the Group is reasonably certain that the termination

options will not be exearcised.

Ledse liabilities

2021 2020

£m £

Balance ot 1 January 22 23
Cash outflow for lease payments {3) {2)
Interest an lease liabilities 1 1
Balance at 31 December 20 22
Expenses relating to low-value leases - -
200 20790

Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows Em £m
Less than one year 4 3
One to five years 15 15
Maore than five years 4 8
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 December 23 26
Balance at 31 December 20 22
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10. Investment properties

Investrents properties are not for occupation by the Group, but are leased to third parties to generate rental income.
Investment properties are carried at fair value, with changes in fair value included in the Statement of Comprehensive
income. In the early period of construction of an investment property, where fair value is not reliakly measurable, the
investment property is measured at construction cost until fair value becomes reliably measurable.

Properties are valued annually by professional external valuers using the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors {"RICS")
guidelines. The RICS guidelines apply separate assurmptions to the value of the land, bulldings ond tenancy associated
with each property.

The external valuers also consider changes in market conditions and the status of the tenants in determining whether
a full physical inspection is required each year. Irrespective of such considerations, each property is fully inspected as
part of the valuation process at least once every three yvears.

Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location er condition
of the speacific property.

2071
2021 At fair 2021
At cost value Total
£m £m £m
At beginning of year 19 72 7N
Additions 75 - 75
Transfer of properties under construction from cost to fair value “n - 47 -
Change in fair value during the year - ’ 7
At end of year 47 126 173
2020
2020 At fair 2020
At cost value Total
Em £Em £m
At beginning of year - 81 81
Additions 9 - e
Change in fair value during the year - (9] )
At end of year 19 72 9]

The Group's holdings in investment properties relate to retail and residential properties held via Guernsey redistered property
unit trusts ("GPUTS"). All properties are located in the United Kingdom.

Investment properties held at cost are in the early period of construction, where fair value is not reliably measurable.

The market value of the investment properties held at fair value is determined based on a valuation approach which applies
investment vield ta the rental income. The investment yield is derived from available transactional evidence of similar rental
units considering the property-specific factors such as its location, the unexpired term, current rent, size of the unit and other
factors. For investment properties under construction, the estimated valuation upen completion I1s adjusted for future costs
to complete and a risk margin. Due to the unabservable Inputs, investment properties are classified as Level 3 in the fair
value hierarchy.

Significant assumptions used in the valuation of cur investment properties include:

2021 2020
Investrment yield Range from 4.25% to 9.75% Range from 6.75% t2 10.0%
Rental value per square foot Range from £14.85 to £31.95 Range from £14.96 to £3219

The sensitivities of the property values to +/- 50 bps change in the iInvestment yield is +£23 millon/- £18 million (2020 +/- £4 million).

Rental income raceived in relation to these propertes of £8 million {2020: £4 million) is shown within investment return in Note 2.
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11. Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments dre measured at fair value through profit orioss ("FVTPLY) and classified as held
for trading, All other financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of barrowings, short-tenm assets
and liakilities, and cash and cash equivalents are classified as FVTPL on initial recognition.

Financialinvestments are designated at FVTPL upon initicl recognition where they are managed on a fair value

basis in accordonce with risk management and investment strotegies, and information is provided internally to

key management persannel on that basis. Financial instruments at FVYTPL are initially recognised at fair value in

the Statement of Financial Poskion, with transaction costs and any subseguent change in fair value taken directly

to the Staterment of Comprehensive Income. i

Assets held as collaterai

In order to meet its contractual obligations, the Group receives and pledges coliateral in the form of cash and mnon-cash
assets in respect of certain derivative contracts. The amount of collateral required is determined by the valuation of each
contract on a mark-to-market basis and the type of collateral to be deposited is specified within the agreement with
each counterparty. Collaterc! pledged in the form of cash and non-cash assets, which are not legally segregated from the
Company, continue to be recognised in the Statement of Financial Position within the appropriate asset classification, as
the Group retains ail risks and rewards relating to these assets. if the Group relinquishes the economic risks and rewards
of ownership when pladging the assets, it derecognises the asset and recognises a corresponding receivable for its return.

Collateral received in the form of cash and non-cash assets is not recoanised as an asset in the Statement of Financial
Pasition unless the Group acquires the economic risks and rewards of ownership. Where such assets are recognised, the
Group recognises a corresponding financial liability.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

A financial instrurment is recodnised if the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets are derecognised if the Group’s contractuct rights to the cash flows from the financial assets expire,

or if gither the Group transfers the financial asset to ancther party without retaining control or substantiaily alf risks and
rewards of the asset are transferred to another perty. Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are accounted for
at the trade date. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the Group's obligations specified in the contract explre or
are discharged or cancelled,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash balances that are repayable on demand and are integrol to the Group's cash

management, including any overdrawn balances, and deposits held ot call with banks with less than S0 days’ maturity

from date of acquisition, As ot 31 December 2021, the total balonce in overdraft was £nil {2020 £nil). '
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2021 2020 (restated)®
Fair value Fairvalue
through profit Amortised through profit Arartised
andioss cost ond loss cost
£m Em £m Em
Financial assets
Financial investments
Debt securities
- Government bonds 17,965 - 18912 -
- Corporate bonds 18,627 - 19,274 -
- Private investments 9,01 - 7736 -
MBS and ABS 328 - 387 —
Equity reledse mortgages 1,082 - 534 -
Deposits with credit institutions 824 - 494 -
Participation in investment schemes 3,296 - 2,31 -
Total financial investments 51,143 - 46,648 -
Denvative assets 15,018 - 21936 -
Loans and receivables and other financial assets
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations - & - 5
Cther debtors - 22 - 17
Accruad interest - 256 - 261
Totalreceivables and other financial assets - 284 - 283
Cash and cash equivalents - 199 - 214
Total financial assets 66,161 483 71,584 497
Financial liabilities
Derivative liabilities 16,997 - 24,340 -
Insurance and other payables - 47 - 20
Borrowings - 1,590 - 1,589
accruals - 122 - 105
Total financial liabilities 16,997 1,759 24,340 1,714
Debt securities have bean angalysed as governmeant bands, corporate bonds and private investments,
Amounts due to be received after more than one year in the above table are as follows:
2021 2020
£m £m
Financial assets designated as fair value through profit or loss 61,586 67,858

All amounts relating to insurance and other payables and accruals are expected to be settled within cne year,

Deposits with credit institutions

Depoasits with credit Institutions include £22 million {2020: £21 million) in two bank accounts operated by PIC which are
designated fee collateral bank accounts. These accounts were established under deeds of charge dated ¢ July 2012

and 11 December 2012 between PIC and MUnchener Rickversicherungsgesellschaft {("Munich Re”) in respect of longevity
reinsurance agreements. The amount deposited in each account represents a proportion of PIC's liability for the payment
of fees due over the life of each agreement {“fee collateral amount”) and is subject to annual review by each party.

PIC retains control of the cash deposited In these accounts: however, it must maintain a balance at least equal to the agreed
fee collateral amount and Munich Re has a fixed first charge aver the accounts, which gives it the right to withdraw an amount
equivalent ta its cutstanding fees due under the agreement, on the cccurrence of certain specified default events,
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11. Financial assets and financial liabilities continued

Assets pledged as collateral

As explained in Note 12, the Group uses dervative fingncial instruments as part of its risk manadement strategy. Most over

the counter derivative transactions require collateral to be received or pledded by the Group or its counterparty to mitigole !
the counterparty credit risk, The Group has collateral agreements with each counterparty based on standard ISDA master

netting agreements, which specify minimum thresholds, asset class ond credit quality of collateral and the frequency of

valuation. While ecch party to the contract has a lggal right 1o the collateral received if the counterparty does not meet its

abligations, there is no right or intention to settle on a net basis and, therefore, these adgreements do not meet the criteria for

offsetting under [AS 32.

The Group returns/receives the collateral received/pledged upon contract termination ar settlerment. The amount of
collateral received/pledged fluctuates due ta the changes in fair value of the derivative subject to the minimum thresholds.

Derivatives

At 31 December 2021, the Group has £3,453 millien (2020: £3,862 million) of financial assets which have been pledged as security
under the terms of derivative contracts. The Group retains substanually all the nsks ond rewards of ownership in respect of the
transferred assets and consequently none of these assets have been derecognised In the financidl statements,

At 31 December 2021, the amount of collateral received by the Group was £1,088 million [2020: £881 millicn). While the Group
is permitted to sell or repledge collateral received, no collateral was actually sold or repledged in the absence of default
during the year {2020: £nil). The Group does not acquire substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership in respect of
the transferred assets and consaeguently none of the assets are recognised in the financial staterneants.

Buy-ins

In 2014, PIC concluded a pension insurance buy-in transaction to underwrite approximately £1.6 billion of pension labilities,
Under the terms af the agreement, a security structure was put In place which reguired PIC to transfer legal titie to certain
assets back to the Trustee as collateral against PIC default.

Under the terms of the security, the Trustee is free to use the assets without constraint; however, it is obliged to deliver
equivalent assets {defined as “an asset of the same type, nominal value, description and amount™), as well as the income
earned and ¢ains or losses incurred on these assets to PIC, PIC retains the right to replace any of the assets with assets
of similar nature.

Collateral is returned to PIC as it services the insured pension liabilities under the palicy. This, in theory, exposes FIC to
counterparty credit risk, which is, however, fully mitigated as PIiC has a contractual night to offset its obligation to pay under
the policy in the event of default by the Trustee, PIC retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership in respect
of the transferred assets and accordingly PIC continues to recognise the assets which it has pledged under title transfer
security in its financial statements, At 31 December 2021, this totalled £1.6 billion (2020: £1.7 bilion).

Reinsurance

In 2021, the Group has £795 million of financial assets which have been pledded as collateral under the terms of certain
reinsurance contracts (2020: £4569 million). At 31 December 2021, the Group hod pledped cash of £31 miliion (Z2020: £29 million]
as collateral under the terms of certain reinsurance contracts. The Group retains substantially ali the risks and rewards of
ownership In respect of the transferred assats and consequently none of these assets have been derecognised in the
financial stataments.

Lending arrangements
The Group enters Into a number of securities lending, sale and repurchase arrangements and reverse sale and
repurchase arrangements

Under securities lending arrangements, the Group lends on agreed debt security to o counterparty and receives collateral
in the form of eligible, investment grade debt securities as a security against petential counterparty default. In sale and
repurchase agreements, the Company receves cash for o specified period in return for providing collateral in the form

of UK gilts or other sovereign bonds. In reverse sale and repurchase arrangements, the Group provides cash for o specified
period and receves collateral in the form of UK gilts or other sovereign bonds.

In all cases the Group retains substantialiy ail the risks and rewards of ownership in respect of the transferred assets and
consequently none of these assets have been derecognised in the financial statements. The Group is also not exposed to
the risks and rewards of ownership of any assets received ond, consequently, none of these assets have been recognised
In the financial statements At 31 December 2021, the Group held assets of £1,007 million (2020: £1,168 million) related to
securities lending, sale and repurchase agreements, reverse sale and repurcnase agreements, and held £1,007 million

(2020: £1168 million) in gilts and cash as collaterai in respect of these arrongements
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Offsetting of financial assets and financial ligbilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position only

when there is an unconditional and a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amcunts in all circumstances
{including the default by, or insclvency or bankruptcy, of the Group and all counterparties), and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settie the liability simultaneously. Realisation of a financial asset and
settlerment of a financial liokility are trected as simultaneous only when the settlements are executed at the same time,
or within a single settiement process or cycle, resulting in no or insignificant credit and liquidity risk.

The Group has no financial assets and financial llabilities that have been offset in the Statement of Financial Position as ot
31 December 2021 {2020: £nil).

The table below contains disclosures related to financial assets and financial abilities that are subject to enforceable
master netting arrangements or similar agreemeants as required by IFRS 7.

Related amaunts not offset in the

Gross Netamou:mtf Statement of Financial Position
ampunts of asF
recognised Amounts inthe Finoncial Cash
financial offsetln Statementof instruments collataral Derivative
assets/ accordonce Financial {received)/ {recelved)/ {llablilitles}/ Net
{llabliitles) with IAS 32 Position pledged pledged assets amount
31December 2021 £m £m Em Em £m £m £m
Financial assets
Derivatives 15,018 - 15,018 {431) {657) {14,106) (176}
Delbt securities
- Government bonds 388 - 388 {278) {110} - -
- Corporate bonds 236 - 236 (236) - - -
Deposits with credit institutions 383 - 83 {383) - - -
Financial liabilities
Derivatives (16,997) - {16,997) 3,453 - 14,106 562
G Net ¢ Relgted amounts not offset in the
ross etamounts Statement of Financial Position
amounts of s recognised
recagnised Armounts Inthe Financial Cash
financial offsetin Statementof  instrurnents collateral Derivative
assets/ accordance Financial (received)/ {recewed)/ {liabilities)/ Net
{ligbilties) with [AS 32 Position piedged pledoed assets amount
31 Decarmber 2020 £m £m £m Cm £m £m £m
Financial assets
Derivatives 21936 - 21936 - {8B1) {20,840} 215
Debt securities
- Government bonds 270 - 270 {270) - - -
Deposits with cradit institutions 898 - 898 (898) - - -
Financial liabilities
Derivatives (24,340) - {24,340) 31,862 - 20,840 362

Measurement of financial assets and liabilities
The Group's financial assets and liabilities have been valued using the following methods in accordance with IAS 39
“Financial Instruments™,

The fair values of investments gquoted in an active market are based on their bid market prices. For unlisted secunties and

all other fimancial assets for which thare is no active market, the Group establishes fair value using appropriate valuation
techniques. These include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analysis, counterparty and broker valuations, and option pricing models. These assessments
are based largely on observable market data.
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11. Financial assets and financial liabilities continued
The specific valuation technigues used for the main classifications of financial assets and liakilities are:

[a) Investments in shares, debt securities, unit trusts and participation in investment schemes

The fair value of shares and delst securities is determined by reference to their quoted bid price at the reporting date,
Instruments quoted on o recognised stock exchange are generally considered to bhe level 1 and instrurments priced based
on recent broker quotations and alternative pricing sources in reasonably transparent markets are generally considered
1o be Level 2.

Fair values for debt securities, where quoted prices from third parties are not available, are estimated as the present

value of future cash flows, discounted at o rate based on vields for comparable quoted bonds, adjusted, where applicable,
for lliguidity and idiosyncratic risk. These include infrastructure and other private invastrment loans in respect of capital
projects. Where unobservable inputs do not significantly impact the fair value, these are classified as Level 2 within the

fair value hierarchy. Otherwise, they are classified as Level 3.

{b) MBS and ABS

The fair value of mortgage backed and other asset bocked securities is determined by reference to their quoted market
price. Due to the typeas of markets in which these instruments are traded, such instruments are usually classified as Level 2
within the fair value hierarchy.

Included within MBS and ABS investments are credit linked notes, which are classified as Level 3 within the fair value
hierarchy. The fair value of these notes is determined using a discounted cash flow model taking Into account the cash
flows, the capital structure and risk profile of each note and available market data such as recently traded prices for
comparable notes.

{c) Deposits with credit institutions

The fair value of deposits held with credit institutions represents their cash value in current terms. All deposits are short
term and consequantly no discounting adjustment has been made at the year end. Deposits with credit institutions are
classified as Level 1within the fair value hierarchy. By contrast there was one asset which had been measured using
ohservable inputs other thon quoted prices and therefore classified as Level 2 at 31 December 2020.

{d) Equity release mortgades

ERMs are loans secured against property that are repayable on death or entry iInte long-term care of the borrower,

The fair value of ERM assets is determined using a mark-to-maodel approach based on discounting projected future

cash flow arising from the loans, In addition to market obsarvable inputs (such as interest and inflation rates), key inputs

to the model also include assumptions relating to property price growth and volatlity, equivalent spread, mortality,
morbidity and early repayment rates, which are net market observable. Due to the sigmficant estimation uncertainty
involved in deriving the values, the ERMs are classified as Level 3 assets within the fair value hierarchy. Principal assumptions
underlying the valuation of ERM assets are set out below and sensitivities of the valuations to changes in the

key unobservable Inputs are disclosed on page 149,

Equivalent spread

The loan-by-loan equivalent spread is solved at the point of each loan's inception to equate the present value of the
expactad cash flows to 1ts face valuae. Subsequently each loan's equivalent spread is updated In ne with changes in the
spread of areference corporate bond index.

Future property prices

The property values at the reporting date are estimated using the most recent property valuation adjusted using

o property index. The projected property values refiact future property growth in line with the retail price index and
property volatility of 15%.

Early repayment rates
The Group has assumed early repayment rates of between 0.5% and 9% p.a. depending on the projection term, and
the loan’'s term since inception.

Mortality
The mortality assumptions are derived using the Continuous Mertality investigation ("CMI") 2019 mortality improvernents
and o multiple of the PXAQ8 mortality tables which varies by property postcode.

Dilapidation and sales costs
The valuation model allows for dilapidation and sales costs, both of which are set as a combined ossumption of 12% of the
value of the property ot the point of sale

No nedative equity guarantees

No negative eguity guarantees restrict the amount recoverable by the Group on repayment of the mortgage to the net sale
proceeds of the property The value of the guarantee is calculated using option pricing technigues, with the key Input being
volatility of future house price growth.
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The following table analyses the Group’s financial investments according to the basis of measurement reguired by IFRS13

“rair Value Measurement”.

Levelt Level 2 Level3 Total
31December 2021 £m £m £m £m
Debt securities
- Government bonds 10,772 193 - 17,965
- Corporale bonds - 18,543 a4 18,627
- Private investments - 2,698 6,323 9,021
MBS and ABS - 328 - 328
Equity release mortgagdes - - 1,082 1,082
Deposits with credit institutions 824 - - 824
Participation in investrent schemes 1,614 992 690 3,298
Financial investments 13,210 29,754 8179 51,143
Derivative assets - 15,018 - 15,018
Financial assets 13,210 44,702 8179 66,161
Derivative liabilities - {16,997) - {16,997)

Level 1 Lewve:l 2 Leval 3 Total
31 December 2020 {restated)” £rm fro £m £m
Debt securities
- Governrment bonds 13161 E,751 - 18,512
- Corporate bonds - 19274 - 19.274
- Private investments 90 1892 5,754 7736
MRS and ABS - 387 - 287
Fquity release mortgages - - 534 534
Deposits with credit institutions 344 150 - 494
Participation in investment schermes 957 BI1 463 2,3M
Financial investments 14,552 28,345 6751 459,648
Derivative assets - 21936 - 21,938
Financial assets 14,552 50,281 6,751 71,584
Derivative liabilities - {24,340) - (24,340)

* Comparatives have been restated to reflect the reallocation of participations in investment schemes that the Group now considers
to be Level 3. Debt securities have been analysed as dovernment bonds, corporate bends and private investments.

Level 1 assets are those assets for which the fair value has been measured using guoted prices, witheout adjustment, inan

active market.

Leve! 2 assets are those assets for which the fair value has been measured using observable inputs other than guoted prices

included in Level 1.

Leve! 3 assets are those assets for which no cbservable data exists in relation to a significant elerment of the fair

valie measurement.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy
For recurring fair value measurements, the Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value hierarchy levels
at the end of the year in which the avent or change in circumstances that caused the transfer hos occurred.

Transfers between Level 2 and Level 3

During the yvear, £92 million of financial investments were transferred from Level 2 to Level 3 (2020: £686 miilion) and

£384 million of financial investments were transferred out of Level 3 to Level 2 {2020 £237 million).
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11. Financial assets and financial liabilities continued

Transfers into and out of Level 3 relate to debt securities which are valued using discounted cash flow models, Within the
model, interest rate, inflation rate and credit risk assumptions are derived from market data with adjustments applied to
ensure they are relevant to the debt securities hald by the Group. Where the impact of the adjustments on the value of the
debt securities become significant, these securities are classified as Level 3 and transferred fram Level 2 to Level 3 at the end
of the year. Canversely, where the impact becomes less significant, the secunties are classified as Level 2 and transferred out

of Level 3 to Level 2.

Movements relating to Level 3 assets during the reporting period are analysed as follows:

Participation

MBS ininvestment
Debt securities and ABS ERM schemes Total
31Pecember 2021 Em £m Em £m £m
Opening balonce 5,754 - 534 463 6,751
Urrealised goins or lossas {256) - (13) {77) {346)
Acquisitions in year 1,338 - 561 304 2,203
Transfers into Level 3 92 - - - 92
Transfers out of Level 3 {384) - - - (384)
Disposals in year 137) - - - {137)
Closing balance 6,407 - 1,082 690 8179

Participation

Dekbt MBS in invastimeant
seclrites and ABS ERM schemes Total
31 December 2020 (restated)* £m € £m £m £m
Opening balance 3,681 7 414 434 4536
Unrealised gains or lasses 472 - 59 {24) 507
Acquisitions in year 1,237 - &1 130 1,428
Transfers into Level 3 686 - - - 886
Transters out of Level 3 {237} - - - (237)
Disposals inyear {85) (7) - {77) {169)
Closing balance 5754 - 534 463 6,751

' [Debt securities have beep analysed as governmeant bonds, corporate bonds and private investments.

The investment return within the Statement of Comprehensive Income includes the following income and investment gains

and losses relating to Level 3 assets:

Participation
Debt ininvestmant
sacuritles ERM schames Total
2021 £m £m £m £m
Investmeant income 93 46 - 139
Redlised gains or losses 1 (62) 105 44
Unrealised gains of losses {256) {13) on (346)
Investment return on Level 3 assets {182) (29) 28 {163)
Participation
Cebt inInvestment
secJnTes ERM schamaes Tatal
2020 {restated)” £m £m £ £rm
Investment income 78 2 - 80
Realised gains or losses 5 (2) {1 e
Unrealised gains or losses 472 59 (24) 507
Investment return on Level 3 assets 555 59 {35) 579
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As discussed previously, the valuations of financial assets clossified as Level 3 are, under certain circumstances,
measured using valuation technigues that incorporate assumptions based on uncbservable inputs which cannot

p01-78 Corporate Governance 79124

be evidenced by readily available market information.

The following table shows the effect on the fair value of Level 3 financial instruments from changes In uncbservable

input assumptions.

Current Incredse in Decreasein
fair value fair value fair value
M December 2021 Sensitivity £Em £m £m
Debt securities +/- 100 bps credit spread 6,407 1,405 {1,067)
ERM +/- 100 bps credit spread 1,082 79 (111}
+/-5% change in mortality assumption - - -
+/-20% change in property orices - 27 {50)
+/- 1% change in property growth assumption - 4 (8)
+/-10% change in voluntary redemption assumption - - (U]

Participation in
investment schemes +/-10% change in valuation assurmptions 490 69 (69)
8179 1,584 {1,306)
Current Increasein Decreasein
far votue fair value farvalue
31 Decamber 2020 (restated)” Sensitivity £m £m £m
Debt securities +/- 100 bps credit spread 5,754 1,303 {977}
ERM +/- 100 bps credit spread 534 El {55}
+/-5% change in mortality assumption - 1 N
+/-20% chande in property prices - 21 (34)
+/- 1% chande in property growth assumption - 2 {5)
+/-10% change in voluntary redemption assumption - 1 1)

Participation in
investrmeant schemes +/-10% change in valuation assumptions 463 46 (46)
6,751 1,405 (1,119)

* Comparotives hove been restated to reflect the recllocation of participations in investment schernes that the Group now considers

to be Level 3.
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12. Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recodnised at fair value on the date on which o derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at their fair value, The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts, futures and swaps
are based on market prices, where available. For swaps, market prices are calculated using discounted cash flow

techniques based on adjusted market data such as composite curves derived from a number of market counterparties.

Whilst derivative contracts may not be readily tradeable, the valuations are based on market observable inputs and
have consequently been classified as Level 2 assets within the fair value hierarchy.

All derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is pesitive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative. Net
gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instruments are recognised immediately
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within the heading investment return.

The Group enters into a number of inflation rate and interest rate swap agreernents during the ordinary course of business

as part of its risk management strategy to hedge its solvency position against changes in interast rates and inflation.,
Currency swaps and forward contracts are entered Into to eliminate the majority of the currency risk on financial assets
invested in non-sterling-based debt securities where labilities are denominated in sterling.

31December 2021 31 December 2020

Assets Liabilities Assals Liabihties

Em Em Em £m

Interest rate swaps 11,9048 {13,640) 18,738 19,335)
Inflation swaps 2,026 (1,800) 2,215 {4,023)
Credit default swaps 14 {30) - G
Currency swaps 959 {1,509) 266 (897}
Foreion exchange forward contracts 12 [v)] 8 [36)
Total return swaps 101 {1) g {43)
Total derivative position 15,018 {16,997) 21936 {24,340)

13. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amount of gssets and licbilities for financial
reporting purposes, and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the

expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates ruling at the

date the timing difference is expected to reverse.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that they are regarded as recoverable, that is to the extent that,
an the basis of all available evidence, it can be regarded as more likely than not that sufficient future taxable profits wil
be availoble against which the asset can be utilised.

At 31 December 2021, the Group's deferred tax balances calcutated in accordance with 1AS 12 “income Taxes” were
as follows:

Agset Liability Total
Em £m £m
31 December 2021
Timing differences 4 V)] 3
31 December 2020
Timing differences 3 (2) 1
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The mavement In the deferred tax balance during the year was as follows;

20 2020

£m £rr

At beginning of year 1 -
Change in net deferred tax asset due to temporary timing differences 2 7
At end of year 3 1

The Group has £nil other timing differencas or tax losses carried forward as ot 31 December 2021 (2020 £nil) which may
give rise to reduced tax charges in future pericds.

The corporation tax rate wili increase from 19% to 25% from 1 April 2023, as per The Finance Act 2021. The Group has
considered when the timing differences are expected to raverse and used the appropriate tax rate in calculating the
deferred tax.

14. Insurance contracts and related insurance liabilities

Contract classification

IFRS 4 "Insurance Contracts” requires policyholder contracts written by insurers to be ciassified as either insurance
contracts or investment contracts depending on the leve! of insurance risk transferred. Insurance contracts are defined
as those contracts containing significant insurance risk if, and only if, an insured event could cause an insurer to make
significant additional poyments in any scenario, excluding scenarios that lack commercial substance, at the inception
of the contract. Such contracts remain insurance contracts until all rights and obligations are extinguished or expire.

Policyholder contracts which do not transfer significant insurance risk to the insurer are classified as investment contracts.
The Group has classified all its policyholder contracts as insurance contracts.

Insurance liabilities

Insurance licbilities are determinad by the Group's internat actuarial departrent, using recognised actuarial methods and
assumptions approved by the Directors. The ligbilities are calculated using assumptions which are generally equivalent to
those used for reporting under Solvency Il but with the addition of prudent margins in some instances and an alternative
methodology for the discount rate. The liabilities are then adjusted to remove certain items which are not required to be
recognised as insurance ligbilities under IFRS 4,

insurance liabilities comprise the present value of future annuity payments to current policyholders, increased to take
due account of investment expenses and future administration costs associated with the maintenance of the in-force
business. Estimates of future obligations to policyholders allow for the impact of martality in line with the bases set
out below. These bases have been derived having redard to recent UK general population mortality experience, the
demographic profile of the Group's in-farce business and the Group's own internal mortality experience, and include
an allowance for imgprovements in fongevity in the future.

The interest rate used for discounting future claims payments and the associated expenses is derived from the yield on
the assets held to back those liabilities and includes an allowance for risks, including credit risk, associated with holding
these assets.

Premiums

Premiums are received in consideration for compieting an insurance policy with the trustees of the paension scheme. They
are recognised and valued on the day risk Is accepted. Any adiustments to premiums following work performed during
the transition of a scheme are recognised and valued at the date they become payable or receivable by the Group.

No taxes or duties are payable on premiums.

Claims

Claims and benefits payable consist of regular annuities paid to policyholders, pension scheme members and
beneficiaries, and surrenders which consist of full settlements of transfers out and partial settlement of tax-free cash
compoenents of pension benefits, Annuities and surrenders are recognised when due for payment. Death claims are
accounted for when notified, at which time the policy ceases to be included within the calculation of the insurance
contract fighilities. If the terms of the policy enable a spouse or dependant to receive a benefit, then the policy record
will reflect this to ensure the continuing spouse benefits are paid.

Prepayments
Prepayments include annuity payments made to pension schemes in advance of the Statement of Financial Position date
to ensure settlement of the following month’'s annuity payments to policyholders on ¢ timely basis.
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14. Insurance contracts and related insurance liabilities continued
The Group’s liabilities in relation to future policyholders' benefits are:

2021 2020
£y £m

Future policyholders’ benefits
Gross 47,013 44,835
Reinsurance (3,359} (2,773}
Net 43,663 42,062

The reinsured ligbiiities Include ligbilities ceded under longevity reinsurance contracts with extaernal counterparties and
immediate and deferred annuity payments ceded under external quata share arrangements.

() Terms and conditions of insurance contracts

The Group’s iInsurance liabillities represent contracts that provide immediate annuities for current pensioners and deferred
annuities for members who are not yet drawing pensions. Annuities in deferment and in payment can be level, subjact to
fixed increases or increases linked to inflaticn or a mixture of the three, and in many cases are also subject to defined caps
and floors on the increases that can be applied. The insurance liabilities also include member options, such as the option
to commute part of the pension for a tax-free cash lump sum on vesting, and annuities payable to spouses or other
dependants on the death of the main member.

The Group's insurance contracts are a mixture of “buy-in” peolicies, where the policyholder is the pension scheme and the
nsured liabilities cover defined benefits within the scheme, and “buyout” palicias, where the policyhalder 1s an individual.

Insurance liabilities are calculated as the present value of future annuity payments and expensas. The principal assumptions
used in the calculation are set out below.

(b) Principal assumptions used in the preparation of insurance liabilities

Mortality assumptions

The base mortality assurnptions as at 31 December 2021 inherent in the projected cash flows used in the valuation of
insurance contract iabilities are set with reference to the S3 serias mortality tablas published by the CMI, a research body
with strong links to the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries in the UK,

Adjustments are apphied to these according to a number of factors including, but not limited to, an individual's sex, ade,
pension amount, occupation and place of residence.

The assumgtion for future improvements to mortality is modelled using the CMI 2019 model.
Both the base mortality and improvements tables weare updated in 2020. No further changes were made during 2021,

Valuation rate of interest (“VRI”)

The VRIis set at 100% of the risk adjusted yield on assets backing llabilities Risk adjustments are applied for credit risk associated
with the assets held to match labilities. Those risk adjustments, applied vid a fixed basis points default allowance by asset, based on
historic levels of default and downgrade with prudent margins, are principally driven by ratings changes in cur investment portfolio

The rate calculated in cccordance with these adjustments as at 31 December 2021 was 1.77% for both index-linked liahilities
and non-linked habihtias {2020: 1.25% combined rate).

Inflation

The assumption for expected future Retail Price Index {"RPI") nflation is based on a curve derived from the markat prices
of inflation-linked swap contracts. The Consumer Price Index ("CPI") inflation assumption is atso derived from this curve but
additionally allows for the expectad gap ("wedge”) between CPlinfiation and RPI inflation. For Limited Price Index (“LPI™)
linked annuities, which are subject to maximum and minimum percentage annual increases, a mark-to-model approach

is used to allow for the inherent optionality, as there is currently no deep and liguid market in appropriate swap contracts.

Other assumptions

The internal costs of maintaining the existing insurance contracts, the fees poyable to third party administrators engaged

o manage payments due under the in-force policies, fees due te reinsurers and investment management expenses are
factored into the calculation of habilities by addins copropriate allowances, and include an estirmate of the impact of future
inflation where this is applicable. No allowances are included for expenses incurred in relation te the generation of new business
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Covid-19

The Covid-19 pandemic 1s ongoing and its economic and demographic implications remain highly uncertain. As such,

it is considered that there is currently insufficient evidence to maoke specific adjustments to long-term insurance liability
assumptions, but sensitivities to changes in key related assumptions, notably credit and mortality, are included in section e).

{c) Movements

The following table analyses the movement between the net insurance hakilities at the beginning and the end of the year
into its major components. The main reasens for the Increase are the new business written in the year and changes in
underilying econamir nssiimphinns

Gross  Reinsurance Net
2021 £m £m £m
At beginning of year 44,835 {2,773) 42,062
Increase inliability from new business 5,088 - 5,088
Impact of reinsurance entered into in the year - {998) (998)
Reduction in liability from claims {1,886) 113 {1,773)
Impact of investrment volatility {251) 200 (51
Changes in valuation assumptions {410) 48 (362)
Other movements (363) &0 {303)
At end of year 47,013 (3,350) 43,663

Gross Remnsurance Net
2020 £m £m £m
At beginning of year 37683 {2,598) 35,065
Increase in liakility from new business 5721 8 5,713
Impact of reinsurance entered into in the year - (739) 1739)
Reduction in ligbility from claims (1,653) 17 {1,636)
Impact of investment volatility 4,065 (525) 3540
Changes invalugtion gssumptions 1,273} 979 {294)
Other movements 312 101 413
At end of year 44,835 (2,773) 42,062

The movements during the year relating to economic and non-economic assumptions, as shown in the above table,
camprise the following items:

Impact of investment volatility
Valuation interest rates are affected by the movernent in long-term interest rates, inflation expectations and credit spreads.

The main drivers of the movemeants are increasing GBP interest rates which reduced liabilities, partly otfset by higher inflation
and credit spread movements which increased net liabilities.

Changes in valuation assumptions
The movements during the year relating to valuation assumptions comprise the following items:

» Maintenance expense assumptions were updated to reflect current buddets and business volumes, and a reduction in the
prudential margin, leading to an overall increase N reserves.

» Investment expense assumptions were updated to reflect the outcome of a review of contractual custodian fees and the
remaoval of the prudential margin, generating a release of reserves,

» Default rates used in the VRI calculation were Updated for more racent default experience data, generating a release
of reserves.

Reinvestment and disinvestment rates used in the derivation of the VRI were changed to remove an element of prudence
in the calculation, resulting in a release inreserves.

LPI/CPI inflation assumptions were updated following the recent RPI reform, leading to a release of reserves.
s All other assumptions were reviewed and updated where necessary to reflect current operating conditions.
Other movements

Other movements primarily comprise the unwind of the valuation rate of interest, the reduction in ligbilities from expenses
and fees, together with the impact of data changes and asset trading and transfers.
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14. Insurance contracts and related insurance liabilities continued

(d) Analysis of expected maturity of gross and net insurance contract liabilities
The table below indicates the net insurance contract habilities analysed by duration, showing the discounted valuas of the
policy cash flows estimated to arise during each period.

Within in In Over
one year 1-5 years 5-15 years 15 years Total
Em Em Em £m £m
Deferred onnuities
Gross 93 793 2,447 7,344 10,677
Reinsurance {17 (89) (333) {1,658) (2,097)
As at 31 December 2021 76 704 2114 5,686 8,580
Annuities in payment
35ross 1,773 6,768 14,196 13,599 36,336
Reinsurance 54 159 {136} {1,330) (1,253)
As at 31 December 2021 1,827 6,927 14,060 12,269 35,083
Within In In Qver
orne yeqr 1-5 years 5-15 yeors 15 years Total
£rm Al £m £m £m

Deferred annuities
Gross a5 726 2,330 7,314 10,465
Reinsurance (14} (77) {294) {1,721 {27086)
As at 31 December 2020 81 649 2,036 5,593 8,359
Annuities in payment
Gross 1612 6,233 13,363 13762 34,370
Reinsuronce &6 214 75 1,022} (667)
As at 31 December 2020 1.678 6,447 13438 12,140 33,703

{e) Sensitivity analysis

In accordance with IFRS 4 and [FRS 7 "Financtal Instruments. Disclosuras” the Directors have considered the effect on
profits and equity at 31 December 2021 resulting from changes in a number of key assumptions. The effect of each of the
assumption changes is considered in isolation on the basis that all other key assumptions remain unaltered The net iImpact
of this sensitivity analysis on financial instrurments and insuronce contract liabilities is set out in the table below.

20 2020
Post-tax Post-tax
Pre-tox changein Pre-tox change ir
change in prafit and change in profit ond
profit equity profit aquity
31 December £m Em Em £m
100 bps incredse ininterest rates 100 81 {639) {517}
100 bps decrease ininterest rates (369) {299) 428 347
50 bps iIncrense ininflation {restatedy” {227 {184) (43Y 139)
50 bps decrease in inflation {restated)” 21 260 172 139
Base mortality (see below) {193) {157} (188) (152)
Mortality improvements {see below) {58) (80) (92) {74)
Renewal expenses (see below) {165) {137) {147} {119}
Exchange raotes {(see bejow) {10) {8) (10} (8)
Credit spreads incredase of 100 bps 13 n {64) (51

© 2020 inflation sensitinaties have been restated
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Parameters for exchange rate, longevity and renewal expense sensitivities
The base martality sensitivity is based on a 5% reduction in the base mortality rates. This s equivalent to a 0.4 year increase
inlife expectancy from 22.9 years to 23 .3 years for a typical male aged 65.

The mortality improvements sensitivity is based on a 0.1% increase in annual mortality improvement rates. This is equivalent
to a 0.2 year increase in life expectancy from 229 years to 231 years for a typical male aged 65,

The expense sensitivity is based on an increase in annual mantenance expenses (including third party administration costs) of 15%.
The exchange rate sensitivity is based on the weakening of US Dollar and Euro against sterling by 1%.
The key assumptions, methodology and limitations of the sensitivity analysis are as follows:

= The effects of the specified changes in factors are determined based on the year-end financial instrument values. The
lavel of mavements in market factors on which the sensitivity analyses are based were determined based on economic
forecasts and historical experience of variations in these factors. The sensitivity analysis is based on the risks to which the
Group 15 exposed at the end of tha reporting period, and reflects the changes in relevant risk variables that are reasonably
possible at this date and over the next reporting period. The sensitivities used are based around the core assumptions in
the financial statements rather than considering more extreme scenarios.

+ Each entry in the sensitivity table demaonstrates the effect of a change in a single key assumption while other assumptions
remain unchanged. However, the occurrence of a change in a single market factor will cften lead to changes in other
market factors. In particular, the Group's use of derivativas is designed to ensure that Its exgosure to interest and inflation
risks is carefully managed.

{f} Reinsurance results
Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts covered under each of the
in-force reinsurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract.

All reinsurance entered into by the Group is with external counterparties.

Premiums payable under quota share reinsurance contracts are recognised at the inception of each reinsurance contract.
In cases whare the amount of premiums due to the reinsurer has not been finalised at the end of a reperting period, an
estimate is made in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract. Subsequent adjustments to the premium
payable are accounted for in the period in which the adjustment arises.

Premiums payable for reinsurance ceded are recopnised in the period in which the benefit of the reinsurance treaty is
recognised within insurance contract liabilities.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of short-term balances due from reinsurers, together with longer-term receivables that are dependent on
the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance contracts.

The Group has twa types of quota share reinsurance arrangements. The first type are quota share agreements

with externaci reinsurers covering all policyholder benefit payments for a proportion of the business reinsured. This
proportion varies between 50% and 100% for certain discrete blocks of business. The secend type is a tail-risk guota
share arrangement with an external reinsurer under which 100% of all benefit payments after a fixed period (subject
to certain treaty-specific limits) are covered in return for an initial single premium,

The Group has alse entered into a number of longevity reinsurance contracts with external reinsurers under which it has
committed to pay the reinsurer a schedule of fixed payments {the “fixed line”) in respect of expected claims relating to
defined tranches of policyholder benefits and in return the reinsurer undertakes to reimburse the actual cost of claims on
those tranches to the Group. Separately, there is also a reinsurance fee on each of these contracts for which the Group is
ligble. Settiement of the contract is on a net basis. The amounts receivable from or payable to reinsurers are recognised
as Reinsurers’ share of insurance ligbilities in the Statement of Financial Position.

Fees paid in respect of certain longevity reinsurance contracts which are contingent on surplus levels under the historical
solvency redime are recognised as incurred and are included under outward reinsurance premiums.

Reinsurance recoveries are accountead for in the sarme period as the related claim is incurred.

The Group impairs its reinsurance assets if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred ofter initial
recognition of the reinsurance asset, that not all amounts due to it under the terms of the contract will be received and
the impact of the evant on the amount to be received from the reinsurer can be reliably measured. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the reinsurance asset’'s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
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14. Insurance contracts and related insurance liabilities continued
The effect of reinsurance contracts entered into by the Group on profit pefore taxation 1s as follows:

2021 2020

£m £in

Qutward reinsurance premiums {846) (517)
Reinsurers’ share of claims paid 59 47
Changes in reinsurers’ share of Insurance liablities 527 175
Net effect of reinsurance contracts on profit before taxation {210) {295)

Reinsurance assets have increased during the year due to entering into new quotd share arrangemeants,

15, Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair vaiue, which is the cash consideration received net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings classified as liabilities are subseauently stated at amortised cost. The difference between the net proceeds
and the redemption value is recognised in the Stotement of Comprehensive income over the borrowing period using the

effective interest method.

20N 2020
Carrying Carrying

value Fair value value Fair value
Loan notes £m £m £m £m
£300m notes matunng 2024 298 33 298 362
E£250m notes maturing 2026 249 317 248 335
£350m notes maturing 2030 347 418 347 450
£300m notes maturing 2031 299 332 299 367
£400m notes maturing 2032 397 410 357 445
Total 1,590 1,810 1589 1,959

On 3 July 2014, the Group's main subsidiary entity, PIC, issued £300 millian subordingted loan notes due 2024 with g fixed

coupon of 6.5% paid annually In arrears. The notes were issued at 99.107% of par.

On 23 November 2016, PIC 1ssued o further tranche of £250 million subordinated loan notes due 2026 with a fixed coupon

of 8.0% paid annually in arrears. These notes were issued at 98.916% of par.

On 20 September 2018, PIC issued a further trtanche of £350 million subardinated loan notes due 2030 with a fixed coupon

of 5.625% pad annudlly in arrears. These notes were issued at $9.693% of par.

On 7 May 2020, PIC issuad a further tranche of £300 million subordinated loan notes due 2031 with @ fixed coupon of 4.625%

paid annually in arrears. These notes were issued at 99.554% of par,

On 21 October 2020, PIC issued o further tranche of £400 millon subordinated loan notes due 2032 with a fixed coupon

of 3.625% paid annually in arrears. These notes were 1ssued at 98129% of par.

All notes represent direct, unsecured and subordinated oblisations of PIC, and are classified as qualifying dated Tier 2

securities for the purposes of regulatory capital requirements. The notes are listed on the London Stock Exchange.,

The fair value s the quoted price of the [ogn notes, The ioan notes have been classified as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

Fimance costs comprise the interest expense on borrowings, which is calculated using the effective interest method. For
the year ended 31 December 2021, an interest expense of £88 millon (2020: £72 million} was recoagnised in the Statement

of Comprehensive Income in raspect of the notes.
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16. Risk management
As a provider of insurance solutions to defined benefit pension schames, the Group's business involves the acceptance
and management of risk to achieve its strategic objectives.

The principal risk factors which affect the Group’s operating results and financial condition include financial risks such as
market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk, insurance risk, and other risks such as operational risk, regulatory risk, conduct risk
and reputational risk.

Insurance risk is implicit in the Group’s business and mainly arises frorn exposure to londevity in respect of annuity payments.
Regulatory risk stems principally from the rnisk of changes to the regulatory environment in which PIC operates. The main
reputational risks relate to the need to maintain o good reputation with trustees of pension schemes and their advisers in
order to attract new business and with 1ts own policyholders through treating them fairly. Maintaning  good internal culture
15 recognised as a key ool in mitigating these risks

The Directors have overall responsikility for the management of the exposure to these risks. They cre supported through

the formal committees of the PIC Board including the Investment and Origination Committee, Audit Committes, Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Risk Committee and ESG Committee. The membership of these committeas is maoinly
comprised of Non-Executive Directors. Executive Directors and relevant senior management attend meetings as requested.
The Board retains direct responsibility for reputational risk. The PIC Board has instigated a coordinated approach betweaen
the Risk, Compliance, Actuarial and Internal Audit functions to provide integrated assurance in the monitoring of the internal
risk and contral environment

The management and control of the Group's risks is a significant focus area for the Board, as an uncontrolled and unmanaged
development in various risks may affect the Group's performance and capital adeguacy. The Group adopts an integrated view
to the management and qualitative assessment of risk under risk acceptance guidelines and policies set by the Board and aims
to minimise its exposure to risks such as interest rate risk and inflation risk, which carry little reward for the Group. Risks such as
longevity risk are mitisated through reinsurance to the extent that it is econemic to do so.

The Group uses derivatives for the purpaose of efficient portfolio management or to reduce risk in aspects of the Group’s
investment activities such as the implemantation of tactical asset allocation changes around the strategic benchmark,
the hedging of cash flows and the contral of the risk profile of an identified stratedy. The Group uses Cross currency-swaps,
forward exchange contracts and futures for these purposes. It also uses interest and inflation rate swaps for the purpose
of matching assets and liabilities, and credit default swaps to manage credit risk.

(a) Market risk

The Group is exposed to market risk as a consequence of fluctuations in values cr returns on assets and labilities which

are influenced by one or more external market factors. Thase include changes and volatility in interest rates, credit spreads,
inflation expectations, currency exchange rates and property risk.

The Group is expased to interest rate risk through mismatches in the value of, or income from, specific assets and liabilities
that arise from changes in interest rates, The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates 1s concentrated in the investment
portfolio and its insurance obligations.

Infiation risk is the risk of fluctuations in the value of, or income from, specific assets and liabilities that arise from changes
in the rate of inflation. Exposure to inflation occurs in the Group’s assets and liabilities with index linkages.

Credit spread risk is the risk of fluctuations in the value of the Group’s debt investment portfolio, arising from changes in
market perception of default, downgrade and ilquidity risk.

Currency risk arises frem fluctuations in the value of, or income from, assets denominated in foreign currencies, from relative
or absolute changes in foreign exchange rate. Exposure to currency risk arises from the Group's investment in non-sterling
denominated assets.

Property risk arises fram fluctuations in property prices. Exposure to property risk arises from direct holdings in investrment
property and indirect exposure through the provision of ERMs, where No Negative Equity Guarantees {"NNEGs") restrict the
amount recoverable by the Group on repayment of the mortgage to the net sale proceeds of the property.

The Group manages market risk through on asset ligbility managerment {("aLM") framewark that has been developed to
closely match the investmant portfolio duration and income to its abligations under insurance contracts.

Within the context of the ALM framewaork, the Group uses derivative financial instruments to reduce market risk. Interest
rate and inflation swaps are entered into to improve the matching of asset and liability cash fiows, and ensure that risk
driver sensitivities are aligned across the maturity spectrum. The quality of the interest rate and inflation matching
stratedies is carefully monitored by management, and is operated within tightly defined limits. Currency forwards and
swaps are entered into to eliminate the majority of the currency risk on fingncial assets invested in non-sterling-based
debt securities where ligbilities are denominated in sterling.
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16. Risk management continued

Short-term investment property risk is mitigated by entering into Jong-term legse arrancemeants. The Group performs regular
reviews of both the movement in the property market specific to these properties and the financial status of the tenants
ERM property risk is mitigated by ensuring that the advance reprasents a low proportion of the property's value at outset,
based an independent valuations, and ongoing dilapidation reviews.,

Further asset exposures include investrments in hadpe funds, insurance linked funds and public Tinance Initiative-related
debt, including social housing, Where appropriate, the management of these clternative exposures s delegoted to specialist
fund managers, in line with defined investment management mandates In all cases the Group ensures regular oversight of
the investment management activities, and maintains detailed risk models for allinvestment types, incorporating analysis
of alternative investments in its risk and capital assessment.

{b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the default of another party in performing its financial obligations to the Group
The Group is primarily exposed to credit risk through 1ts Investment in debt securities

Credit risk also arises in respect of derivative contracts to the extent that there is the notential for the countaerparties to
default on their obligations.

The Group manages exposure to credit risk by placing limits on exposures to individual counterparties as well as groups of
counterparties. Counterparty risk on derivatives is controlled through establishment of collateral agreements ond master
netting agreements on interast rate and currency swaps. To further manage cradit risk, the financial condition of
counterparties is monitored on a regular basis.

The table below sets out the credit risk exposure and ratings of financial assets which are susceptible to credit risk.
The ratings used have been sourced from S&P, Moody's of Fitch, or have been assisned internally where the ratings from
these agencies were not available. The remaining unrated assets are not classified by S&P, Moody's, Fitch or internally.

AAA AA A BBg? BE Unrated Total
31 December 2021 £m Em Em Em £m Em £m
Financial investments
Debt securities'
- Government bonds 693 15,467 718 1,087 - - 17,965
- Corporate bonds 1,608 1,580 6,820 8,351 13 257 18,627
- Private investments 138 3,250 3,659 1,837 72 85 8,021
MBS and ABS? - n 287 30 - - 328
Equity release mortgages - - - - - 1,082 1,082
Deposits with credit institutions - 550 231 - - 43 824
Participation in investment
schemes 1,614 - - - 81 1,501 3,296
4,051 20,858 n,Nns 11,305 266 2,948 51,143
Other assets
Derivative assets - - - - - 15,018 15,018
Receivables and other financial
assets 23 47 74 139 1 - 284
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 199 - - 199
23 47 74 338 1 15,018 15,501

1 Within Debt securntias tnere are £138 million AAA rated, £2,516 million AA rated, £3,426 milion A rated, £1967 million BEB rated
ond £72 million BB rated securities, which have been rated using internally assessed credit ratings,

2 Within MBS and ABS there are £5 million A rated securities which have been rated using internally assessed credit ratings.

3 Within the BBB rated Financial Investments there are £1,224 milion of BBB- rated assets,
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ALA AA A Boe? BB Unratad Total
31 December 2020n {restated)* fm fm £m £in £m £m £m
Finoncial investments
Debt secunties'
- Gowvernment bonds 654 16,810 683 765 - - 18,917
- Corporate bonds 1,861 1512 7,642 8,025 18 218 19,274
-~ Private iInvestments 140 2,629 3,258 1,560 78 71 7736
MBS and ABS® - il 38 49 3 s 387
Equity release mortgages - - - - - 534 534
Dapasits with credit institutions - 273 221 - - - 494
Participation in investment
schemes a7 - - - 126 1228 2,31
3,612 21,235 12122 10,399 223 2,057 49,648
Other gssets
Derivative assets - - - - - 21936 21936
Receivables and other financial
assets 25 47 83 105 1 22 283
Cash and cash equivalents - - - 214 - - 214
25 47 a3 e 1 21558 22,433

Debt securities have been analysed as povernment bonds, corporate bonds and private investments,

1 Within Debt securities there are £223 milion AAA rated, £2,227 million AA rated, £2,882 million A rated, £1,188 million BBB rated ang
£78 millicn BB rated securities, which have been rated using internally assessad credit ratings.

2 Within MBS and ABS there are £4 milllion A rated securities which have been rated using internally assessed credit ratings.

3 Within the Within the BBB rated Financial investments there are £1,217 millan of BBB- rated assets.

Although the derivative asset instruments themselves are unrated, the ultimate issung party for most derivotive assets does
have a credit rating, Additionally, the derivatives are fully collateralised with highly rated instruments, so s to mitigote any
credit or counterparty risk. Applying the 1ssuer rating to the assets held at 31 December 2021 produces the following split:

AAA AA A BBB BB Unrated Total
31December 2021 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Derivative assets - 3,589 1,350 75 - 4 15,018

AAA AA A BBB BB Unrated Total
31 December 2020 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Derivative assets - 3,600 16,423 1913 - - 21936

These assets are included with regular stress testing undertaken by the Group which assesses the impact of a number of
scenarios on the Group's solvency position.

Reinsurance counterparties

The Group has reinsurance contracts in place with 14 external reinsurers with an exposure of £3,350 million at 31 December
2021 12020: £2,773 million). Measures are in place with respect to the reinsurance contracts to manage counterporty exposure,
including collateral arrangements and other protections. The credit rating of each reinsurer is reported to management on

da monthly basis. The credit rating of each remsurer was A or higher ot both 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,

Impaired assets
The Group did not have any impaired or past due date assets at 31 December 2021 (2020: £nil).
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16. Risk management continued
{c) Ligquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group may not have liquid assets available at the right times to be able to pay its liabilities,

despite the fact that it meets its regulatory solvency reguirements, This would typically anse if derivative contracls to

managde inflation and interest rates required collateral to be posted, a large proportion of deferred policyholders opted

to take transfer values, or If o ldarge proportion of gssets were invested in assets which are not easy or straightforward

to liquidate.

In order to manage this, projected cash flows for all new policy liabilities taken on are determined as a part of the new
business arigination process 1o identify the expected prafile of liability payments, including expected mortality experience
This is then used to identify appropriate assets which provide matching cash flows at an acceptable price.

The Group’s risk policies define ¢ minimum proportion of 1ts assets to be held in highly liguid cash and gilts, which can be
readily converted to cash or used as collateral against movements in its derivative contracts. Stress testing is conducted
to ensure that there are sufficient liguid assets at all times to meet potenticl demands from derivative maovements under

extreme scenarios.

The projected cash flows are updated regularly, and assumptions are updated at least annually, taking into account factors

such as mortality experience and how this affects the required cash flows in the future.

The following table sets out the contractual maturity analysis of financial ligkilities. All amounts for non-dervative lobilities
are on an undiscounted basis, including interest where applicable, so will nat always reconcile to the amounts disclosed in
the Statement of Financial Position. Derivative liabilities relate primarily te inflatien rate and interest rate swops to hedge the

Group’s solvency position,

Carrying Within n1-5 InS-1% Over
value one year years years 15 years Total
31December 2021 m £m £m £m £m £m
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 19 19 - ~ - 19
Other creditors 28 28 - - - 28
Accruals 122 122 - - - 122
Borrowings 1,590 88 861 1,285 - 2,234
Derivative liabilities 16,997 18 699 2,17 13,403 16,997
18,756 435 1,560 4,002 13,403 19,400

Carrying Within 7 i-5 In5-15 aver
value ane yeaor Vears years 15 years Totcl
31December 2020 £m £m Em £m £m £m
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 16 16 - - - 16
Other creditors 4 4 - - - 4
Accruals 105 105 - - - 105
Borrowings 1,58% 88 631 1,603 - 2,322
Derivative liabilities 24,340 176 802 3182 20180 24,340
26,054 389 1433 4,785 20180 26,787

All amounts due to other creditors are expected to be paid in the next financial year.

The amounts disclosed in more than 1 year columns in the above table are expected to be settled more than 12 months after

the reporting date.

{d) Insurance risk

Longevity risk 15 the risk that the martality experience of the Group's policyholders is lighter than assumed, thus requiring
pensions to be paid for a longer period than anticipated, resulting in a higher than expected cost to the Group.

in order to help minimise this risk and also uncertainty arsing through future longevity experience, the Group adopts
an active approach to remnsuring these risks where it is economic to do so. This reinsurance can be classified into two

broad categories;
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Longevity only reinsurance

This provides longevity cover in respect of certan policyholders. Under thase contracts, the Group has committed to pay
the reinsurer a fixed kne of cash flows for specified sets of liabilities relating to members/former members of particular
pension schemes, The reinsurer undertakes to raimburse the actual cost of claims to the Group, Separately, there is alsa
areinsurance fee for which the Group is hable. Settlement of the contract is on a net basis. These contracts aiso transfer
the contingent longevity risk relating to any elgible dependants of relevant policyholders.

Quota share reinsurance - longdevity reinsurance via the transfer of assets

Under such contracts, in return for an initial single premium, the reinsurer agrees to reimiburse the actual cost of future claims
to the Group in respect of an agreed set of policyholders. These contracts also transfer the contingent risks refating to eligitle
dependants of relevant policyholders,

The Group monitors the levels of its counterparty risk and actively seeks to reinsure with a wide range of providers to help
mitigate its exposure to any one such entity.

One aspect of deriving overall best estimate longevity assumptions is to establish the “current” or “initial” rotes of martality.
These assumptions are set by applying appropriate mortality factors to each individual member/policyholder. Individual
varigtions are subject to a number of factors including, but not Imited to, an individual's gender, age, pension amount,
occupation and place of residence.

The other aspect is the allowance for future improvements in mortality. The pattern in which mortality is expected to
improve over time is an impertant but complex assumption for cash flow and liability calculations. This is regularly reviewed
in the light of a number of factors including evalving methodolodies for these projections together with views from industry
and professional bodies on the factors driving mortality chaonge.

Whilst longevity risk is the fundamental risk relating to its insurance liability portfolio, the Group also considers the
following risks:

Risk arising from a specific insurance contract
The Group considers, as part of its risk management process, the risk attached to each new contract acceptaed and the
mitigation of such risk.

Exposure to changdes in financial market conditions

The Group prepares information based upon a range of possible market conditions in order to assess the potential impact
an the balance sheet and the management actions available to help mitigate this. During 2027, this has included scenarios
assessing the potential macro-ecanomic impacts on PIC’s solvency and liquidity pesition arising from the Covid-19 pandemic
tc ensure adequate controls are in place to mitigate the potentiat balonce sheet impacts of market movements under

a range of adverse scenarios.

(e) Operationalrisk

Operational risk is the potential for loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from
external events. The Group’s internal control processes are supported by an operational risk committee, the maintenance
of a centrairisk register and an independent internal gudit review. The risk of internal fraud is managed through a number

of processes including the screening of staff at recruitment, regular compliance training, segregation of duties and whistle-
blowing policies.

The Group has significant outsourcing arrangements in respect of pension administration and other functions. These
arrangements are subject to agreements with formal service levels, operate within agreed authority limits and are subject
to regular review by senior manogement.

Emergency and business continuity plans have also been established to counter adverse occurrences.

These plans were cctivated in 2020 and cperated throughout 2020 and 2021 as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. This
reguired the Group to take ¢ number of actions internally and with its outsourcing partners in accordance with its business
continuity plans in order to maintain services to stakeholders, protect its staff and comply with national and regionat
measures. These megsures ensured that the Group was able to continue to operate throughout the pandemic with no loss
of service and within its risk appetite.
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17. Related party transactions

Transactions with Directors and key management personnel
Key management personnel comprise Directors of the Company and members of the Executive Committee.

200 2020

Em £

Short-term employee benefits 9 9
Share-based payments 5 4
Total 14 13

Total loans to Directors and key personnel in respect of share plans weare fully repaid in the year. The balance of loans
outstanding at 31 December 2020 were £7 million.

The Group had no other transactions with Directors and key managerment personnel during the period other than in relation
to awards made under the Share Growth Plan which are detailed in Note 7.

Other related party transactions

On 8 June 2021, PIC subscribed to €150 million 1.48% semor notes in Capital Investors Europe PBI Limited, a company within
the CVC Group. Another member of the CVC Group is a significant sharehoelder of PICG. Investment income during the period
amounted to £1 million and the carrying value of the investment at 31 December 2021 was £126 millon.

18. Share capital
2021 2020
Number Nurmber

of shares £m o’ shares £m
Ordinary shares
Authorised, issued and fully paid
At beginning of year 1,330,995,077 2 1,085,093,439 2
Shares issued in the period 3,208,330 - 245,201,638 -
C shares converted in to ordinary shares 2,000 - - -
Shares at the end of the period 1,334,205,407 2 1,330,995,077 2
C shares
At beginning and end of year 2,000 - 2,000 -
C shares converted in to ordinary shares {2,000) - - -
Shares at the end of the period - - 2,000 -

During the year, an additional 3,208,330 ordinary sharas were issued as settlement to participants of the Share Growth Plan 2017

On 13 February 2020, the Group announced its intention to raise £750 million of share capital. This was completed as two
draw-downs in 2020 resulting in an incredase in share premium of £750 million and an increase in the number of shares issued
of 245,901,638,

The rights attaching to each class of shares existing at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Ordinary shares

Voting rights are only conferred on the holders of ordinary shares, except when a resolution relates to a change of rights or
privieges of convertible deferred shares or the winding up of the Company Ordinary shares are the only ¢lass entitled to
dividends or distributions of income unless otherwise determined by the Board.

Conversion of C shares to ordinary shares
Following the vesting of the 2017 Growth Share Plan on 1 January 2021, 2,000 C shares were converted into ordinary shares,
An additional 3,208,330 ordinary shares were glso 1ssued to the participants as settlement of the plan
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19. Restricted Tier 1 notes

In 2015, PIC issued £450 mitlion RT1 notes. After considering and analysing the terms of the notes against the debt and
equity classification reguirements of |AS 3%, the notes have been classified as equity. it was determined that the notes
did not impose any obligation on PIC to deliver cash or other financial assets to the holders of the notes because:

s the notes are perpetual, with no fixed redemption or maturity date;

s interest is payable and cancellable at the sole discretion of PIC; and

e interest is non-cumulative.

The interest paoyments arising are recognised in equity upon payment.

2021 2020
£m Em
Restricted Tier 1 notes 444 444

On 25 July 2019, PIC issued £450 million of RT1 debt capital loan notes with o fixed coupon of 7.375% paid semi-annually in
arrears. In 2021 the total coupon paid was £33 million {(2020: £33 million).

20. Reserves

Group
Capitel Share-based
Share Treasury Merger reduction paymeant Retalned
pramium shares reserve rasarve rasarve profit
A1 December 2021 £m Em Em £m £m £m
At beginning of year 870 (25) 34 1,055 14 1,773
Total comprehensive income - - - - - an
RT1 coupon - - - - - {33)
Tax on RT1coupon - - - - - '
Sale of treasury shares 3 n - - B -
Exercise of share-based payment schemes - 6 - - (5) m
Share-based poyment charde - - - - 12 -
Share purchases and share scheme
contributions - {31) - - - {1)
At end of year 873 (19) 34 1,055 21 2,055
Capital  Share-based
Share Treasury Merger reduction payment Retained
premium shares reserve reserve reserve profit
31 December 2020 £m £m £m £rm £m £m
At beginning of year 120 (32} 34 1,055 15 1.576
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 222
RT1coupon - - - - - (33)
Tax on RT1 coupon - - - - - &
Equity raise 750 - - - - -
Exercise of share-based payment schemes - 8 - - {8) -
Share-based payment charge - - - - 7 -
Share purchases and share scheme
contributions - 1} - - - 2
At end of year 870 {25) 34 1055 14 1,773

Treasury shares relate to the shares purchased by EBTs in respect of the Company’s share-based payment awards.

A capital reduction reserve was established on 21 October 2018, when the Company reduced the nominal value of its
ordinary shares from £1to £0.00161678179673884 in accordance with the relevont Special Resolution.

The Group carried qut a group reorganisation in December 2015, which led te a recognition of a merder reserve of £34 million
in respect of the amaount by which the book value of the Pension Corporation Group Limited {"PCG") exceeded tha nominal
value of shares issued by PICG to acquire the PCG Group.

A share-based payment reserve is recognised In respect of the equity settled share-based payment awards in accordance with
the accounting policy in Note 7 The relevant disclosures in respect of the share-based poyment schemes are provided in Note 7.
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21, Capital resources

The Board’s paolicy 1s to maintain a strong capital base to protect palicyhelders’ and creditars’ interests and ensure
compliance with the relevant financial services regulations, whilst creating sharehslder value. The Group's capital
resoufCes comprise equity and debt capital. The details of the Group’s eguity capital resourceas are given in the
Staternent of Changes in Equity.

The Group's main subsidiary, PIC, is required to measure and manage its copital in accordance with the requirements
of the EU Solvency Il Framewaork Directive (“Solvency 11"}, as adopted by the PRA and retained under UK law. There are certain

valuation differences between the IFRS balance sheet and the Solvency |l balance sheet, for example between IFRS

insurance Lahkilities and Solvency Il technical provisions, Also, under Solvency Il PIC is able to treat the subordinated debt
referred to in Note 15 as regulatory capital. PIC has complied with the capitel requirements under Selvency Il throughout

the year.

PIC currently has sufficient capital resources available to meet all its present capital requirements,

2021 2020

vnaudited unaudited

£m £rr

Net assets held in excess of best estimate iabilities ("BEL") 7938 8,063
Risk margin net of transitionals i {1,269) {1.353)
Own Funds 6,669 6,710
Solvency Il capital requirements (3.968) 4,261
Solverncy Il surplus 2,701 2,449
Salvency ratio 168% 157%

PIC’s objectives in rnanaging its capital are:

s to match the profile of its assets and liakilities closely, taking account of the risks inherent in the business;
e to maintain financial strength sufficient to support new business growth inline with PIC’s business plan;

« to satisfy the contractual entitlements of its policyholders and the requirements of its regulators;

= to ensure financial flexibility by maintaining strong liguidity and access to a range of capital markets;

» 1o allocate capital efficiently to support growth;

= to manage exposure to changes in interest and inflation rates by way of o comprehensive hedging programme; and

* 1o Mmanage axposure to movements in exchange rates.

Under Solvency I, PIC uses an Internal Model to set its statutory solvency capital requirement. This evaluates market risk,
nsuronce risk, operational risk, expense risk and counterparty risk. In addition, PIC produces an ORSA report annually,

which provides an analysis of the risks facing PIC and its capital resources.

PIC manages its business according to the risk strategy, appetite and tolerances set out in its risk policies. In cccordance
with this, PIC defines risk appetite limits for solvency and a target level of cagital that it wishes to maintain, which PIC
regularly monitors and reports. Capital volatility is managed through risk management technigues, including the use of
inflation rate, interest rate and currency hedging instruments to reduce exposure to potential adverse market movements,
PIC is also able to manage its capital position through the level of new biusiness 1t writes and 1ts broader investrment and

reinsurance strategies.

PIC focuses on hedging its Solvency |l balance sheet through hedging its technical provisions and solvency capital

requirerment to interest rates and inflation rates. PIC aims to rermove all foreign exchangde risk through cross-currency hedging
Longevity risk is managed through reinsurance, where 85% of exposure has been transferred as at 31 December 2021,

based on best estimate liabilities.
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22. Financial commitments and contingencies

Other commitments

During the year, the Group executed transactions to purchase partly funded securities relating to private investments.
The Group expects to pay a further £571 million within the next five years (2020° £1,085 million), £389 million of this being
due within 12 months of the financial reporting date {2020: £797 million)

2021 2020

£m £m

Within 1yoar 389 77
In1-5years 182 292
571 1,089

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s maximum commitment under contractual obligations to construct investment property
is £216 million {(2020: £113 miliion). The obligations cover a period of up to approximately four years.

Contingent liabilities

The Group has certain reinsurance agreements, which include fees that are contingent on occurrence of specific events,
Such fees do not meet the definition of g liability, and therefore are not recognisad on the Statement of Financial Position.
At 31 December 2021, the estimated value of the contingent fees payable was £8 million {(2020: £ million). The Group
considers that there were no other events which could lead te contingencies in the ardinary course of business.
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Parent company financial statements

Statement of financial position for the Company

as at 31 December 2021

2021 2020

MNote Em £mi
Assets
Investments in subsidiaries 2 1,952 1,952
Recelvables and other financial assets 3 33 29
Cuash and cash equivalents 3 6 -
Total Assets 1991 1,981
Equity
Share capital 2 2
Share premium 873 870
Treasury shares {19} {25)
Merger reserve 34 34
Capital reduction reserve 1,055 10585
Share-based payment reserve n 14
Retained profit 23 25
Total Equity 1,989 1975
Liabilities
Other payables 3 2 6
Total Lisbilities 2
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,91 1981

The acceunting policies and notes on pages 169 to 171 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financidl statements were approved by the Board of Diraectors on 11 March 2022 and were signed onits behalf by:

4%\._‘_&%%1
Tracy Blackwell

Director
Registered numbper: 09740110
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Parent company financial statements

Corporate Gavernance

p79-124

Statement of changes in equity for the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021

Share-
Capital based
Share Share Treasury Merger reduction payment Retained
capital premium shares reserve reserve reserve profit Total
31 December 2021 £m £m £m £Em £m £m £m £m
At beginning of year 2 ar (25) 24 1,055 14 25 1975
Total comprehensive income - - - - - - - -
Profit for the year
Transactions with owners
Sale of traasury shares - 3 N - - - - 34
Exercise of share-based payment
schemes - - 8 - - {5) L) -
Share-based poyrment charge - - - - - 12 - 12
Share purchases and share scheme
contributions - - {31) - - - [y) {32)
At end of year 2 873 {19) 34 1,055 21 23 1,989
Share-
Capital bosed
Share Share Treqsury Merger  reduction payment Retained
capital pramium shares reserve reserve reserve profit Total
31 December 2020 £m £m £m £m £m f£m £m £m
At bedinning of year 2 120 {32) 34 1,085 13 27 1.219
Total comprehensive income
Profit for the year - - - - - - - -
Transactions with owners
Equity raise - 750 - - - - - 750
Exercise of share-baosed payment
schemes - - 8 - - {8) -
Share-based payment charge - - - - - 7 -
Share purchases and share scheme
contributions - - {1} - - - 2 1
Allgnment of Share-based payment
reserve - - - - - 2 {4 (2}
At end of vear 2 870 (25) 34 1,055 14 25 1975

The accounting policies and notes on pages 169 to 171 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Company statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020

£m £
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit far the year - -
Changesin operating assets and liabilities
Increase in receivables and other financial assets {4) {10}
(Decrease)/increase in other payables (4) 2

® 8
Cash outflow from operating activities {8) {8)
Financing activities
Share repurchases and contributions {32} 1
Financing of share-based payment schermes 12 5
Increase in investment in subsidiaries - {750)
Proceeds from sale of treasury shares 34 -
Proceeds from issue of equity - 750
Cash inflow from financing activities 14 6
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents & (2)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year i - 2
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year & -

The accounting policies and notes on pages 169 to 171 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Parent company financial statements
Notes to the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021

1. Accounting policies

The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{"IFRS"Y in conformity with the requirements of the Companias Act 2006. The Campany’s accounting policies are aligned with
those of the Group, as set out in the relevant notes 1o the Group's finanaial statements, with the only exception to this being

Investments in Subsidiarias, which are not relevant at Group level,

Investments in subsidiories are carried at cost less, where appropriate, allowances for impairment in the Company's financial
statements. Where indicators of impairment exist, the carrying value of the investment in the subsidiary is compared against
its recaverable amount, which is the higher of the fair value less cost to sell or the value in use, with any resulting impairment

recorded in the income statement.

There were na other malerial critical accounting estimates used or judgements made by monagement in the preparation

of these financial statements,

The Company has applied all IFRS and interpretations that are adopted by the UK and are effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1January 2021 The Company has also cansistently applied its accounting policies to all

periods presented in these financial statements. The application, in 2021, of "Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions kbeyond

30 June 2021 (Amendments to IFRS 16)", and "Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 {Amendments to IFRS 9, [AS 35,

IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)” have had noimpact on the Company.

Disclosures in relation to the Company's Share Capital and other reserves are provided in Notes 18 and 20 of the Group's
consolidated financial statements. The disclosures required by IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment’ are provided in Note 7 of the
Group’s coensolidated financial statements. The total expense borne by the company in relation to share-based payments

was £nil (2020: £nil}.

2. Investments in subsidiaries
The Company's investmeants in subsidiary undertakings are as follows:

2021 2020
£m £m
Cost
At start of year 1952 1,202
Additions - 750
At end of the year 1,952 1952
Net book value
31 December 1,952 1952
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Parent company financial statements

Notes to the financial statements of the Company continued

for the year ended 31 December 2021

2. Investments in subsidiaries continued
PICG owns 100% of the equity capital of ali the following entities. All subsidiaries have been consclidated inthe accounts.

Subsidiary undertokings

Principal activity

Country of incorporation

Share class

PIC Holdings Limited’
Pension Insurance Corporation plc

Pension Services Caorporation Limited

PIC ERM 1 Limited

PIC Properties GP Limited*

PIC Properties Limited Partnership?
PIC New Victoria GP Limited?

PIC New Victoria Nominee Limited?
PIC New Victoria Unit Trust

PIC New Victoria Limited Partnership?

PIC Wiltern GP Limited?

PIC wiitern Nominee Limited®
PIC Wiltern Unit Trust

PIC Wittern Limited Partnership?
PIC Bowback GP Limited?®

PIC Bowback Nominee Limited?
PIC Bowback Unit Trust

PIC Bowback Limited Partnership?
PLE Unit Trust

STH Unit Trust

TBW Ut Trust

TNT Unit Trust

WOR Unit Trust

BSF Unit Trust

CVT Unit Trust

GLS Unit Trust

Holding company

Bulk annuity insurance

Service company
Investment activity
General partner

Investment holding entity

General partner

Nominee company
Investment activity
Investment activity
General partner

Nominea company
Investment activity
Investment activity
General partner

Nominee company
Investment activity
Investment activity
Investrment activity
Investment activity
investrment achivity
investment activity
Investment activity
Investment activity
Investment activity
Investment activity

England
England
England
England
Engiond
England
England
gngland
Guernsey
England
England
England
Guernsey
England
England
England
cuarnsay
England
Guernsey
Guernsey
Guernsey
Guernsay
Guernsey
cuernsey
Guernsey
Guarnsey

COrdinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Partnership
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Urnit trust
Pdrtnership
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Unit trust
Parinersnip
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Unit trust
Partnership
Unit trust

Unit trust

Unit frust

Unit trust

Unit trust

Unit trust

Unit trust

Uit trust

1 Denotes irvastment held directly by the Company at 31 December 2021

2 Denotes entities that have claimed exemption from audit by virtue of either section 479 of the Companies Act 2006, or Regulation 7

of the Partnerships {Account) Regulations.

Subsidiaries incorporated in England are registered at 14 Cornhill, London EC3V 3ND
Substdiaries incorporatad in Guernsey are registered at Western Suite, Ground Floor, Mill Court, La Charroterig, St Peter Port, Guernsey GY11EJ

3. Financial assets and financial liabilities

All of the Compony's financial assets and liabitities are valued at amortised cost as detaled below:

2021 2020
Amortised Amartised
cost cast
£m £ra
Financial Assets

Receivables and other financial assets 33 29
Cash and cash equivalents '3 ) -
Total Financial Assets 39 29

Financial Liobilities
6

Other payables

Total Financial Liabilities

Included within receivables and other fingncial assets are amounts totalling £2 million (2020: £3 million) due to be received
after more than one yeor. All amounts relating to other payables are expected 1o be settled within one year.
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4, Related party transactions
{a) Transactions with certain Directors and key management personnel

Share-based payment transactions with the key management personnel are detalled in Note 17 of the Group

financial statements

{b} Balances with subsidiary companies
During the year the Company had the following balances with subsidiary companies:

Transactions dunng the year

Balunce al 31 December

2021 2020 2021 2020

£m £m £m £m

Amounts owed by Group undertakings n 8 Eil 20

{c) Capital transactions with subsidiary companies

During the year the Company had the following capital transactions with subsidiary companies:

2021 2020

£m £m

Fquity investment in subsidiary undertakings - {750)

Share-hased payment charge recharged to subsidiary undertakings 12 7

m



Glossary

Annuities

A type of insurance policy that pays out regular
amounts of benefit to the policyholder for the
remainder of insured individual's lifetime and, in certain
cases, that of their spouse and/ or dependants. The
payments may commence iImmediately {“immediate
annuity"] or may be deferred to commence from a future
date, such as the date of retirement {"deferred annuity”).
Immediate annuities and deferred annuities may be
purchased for an individual and his or her dependants
or an a bulk purchase basis for groups of individuals,

Solvency Il best estimate liability (BEL")

The best estimate liakility represents the value of future
liability and expense cash flows. It is based on realistic
assumptions with no prudent marging {other than in the
default and downgdrade assumptions stipulated for the
calculation of the valuation discount rate) and is calculated
using well-established actuarial and statistical methods.

Carbon Neutrality
The focus on not increasing carbon emissions and of
achieving carbon reduction through offsets.

Cost of residual non-hedgeable risks (“"CRNHR"}
Under the Market Consistent Embedded value ("MCEV"),
allowance for the cost of holding capital in respect of
non-hedgeable risks. Market risks are assurmed to be
hedgeable and so no cast is allowed for any capital

that might be held under the regulatory solvency regime.
Longevity risk in respect of deferred annuities is treated
as non-hedgeable except to the extent that it has
actually been hedged, typically using reinsurance.
Pensioner longevity is treated as remnsurable and

hence hedgeable regardless as to whether it has
actually been reinsured or not.

Defined benefit {'DB") pension plan

An employer-sponsored retirement benefit plan where the
benefits promised to the members of the plan are defined
according to a formula typically based on factors such as
salary history and curation of ernployment. Investment risk
and portfolio managemeant are entirely under the control
of the trustees of the pension plan and not the employee
or employer.

Derivatives

Derivatives are securities that derive their value from an
underlying asset or benchmark. The Group uses derivatives
to hedge out certain market risks, in particular inflation,
interest rates and currency risks associated with tsoth

new and existing business.

Financial investments

Represents all assets actively managed or administered
by or on beholf of the institution including thase assets
managed by third parties.

Frictional cost of required capital (“FCoC")

The cost associated with the assets used to support reguired

capital under MCEY, principally in respect of investment
manadement fees and tax on invastmeant income.

MSCI

Finance company and plobal provider of equity, fixed
income, real estate indexeas, mult-asset portfolio analysis
tools, ESG and climate products.

Net Zero

The focus on actively reducing greenhouse gas emissions to
the maximum possible level so that the residual emissions
can be neutralized by carbon offsetting as a last resort.
Offsetting is used to counteract remaining emissions after
all recduction initigtives have been implemented.

PIC’s internal model

Arisk management system developed by PIC to andlyse
its overall risk position, to guantify risks and to determine
the capital required to meet those risks. PIC has obtained
appropriate approval from the PRA to use its internal
model to calculate its solvency capital requirerment
under Solvency |l

Present value of future profits (“PVFP")
Represents the prasent value, after tax, of the future
release of regulatory margins, such as risk margin.

Prudential Regulation Authority {"PRA")

The PRA s a part of the Bank of England and i1s responsible
for the prudential regulation of deposit-taking institutions,
insurers and major investment firms.

Risk margin (“RM")

Life insurance companies hold technical provisions {reserves)
calculated on actuarial bases 1o ensure they have sufficient
funds available to pay their technical liabilities when they
falt due. The technical provisions comprise ¢ BEL and ¢ RM,
The RM calculation, which is prescribed under the Solvency Il
regulations, is intended to represant the amount that

a notional third party, a reference undertaking, would
require in order to take over the ligbilities and have

sufficient capital to support them over their future lifetime.

Scope 1emissions
Emissions that are directly generated by the company.

Scope 2 emissions

Emissions that are created by the generagtion of the
electricity or heat needed by the company to sell its main
products or provide its main services {indirect emissions).

Scope 3 emissions
Ernissions caused by the entire value chain
indirect emissions).

Solvency ]

An ElU-wide regulatory regime which intends to alion
solvency capital to aninsurers’ risk profile. Solvency Il
was implementad on 1 January 2016,
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Solvency capital requirement (“SCR")

The SCR represents the capital that the Company needs to
hald in order to be able ta survive a 1-in-200 year nsk ovent
avear the 12 months following the balaonce sheet date.

PIC calculates its SCR using a Campany-spocific model

{the internal maodel which hos been approved by the PRA.
The main components of the SCR for PIC are market risk
and insurance risk, but the internal model alse covers
counterporty default risk, expense risk and operaticnal risk.

Standard formula

A risk-based mathematical formula used by insurers
to calculate their solvency capital requirement under
Solvency Il The standard formula s intended for use
by most EU insurers, atthough they may use an internal
modelinstead, subject ta regulatory approval

Technical provisions (“TP")
The value of technical provisions on the Solvency [l basis
is equal to the sum of the BEL and a RM.

Temperature alignment
The projected temperature rise by 2100 from
pre-industrial levels,

Transitional measures (“TMTP")

PIC uses a transitional measures deduction on technical
provisions in its Solvency Il balance sheet. The TMTP allows
companies to smooth the transition from the previous
regulatory regime to the Solvency Il approach, for example
in having to set up the risk margin. The TMTP only applies in
respact of business that was in force at 31 December 2015,
and it runs off linearly to zero over 16 years,

Value of in-force {(“VIF")

This 1s the discounted value of after-tax profits expected
to emearge from the in-force business over time, and is used
in the embedded value calculation.
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T. +44 (0)20 7105 2000
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E. infe@pensioncorporation.com

Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited (“PICG”): Supplementary note for the
2021 financial statements.

This document constitutes a supplementary note for the purposes of section 454 of the Companies
Act 2006 and the Companies {(Revision of Defective Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008,

This supplementary note revises footnote 2 of the Investment in subsidiaries’ note of the financial
statements found on page 170 of PICG's original Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31
December 2021, (see appendix 1), and is to be treated as forming part of those financial statements.

The financial statements have been revised as at the date on which the original financial statements
were approved by the board of directors and not as at the date of the revision and accordingly do not
deal with events between those dates.

The original financial statements failed to comply with the Companies Act 2006 in as much as the
subsidiary audit exemption referred to in footnote 2 should have referenced section 479A of the

Companies Act 2006, but instead referred to section 479.
The supplementary note was approved by the Board of Directors of PICG on § December 2022.

Revision to Note 2 — Investments in subsidiaries of the financial statements.

2.Investments in subsidiaries

2 Denotes entities that have claimed exemption from audit by virtue of either section 4794 of the Companies Act 20086, or
Regulation 7 of the Partnerships (Account) Regulations.

DL = WY
[

Tracy Blackwell
Director
Registration number: 09740110

Pension Insurance Corporation Group Umited is registerad in England and Wales under compary number 02740110, Its registered office is at 14 Cornhill, London EC3Y 3ND.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited
(“PICG™) Limited

Opinion

We have audited the revised group and parent company financial statements (the “revised financial
statements™) of Pension Insurance Corporation Group Limited (the “company”) for the year ended 31*
December 2021 which comprise the statement of comprehensive income for the Group, statement of
financial position for the Group and Company, the statement of changes in equity for the Group and
Company, the Group and Parent statement of cash flows and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 1.

In our opinion:

+ the revised group financial statements give a true and fair view, seen as at the date the original
financial statements were approved, ot the state of the group’s affairs as at 11 March 2022 and of
its profit for the period then ended;

¢ the revised group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international
accounting standards in conformity with the requiremments of the Companies Act 2006 seen as at the
date the original financial statements were approved;

¢ the revised parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, seen as at the date the
original financial statements werc approved, of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at 11
March 2022;

o the revised parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of, and as applied in
accordance with the provisions of, the Companies Act 2006 seen as at the date the original financial
statements were approved;

¢ the revised financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as
it has effect under the Companies (Revision of Defective Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008
(“the Regulations™); and

» the original financial statements for the year ended 31* December 2021 failed to comply with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 in the respects identified by the directors in the statement
contained in the supplementary note

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)™)
and applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient
and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter — revision of Investment in subsidiaries’ note

We draw attention to the disclosures made in the supplementary note concerning the need to revise
the Investment in subsidiaries’ note found on page 170 of PICG’s original Annual Report and
Accounts 2021, The revised financial statements replace the original financial statements
approved by the directors on 11 March 2022 and consist of the attached supplementary note together
with the original financial statements which were circulated to members on 11 March 2022. They
have been prepared under the Companies (Revision of Defective Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 (“the Regulations™) and accordingly do not take account of events which have
taken place after the date on which the original financial statements were approved on 11 March
2022 . Our previous report was signed on that date. We have not performed a subsequent events
review for the period from the date of our previous report to the date of this report. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.
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Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend
to liquidate the group or to ccase their operations, and as they have concluded that the group comparny’s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for
at least a year from the date of approval of the original financial statements {*“the going concern period™).

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the group’s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the group and company’s financial resources or ability
to continue operations over the going concern period.

Qur conclusions based on this work:

e we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of
the financial statements is appropriate; and

+ we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessmernt that there is not, a material
uncertainty related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the group ’s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the
above conclusions are not a guarantee that the group will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks™) we assessed events or conditions
that could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud.
Our risk assessment procedures included:

. Enquiring of directors, the audit committee, internal audit and inspection of policy
documentation as to the Group’s high-level policies and procedures to prevent and detect fraud,
including the Group’s channel for “whistleblowing”, as well as whether they have knowledge of any
actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

. Reading Board, Audit Committee, Risk Committee, Investment and Origination and Credit
Committee minutes.

. Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets for management/
directors.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications
of fraud throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible pressures to meet profit targets, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that
management may be in a positicn to make inappropriate accounting entries and the risk of bias in
accounting estimates and judgements such as valuation of insurance contract liabilities. On this audit
we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition because there is no management
judgement or estimation involved in recording the revenue streams and the amounts are contractually
derived.

In order to address the risk of fraud specifically as it relates to the valuation of insurance contract
liabilities, we involved actuarial specialists to assist in our challenge of management. We challenged
management in relation to the selection of assumptions and the appropriateness of the rationale for any
changes, the consistency of the selected assumptions across different aspects of the financial reporting
process and comparison to our understanding of the business, irends in experience, policyholder
behaviour and economic conditions and also by reference to market practice. Further detail in respect
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of these is set out in the audit response to the risks associated with this key audit matter in section 2 of
this report.

In determining the audit procedures we took into account the results of our evaluation and testing of the
operating effectiveness of the Group-wide fraud risk management controls

We performed procedures including:

. Identifying journal entries and other adjustments to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included those posted by unauthorised user,
those including specific words based on our criteria, those journals which were unbalanced, posted to
seldom used accounts, those posted to unusual accounts, those posted at the end of the period and/or
post-closing eniries with little or no description and unusual journal entries posted to either cash or
revenue.

. Assessing significant accounting estimates for bias.

Identitying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect
on the financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion
with the directors and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of
the Group’s regulatory and legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other
management the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any
indications of non-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Group is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation,
and taxation legislation and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as
part of our procedures on the reiated financial statement items.

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-
compliance could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for
instance through the imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most
likely to have such an effect: regulatory capital and liquidity and certain aspects of Group legislation
recognizing the financial nature of the Group’s activities and its legal form. Auditing standards limit
the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of
the directors and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore, if a breach of
operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not
detect a breach,

For the revision of the financial statements matter discussed in the supplementary note we assessed
disclosures against the requirements of Companies {Revision of Defective Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008,

No other matters related to actual or suspected te breaches of laws or regulations, for which disclosure
is not necessary, were identified.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected
some material misstatemnents in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and
performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing standards would
identify it.
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In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
controls. OQur audit procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for
preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and
regulations.

Strategic report and directors’ report

The dircetors are responsibie for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider
whether, based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated
or inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

. we have not identified material misstatements in those revised reports;

» in our opinion the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the
financial year is consistent with the revised financial statements; and

. in cur opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not heen kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

s the revised parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns; or

+ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
s we have not received all the information and exptanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for: the preparation of the revised financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of revised financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or crror; assessing the group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
they either intend to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
so. Under section 454 of the Companies Act 2006 the directors have the authority to revise financial
statements if they do not comply with the Act. The revised financial statements must be amended in
accordance with the Companies (Revision of Defective Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008, These
require that the revised financial statements show a true and fair view as if they were prepared and
approved by the dircctors as at the date of the original financial statements and accordingly do not take
aceount of events which have taken place after the date on which the original financial statements were
approved.

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the revised financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an
auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Classified as Confidential



Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at
www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The audit of revised financial statements also includes the performance of procedures to assess whether
the revisions made by the directors are appropriate and have been properly made.

The purposc of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006 and as required by paragraph 7 of the Regulations. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state
to them in such an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s menibers
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

sty ol

Philip Smart (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square
Canary Wharf
London

El4 5GL

5 December 2022
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